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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED

Our Company was incorporated as “Cyber Media (India) Limited” at New Delhi as a Public Limited
Company under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, vide Certificate of Incorporation dated
September 10, 1982 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana. Further, the Company
received the Certificate for Commencement of Business from the Registrar of Companies, Delhi &
Haryana on October 20, 1982. The Corporate Identification Number (CIN) of the Company is
L92114DL1982PLC014334. For further details please refer to the section titled “General Information”
beginning on page 47 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Corporate Identity Number: L92114DL1982PLC014334
Registered Office: D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi-110017, India
Corporate Office: B-35, Sector -32 Institutional Area, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122003
Contact person: Mr. Anoop Singh, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Telephone: +91-124-423 7517 | E-mail id: info@cybermedia.co.in | Website: www.cybermedia.co.in

ISSUE OF UPTO [e] PARTLY PAID UP EQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF X 10 /-
EACH OF OUR COMPANY (THE "RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES™) FOR CASH AT A PRICE
OF X [e] /- PER RIGHTS EQUITY SHARE (“INCLUDING A PREMIUM OF % [¢] PER
RIGHTS EQUITY SHARE”) (“ISSUE PRICE”) AGREEGATING UPTO % 1000 /- LAKHS#
ON A RIGHTS BASIS TO THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR
COMPANY AS ON THE RECORD DATE (“ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS”) IN
THE RATIO OF [e] ([e]) EQUITY SHARE(S) FOR EVERY |[e] ([e]) FULLY PAID-UP
EQUITY SHARES HELD BY THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS ON THE
RECORD DATE, THAT IS [e] (“RECORD DATE”) (THE "ISSUE"). FOR FURTHER
DETAILS, PLEASE REFER TO "TERMS OF THE ISSUE" ON PAGE 195 OF THIS DRAFT
LETTER OF OFFER.

# Assuming full subscription in the Issue and receipt of all Call Monies with respect to the Rights Equity

Shares. Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment. For further details on Payment Schedule, see “Terms
of the Issue — Terms of Payment” on page 195.

Amount payable per Rights Equity Share | Face Value (¥) | Premium ) |  Total (%)
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On Application [o] [e] (]

On one or more additional Calls with [e] [e] [e]
terms and conditions such as the number
of Calls and the timing and quantum of
each Call as may be decided by our Board
/ Rights Issue Committee from time to
time

Total (%) 10.00 [o] [e]

For further details on payment schedule, see Terms of the Issue- terms of payment on page 195.

Investment in equity and equity related securities involves a degree of risk and investors should not
invest any funds in the Issue unless they can afford to take the risk with such investment. Investors
are advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an investment decision in the Issue. For
taking an investment decision, investors shall rely on their own examination of our Company and the
Issue including the risks involved. The securities being offered in the Issue have not been
recommended or approved by the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI™) nor does SEBI
guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this Draft Letter of Offer. Specific attention of the investors is
invited to "Risk Factors" beginning on page 24 of this Draft Letter of Offer before making an
investment in this Issue.

Our Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this
Draft Letter of Offer contains all information with regard to our Company and the Issue, which is
material in the context of the Issue, and that the information contained in this Draft Letter of Offer is
true and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading in any material respect, that the opinions
and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there are no other facts, the omission of
which makes this Draft Letter of Offer as a whole or any such information or the expression of any
such opinions or intentions misleading in any material respects.

The existing Equity Shares of our Company are listed on BSE Limited ("BSE") and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”, and together with BSE, the “Stock Exchanges”). Our Company
has received ‘in-principle’ approval from the BSE and NSE for listing the Rights Equity Shares to be
allotted pursuant to this Issue vide letter dated [®]. Our Company will also make application to the
Stock Exchanges to obtain their trading approval for the Rights Entitlements as required under the
SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22,
2020. For the purpose of this Issue, the Designated Stock Exchange is National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (“Designated Stock Exchange”).

(®) MUFG

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Known as Link Intime India Private Limited)
C-101, Embassy 247, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083
Telephone: +91-22-4918 6000; Email: mohan.devadiga@in.mpms.mufg.com
\Website: www.mpms.mufg.com; Investor grievance e-mail: mohan.devadiga@in.mpms.mufg.com
SEBI Registration No.: INR000004058; Contact Person: Mr. Mohan Devadiga

ISSUE OPENS ON LAST DATE FOR ON MARKET| ISSUE CLOSES
RENUNCIATIONS* ON*

[e] [e] [e]
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* Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer
is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the
Renouncee(s) on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

# The Board of Directors or Rights Issue Committee of the Company will have the right to extend
the Issue period as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 (thirty) days from the
Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of Application
shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date.
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SECTION I: GENERAL
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Draft Letter of Offer uses the definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which you should consider
when reading the information contained herein. The following list of certain capitalised terms used in this
Draft Letter of Offer is intended for the convenience of the reader/prospective investor only and is not
exhaustive.

References to any legislation, act, regulation, rules, guidelines or policies shall be to such legislation, act,
regulation, rules, guidelines or policies as amended, supplemented, or re-enacted from time to time and
any reference to a statutory provision shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time
under that provision.

The words and expressions used in this Draft Letter of Offer but not defined herein, shall have, to the
extent applicable, the meaning ascribed to such terms under the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, the SCRA, the Depositories Act, Takeover Regulations, or the rules and regulations made
thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms used in "Statement of Special Tax Benefits" and
"Financial Statements" beginning on pages 62 and 92 respectively of this Draft Letter of Offer, shall have
the meaning given to such terms in such sections.

Company and Industry Related Terms
Term Description

"Our Company" or "the Cyber Media (India) Limited, incorporated under the Companies Act 1956,

Company" or "the
Issuer"

We, Our, Us or our
Group

"Articles of
Association"
Acrticles/AcA
“Audit Committee”

Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements

Associate Company

"Board" or "Board of
Directors"
“Company Secretary

having its Registered office at D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi-110017
& Corporate Office at B-35, Sector -32 Institutional Area, Gurgaon, Haryana,
India, 122003

Unless the context otherwise requires, indicates or implies, or unless otherwise
specified, our Company together with our Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and
Associates, on a consolidated basis.

The Atrticles of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time.

The Committee of the Board of Directors constituted as the Company’s Audit
Committee in accordance with Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013.

The audited consolidated financial statements of our Company as at and for the
financial years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 which comprises
the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the
consolidated statement of profit and loss for the years ended March 31, 2024
and March 31, 2023, including other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the years then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information. For details, see “Financial Statements/Financial Results” on page
92.

Associate Company namely “Cyber Media Foundation Limited ”.

The Board of Directors of the Company or a duly constituted committee thereof
or its duly authorised individuals.
Mr. Anoop Singh, the Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer of the

1



Term

and

Compliance Officer”
Directors

Equity Shareholders
Equity Shares

Financial
Statements

Independent Director

Key Managerial
Personnel/ KMP
Materiality Policy

Material Subsidiaries

Memorandum of
Association or MOA
Promoter

Promoter Group

Registered and
Corporate Office
Registrar of Companies
/ RoC

Statutory Auditors
Subsidiary Company

Unaudited Consolidated

Financial Results

Issue Related Terms

Description
Company.

The Directors on the Company’s Board, as may be appointed from time to time.
A holder of Equity Shares of the Company, from time to time.

Equity Shares of face value of 10/- each of our Company, unless otherwise
specified.

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and Unaudited Consolidated
Financial Results. For details, see “Financial Statements / Financial Results”
on page 92.

Independent directors on the Board, who are eligible to be appointed as
independent directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
SEBI Listing Regulations. For details of the Independent Directors, see "Our
Management" beginning on page 74 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

The key managerial personnel of our Company as per the definition provided in
Regulation 2(1) (bb) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

A policy adopted by our Company for identification of material litigation(s) for
the purpose of disclosure of the same in this Draft Letter of Offer.

The Material subsidiaries of our Company, namely: Cyber Media Research &
Services Limited (‘CMRSL’), & Cyber Media Services Pte. Limited (Step
Down Subsidiary) (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of CMRSL).

The memorandum of association of our Company, as amended from time to
time.

Mr. Pradeep Gupta is the promoter of our Company.

The promoter group of our Company as determined in terms of Regulation 2(1)
(pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Registered office: D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi-110017 & Corporate
Office: B-35, Sector -32 Institutional Area, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122003
Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana

M/s S. Agarwal & Co., Chartered Accountants

The Subsidiaries of our company namely: Cyber Astro Limited, Cyber Media
Services Limited (Wholly-Owned Subsidiary)

The unaudited consolidated financial results of our Company as at and for the
guarter ended December 31, 2024 and year to date results for the period from
April 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024

Term Description

2009 ASBA  The SEBI circular SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009
Circular

2011 ASBA  The SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29, 2011

Circular

2020 ASBA  The SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020

Circular

2022 ASBA  The SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/66 dated May 19, 2022

Circular

"Abridged Abridged Letter of Offer to be sent to the Eligible Equity Shareholders with respect to the
Letter of Issue in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Companies
Offer" or Act, 2013



Term
"ALOF"

Additional
Rights
Equity Shares /
Additional
Equity
Shares
"Allotment",
"Allot" or
"Allotted"
Allotment
Account(s)

Allotment
Account
Bank(s)
Allotment
Advice

Allotment Date
Allottee(s)
Applicant(s) or
Investors
Application

Application
Form

Application
Money

“Application
Supported by
Blocked
Amount” or
“ASBA”

Description

The Rights Equity Shares applied or allotted under this Issue in addition to the
Rights Entitlement

Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue

The account(s) opened with the Banker(s) to this Issue, into which the Application Money
lying credit to the Escrow Account(s) and amounts blocked by Application Supported by
Blocked Amount in the ASBA Account, with respect to successful Applicants will be
transferred on the Transfer Date in accordance with Section 40(3) of the Companies Act,
2013

Bank(s) which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to an issue and
with whom the Allotment Accounts will be opened, in this case being, [e] Bank.

The note or advice or intimation of Allotment, sent to each successful Investor who has
been or is to be Allotted the Equity Shares after approval of the Basis of Allotment by the
Designated Stock Exchange.

Date on which the Allotment is made pursuant to this Issue

Person(s) who is Allotted Equity Shares pursuant to Allotment

Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) and/or Renouncee(s) who are entitled to apply or make an
application for the Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue in terms of this Draft Letter of Offer
Application made through (i) submission of the Application Form or plain paper
Application to the Designated Branch of the SCSBs or online/ electronic application
through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA
process, to subscribe to the Equity Shares at the Issue Price

Unless the context otherwise requires, an application form or through the website of the
SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA process used by an Investor to
make an application for the Allotment of Equity Shares in the Issue

Aggregate amount payable at the time of application i.e. X [®] /- per Rights Equity Share
in respect of the Rights Equity Shares applied for in this Issue at the Issue Price,
constituting [e] % of the Issue Price.

Application (whether physical or electronic) used by an ASBA Investor to make an
application authorizing the SCSB to block the Application Money in the ASBA Account
maintained with the SCSB.

ASBA Account Account maintained with the SCSB and specified in the Application Form or the plain

ASBA
Circulars

paper Application by the Applicant for blocking the amount mentioned in the Application
Form or the plain paper Application

Collectively, SEBI circular bearing reference number
SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009, SEBI circular bearing
reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29, 2011 and the SEBI circular
bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020
and SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2022/75 dated



Term

ASBA Bid

Banker(s) to
the Issue
Banker to
the Issue
Agreement

Basis of
Allotment

Call
Money(ies)

Call Record
Date (s)

Call (s)

Consolidated
Certificate
"Controlling
Branches" or
"Controlling
Branches of
the SCSBs"
Designated
Branches

Designated
Stock
Exchange

Depository(ies

)

Description
May 30, 2022.

A Bid made by an ASBA Bidder including all revisions and modifications thereto
as permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

[e] Bank, the Allotment Account Bank(s) and the Refund Bank to the Issue

Agreement dated [e] amongst our Company, the Registrar to the Issue, the Banker(s) to
the Issue for collection of the Application Money from Applicants/Investors, transfer of
funds to the Allotment Account from SCSBs and where applicable, refunds of the amounts
collected from Applicants/Investors, on the terms and conditions thereof.

The basis on which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful Applicants in
consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange under this Issue, as described in “Terms
of the Issue” beginning on page 195 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

The balance amount payable by the holders of the Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the
Payment Schedule, being X [e] per Rights Equity Share after payment of the Application
Money, which constitutes [®] % of the Issue Price and is payable in up to one or more
additional Calls, with terms and conditions such as the number of Calls and the timing and
guantum of each Call as may be decided by our Board / Rights Issue Committee from time
to time. For further details, see “Terms of this Issue” on page 195.

A record date fixed by our Company for the purpose of determining the names of the
holders of Rights Equity Shares for the purpose of issuing of the Call(s).

The notice(s) to be issued by our Company to the holders of the Rights Equity Shares as
on the Call Record Date for making a payment of the Call Monies.

The certificate that would be issued for Rights Equity Shares Allotted to each folio in case
of Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form.

Such branches of the SCSBs which coordinate with the Registrar to the Issue and the Stock
Exchange, a list of which is available on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=3
4

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the Application Form or the plain paper
application, as the case may be, used by the ASBA Investors and a list of which is available
on_http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

NSDL and CDSL or any other depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 as amended
from time to time read with the Depositories Act, 1996.

Draft Letter of This Draft Letter of Offer dated March 20, 2025 filed with the Stock Exchanges.

Offer

Eligible Equity Holder(s) of the Equity Shares of our Company as on the Record Date.

Shareholder (s)

Fraudulent
Borrower

IEPF
Investor(s)

Company or person, as the case may be, categorized as a fraudulent borrower by any bank
or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof,
in accordance with the guidelines on fraudulent borrower issued by RBI.

Investor Education and Protection Fund

Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) of our Company on the Record Date, [®] and the
Renouncee(s)


https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
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Term
ISIN

Issue / Rights
Issue

Issue Closing
Date

Issue Opening
Date

Issue Period

Issue Price

Issue Proceeds
or Gross
Proceeds

Issue Size

Listing
Agreement
Multiple
Application
Forms

Net Proceeds

Off Market
Renunciation

On Market
Renunciation

Description
International securities identification number of the Company being INE278G01037

Issue of up to [e] * Partly paid up Equity Shares of face value of X 10/- each of our
Company for cash at a price of X [@]/- per Rights Equity Share not exceeding X 1000/-
Lakhs on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company in the ratio
of [e] ([®]) Equity Share(S) For Every [e] ([®]) Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity
Shareholders of our Company on the Record Date i.e. [e].

*Assuming full subscription in the Issue and receipt of all Call Monies with respect to
Rights Equity Shares. Subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment.

[e]
[e]

The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date, inclusive of both
days, during which Applicants can submit their applications, in accordance with the SEBI
ICDR Regulations.

% [@]/- per Equity Share ((including a premium of X [e] per Equity Share)

On Application, Investors will have to pay X [e] per Rights Equity Share (including a
premium of X [e] per Rights Equity Share) which constitutes [#]% of the Issue Price and
the balance X [®] per Rights Equity Share (including a premium of X [e] per Rights Equity
Share) which constitutes [#]% of the Issue Price, will have to be paid, on one or more
additional Calls as may be decided by the Company’s Board / Rights Issue Committee,
pursuant to the Payment Schedule after receipt of the Application Money.

Gross proceeds of the Issue

Amount aggregating up to ¥ 1000/- Lakhs*

*Assuming full subscription

The listing agreements entered into between our Company and the Stock Exchanges in
terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Multiple application forms submitted by an Eligible Equity Shareholder/Renouncee in
respect of the Rights Entitlement available in their demat account. However supplementary
applications in relation to further Equity Shares with/without using additional Rights
Entitlement will not be treated as multiple application.

Issue Proceeds less the Issue related expenses. For further details, see "Objects of the
Issue" beginning on page 55 of this Draft Letter of Offer

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by transferring them
through off-market transfer through a depository participant in accordance with the SEBI
Rights Issue Circulars and the circulars issued by the Depositories, from time to time, and
other applicable laws.

Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to \ensure that renunciation through off-market
transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the
demat account of the Renouncee on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by trading them over
the secondary market platform off the Stock Exchanges through a registered stock broker
in accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and the circulars issued by the Stock
Exchanges, from time to time, and other applicable laws, on or before [®].



Term

Payment
Schedule

"Qualified
Institutional
Buyers" or
"QIBs"
Record Date

Refund Bank
(s)

Registrar to the

Issue
Registrar/
RTA
Registrar
Agreement
Renouncee(s)

Renunciation
Period

RE ISIN

Rights
Entitlement(s)

Rights

/

Description

Amount payable per Rights | Face Value ) | Premium (%) Total (%)
Equity Share

On Application [o] [o] [e]

On one or more additional | [e] [e] [e]

Calls with terms and
conditions such as the number
of Calls and the timing and
guantum of each Call as may
be decided by our Board /
Rights Issue Committee from
time to time.

Total (%) 10 [o] [e]

For further details on payment schedule, see Terms of the Issue- terms of payment on page
195.

Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1) (ss) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

Designated date for the purpose of determining the Eligible Equity Shareholders eligible
to apply for Equity Shares, being [e].

The Banker(s) to the Issue with whom the Refund Account(s) will be opened, in this case
being [e] Bank.

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Known as Link Intime India Private
Limited)

Agreement dated [®] between the Company and the Registrar to the Issue in relation to the
responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar to the Issue pertaining to this Issue.
Person(s) who has/have acquired Rights Entitlements from the Eligible Equity
Shareholders

The period during which the Investors can renounce or transfer their Rights Entitlements
which shall commence from the Issue Opening Date i.c. [®], [®]. Such period shall close
on [e], [e] in case of On Market Renunciation. Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested
to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that
the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee(s) on or prior
to the Issue Closing Date.

ISIN for Rights Entitlement i.c., [®]

The number of Rights Equity Shares that an Eligible Equity Shareholder is entitled to in
proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity Shareholder on the
Record Date, being [e] ([e]) Rights Equity Shares for [e] ([e]) Equity Shares held by an
eligible shareholder.

The Rights Entitlements with a separate ISIN: [®] will be credited to your demat account
before the date of opening of the Issue, against the equity shares held by the Equity
Shareholders as on the record date.

Pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue
Circular, the Rights Entitlements shall be credited in dematerialized form in respective
demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders before the Issue Opening Date.

Letter including details of Rights Entitlements of the Eligible Equity Shareholders.



Term
Entitlement
Letter

Rights Equity
Shareholders
Rights Equity
Shares

Rights Issue
Committee
SCSB(s)

Stock
Exchanges
Transfer Date

Wilful
Defaulter
Working

Day(s)

Description

Holders of the Rights Equity Shares, pursuant to this Issue.

Equity shares of our Company to be Allotted pursuant to this Issue, on partly paid-up basis
on Allotment.

The committee of our Board constituted pursuant to Board resolution dated February 11%,
2025.

Self-certified syndicate banks registered with SEBI, which acts as a banker to the Issue and
which offers the facility of ASBA. A list of all SCSBs is available at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmid=3
4

Stock exchange where the Equity Shares are presently listed, being BSE and NSE.

The date on which the Application Money blocked in the ASBA Account will be
transferred to the Allotment Account(s) in respect of successful Applications, upon
finalization of the Basis of Allotment, in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange.
Wilful defaulter as defined under Regulation 2(1)(1ll) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

In terms of Regulation 2(1)(mmm) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, working day means all
days on which commercial banks in Delhi are open for business. Further, in respect of Issue
Period, working day means all days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, on
which commercial banks in Delhi are open for business. Furthermore, the time period
between the Issue Closing Date and the listing of Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges,
working day means all trading days of the Stock Exchanges, excluding Sundays and bank
holidays, as per circulars issued by SEBI.

Conventional and General Terms/Abbreviations

Term Description

"%", "Rs. ", "Rupees" or Indian Rupees

"INR"

Adjusted loans and Adjustment in the nature of addition to the loans and advances made in relation

advances to certain loans which are treated as investments under Ind AS, but considered as
loans by our Company

AIF(s) Alternative investment funds, as defined and registered with SEBI under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012

AUM Assets under management

AY Assessment year

BSE BSE Limited

CAGR Compound annual growth rate

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited

CIN Corporate identitification number

CMIL Cyber Media (India) Limited

CMRSL Cyber Media Research & Services Limited

CMFL Cyber Media Foundation Limited

CAL Cyber Astro Limited

CMSL Cyber Media Services Limited


https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34

Term

CMSPL

Companies Act, 1956
Companies Act, 2013
COVID-19

CRAR

CrPC
Depositories Act
Depository

Depository Participant /

DP

DP ID
DIN
EBITDA

EGM

EPS

FCNR Account
FDI Circular 2020

FEMA

FEMA Rules
Financial Year, Fiscal
Year or Fiscal

FIR

FPIs

Fugitive Economic
Offender
FVCI

GAAP

GDP

Gol or Government
GST

HFC

HUF

IBC

ICAI

ICT

Income Tax Act
Ind AS

Description

Cyber Media Services Pte. Limited

Erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 along with the rules made thereunder
Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules made thereunder

A public health emergency of international concern as declared by the World
Health Organization on January 30, 2020 and a pandemic on March 11, 2020
Capital adequacy ratio/Capital to risk assets ratio

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973

Depositories Act, 1996

A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 1996

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act

Depository participant’s identification

Director Identification Number

Profit/(loss) after tax for the year adjusted for income tax expense, finance costs,
depreciation and amortization expense, as presented in the statement of profit and
loss

Extraordinary general meeting

Earnings per Equity Share

Foreign currency non-resident account

Consolidated FDI Policy dated October 15, 2020 issued by the Department for
Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, Ministry of Commerce and Industry,
Government of India

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, together with rules and regulations
thereunder

Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019

Period of 12 months ended March 31 of that particular year, unless otherwise
stated

First information report

Foreign portfolio investors as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations

An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of
the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018

Foreign venture capital investors as defined under and registered with SEBI
pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital
Investors) Regulations, 2000 registered with SEBI

Generally accepted accounting principles

Gross domestic product

Government of India

Goods and Service Tax

Housing finance companies

Hindu Undivided Family

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

Information and Communications Technology

Income-Tax Act, 1961

Indian accounting standards as specified under section 133 of the Companies Act
2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as
amended



Term

IFRS

Insider Trading
Regulations
ITAT

LTV

MCA

Mutual Fund

Net Asset Value per
Equity Share or NAV
per Equity Share

Net Worth

NBFC

NCD(s)

NHB

NPA(S)

NRE Account

NRI

NRO Account
NSDL

NSE

OCB or Overseas
Corporate Body

PAN

PAT

QP

RBI

RBI Act
Regulation S
RoC
RTGS
Rule 144A
SCRA
SCRR
SEBI
SEBI Act

SEBI AIF Regulations
SEBI FPI Regulations

SEBI Listing
Regulations

Description

International Financial Reporting Standards

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015

Income Tax Appellate Tribunal

Loan to value ratio

Ministry of Corporate Affairs

Mutual fund registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of
(Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996

Net Worth/ Number of Equity shares subscribed and fully paid outstanding as at
March 31

Aggregate of Equity Share capital and other equity

Non-banking financial companies

Non-convertible debentures

National housing bank

Non-performing assets

Non-resident external account

A person resident outside India, who is a citizen of India and shall have the same
meaning as ascribed to such term in the Foreign Exchange Management (Deposit)
Regulations, 2016

Non-resident ordinary account

National Securities Depository Limited

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or
indirectly to the extent of at least 60% by NRIs including overseas trusts, in which
not less than 60% of beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or
indirectly and which was in existence on October 3, 2003 and immediately before
such date had taken benefits under the general permission granted to OCBs under
FEMA

Permanent account number

Profit after tax

Qualified purchaser as defined in the U.S. Investment Company Act

Reserve Bank of India

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act

Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana

Real time gross settlement

Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act

Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956

Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957

Securities and Exchange Board of India

Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations,
2019

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015



Term

SEBI Relaxation
Circulars

SEBI Rights Issue
Circulars

SEBI ICDR Regulations

Stock Exchanges
STT

Supreme Court
TAT

Takeover Regulations

Total Borrowings

"U.S.$", "USD" or
"U.S. dollar"

U.S. Investment
Company Act

U.S. Person

U.S. QIB

"USA","U.S. " or
"United States"
U.S. SEC

U.S. Securities Act

VCF

Description

SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78
dated May 6, 2020, read with SEBI circulars bearing reference numbers
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136  dated  July 24, 2020 and
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/13 dated January 19, 2021

Collectively, SEBI circular, bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, bearing reference
number SEBI/HO/CFD/CIR/CFD/DIL/67/2020 dated April 21, 2020 and the
SEBI Relaxation Circulars

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018

BSE and National Stock Exchange Limited

Securities transaction tax

Supreme Court of India

Turnaround time

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

Aggregate of debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and
subordinated liabilities

United States Dollar, the legal currency of the United States of America

Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended

U.S. persons as defined in Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act or acting
for the account or benefit of U.S. persons (not relying on Rule 902(k)(1)(viii)(B)
or Rule 902(k)(2)(i) of Regulation S)

Qualified institutional buyer as defined in Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities
Act

United States of America

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended

Venture capital fund as defined and registered with SEBI under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1996 or the SEBI
AIF Regulations, as the case may be

This Space has been left blank intentionally
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NOTICE TO INVESTORS

The distribution of this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and Rights
Entitlement Letter and the issue of Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares to persons in certain
jurisdictions outside India may be restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons
into whose possession this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application Form may
come are required to inform themselves about and observe such restrictions.

Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will dispatch
through email and courier this Draft Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and Rights
Entitlement Letter only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have a registered address in India or who have
provided an Indian address to our Company. Further, this Draft Letter of Offer will be provided, through
email and courier, by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have
provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale
of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each case, who make a
request in this regard. Those overseas shareholders who do not update our records with their Indian address
or the address of their duly authorized representative in India, prior to the date on which we propose to
dispatch the Issue Materials, shall not be sent any Issue Materials.

Investors can also access this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form
from the websites of our Company, the Registrar, and the Stock Exchanges.

Our Company, the Registrar to the Issue will not be liable for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue
Materials in the event the Issue Materials have been sent on the registered email addresses as provided by
such Eligible Equity Shareholders.

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required
for that purpose. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold,
directly or indirectly, and this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or any offering materials
or advertisements in connection with the Issue may not be distributed, in whole or in part, in any jurisdiction,
except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of this Draft Letter of
Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be
illegal to make such an offer and, in those circumstances, this Draft Letter of Offer and the Abridged Letter
of Offer must be treated as sent for information purposes only and should not be acted upon for subscription
to the Rights Equity Shares and should not be copied or redistributed. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy
of this Draft Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application Form should not, in connection
with the issue of the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send this Draft Letter of
Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer to any person outside India where to do so, would or might contravene
local securities laws or regulations. If this Draft Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer or
Application Form is received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must
not seek to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements referred to in this Draft Letter
of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or the Application Form.

Any person who makes an application to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares offered
in the Issue will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that such person is
authorised to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations prevailing in his jurisdiction. Our Company, the Registrar or any other person acting
on behalf of our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid where they believe
that Application Form is incomplete or acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal
or regulatory requirements and we shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights
Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.

Neither the delivery of this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and Rights
Entitlement Letter nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there
has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or the date of such information or that
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the information contained herein is correct as at any time subsequent to the date of this Draft Letter of Offer
and the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter or the date of such
information.

THE CONTENTS OF THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS
LEGAL, TAXOR INVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO
ADVERSE FOREIGN, STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AS A RESULT
OF THE ISSUE OF RIGHTS OF EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS.
ACCORDINGLY, EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS
ADVISOR AND TAX ADVISOR AS TO THE LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED
MATTERS CONCERNING THE ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES. IN ADDITION, OUR COMPANY
IS NOT MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION TO ANY OFFEREE OR PURCHASER OF THE
EQUITY SHARES REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE EQUITY
SHARES BY SUCH OFFEREE OR PURCHASER UNDER ANY APPLICABLE LAWS OR
REGULATIONS.

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the
Securities Act or the securities laws of any state of the United States and may not be offered or sold in the
United States of America or the territories or possessions thereof ("United States"), except in a transaction
not subject to, or exempt from, the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state
securities laws. The offering to which this Draft Letter of Offer relates is not, and under no circumstances
is to be construed as, an offering of any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the United
States or as a solicitation therein of an offer to buy any of the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement.
There is no intention to register any portion of the Issue or any of the securities described herein in the
United States or to conduct a public offering of securities in the United States. Accordingly, this Draft Letter
of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer and the enclosed Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letters should
not be forwarded to or transmitted in or into the United States at any time. In addition, until the expiry of
40 days after the commencement of the Issue, an offer or sale of Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares
within the United States by a dealer (whether or not it is participating in the Issue) may violate the
registration requirements of the Securities Act.

Neither our Company nor any person acting on our behalf will accept a subscription or renunciation from
any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on our
behalf has reason to believe is in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an
Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter should not be postmarked in the United States or otherwise
dispatched from the United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer, and
all persons subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares Issue and wishing to hold such Equity Shares in
registered form must provide an address for registration of these Equity Shares in India. Our Company is
making the Issue on a rights basis to Eligible Equity Shareholders and this Draft Letter of Offer / Abridged
Letter of Offer and Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter will be dispatched only to Eligible
Equity Shareholders who have an Indian address. Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements and the
Rights Equity Shares will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that, (i) it is not
and that at the time of subscribing for such Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be,
in the United States, and (ii) it is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares
in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

Our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid which: (i) does not include the
certification set out in the Application Form to the effect that the subscriber is authorised to acquire the
Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations; (ii)
appears to us or our agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States; (iii) where a
registered Indian address is not provided; or (iv) where our Company believes that Application Form is
incomplete or acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory
requirements; and our Company shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights
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Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.
Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States.

The Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the US Securities
and Exchange Commission (the "US SEC"), any state securities commission in the United States or any
other US regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits
of the offering of the Rights Entitlements, the Equity Shares or the accuracy or adequacy of this Draft Letter
of Offer.

Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States.

The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company and the Advisor
to the Issue are not liable for any amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations,
which may occur after the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent
investigations and ensure that the number of Rights Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable
limits under the applicable laws or regulations.

THIS DOCUMENT IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF THE PERSON WHO RECEIVED IT FROM
OUR COMPANY OR FROM THE REGISTRAR. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED OR DISTRIBUTED TO ANY OTHER PERSON.

ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

The Company is a Public Limited (Listed) Company under the laws of India and all the Directors and all
Executive Officers are residents of India. It may not be possible or may be difficult for investors to affect
service of process upon the Company or these other persons outside India or to enforce against them in courts
in India, judgments obtained in courts outside India. India is not a party to any international treaty in relation
to the automatic recognition or enforcement of foreign judgments.

However, recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments is provided for under Sections 13, 14 and 44A
of the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, as amended (the “Civil Procedure Code”). Section 44A of the Civil
Procedure Code provides that where a certified copy of a decree of any superior court (within the meaning
of that section) in any country or territory outside India which the Government of India has by notification
declared to be a reciprocating territory, is filed before a district court in India, such decree may be executed
in India as if the decree has been rendered by a district court in India. Section 44A of the Civil Procedure
Code is applicable only to monetary decrees or judgments not being in the nature of amounts payable in
respect of taxes or other charges of a similar nature or in respect of fines or other penalties. Section 44A of
the Civil Procedure Code does not apply to arbitration awards even if such awards are enforceable as a decree
or judgment. Among others, the United Kingdom, Singapore, Hong Kong and the United Arab Emirates
have been declared by the Government of India to be reciprocating territories within the meaning of Section
44A of the Civil Procedure Code.

The United States has not been declared by the Government of India to be a reciprocating territory for the
purposes of Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code. Under Section 14 of the Civil Procedure Code, an
Indian court shall, on production of any document purporting to be a certified copy of a foreign judgment,
presume that the judgment was pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction unless the contrary appears
on the record; but such presumption may be displaced by proving want of jurisdiction.

A judgment of a court in any non-reciprocating territory, such as the United States, may be enforced in India
only by a suit upon the judgment subject to Section 13 of the Civil Procedure Code, and not by proceedings
in execution. Section 13 of the Civil Procedure Code, which is the statutory basis for the recognition of
foreign judgments (other than arbitration awards), states that a foreign judgment shall be conclusive as to
any matter directly adjudicated upon between the same parties or between parties under whom they or any
of them claim litigating under the same title except where:
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e The judgment has not been pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction;
The judgment has not been given on the merits of the case;

e The judgment appears on the face of the proceedings to be founded on an incorrect view of
international law or a refusal to recognize the law of India in cases where such law is applicable;
The proceedings in which the judgment was obtained are opposed to natural justice;

e The judgment has been obtained by fraud; and/or
The judgment sustains a claim founded on a breach of any law in force in India.

A suit to enforce a foreign judgment must be brought in India within three years from the date of the judgment
in the same manner as any other suit filed to enforce a civil liability in India. It is unlikely that a court in
India would award damages on the same basis as a foreign court if an action is brought in India. In addition,
it is unlikely that an Indian court would enforce foreign judgments if it considered the amount of damages
awarded as excessive or inconsistent with public policy or if the judgments are in breach of or contrary to
Indian law. A party seeking to enforce a foreign judgment in India is required to obtain prior approval from
the Reserve Bank of India to repatriate any amount recovered pursuant to execution of such judgment. Any
judgment in a foreign currency would be converted into Rupees on the date of such judgment and not on the
date of payment and any such amount may be subject to income tax in accordance with applicable laws. The
Company cannot predict whether a suit brought in an Indian court will be disposed of in a timely manner or
be subject to considerable delays.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
Certain Conventions

All references to "India" contained in this Draft Letter of Offer are to the Republic of India and its territories
and possessions and all references herein to the "Government"”, "Indian Government”, "Gol", Central
Government" or the "State Government" are to the Government of India, central or state, as applicable.

Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references in this Draft Letter of Offer to
the ‘US’ or ‘U.S.” or the ‘United States’ are to the United States of America and its territories and
possessions.

Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned in this Draft Letter of Offer is in Indian Standard Time
("IST™). Unless indicated otherwise, all references to a year in this Draft Letter of Offer are to a calendar
year.

A reference to the singular also refers to the plural and one gender also refers to any other gender, wherever
applicable.

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Draft Letter of Offer are to the page numbers
of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Financial Data

Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwise requires, the financial information and financial ratios in
this Draft Letter of Offer has been derived from our Financial Statements. For details, please see "Financial
Information™ beginning on page 92 of this Draft Letter of Offer. Our Company’s financial year commences
on April 1 and ends on March 31 of the next year. Accordingly, all references to a particular financial year,
unless stated otherwise, are to the twelve (12) month period ended on March 31 of that year.

The Gol has adopted the Indian accounting standards ("Ind AS"), which are converged with the
International Financial Reporting Standards of the International Accounting Standards Board ("IFRS") and
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended (the "Ind AS Rules").

The Financial Statements of our Company for the Financial Year ended March 2024 & 2023 and for the
nine-month period ended December 31, 2024 have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS, as prescribed
under Section 133 of Companies Act read with the Ind AS Rules and other the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act and in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note on Reports in
Company Prospectuses (revised), 2019, issued by the ICAI. Our Company publishes its financial statements
in Rupees.

In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts
listed are due to rounding off and unless otherwise specified all financial numbers in parenthesis represent
negative figures. Our Company has presented all numerical information in the Financial Statements in whole
numbers and in this Draft Letter of Offer in "lakh" units or in whole numbers where the numbers have been
too small to represent in lakh. One lakh represents 1,00,000 and one million represents 1,000,000.

There are significant differences between Ind AS, US GAAP and IFRS. We have not provided a
reconciliation of the financial information to IFRS or US GAAP. Our Company has not attempted to also
explain those differences or quantify their impact on the financial data included in this Draft Letter of Offer,
and you are urged to consult your own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on our financial
data. Accordingly, the degree to which the financial information included in this Draft Letter of Offer will
provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian
accounting policies and practices, Ind AS, the Companies Act and the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Any reliance
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by persons not familiar with these accounting principles and regulations on our financial disclosures
presented in this Draft Letter of Offer should accordingly be limited. For further information, see "Financial
Information™ beginning on page 92 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Certain figures contained in this Draft Letter of Offer, including financial information, have been subject to
rounded off adjustments. All figures in decimals (including percentages) have been rounded off to one or
two decimals. However, where any figures that may have been sourced from third-party industry sources
are rounded off to other than two decimal points in their respective sources, such figures appear in this Draft
Letter of Offer rounded-off to such number of decimal points as provided in such respective sources. In this
Draft Letter of Offer, (i) the sum or percentage change of certain numbers may not conform exactly to the
total figure given; and (ii) the sum of the numbers in a column or row in certain tables may not conform
exactly to the total figure given for that column or row. Any such discrepancies are due to rounding off.

Currency and Units of Presentation

All references to:

. "Rupees" or "I" or "INR" or "Rs. " are to Indian Rupee, the official currency of the Republic of
India; and

. "USD" or "US$" or "$" are to United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of
America.

Our Company has presented certain numerical information in this Draft Letter of Offer in "lakh" or "Lac"
units or in whole numbers. One lakh represents 1,00,000 and one million represents 1,000,000. All the
numbers in the document have been presented in lakh or in whole numbers where the numbers have been
too small to present in lakh. Any percentage amounts, as set forth in "Risk Factors"”, "Our Business", and
"Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operation™ beginning
on page 24, 68 and 166 and elsewhere in this Draft Letter of Offer, unless otherwise indicated, have been
calculated based on our Financial Information.

Exchange Rates

This Draft Letter of Offer contains conversions of certain other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that
have been presented solely to comply with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions should not be
construed as a representation that these currency amounts could have been, or can be converted into Indian
Rupees, at any particular rate or at all.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information with respect to the exchange rate
between the Indian Rupee and other foreign currencies:

(in%)
Sr. No. Name of the Exchange rate as on
Currency December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1.  United States 85.62 83.37 82.21
Dollar

(Source: RBI reference rate www.rbi.org.in)

Note: In case March 31 of any of the respective years / period or December 31 is a public holiday, the
previous Working Day not being a public holiday has been considered.

Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data used in this Draft Letter of Offer has been obtained or
derived from publicly available information as well as industry publications and sources.
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Industry publications generally state that the information contained in such publications has been obtained
from publicly available documents from various sources believed to be reliable but their accuracy and
completeness are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured.

Although we believe the industry and market data used in this Draft Letter of Offer is reliable, it has not
been independently verified by us. The data used in these sources may have been reclassified by us for the
purposes of presentation. Data from these sources may also not be comparable. Such data involves risks,
uncertainties and numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on various factors, including those
discussed in "Risk Factors” beginning on page 24 of this Draft Letter of Offer. Accordingly, investment
decisions should not be based solely on such information.

The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Draft Letter of Offer is meaningful
depends on the reader’s familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling
such data. There are no standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which the business

of our Company is conducted, and methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different
industry sources.

This space has been left blank intentionally
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this Draft Letter of Offer that are not statements of historical fact constitute
‘forward looking statements.” Investors can generally identify forward-looking statements by terminology
including ‘anticipate’, ‘believe’, ‘continue’, ‘can’, ‘could’, ‘estimate’, ‘expect’, ‘future’, ‘forecast’, ‘intend’,
‘may’, ‘objective’, ‘plan’, ‘potential’, ‘project’, ‘pursue’, ‘shall’, ‘should’, ‘target’, ‘will’, “‘would’ or other
words or phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe our objectives, plans or goals are also
forward-looking statements. However, these are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking
statements. All statements regarding our Company’s expected financial conditions, results of operations,
business plans and prospects are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements may include
planned projects, revenue and profitability (including, without limitation, any financial or operating
projections or forecasts) and other matters discussed in this Draft Letter of Offer that are not historical facts.

These forward-looking statements contained in this Draft Letter of Offer (whether made by our Company or
any third party), are predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other
factors that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of our Company to be materially
different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements or other projections. All forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and
assumptions about our Company that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated
by the relevant forward-looking statement. Important factors that could cause our actual results,
performances and achievements to differ materially from any of the forward-looking statements include,
among others:

o Changes in government policies and the regulatory frameworks supporting renewable energy
development

. Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rate, which may harm our results of operations;

. Our ability to maintain and enhance our business segments;

Our ability to maintain relationships with third parties such as contract manufacturers for our

clothing segment;

Our recent venture in new business segments;

Our manufacturing facility being inoperative;

Our negative cash flows and losses in the past;

Non-obtaining of insurance coverage;

Inability to protect the intellectual property that we use;

Our ability to maintain our market position and to compete effectively against existing or potential

competitors;

Our inability to attract and retain skilled personnel;

o Our ability to manage our operations at our current size or to manage any future growth effectively;
and

o Our inability to obtain, maintain or renew requisite statutory and regulatory permits and approvals

for our business operations.

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from the expectations, see the
sections "Risk Factors"”, "Our Business" and "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" on pages 24, 68 and 166 respectively. By their nature, certain market
risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future.
As a result, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated.

Forward-looking statements reflect the current views of our Company as at the date of this Draft Letter of
Offer and are not a guarantee or assurance of future performance. These statements are based on our
management’s beliefs and assumptions, which in turn are based on currently available information. Although
we believe the assumptions upon which these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any of
these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and the forward-looking statements based on these
assumptions could be incorrect. Accordingly, we cannot assure investors that the expectations reflected in
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these forward-looking statements will prove to be correct and given the uncertainties, investors are cautioned
not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. If any of these risks and uncertainties
materialise, or if any of our Company’s underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, the actual results of
operations or financial condition of our Company could differ materially from that described herein as
anticipated, believed, estimated or expected. All subsequent forward-looking statements attributable to our
Company are expressly qualified in their entirety by reference to these cautionary statements. None of our
Company, our Directors, the Advisor to the Issue nor any of their respective affiliates has any obligation to
update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date of this Draft Letter
of Offer or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come
to fruition.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company and the Advisor to the Issue will ensure that
investors are informed of material developments from the date of this Draft Letter of Offer until the time of
receipt of the listing and trading permissions from the Stock Exchanges.

This place has been left blank intentionally
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SUMMARY OF LETTER OF OFFER

The following is a general summary of the terms of this Issue, and should be read in conjunction with and is
qualified by the more detailed information appearing in this Draft Letter of Offer, including the sections
titled "Risk Factors", "The Issue", "Capital Structure”, "Objects of the Issue", "Industry Overview", "Our

Business", "Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments™ and "Terms of the Issue" beginning on
pages 24, 45, 53, 55, 64, 68, 171 and 195 respectively of this Draft Letter of Offer.

1.

Summary of Industry

Our company is engaged in the business of print media and publishing services, an Entertainment &
Media (E&M) industry.

The Indian Media and Entertainment (M&E) industry is a sunrise sector for the economy and is
making significant strides. The increasing availability of fast and cheap internet, rising incomes, and
increasing purchases of consumer durables have significantly aided the industry. India’s media and
entertainment industry are unique as compared to other markets. The industry is well known for its
extremely high volumes and rising Average Revenue Per User (ARPU).

This significantly aided the country’s industry and made India leading in terms of digital adoption
and provided companies with uninterrupted rich data to understand their customers better. India has
also experienced growing opportunities in the VFX sector as the focus shifted globally to India as a
preferred content creator.

Proving its resilience to the world, Indian M&E industry is on the cusp of a strong phase of growth,
backed by rising consumer demand and improving advertising revenue. According to a FICCI-EY
report, the advertising to GDP ratio is expected to reach 0.4% by 2025 from 0.38% in 2019.

(Source: www.ibef.org/industry/media-entertainment-india)

For details, please refer to chapter titled "Industry Overview" on page 64 of this Draft Letter of
Offer.

Summary of Business

Our company operates primarily as a media and information services provider in the technology
domain, producing industry-leading ICT magazines and online content catering to diverse
communities with publications like Dataquest, PCQuest, Voice&Data, DQChannels, CIOL and The
DQWeek.

Further, the company is involved in the print media and publishing industry, producing magazines,
e-magazines, online portals, periodic journals, and organizing events and exhibitions.

For details, please refer to chapter titled "Our Business™ on page 68 of this Draft Letter of Offer.
Our Promoter and Promoter Group

Mr. Pradeep Gupta is the Promoter of the Company. Mr. Dhaval Gupta, Mrs. Anuradha Gupta, and
Mrs. Kriti Gupta are other members of the Promoter Group.

For further details please see chapter titled “Our Promoters” beginning on page 87 of this Draft
Letter of Offer.
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Objects of the Issue

The Net Proceeds are proposed to be used in the manner set out in the following table:

S. Particulars Total estimated
No. amount to be utilized
(R in lakhs)

1. To Meet Working Capital Requirements 331.16

2. Repayment of Loan availed from the related party through 379.84
conversion outstanding Loan to Equity

3. General Corporate Purposes 250.00
Total 961.00

For further details, please see chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 55 of this
Draft Letter of Offer.

Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter and Promoter Group in the Issue

Our Promoter and Promoter Group vide letter dated January 30, 2025 haves expressed their intention
to (i) subscribe to the full extent of their respective Rights Entitlements, subject to compliance with
the minimum public shareholding requirements, as prescribed under the SCRR; and (ii) have also
confirmed that they shall not renounce their Rights Entitlements except to the extent of renunciation
within the Promoter Group. Accordingly, in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the requirement
of minimum subscription in the Issue is not applicable.

Since, minimum subscription clause is not applicable. Hence, there is no requirement to subscribe
the unsubscribed portion of the Rights Issue by the Promoter or Promoter Group of the Company.

Summary of Financial Information

Following are the details as per the Consolidated Financial Information for the nine months ended
December 31, 2024 and for the Financial Years ended on March 31, 2024 & March 31, 2023:

(< in lakhs)
Particulars December 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
*Authorised Share Capital 1,570.00 1,570.00 1,570.00
Paid-up Capital 1566.72 1566.72 1566.72
**Net Worth attributable to (2,088.85) 402.95 124.43
Equity Shareholders
Total Revenue 877.42 10,425.71 7,863.25
Profit after tax (1,118.12) 340.16 498.82
Earnings per Share (basic & (7.14) 217 3.18
diluted) (in %)
Net Asset Value per Equity 13.33 2.57 0.79
Share (in %)
Total Borrowings 1600.72 1040.35 1039.60

*The Board at its meeting held on January 21, 2025 passed the resolution for increasing Authorized
Share Capital from Rs. 15,70,00,000 (Rupees Fifteen Crore Seventy Lakh Only) divided into
1,57,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 23,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty-Three Crore Only)
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divided into 2,30,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, and consequential alteration of Memorandum
of Association of the Company, subject to approval of shareholders.

Further, The shareholders of the Company vide Special Resolution dated February 23, 2025 passed
through postal ballot(remote e-voting) process, have approved the aforesaid increase in authorised
share capital and consequential alteration in Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the
Company.

** Net worth attributable to Equity Shareholders are excluded the non-Controlling interest.

Summary of Outstanding Litigations:

A summary of outstanding litigation proceedings involving our Company, our Directors and our
Promoter as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer is provided below:

(R in lakhs)
Nature of Cases Number of Amount Involved*
outstanding cases

Litigation involving our Company

Criminal proceedings against our Company Nil Nil
Criminal proceedings by our Company 1 41.63
Material civil litigation against Company Nil Nil
Material civil litigation by our Company 2 26.61
Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil Nil
Direct and indirect tax proceedings Nil Nil
Litigation involving our Directors

Criminal proceedings against our Directors Nil Nil
Criminal proceedings by our Directors Nil Nil
Material civil litigation against our Directors Nil Nil
Material civil litigation by our Directors Nil Nil
Actions by statutory or regulatory Nil Nil
authorities

Direct and indirect tax proceedings Nil Nil
Litigation involving our Promoter

Criminal proceedings against our Promoter Nil Nil
Criminal proceedings by our Promoter Nil Nil
Material civil litigation against our Promoter Nil Nil
Material civil litigation by our Promoter Nil Nil
Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil Nil
Direct and indirect tax proceedings Nil Nil

* To the extent quantifiable.

For details, please refer to chapter titled "Outstanding Litigations and Defaults” on page 171 of
this Draft Letter of Offer.

Risk Factors
For details of potential risks associated with our ongoing business activities and industry, investment

in Equity Shares of the Company, material litigations which impact the business of the Company
and other economic factors please see “Risk Factors” on page 24 of this Draft Letter of Offer.
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10.

11.

12.

Summary of Contingent Liabilities

Following are the details as per the Financial Information for the Financial Years ended March 31,
2024 and March 31, 2023.

For Cyber Media (India) Limited

Disputed employees Provident Fund liabilities before

- Hon’ble High Court of Delhi Rs. 6.68 Lakh (As at 31.03.2023 Rs. 6.68 Lakh)

- Central Government Industrial Tribunal Rs. 14.13 lakh (As at 31.03.2023 Rs. 14.13 Lakh)
Disputed Service Tax Liability before:

The Company is a co-borrower with respect to borrowing by its subsidiary - Cyber Media Research
& Services Limited from Karur Vaishya Bank Limited outstanding balance Rs. 860.47 Lakhs (As at
31st March, 2023 Rs. 679.70 Lakhs)

For Cyber Media Research & Services Limited

Disputed Service Tax Liability before: Nill

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:

e The Company has a reasonable chance of success in the matter as the award has been analysed
and advised to be contrary to public policy/fundamental policy underlying Indian law”.

Summary of Related Party Transactions

Please refer "Financial Information" beginning on page 92 of the Financial Information in this
Draft Letter of Offer.

Issue of equity shares made in last one year for consideration other than cash

Our Company has not made any issuances of Equity Shares in the last one year for consideration
other than cash.

Split or consolidation of Equity Shares in the last one year

Our Company has not made any Split or consolidation of Equity Shares in the last one year.

This space has been left blank intentionally
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SECTION Il - RISK FACTORS

An investment in equity shares involves a high degree of risk. Prospective Investors should carefully consider
all the information disclosed in this Draft Letter of Offer, including the risks and uncertainties described
below and the "Financial Statements" on page 92, before making an investment in the Equity Shares. The
risks described below are not the only risks relevant to us or the Equity Shares or the industries in which we
currently operate. Additional risks and uncertainties, not presently known to us or that we currently deem
immaterial may also impair our business, cash flows, prospects, results of operations and financial
condition. In order to obtain a complete understanding about us, investors should read this section in
conjunction with "Our Business”, "Industry Overview" and "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ on pages 68, 64 and 166 respectively, as well as the other
financial information included in this Draft Letter of Offer. If any of the risks described below, or other risks
that are not currently known or are currently deemed immaterial actually occur, our business, cash flows,
prospects, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected, the trading price of the
Equity Shares could decline, and investors may lose all or part of the value of their investment. The financial
and other related implications of the risk factors, wherever quantifiable, have been disclosed in the risk
factors mentioned below.

However, there are certain risk factors where the financial impact is not quantifiable and, therefore, cannot
be disclosed in such risk factors. You should consult your tax, financial and legal advisors about the
particular consequences to you of an investment in this Issue. The following factors have been considered
for determining the materiality: (1) some events may not be material individually but may be found material
collectively; (2) some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively; and (3) some
events may not be material at present but may have material impact in future.

This Draft Letter of Offer also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our
actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result
of certain factors, including the considerations described below and elsewhere in this Draft Letter of Offer.
Any potential investor in, and purchaser of, the Equity Shares should pay particular attention to the fact that
our Company is an Indian company and is subject to a legal and regulatory environment which, in some
respects, may be different from that which prevails in other countries. For further information, see "Forward
Looking Statements" on page 18 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Unless otherwise indicated or the context requires otherwise, the financial information included herein is
based on our Financial Statements included in this Draft Letter of Offer. For further information, see
"Financial Statements" on page 92 of this Draft Letter of Offer. In this section, unless the context requires
otherwise, any reference to "we", "us" or "our" refers to Cyber Media (India) Limited.

Materiality:

The Risk Factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been
considered for determining the materiality of Risk Factors:

e Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively;
e Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively; and
e Some events may not be material at present but may have a material impact in future

The financial and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable have been disclosed
in the risk factors mentioned below. However, there are risk factors where the impact may not be quantifiable
and hence, the same has not been disclosed in such risk factors. The numbering of the risk factors has been
done to facilitate ease of reading and reference and does not in any manner indicate the importance of one
risk over another.

In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between total and sums of the amount listed are
due to rounding off.

24



In this section, unless the context requires otherwise, any reference to “we”, “us” or “our” refers to Cyber
Media (India) Limited.

The risk factors are classified as under for the sake of better clarity and increased understanding.
INTERNAL RISK FACTORS
BUSINESS RELATED RISKS

1.0ur revenues and profitability are directly linked to monetization of our Content. Any failure to
monetize content could adversely affect our profitability and business growth.

Our revenues and profitability are directly dependent on our ability to effectively monetize our content.
Any failure to do so, whether due to market conditions, changes in consumer behavior, increased
competition, regulatory restrictions, or shifts in platform algorithms could negatively impact our financial
performance. Additionally, if we are unable to secure favorable licensing agreements, advertising
partnerships, or subscription revenues, our ability to generate sustainable growth may be compromised. A
decline in content monetization could result in reduced investments in content creation and innovation,
further affecting our competitive position and long-term business prospects.

2. Major portion of our revenue from operations depends upon Advertisement income.

A major portion of our revenue from operations being dependent on advertisement income. The
advertising industry is inherently cyclical and subject to market fluctuations, consumer behavior trends,
and broader economic conditions. If there is a downturn in the economy or changes in consumer spending,
advertisers may reduce their budgets, which can lead to a direct decline in revenue. For instance, during
periods of economic recession, companies often cut back on advertising expenditures as a cost-saving
measure, impacting our income from this source.

Further, the growing trend toward digital and social media platforms has led to intense competition for
advertisement. Traditional advertising channels, such as print and broadcast media, are losing relevance
in the face of digital platforms like Google, Facebook, and Instagram, which provide highly targeted
advertising with real-time analytics. This shift presents a risk, as it could lead to a decline in demand for
our advertising space, especially if we do not adapt to new trends and technologies in the advertising
space. Our Company addresses this factor by shifting to other business segment and a bulk of revenues
comes from events business.

Further, the increasing use of ad-blockers by consumers is another challenge that could affect our
advertising income. As more users adopt technologies that block ads, it reduces the overall exposure and
effectiveness of ads, which may decrease the value of our advertising inventory. This trend could
necessitate changes to our advertising strategy, requiring more innovative approaches to capture audience
attention and maintain ad revenue.

3. Digital Disruption and Technological Advancements may affect our business operations.

Rapid advancements in technology, including the growing prominence of social media platforms, mobile
applications, and on-demand content, may reduce the demand for traditional publishing formats. The
Company’s ability to adapt and innovate with evolving digital formats is crucial to remain competitive in
the market.

For publishing companies to stay competitive, it’s essential to embrace and integrate new technologies

and digital platforms. This could involve shifting towards digital-first models, investing in mobile apps,
or providing content through social media channels to engage with younger, tech-savvy audiences.
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Additionally, they need to innovate with interactive, multimedia, and on-demand content options (like
podcasts, videos, and virtual or augmented reality) that cater to the changing demands of consumers.
Essentially, companies that can successfully adapt to the digital age will be better positioned to thrive in
an increasingly digital world, while those that stick to traditional formats may struggle to maintain
relevance. The Company has collected 35% revenue only from digital business in financial year 2022-23,
26% in 2023-24, and 22% during nine months in 2024-25.

4. The Publishing industry in which our business operates is subject to Changes in Regulatory
Environment.

The publishing industry faces significant risks due to changes in the regulatory environment. As
governments enact new laws and policies, publishers must continuously adapt their practices to remain
compliant. These regulations can impact various aspects of the industry, including content creation,
distribution, copyright protection, data privacy, and intellectual property rights. For example, stricter
regulations around online content, imposing heavy fines for violations and require publishers to update
their data collection practices.

Changes in tax laws, tariffs, and import/export regulations can also affect the cost and availability of
physical publishing materials, such as paper, ink, and shipping services. Moreover, evolving labor laws,
such as those governing freelance and remote work, can alter the workforce dynamics for publishing
companies that rely on independent writers, editors, and designers. These shifts not only impact
operational costs but also the speed at which publishers can bring new works to market.

Further, the increasing focus on censorship and content moderation policies by governments around the
world poses another risk. Publishers may face pressure to censor content, remove controversial material,
or avoid publishing certain topics to comply with local regulations, which can limit creative freedom and
potentially alienate certain segments of their audience. In more extreme cases, failure to comply with
government regulations may result in legal action or the loss of business licenses, further highlighting the
risks posed by an unpredictable regulatory landscape. We have been in existence for 42 years and have
been complying.

5. The industry in which our business operates is subject to Cybersecurity and Data Privacy Risks.

As our Company operates online portals, e-magazines, and collects consumer data, it faces potential risks
related to data breaches, cyberattacks, and the loss or theft of sensitive data. Any failure to safeguard data
or comply with privacy regulations could result in reputational harm, legal liabilities, and loss of consumer
trust. Further, failure to implement robust cybersecurity measures or comply with ever-evolving privacy
regulations can expose the company to substantial legal liabilities. Laws such as the Digital Personal Data
Protection Act impose stringent requirements on how companies must protect and handle consumer data.
Non-compliance with these regulations could lead to heavy fines, lawsuits, and a loss of business due to
consumer distrust. Regulatory bodies may also take enforcement actions against companies that fail to
protect consumer privacy adequately.

The long-term consequences of a data breach or non-compliance with privacy regulations are particularly
damaging to a company's reputation. Consumer trust is one of the most valuable assets a company holds,
and any incident that compromises data security or violates privacy expectations can lead to public outcry,
damage to brand image, and a significant loss of customers. A damaged reputation can take years to rebuild,
and in some cases, the loss of consumer confidence may result in a permanent decline in business
performance. As consumer awareness of data privacy issues grows, organizations must prioritize securing
sensitive information and complying with regulations to maintain their competitive edge and ensure long-
term success.
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6. '"Challenges Facing the Publishing Industry: Navigating Technological Disruption, Shifting Consumer
Preferences, and Economic Pressures™

In the publishing industry, one of the primary risks is the rapid technological advancements that have
reshaped the landscape. With the rise of e-books, audiobooks, and self-publishing platforms, traditional
publishing houses face significant competition from digital alternatives. The ease of self-publishing allows
authors to bypass traditional publishers, leading to an influx of new content. This increased accessibility
can make it harder for established publishers to maintain market share and profitability.

Another risk factor is the changing consumer behavior and preferences. Readers are increasingly looking
for personalized content and faster access to books, which has led to a rise in subscription-based models
and on-demand content. The shift from physical to digital books, especially among younger generations,
poses a challenge for traditional print publishers. Publishers must adapt to these new trends to stay
competitive, investing in technology and exploring new formats like audiobooks and digital-first content.

Economic factors also play a significant role in increasing market competition. Economic downturns or
periods of financial instability can result in reduced consumer spending, which directly affects book sales.
Independent publishers and self-published authors might be able to offer lower-priced books, making it
difficult for traditional publishers to compete on price. Additionally, the large-scale consolidation of
publishers into a few major conglomerates means smaller publishers often struggle to find their niche in a
market dominated by a few key players.

Finally, intellectual property and piracy are ongoing concerns. The ease of digital distribution has increased
the risk of unauthorized content sharing, which can significantly impact publishers' revenue streams. With
the market flooded with a vast amount of content, publishers must also work harder to protect their
intellectual property while maintaining competitive pricing and innovation. The increasing prevalence of
free content online makes it difficult to convince consumers to pay for books, especially when the
perceived value of digital content is lower than physical copies.

The Company has collected 35% revenue only from digital business in financial year 2022-23, 26% in
2023-24, and 22% during nine months in 2024-25.
7.0ur Company had negative cash flow in recent fiscals, details of which are given below. Sustained

negative cash flow could adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our Company had reported certain negative cash flows from its operating, investing and financing activities
in the previous financial years as per the financial statements and the same are summarized as under:

(R in lakhs)
Particulars For the period ended
March 2024 March 2023
Net Cash from Operating Activities (59.65) 714.01
Net Cash Generated in Investing Activities (193.24) 586.74
Net Cash Generated in Financing Activities (146.11) (1048.59)

*Details as per Consolidated Financials

Cash flow of a company is a key indicator to show the extent of cash generated from operations to meet
capital expenditure, pay dividends, repay loans and make new investments without raising finance from
external resources. If our Company is not able to generate sufficient cash flows, it may adversely affect our
business and financial operations. To meet business working capital requirements and other general
corporate purposes, the Company needs funds and thus, is undertaking this Rights Issue.
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For further details please refer to the section titled “Financial Information” and chapter titled
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
beginning on page numbers 92 and 166 respectively, of the Draft Letter of Offer.

8.We have financial indebtedness which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of
operations and further we may not be able to meet our obligations under the debt financing agreements.

Our total outstanding debt is X 1040.35 Lakhs consisting of unsecured and secured loans (including
unsecured loan of  170.00/- from related party) as on 31% March 2024. It is fully backed by the Company’s
immovable property, ‘Cyber House’ located at Plot No. B-35, Sector-32, Gurugram-122003, which was
lastly valued at Rs. 20.67 Crore. If we fail to meet our debt servicing obligations under our financing
documents, the relevant lenders could declare us to be in default, accelerate the maturity of our obligations
or takeover our Company’s movable and immovable assets. We cannot assure investors that in the event
of any such acceleration we will have enough resources to repay these borrowings. Failure to meet
obligations under debt financing agreements may have an adverse effect on our cash flows, business and
results of operations. Our ability to meet our debt service obligations and to repay our outstanding
borrowings will depend primarily upon the cash flows generated by our business. We cannot assure you
that we will generate enough cash to enable us to service existing or proposed borrowings. Incurring
significant indebtedness may limit our flexibility in planning for or reacting to changes in our business &
industry and limit our ability to borrow additional funds.

9. Some of the property including Mumbai Branch Office of company is not owned by us. Any termination
of the relevant lease or leave and license agreement in connection with such property or our failure to
renew the same could adversely affect our operations.

Our Mumbai Branch office situated at Unit No. 326, INS Tower, Wing-B, C-63, G-Block, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai-400051 is not owned by us. We have obtained this property on lease basis.
Periodic renewals of such lease may increase our costs, since it is subject to rent escalation. Any
termination of the lease and/or rental deed in connection with these properties or our failure to renew the
same, and upon favourable conditions, in a timely manner or at all could adversely affect our operations.
For details regarding properties taken on lease refer the Section title our Properties “Our Business”
beginning on page no. 68 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

10. There is an outstanding legal proceeding involving our Company

Except as mentioned in this Draft Letter of Offer, there is no outstanding legal proceeding involving our
Company, directors, and subsidiaries. Decisions in such proceeding, adverse to our interests, may have a
material adverse effect on our business, cash flows, financial condition, and results of operations. Failure
to successfully defend these or other claims, or if our current provisions prove to be inadequate, our
business and results of operations could be affected.

A summary of outstanding litigation proceedings involving our Company, our Directors and our Promoter
as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer is provided below:

(% in lakhs)

Nature of Cases Number of outstanding cases Amount

Involved*
Litigation involving our Company
Criminal proceedings against our Company Nil Nil
Criminal proceedings by our Company 1 41.63
Material civil litigation against Company Nil Nil
Material civil litigation by our Company 2 26.61
Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil Nil
Direct and indirect tax proceedings 3 10.03
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Nature of Cases Number of outstanding cases Amount

Involved*

Litigation involving our Directors

Criminal proceedings against our Directors Nil Nil
Criminal proceedings by our Directors Nil Nil
Material civil litigation against our Directors Nil Nil
Material civil litigation by our Directors Nil Nil
Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil Nil
Direct and indirect tax proceedings Nil Nil
Litigation involving our Promoter

Criminal proceedings against our Promoter Nil Nil
Criminal proceedings by our Promoter Nil Nil
Material civil litigation against our Promoter Nil Nil
Material civil litigation by our Promoter Nil Nil
Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil Nil
Direct and indirect tax proceedings Nil Nil

* To the extent quantifiable.

For details, please refer to chapter titled "Outstanding Litigations and Defaults" on page 171 of this
Draft Letter of Offer.

11. Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend upon future earnings, financial condition, cash
flows, working capital requirements and capital expenditures.

We have not paid any dividends in the last financial year. Our future ability to pay dividends will depend
on our earnings, financial condition and capital requirements. Dividends distributed by us will attract
dividend distribution tax at rates applicable from time to time. There can be no assurance that we will
generate sufficient income to cover the operating expenses and pay dividends to the shareholders. Our
ability to pay dividends will also depend on our expansion plans. We may be unable to pay dividends in
the near or medium term, and the future dividend policy will depend on the capital requirements and
financing arrangements for the business plans, financial condition and results of operations.

12.Economic downturns can significantly impact the financial performance of our company.

Economic downturns can significantly impact the financial performance of media companies, primarily
due to reduced advertising spending and a decline in consumer spending on paid content. During periods
of economic uncertainty, businesses often cut back on advertising budgets, seeing it as a discretionary
expense. This results in less revenue for media companies that rely heavily on ad sales, especially those
in digital platforms, television, and print media. Additionally, consumers tend to reduce discretionary
spending during tough economic times, which can lead to a decrease in subscriptions for streaming
services, digital publications, and pay-per-view content. As individuals and households tighten their
budgets, they are more likely to cancel or downgrade their subscriptions, impacting the recurring revenue
streams that many media companies depend on. Combined, these factors create a challenging environment
for media businesses, forcing them to find new ways to attract revenue or adjust their cost structures to
maintain profitability.

13. We have not made any alternate arrangements for meeting our capital requirements for the Objects of
the issue. Further we have not identified any alternate source of financing the ‘Objects of the Issue’.
Any shortfall in raising / meeting the same could adversely affect our growth plans, operations and
financial performance.

As on date of DLOF, we have not made any alternate arrangements for meeting our capital requirements
for the objects of the issue. We meet our capital requirements through our owned funds and internal
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accruals. Anyshortfall in our net owned funds, internal accruals and our inability to raise debt in future
would result in usbeing unable to meet our capital requirements, which in turn will negatively affect our
financial condition and results of operations. Further we have not identified any alternate source of
funding and hence any failure or delay on our part to raise money from this issue or any shortfall in the
issue proceeds may delay the implementation schedule and could adversely affect our growth plans. For
further details please refer tothe chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 55 of the Draft
letter of offer.

14.0ur Company has not entered into any fixed contracts with its customers and we will operate on the
basis of orders received on hand. Inability to maintain regular order flow would adversely impact our
revenues and profitability Long-term business relationship in turn benefits continuous order.

We have not entered into any fixed contracts with our customers and we cater to them on an order-by-
order basis. As a result, our customers can terminate their relationships with us without any notice and,
without consequence, which could materially and adversely impact our business. Consequently, our
revenue may be subject to variability because of fluctuations in demand for our materials. Our Company’s
customers have no obligation to place order with us and may either cancel, reduce or delay orders. The
orders placed by our Company's customers are dependent on factors such as the customer satisfaction
with the level of service that our Company provides, quality consistency, fluctuation in demand for our
Company’s products and customer’s inventory management. Although we place a strong emphasis on
quality, pricing and timely delivery of our products and after sales service such as feedback on the trends
in their market, personal interaction by the top management with the customers, etc., in the absence of
contracts, any sudden change in the buying pattern of buyers could adversely affect the business and the
profitability of our Company.

15. If we are unable to maintain and enhance our brands, including our ability to protect our brands
through intellectual property, the sales of our products may suffer, which could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations.

In the publishing industry, maintaining and enhancing a brand is critical to establishing trust and
recognition with consumers, authors, and other stakeholders. A brand is not just the name or logo but also
the reputation and perception that surrounds a publisher’s products and services. This includes the quality
of the content, the experiences with the publishing process, and the connections that are built with readers
and authors. If a publisher is unable to manage and develop their brand effectively, they risk losing their
market position and diminishing their competitive edge. The inability to effectively protect a brand
through intellectual property (IP) rights, such as trademarks, copyrights, and patents, further exacerbates
this risk.

Intellectual property is a cornerstone of the publishing industry, where original content is the primary
product. Without the proper legal mechanisms to protect their IP, publishers are vulnerable to
infringement or unauthorized use of their content, which can undermine the value of their intellectual
assets. This could include the illegal reproduction of books, unlicensed adaptations of copyrighted
materials, or the misuse of the publisher’s branding. In the age of digital content, such violations have
become increasingly common, with pirated e-books, unauthorized online distribution, and counterfeit
copies of publications being significant challenges. Failing to enforce IP rights or defend against these
infringements could lead to diminished sales, as consumers may turn to cheaper or illegal alternatives.

As of the date of this Draft Letter of offer, we have trademarks registered in the name of our company,
details of which is given under chapter- Our Business. While we have applied for the registration of
further trademark, which is pending as of the date. While the pending registration of our trademark do not
currently have a material effect on our business, we cannot assure you that there will not be instances
where our applications for intellectual property may be opposed, which may have a material adverse
effect to our business. We have been in existence for 42 years and have been complying.
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16.Misconduct or errors by manpower/employee engaged by us could expose us to business risks or losses
that could adversely affect our business prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

Misconduct or errors by manpower/Employees engaged by us could expose us to business risks or losses,
including regulatory sanctions, penalties and serious harm to our reputation. Such misconduct includes
breach of security requirements, misappropriation of funds, hiding unauthorized activities, failure to
observe our stringent operational standards and processes and improper use of confidential information. It
is not always possible to detect or deter such misconduct, and the precautions we take to prevent and detect
such misconduct may not be effective. Consequently, our ability to control the workplace environment in
such circumstances is limited. The risks associated with the deployment of manpower engaged by us across
locations include, among others, possible claims relating to; actions or inactions, including matters for
which we may have to indemnify our clients; our failure to adequately verify personnel backgrounds and
qualifications resulting in deficient services; failure of manpower engaged by us to adequately perform
their duties; errors or malicious acts or violation of health and safety regulations; or criminal acts.

These claims may give rise to litigation and claims for damages, which could be time-consuming. These
claims may also result in negative publicity and adversely impact our reputation and brand name. Further,
we may be forced to indemnify our clients against losses or damages suffered by our clients as a result of
negligent acts of manpower engaged by us. We may also be affected in our operations by the acts of third
parties, including sub-contractors and service providers. Any claims and proceedings for alleged negligence
as well as regulatory actions may in turn materially and adversely affect our brand and our reputation, and
consequently, our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

17. If we are unable to source business opportunities effectively, we may not achieve our financial
objectives.

Our ability to achieve our financial objectives will depend on our ability to identify, evaluate and
accomplish business opportunities. To grow our business, we will need to hire, train, supervise and manage
new employees and to implement systems capable of effectively accommodating our growth. However,
we cannot assure you that any such employees will contribute to the success of our business or that we will
implement such systems effectively. Our failure to source business opportunities effectively could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. It is also possible that
the strategies used by us in the future may be different from those presently in use. No assurance can be
given that our analyses of market and other data or the strategies we use or plans in future to use will be
successful under various market conditions.

18. We have not obtained the insurance coverage to protect against any business risks and this may have
an adverse effect on the business operations.

Operations in our business carry inherent risks of personal injury, damage to or destruction of property,
plant and equipment and damage to the environment, and are subject to risks such as fire, theft, flood,
earthquakes and terrorism. However, we have not obtained any insurance coverage and are in the process
of obtaining the same. The occurrence of any event for which we are not insured, could have an adverse
effect on our business, reputation, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

19. Future issuances of Equity Shares or future sales of Equity Shares by our Promoters and certain
shareholders, or the perception that such sales may occur, may result in a decrease of the market price
of our Equity Shares.

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to the Equity Shares
by our Company may dilute your shareholding in our Company; adversely affect the trading price of the
Equity Shares and our ability to raise capital through an issue of our securities. In addition, any perception
by investors that such issuances or sales might occur could also affect the trading price of the Equity
Shares. We cannot assure you that we will not issue additional Equity Shares. The disposal of Equity
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Shares by any of our Promoter and Promoter Group, or the perception that such sales may occur may
significantly affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that our Promoter and
Promoter Group will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares in the future.

In the history of 42 years of the Company, our Promoter and Promoter Group sold only two times their
holding of the Company i.e. December 2017, and July 2018. While they have enhanced their equity
holding two times i.e. in March/April 2017, and March 2021 through preferential allotments.

20.We have entered into related party transactions in the past and may do so in the future. We cannot
assure you that we could not have achieved more favourable terms if such transactions had not been
entered into with related parties.

We will enter into related party transactions with our Promoters, its group members/ entities, and
Directors. While we believe that all such transactions will be conducted on arm’s length basis, however
it is difficult to ascertain whether more favorable terms will be achieved if such transactions be entered
with unrelated parties. Furthermore, it is likely that we will continue to enter into related party transactions
in the near future as well. We are in compliance with Related Party Transactions as per the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
For further details regarding the related party transactions, see the disclosure on related party transactions
contained in the financial statements included in this Draft Letter of Offer and, also see the section
“Financial Information” on page no. 92 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

21.Our operations are subject to high working capital requirements. Our inability to maintain sufficient
cash flow, credit facilities and other sources of funding, in a timely manner, or at all, to meet
requirement of working capital or pay out debts, could adversely affect our operations.

Our business requires significant amount of working capital. Major Portion of our working capital is
utilized towards debtors. Our growing scale and expansion, if any, may result in increase in the quantum
of current assets. Our inability to maintain sufficient cash flow, credit facility and other sourcing of
funding, in a timely manner, or at all, to meet the requirement of working capital or pay out debts, could
adversely affect our financial condition and result of our operations.

Further, in some cases, we may have high Debtors which may result in a high risk in case of non-payment
by these Debtors. In the event we are not able to recover our dues from our Debtors, we may not be able
to maintain our sales level and thus adversely affecting our financial health. If this situation persists, we
may not be able to pay our lenders / creditors which may result in adversely affecting our operations and
future prospects.

22.The success of our business operations depends largely upon our Promoter, Directors, and Key
Managerial Personnel, the loss of any of them may negatively impact our business operations and
financial conditions.

Our success is highly dependent on the expertise of our Promoter Pradeep Gupta, and other key
managerial personnel. Our ability to successfully function and meet future business challenges partly
depends on our ability to attract and retain these key managerial personnel. We believe that our relation
with our Promoters, who have rich experience in setting up business, developing markets, managing
customers and handling overall businesses, has enabled us to experience growth and profitability. We
benefit from our relationship with our Promoters and our success depends upon the continuing services
of our Promoters who have been responsible for the growth of our business and are closely involved in
the overall strategy, direction and management of our business. Further, our Promoters have also
promoted other companies / firms / ventures and may continue to do so. If they divert their attention to
the other companies, we may not be able to function as efficiently and profitably as before. We may have
to incur additional costs to replace the services of our promoters or we may not be able to do so at all,
which could adversely affect our business operations and affect our ability to continue to manage and
expand our business.
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Further, we also depend significantly on our Key Managerial Persons for executing their day-to-day
activities. If our Promoters / Directors or any member of the senior management team is unable or
unwilling to continue in his present position, we may not be able to replace him easily or at all, and our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may be materially and adversely
affected.

23.We face competition in our business from organized and unorganized players, which may adversely
affect our business operation and financial condition.

The market in which our company is doing business is highly competitive on account of both the
organized and unorganized players. Players in this industry generally compete with each other on key
attributes. Some of our competitors may have longer industry experience and greater financial, technical
and other resources, which may enable them to react faster in changing market scenario and remain
competitive. Moreover, the unorganized sector offers their products at highly competitive prices which
may not be matched by us and consequently affect our volume of sales and growth prospects. Growing
competition may result in a decline in our market share and may affect our margins which may adversely
affect our business operations and our financial condition.

24, Our Company, if not able to manage our growth or to successfully implement our business plan could
have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial conditions.

The success of our business will depend greatly on our ability to effectively implement our business and
growth strategy. If our Company is not able to execute our strategy on time and within our estimated
budget, or that our expansion and development plans fail to generate the required results, it may adversely
impact our profitability. Further, our growth strategies could place significant demand on our management
team and other resources and would require us to continuously develop and improve our operational,
financial and other controls, none of which can be assured. Any failure on our part to scale up our
infrastructure and management could cause disruptions to our business and could be detrimental to our
long-term business outlook. Further, we operate in a highly dynamic industry, and on account of changes
in market conditions, industry dynamics, technological improvements or changes in trends and fashions
and any other relevant factors, our growth strategy and plans may undergo changes or modifications, and
such changes or modifications may be substantial, and may even include limiting or foregoing growth
opportunities if the situation so demands. Our inability to implement our business strategies and sustain
our growth may impair our financial growth and thus result in an adverse impact on our Company’s share
price.

25.0ur funding requirements and deployment of the issue proceeds are based on management estimates
and actual cost may vary compared with the estimated amount.

Our funding requirement and deployment of the proceeds of the issue are based on management estimates
and our current business plan. The fund requirements and intended use of proceeds have not been
appraised by banks or financial institutions and are based on our estimates. In view of the highly
competitive nature of the industry in which we operate, we may have to revise our management estimates
from time to time and, consequently, our funding requirements may also change as a result of various
factors which may not be within the control of our management. This may entail rescheduling, revising
or cancelling the planned expenditure and fund requirement and increasing or decreasing the working
capital limits maintained from time to time at the discretion of our board in compliance with all applicable
laws. In addition, schedule of implementation as described herein are based on the management’s current
expectations and are subject to change due to various factors some of which may not be in our control.
The deployment of the funds towards the objects of the issue is entirely at the discretion of the Board of
Directors in compliance with all applicable laws and is not subject to monitoring by external independent
agency. However, the deployment of funds is subject to monitoring by our Audit Committee.
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26. As the Equity Shares of our Company are listed on BSE & NSE, our Company is subject to certain
obligations and reporting requirements under SEBI Listing Regulations. Any non-compliances/delay
in complying with such obligations and reporting requirements may render us/our promoter liable to
prosecution and/or penalties.

Our Company is subject to the obligations and reporting requirements under SEBI Listing Regulations. In
the past, our Company had complied with all the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Further our
Company did not receive any communication regarding non-compliances from the Stock Exchange or any
authority.

Further, as per the SEBI Listing Regulations, our company is obligated to adhere to the various reporting
requirements. While we strive to comply with these obligations, there may be instances of non-disclosures,
delayed disclosures, erroneous disclosures, or other violations. Such occurrences may lead to penalties,
show cause notices, or other actions by regulatory authorities such as the BSE, NSE and SEBI, as per the
SEBI Act, Rules, Regulations, and applicable circulars. Any adverse regulatory action may impact our
business reputation, divert management focus, and have a material adverse effect on our business
prospects, financial performance, and the trading price of our Equity Shares. Further, we would like to
clarify that as on date we have no such instances of non-compliances from the Stock Exchange or any
authority. However, we may face such kind of issue in the future. Therefore, we have included the same
in the risk factor.

27. The objects of the Issue for which funds are being raised have not been appraised by any agency.

The deployment of funds in the project is entirely at the discretion of our management and as per the
details mentioned in the section titled “Objects of the Issue”. Any revision in the estimates may require
us to reschedule our project expenditure and may have a bearing on our expected revenues and earnings.
Our funding requirements and the deployment of the proceeds of the Issue are purely based on our
management’s estimates and have not been appraised by any agency. Our Company may have to revise
such estimates from time to time and consequently our funding requirements may also change. Our
estimates for expansion may exceed the value that would have been determined by third party appraisals
and may require us to reschedule our expenditure which may have a bearing on our expected revenues
and earnings. Further, the deployment of the funds towards the objects of the Issue is entirely at the
discretion of our management and is not subject to monitoring by any external independent agency.
However, the deployment of funds is subject to monitoring by our Audit Committee.

28. Major fraud, lapses of internal control or system failures could adversely impact the company’s
business.

Our Company is vulnerable to risk arising from the failure of employees to adhere to approved procedures,
system controls, fraud, system failures, information system disruptions, communication systems failure
and interception during transmission through external communication channels or networks. Failure to
protect fraud or breach in security may adversely affect our Company’s operations and financial
performance. Our reputation could also be adversely affected by significant fraud committed by our
employees, agents, customers or third parties.

ISSUE SPECIFIC RISKS

29.We will not distribute this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer,
Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter to overseas Shareholders who have not provided an
address in India for service of documents.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and SEBI Rights Issue Circulars our Company will send,
only through email, this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights
Entitlement Letter, Application Form and other issue material to the email addresses of all the Eligible
Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in
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31.

jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares permitted under laws of such
jurisdictions and in each case who make a request in this regard. The Issue Materials will not be
distributed to addresses outside India on account of restrictions that apply to circulation of such materials
in overseas jurisdictions. However, the Companies Act, 2013 requires companies to serve documents at
any address which may be provided by the members as well as through e-mail. Presently, there is lack
of clarity under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder with respect to distribution of
Issue Materials in overseas jurisdictions where such distribution may be prohibited under the applicable
laws of such jurisdictions. While we have requested all the shareholders to provide an address in India
for the purposes of distribution of Issue Materials, we cannot assure you that the regulator or authorities
would not adopt a different view with respect to compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and may
subject us to fines or penalties.

SEBI has recently, by way of circulars dated January 22, 2020, May 6, 2020, January 19, 2021, April
22,2021 and May 19, 2022 streamlined the process of rights issues. You should follow the instructions
carefully, as stated in such SEBI circulars and in this Draft Letter of Offer.

The concept of crediting Rights Entitlements into the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity
Shareholders has recently been introduced by the SEBI in 2020. Accordingly, the process for such
Rights Entitlements has been recently devised by capital market intermediaries. Eligible Equity
Shareholders are encouraged to exercise caution, carefully follow the requirements as stated in the SEBI
circulars dated January 22, 2020, May 6, 2020 and January 19, 2021, April 22, 2021 and May 19, 2022,
as applicable (“SEBI Rights Issue Circular”) and ensure completion of all necessary steps in relation
to providing/updating their demat account details in a timely manner. For details, see "Terms of the
Issue" on page 195.

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue
Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in
dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights
Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in
dematerialized form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company, for the Eligible
Equity Shareholders which would comprise of Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares held in
a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b) Equity
Shares held in the account of IEPF authority; or (c) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity
Shareholder which are frozen or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar
on the Record Date; or (d) credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (e) the
ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court proceedings.

The Rights Entitlement of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form
(""Physical Shareholder'™) may lapse in case they fail to furnish the details of their demat account to
the Registrar.

In accordance with the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, the
credit of Rights Entitlement and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialised form only.
Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders shall be credited in a suspense escrow
demat account opened by our Company during the Issue Period. The Physical Shareholders are
requested to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than two Working Days
prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their demat accounts
at least one day before the Issue Closing Date. The Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders
who do not furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than two Working Days
prior to the Issue Closing Date, shall lapse. Further, pursuant to a press release dated December 03,
2018 issued by the SEBI, with effect from April 1, 2019, a transfer of listed Equity Shares cannot be
processed unless the Equity Shares are held in dematerialized form (except in case of transmission or
transposition of Equity Shares).
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Failure to exercise or sell the Rights Entitlements will cause the Rights Entitlements to lapse without
compensation and result in a dilution of shareholding.

The Rights Entitlements that are not exercised prior to the end of the Issue Closing Date will expire and
become null and void, and Eligible Equity Shareholders will not receive any consideration for them.
The proportionate ownership and voting interest in our Company of Eligible Equity Shareholders who
fail (or are not able) to exercise their Rights Entitlements will be diluted. Even if you elect to sell your
unexercised Rights Entitlements, the consideration you receive for them may not be sufficient to fully
compensate you for the dilution of your percentage ownership of the equity share capital of our
Company that may be caused as a result of the Issue. Renouncee(s) may not be able to apply in case of
failure in completion of renunciation through off-market transfer in such a manner that the Rights
Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee(s) prior to the Issue Closing Date.
Further, in case, the Rights Entitlements do not get credited in time, in case of On Market Renunciation,
such Renouncee(s) will not be able to apply in this Issue with respect to such Rights Entitlements. For
details, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 195.

Any future issuance of Equity Shares, or convertible securities or other equity-linked securities by our
Company may dilute your shareholding and any sale of Equity Shares by our Promoter or members
of our Promoter Group may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to the Equity Shares
by our Company may dilute your shareholding in our Company; adversely affect the trading price of
the Equity Shares and our ability to raise capital through an issue of our securities. In addition, any
perception by investors that such issuances or sales might occur could also affect the trading price of
the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that we will not issue additional Equity Shares. The disposal
of Equity Shares by any of our Promoter and Promoter Group, or the perception that such sales may
occur may significantly affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that our
Promoter and Promoter Group will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares in the future.
Presently, our Promoter and Promoter Group hold 61.79% in the paid up capital of the Company.

Investors may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares.

Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity
shares of an Indian company are generally taxable in India. Accordingly, you may be subject to payment
of long-term capital gains tax in India, in addition to payment of STT, on the sale of any Equity Shares
held for more than 12 months. STT will be levied on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on
which the Equity Shares are sold. Further, any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares held for
a period of 12 months or less will be subject to short-term capital gains tax in India. Capital gains arising
from the sale of the Equity Shares may be partially or completely exempt from taxation in India in cases
where such exemption is provided under a treaty between India and the country of which the seller is a
resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India’s ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a
result, residents of other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on
gains made upon the sale of the Equity Shares.

Applicants to this Issue are not allowed to withdraw their Applications after the Issue Closing Date.

In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Applicants in this Issue are not allowed to withdraw their
Applications after the Issue Closing Date. The Allotment in this Issue and the credit of such Equity
Shares to the Applicant’s demat account with its depository participant shall be completed within such
period as prescribed under the applicable laws. There is no assurance, however, that material adverse
changes in the international or national monetary, financial, political or economic conditions or other
events in the nature of force majeure, material adverse changes in our business, results of operation, cash
flows or financial condition, or other events affecting the Applicant’s decision to invest in the Equity
Shares, would not arise between the Issue Closing Date and the date of Allotment in this Issue.
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Occurrence of any such events after the Issue Closing Date could also impact the market price of our
Equity Shares. The Applicants shall not have the right to withdraw their applications in the event of any
such occurrence. We cannot assure you that the market price of the Equity Shares will not decline below
the Issue Price. To the extent the market price for the Equity Shares declines below the Issue Price after
the Issue Closing Date, the shareholder will be required to purchase Equity Shares at a price that will be
higher than the actual market price for the Equity Shares at that time. Should that occur, the shareholder
will suffer an immediate unrealized loss as a result. We may complete the Allotment even if such events
may limit the Applicants’ ability to sell our Equity Shares after this Issue or cause the trading price of
our Equity Shares to decline

You may not receive the Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue until fifteen days after the date
on which this Issue closes, which will subject you to market risk.

The Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue may not be credited to your demat account with the
depository participants until approximately 15 days from the Issue Closing Date. You can start trading
such Equity Shares only after receipt of the listing and trading approval in respect thereof. There can be
no assurance that the Equity Shares allocated to you will be credited to your demat account, or that
trading in the Equity Shares will commence within the specified time period, subjecting you to market
risk for such period.

There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed in a timely manner or at all which may
adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, final approval for listing and trading of the Equity Shares
will not be granted by the Stock Exchanges until after those Equity Shares have been issued and allotted.
Approval will require all relevant documents authorizing the issuing of Equity Shares to be submitted.
There could be a failure or delay in listing the Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges. Any failure or delay
in obtaining the approval would restrict your ability to dispose of your Equity Shares. Further, historical
trading prices, therefore, may not be indicative of the prices at which the Equity Shares will trade in the
future which may adversely impact the ability of our shareholders to sell the Equity Shares or the price
at which shareholders may be able to sell their Equity Shares at that point of time.

Holders of Equity Shares could be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under Indian
law and could thereby suffer future dilution of their ownership position.

Under the Companies Act, any company incorporated in India must offer its holders of equity shares
pre-emptive rights to subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of shares to maintain their existing
ownership percentages prior to the issuance of any new equity shares, unless the pre-emptive rights
have been waived by the adoption of a special resolution by holders of three-fourths of the shares voted
on such resolution, unless our Company has obtained government approval to issue without such rights.
However, if the law of the jurisdiction that you are in does not permit the exercise of such pre-emptive
rights without us filing an offering document or registration statement with the applicable authority in
such jurisdiction, you will be unable to exercise such pre-emptive rights unless we make such a filing.
We may elect not to file a registration statement in relation to pre-emptive rights otherwise available by
Indian law to you. To the extent that you are unable to exercise pre-emptive rights granted in respect of
the Equity Shares, your proportional interests in us would be reduced.

Fluctuation in the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies may adversely
affect the value of our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results.

On listing, our Equity Shares will be quoted in Indian Rupees on the Stock Exchanges. Any dividends
in respect of our Equity Shares will also be paid in Indian Rupees and subsequently converted into the
relevant foreign currency for repatriation, if required. Any adverse movement in currency exchange
rates during the time that it takes to undertake such conversion may reduce the net dividend to foreign
investors. In addition, any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during a delay in repatriating
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outside India the proceeds from a sale of Equity Shares, for example, because of a delay in regulatory
approvals that may be required for the sale of Equity Shares may reduce the proceeds received by equity
shareholders. For example, the exchange rate between the Rupee and the U.S. dollar has fluctuated
substantially in recent years and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future, which may
adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares and returns on our Equity Shares, independent
of our operating results.

Sale of Equity Shares by our Promoter or other significant shareholder(s) may adversely affect the
trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any instance of disinvestments of equity shares by our Promoter or by other significant shareholder(s)
may significantly affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. Further, our market price may also be
adversely affected even if there is a perception or belief that such sales of Equity Shares might occur.

In the history of 42 years of the Company, our Promoter and Promoter Group sold only two times their
holding of the Company i.e. December 2017, and July 2018. While they have enhanced their equity
holding two times i.e. in April 2017, and March 2021 through preferential allotments.

Investors will not have the option of getting the allotment of Equity Shares in physical form.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Equity Shares shall be issued only in dematerialized
form. Investors will not have the option of getting the allotment of Equity Shares in physical form. The
Equity Shares Allotted to the Applicants who do not have demat accounts or who have not specified their
demat details, will be kept in abeyance till receipt of the details of the demat account of such Applicants.
For details, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 195. This may impact the ability of our shareholders to
receive the Equity Shares in the Issue.

Rights of shareholders under Indian laws may be more limited than under the laws of other
jurisdictions.

Indian legal principles related to corporate procedures, directors’ fiduciary duties and liabilities, and
shareholders’ rights may differ from those that would apply to a company in another jurisdiction.
Shareholders’ rights including in relation to class actions, under Indian law may not be as extensive as
shareholders’ rights under the laws of other countries or jurisdictions. Investors may have more
difficulty in asserting their rights as shareholder in an Indian company than as shareholder of a
corporation in another jurisdiction.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS

Significant differences exist between Ind AS, Indian GAAP and other accounting principles, such as
US GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), which investors may be more
familiar with and consider material to their assessment of our financial condition.

Summary statements of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024 and summary statements of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity for the Fiscals 2024 have
been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Ind AS Rules and, the SEBI Circular and the Prospectus Guidance
Note.

We have not attempted to quantify the impact of US GAAP, IFRS or any other system of accounting
principles on the financial data included in this Draft Letter of Offer, nor do we provide a reconciliation
of our financial statements to those of US GAAP, IFRS or any other accounting principles. US GAAP
and IFRS differ in significant respects from Ind AS and Indian GAAP. Accordingly, the degree to which
the Financial Information included in this Draft Letter of Offer will provide meaningful information is
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entirely dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Ind AS, Indian GAAP and the SEBI ICDR
Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial
disclosures presented in this Draft Letter of Offer should accordingly be limited.

Political, economic or other factors that are beyond our control may have adversely affect our business
and results of operations.

The Indian economy is influenced by economic developments in other countries. These factors could
depress economic activity which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations. Any financial disruption could have an adverse effect on our business and future
financial performance.

We are dependent on domestic, regional and global economic and market conditions. Our performance,
growth and market price of our Equity Shares are and will be dependent to a large extent on the health
of the economy in which we operate. There have been periods of slowdown in the economic growth of
India. Demand for our services may be adversely affected by an economic downturn in domestic,
regional and global economies.

Economic growth is affected by various factors including domestic consumption and savings, balance
of trade movements, namely export demand and movements in key imports, global economic uncertainty
and liquidity crisis, volatility in exchange currency rates, and annual rainfall which affects agricultural
production.

Consequently, any future slowdown in the Indian economy could harm our business, results of operations
and financial condition. Also, a change in the government or a change in the economic and deregulation
policies could adversely affect economic conditions prevalent in the areas in which we operate in general
and our business in particular and high rates of inflation in India could increase our costs without
proportionately increasing our revenues, and as such decrease our operating margins.

A slowdown in economic growth in India could cause our business to suffer.

We are incorporated in India, and all of our assets and employees are located in India. As a result, we
are highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and our results of operations are
significantly affected by factors influencing the Indian economy. A slowdown in the Indian economy
could adversely affect our business, including our ability to grow our assets, the quality of our assets,
and our ability to implement our strategy.

Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and hence our results of operations, may

include:

. Any increase in Indian interest rates or inflation;

° Any scarcity of credit or other financing in India;

° Prevailing income conditions among Indian consumers and Indian corporations;

. Changes in India’s tax, trade, fiscal or monetary policies;

. political instability, terrorism or military conflict in India or in countries in the region or

globally, including in India’s various neighbouring countries;
Prevailing regional or global economic conditions; and
. Other significant regulatory or economic developments in or affecting India

Any slowdown in the Indian economy or in the growth of the sectors we participate in or future volatility
in global commaodity prices could adversely affect our borrowers and contractual counter parties. This in
turn could adversely affect our business and financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares.
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46. Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of
corporate and tax laws, may adversely affect our business, prospects and results of operations.

The regulatory and policy environment in which we operate is evolving and subject to change. Such
changes, including the instances mentioned below, may adversely affect our business, results of
operations and prospects, to the extent that we are unable to suitably respond to and comply with any
such changes in applicable law and policy.

The Government of India has issued a notification dated September 29, 2016 notifying Income
Computation and Disclosure Standards (“ICDS”), thereby creating a new framework for the computation
of taxable income. The ICDS became applicable from the assessment year for Fiscal 2018 and
subsequent years. The adoption of ICDS is expected to significantly alter the way companies compute
their taxable income, as ICDS deviates from several concepts that are followed under general accounting
standards, including Indian GAAP and Ind AS. In addition, ICDS shall be applicable for the computation
of income for tax purposes but shall not be applicable for the computation of income for minimum
alternate tax. There can be no assurance that the adoption of ICDS will not adversely affect our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

e The General Anti Avoidance Rules (“GAAR”) have been made effective from April 1, 2017.
The tax consequences of the GAAR provisions being applied to an arrangement could result in
denial of tax benefit amongst other consequences. In the absence of any precedents on the
subject, the application of these provisions is uncertain. If the GAAR provisions are made
applicable to our Company, it may have an adverse tax impact on us.

e A comprehensive national GST regime that combines taxes and levies by the Central and State
Governments into a unified rate structure, which came into effect from July 1, 2017. We cannot
provide any assurance as to any aspect of the tax regime following implementation of the GST.
Any future increases or amendments may affect the overall tax efficiency of companies
operating in India and may result in significant additional taxes becoming payable.

In addition, unfavorable changes in or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of new laws, rules
and regulations including foreign investment laws governing our business, operations and group
structure could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws or may require us to apply
for additional approvals. We may incur increased costs and other burdens relating to compliance with
such new requirements, which may also require significant management time and other resources, and
any failure to comply may adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects. Uncertainty
in the applicability, interpretation or implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing law,
regulation or policy, including by reason of an absence, or a limited body, of administrative or judicial
precedent may be time consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and may affect the viability of our
current business or restrict our ability to grow our business in the future.

Any increase in taxes and levies, or the imposition of new taxes and levies in the future, could increase
the cost of production and operating expenses. Taxes and other levies imposed by the central or state
governments in India that affect our industry include customs duties, excise duties, sales tax, income tax
and other taxes, duties or surcharges introduced on a permanent or temporary basis from time to time.
The central and state tax scheme in India is extensive and subject to change from time to time. Any
adverse changes in any of the taxes levied by the central or state governments may adversely affect our
competitive position and profitability.
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48.

Financial instability in both Indian and international financial markets could adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition.

The Indian financial market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions
in other countries, particularly in emerging market in Asian countries. Financial turmoil in Asia, Europe,
the United States and elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy. Although
economic conditions are different in each country, investors’ reactions to developments in one country
can have an adverse effect on the securities of companies in other countries. A loss in investor confidence
in the financial systems of other emerging markets may cause increased volatility in in the Indian
economy in general. Any global financial instability, including further deterioration of credit conditions
in the U.S. market, could also have a negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial disruptions may
occur again and could harm our results of operations and financial condition.

The Indian economy is also influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries. This
includes, but is not limited to, the conditions in the United States, Europe and certain economies in Asia.
Financial turmoil in Asia and elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy.
Any worldwide financial instability may cause increased volatility in the Indian financial markets and,
directly or indirectly, adversely affect the Indian economy and financial sector and its business.

Although economic conditions vary across markets, loss of investor confidence in one emerging
economy may cause increased volatility across other economies, including India. Financial instability in
other parts of the world could have a global influence and thereby impact the Indian economy. Financial
disruptions in the future could adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results
of operations. The global credit and equity markets have experienced substantial dislocations, liquidity
disruptions and market corrections.

There are concerns that a tightening of monetary policy in emerging markets and some developed
markets will lead to a moderation in global growth. In response to such developments, legislators and
financial regulators in the United States and other jurisdictions, including India, have implemented a
number of policy measures designed to add stability to the financial markets. However, the overall long-
term impact of these and other legislative and regulatory efforts on the global financial markets is
uncertain, and they may not have had the intended stabilizing effects. Any significant financial disruption
in the future could have an adverse effect on our cost of funding, loan portfolio, business, future financial
performance and the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Inflation in India could have an adverse effect on our profitability and if significant, on our financial
condition.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future.
India has experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to an increase
in interest rates and increased costs to our business, including increased costs of salaries, and other
expenses relevant to our business.

High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or control
our costs. Any increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to pass
on to our customers, whether entirely or in part, and the same may adversely affect our business and
financial condition. In particular, we might not be able to reduce our costs or increase our rates to pass
the increase in costs on to our customers. In such case, our business, results of operations, cash flows
and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Further, the GOI has previously initiated economic measures to combat high inflation rates, and it is

unclear whether these measures will remain in effect. There can be no assurance that Indian inflation
levels will not worsen in the future.
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49. Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limits our ability

50.

51.

to attract foreign investors, which may adversely impact the market price of the Equity Shares.

As an Indian Company, we are subject to exchange controls that regulate borrowing in foreign
currencies, including those specified under FEMA. Such regulatory restrictions limit our financing
sources and hence could constrain our ability to obtain financing on competitive terms and refinance
existing indebtedness. In addition, we cannot assure you that the required approvals will be granted to
us without onerous conditions, or at all. Limitations on foreign debt may adversely affect our business
growth, results of operations and financial condition.

Further, under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between
non- residents and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the
pricing guidelines and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are
sought to be transferred, is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or
fall under any of the exceptions referred to above, then the prior approval of the RBI will be required.
Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into
foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/ tax clearance
certificate from the income tax authority. There can be no assurance that any approval required from the
RBI or any other government agency can be obtained on any particular terms or at all.

Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by an independent agency may harm our ability to raise
financing.

Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings international debt by international rating agencies may
adversely affect our ability to raise additional overseas financing and the interest rates and other
commercial terms at which such additional financing is available. This could have an adverse effect on
our ability to fund our growth on favourable terms or at all, and consequently adversely affect our
business and financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares.

Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of tax
laws, may adversely affect our business, prospects and results of operations

The regulatory environment in which we operate is evolving and is subject to change. The Gol may
implement new laws or other regulations that could affect the insurance industry, which could lead to
new compliance requirements, including requiring us to obtain approvals and licenses from the Gol and
other regulatory bodies, or impose onerous requirements. New compliance requirements could increase
our costs or otherwise adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Further, the manner in which new requirements will be enforced or interpreted can lead to uncertainty
in our operations and could adversely affect our operations. Accordingly, any adverse regulatory change
in this regard could lead to fluctuation of price points of various input costs and thereby increase our
operational cost.

The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019, also prescribes certain changes to the income tax rate
applicable to companies in India. According to this Act, companies can henceforth voluntarily opt in
favour of a concessional tax regime (subject to no other special benefits/exemptions being claimed),
which would ultimately reduce the effective tax rate (on gross basis) for Indian companies from 34.94%
to approximately 25.17%. Any such future amendments may affect our ability to claim exemptions that
we have historically benefited from, and such exemptions may no longer be available to us. Any adverse
order passed by the appellate authorities/ tribunals/ courts would have an effect on our profitability. Due
to COVID -19 pandemic, the Government of India had also passed the Taxation and Other Laws
(Relaxation of Certain Provisions) Act, 2020, implementing relaxations from certain requirements under,
among others, the Central Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017 and Customs Tariff Act, 1975. Furthermore,
the Government of India announced the Union Budget for Fiscal 2023 (“Budget 2023”), pursuant to
which the Finance Bill 2023 (defined below) has proposed various amendments which will only come
into effect upon receipt of Presidential assent to the bill and notification in requisite acts. We have not
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52.

fully determined the impact of these recent and proposed laws and regulations on our business.

There can be no assurance that we will not be required to comply with additional procedures or obtain
additional approvals and licenses from the government and other regulatory bodies or that they will not
impose onerous requirements and conditions on our operations in connection with GST. While we are
and will comply with the GST rules and regulations, any failure to comply with the same may result in
noncompliance with the GST and may adversely affect our business and results of operations. The Gol
announced the union budget for fiscal year 2023, following which the Finance Bill, 2022 was introduced
in the Lok Sabha on February 1, 2022. Subsequently, the Finance Bill 2022 received the assent from the
President of India on March 30, 2022, and became the Finance Act, 2022 (“Finance Act 2022). We
cannot predict whether the amendments made and yet to be notified pursuant to the Finance Act 2022
would have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, future cash flows and results of
operations. Any changes in the Finance Act 2022 or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of
new, laws, rules and regulations including foreign investment and stamp duty laws that are applicable to
our business and operations could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws and may
require us to apply for additional approvals.

Changes in other laws may impose additional requirements, resulting in additional expenditure and time
cost. For instance, the Gol has announced four labour codes which are yet to come into force as on the
date of this Draft Letter of Offer, namely, (i) the Code on Wages, 2019, (ii) the Industrial Relations Code,
2020; (iii) the Code on Social Security, 2020; and (iv) the Occupational Safety, Health and Working
Conditions Code, 2020. Such codes will replace the existing legal framework governing rights of
workers and labour relations. While the rules for implementation under these codes have not been
announced, we are unable to determine the impact of all or some such laws on our business and
operations which may restrict our ability to grow our business in the future. For example, the Social
Security Code aims to provide uniformity in providing social security benefits to employees which were
previously segregated under different acts and had different applicability and coverage. The Social
Security Code has introduced the concept of workers outside traditional employer-employee work-
arrangements, such as “gig workers” and “platform workers” and provides for the mandatory registration
of such workers in order to enable these workers to avail themselves of various employment benefits,
such as life and disability cover, health and maternity benefits and old age protection, under schemes
framed under the Social Security Code from time to time. Any failure to comply may adversely affect
our business, results of operations and prospects. Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation or
implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing law, regulation or policy, including by
reason of an absence, or a limited body, of administrative or judicial precedent may be time consuming
as well as costly for us to resolve and may impact the viability of our current businesses or restrict our
ability to grow our businesses in the future

The occurrence of natural or man-made disasters could adversely affect our results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition. Hostilities, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence
could adversely affect the financial markets and our business.

The occurrence of natural disasters, including cyclones, storms, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis,
tornadoes, fires, explosions, pandemic disease and man-made disasters, including acts of terrorism and
military actions, could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows or financial condition. In
addition, any deterioration in international relations, especially between India and its neighboring
countries, may result in investor concerns regarding regional stability which could adversely affect the
price of the Equity Shares. In addition, India has witnessed local civil disturbances in recent years and it
is possible that future civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic or political events in India
could have an adverse effect on our business.

Such incidents could also create a greater perception that investment in Indian companies involves a

higher degree of risk and could have an adverse effect on our business and the market price of the Equity
Shares.
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53. We are subject to regulatory, economic, social and political uncertainties and other factors beyond
our control.

We are incorporated in India and we conduct our corporate affairs and our business in India.
Consequently, our business, operations, financial performance will be affected by interest rates,
government policies, taxation, social and ethnic instability and other political and economic
developments affecting India.

Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and hence our results of operations may include:
¢ Any exchange rate fluctuations, the imposition of currency controls and restrictions on the right
to convert or repatriate currency or export assets;

e Any scarcity of credit or other financing in India, resulting in an adverse effect on economic
conditions in India and scarcity of financing for our expansions;

e Prevailing income conditions among Indian customers and Indian corporations;

e epidemic or any other public health in India or in countries in the region or globally, including
in India’s various neighbouring countries;

e Hostile or war like situations with the neighbouring countries;

e Macroeconomic factors and central bank regulation, including in relation to interest rates
movements which may in turn adversely impact our access to capital and increase our borrowing
costs;

e Decline in India’s foreign exchange reserves which may affect liquidity in the Indian economy;

o Downgrading of India’s sovereign debt rating by rating agencies; and

o Difficulty in developing any necessary partnerships with local businesses on commercially
acceptable terms and/or a timely basis.

e Anyslowdown or perceived slowdown in the Indian economy, or in specific sectors of the Indian
economy or certain regions in India, could adversely affect our business, results of operations
and financial condition and the price of the Equity Shares.

54. Financial instability in other countries may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets.

The Indian market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other
countries, particularly emerging market countries in Asia. Although economic conditions are different
in each country, investors’ reactions to developments in one country can have adverse effects on the
securities of companies in other countries, including India. A loss of investor confidence in the financial
systems of other emerging markets may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets and,
indirectly, in the Indian economy in general. Any worldwide financial instability could also have a
negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial disruptions may occur again and could harm our
business, our future financial performance and the prices of the Equity Shares.

The recent outbreak of Novel Coronavirus has significantly affected financial markets around the world.
Any other global economic developments or the perception that any of them could occur may continue
to have an adverse effect on global economic conditions and the stability of global financial markets,
and may significantly reduce global market liquidity and restrict the ability of key market participants to
operate in certain financial markets. Any of these factors could depress economic activity and restrict
our access to capital, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations and reduce the price of our Equity Shares. Any financial disruption could have an adverse
effect on our business, future financial performance, shareholders’ equity and the price of our Equity
Shares.
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SECTION 111 - INTRODUCTION
THE ISSUE

This Issue has been authorized through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting held on Tuesday, 21
January, 2025, pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, to raise
funds by issuance and allotment of equity shares for an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs. 10,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Ten Crores only), by way of Rights Issue, on such terms to be decided by the Board or Rights Issue
Committee, a duly constituted committee of the Board at a later date, subject to the necessary approvals.

The terms and conditions of the Issue including the rights entitlement ratio, Issue Price, Record Date, timing
of the Issue and other related matters, have been approved by a resolution passed by the Rights Issue
Committee at its meeting held on [e]. The following is a summary of the Issue, and should be read in
conjunction with and is qualified entirely by, the information detailed in the chapter titled “Terms of the
Issue” on page 195 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Particulars Details of Equity Shares

Equity Shares proposed to be Up to [e]* Equity Shares

issued

Rights Entitlement** [e] Equity Share for every [e] fully paid-up Equity Share(s) held on
the Record Date

Record Date [e]

Face value per Equity Shares %10/-
Issue Price per Rights Equity X [e]/- per Equity Share (including premium of X [e] per Equity
Shares Share)

On Application, Investors will have to pay X [e]per Rights Equity
Share (including a premium of Z [e] per Rights Equity Share) which
constitutes [@]% of the Issue Price and the balance X [e]per Rights
Equity Share (including a premium of X [e] per Rights Equity Share)
which constitutes [®]% of the Issue Price, will have to be paid, on one
or more additional Calls as may be decided by our Board / Rights
Issue Committee, pursuant to the Payment Schedule after receipt of
the Application Money

Issue Size Issue not exceeding X 1000/- lakhs*
#Assuming full subscription, to be adjusted as per the Rights
Entitlement ratio.

Voting Rights and Dividend The Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue shall rank pari passu
in all respects with the Equity Shares of our Company.

Equity Shares issued, subscribed 1,56,67,242 Equity Shares. For details, see ""Capital Structure"

and paid up prior to the Issue beginning on page 53 of this Draft Letter of Offer

Equity Shares subscribed, paid- Upto [e] Equity Shares

up and outstanding after the

Issue (assuming full subscription

for and allotment of the Rights

Entitlement) and having made

fully paid-up

Money payable at the time of X [e]/-

Application

Scrip Details# ISIN: INE278G01037

BSE Code: 532640
NSE Symbol: CYBERMEDIA
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Particulars Details of Equity Shares
ISIN for Rights Entitlement: [e]

Use of Issue Proceeds For details, please refer to the chapter titled "Objects of the Issue™
on page 55 of this Draft Letter of Offer.
Terms of the Issue For details, please refer to the chapter titled "Terms of the Issue" on

page 195 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

* Assuming full subscription in the Issue, and receipt of all Call Monies with respect to the Rights Equity
Shares,subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment.

** For Rights Equity Shares being offered on a rights basis under this Issue, if the shareholding of any of
the Eligible Equity Shareholders is less than /e] Equity Shares or is not in multiples of /e/ the fractional
entitlement of such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be ignored for computation of the Rights Entitlements.
However, Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored earlier will be given
preference in the Allotment of one Additional Rights Equity Share each, if such Eligible Equity Shareholders
have applied for Additional Rights Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements.

# Our Company would obtain a separate ISIN for the Rights Equity Shares for each Call, as may be required
under applicable law.

For details in relation to fractional entitlements, see “Terms of the Issue — Fractional Entitlements” on page
195.

Terms of Payment

Amount payable per Rights Face Value %) Premium () Total (%)
Equity Share

On Application [o] [o] [@]*
On one or more additional Calls [e] [e] [@]**

with terms and conditions such as
the number of Calls and the timing
and quantum of each Call as may
be decided by our Board / Rights
Issue Committee from time to
time.

Total () 10 [o] [o]

* Constitutes [e] % of the Issue Price
** Constitutes [e] % of the Issue Price
For further details on payment schedule, see Terms of the Issue- terms of payment on page 195.

This space has been intentionally left blank intentionally

46



GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated as “Cyber Media (India) Limited” at New Delhi as a Public Limited
Company under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, vide Certificate of Incorporation dated
September 10, 1982 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana. Further, Our Company received
the Certificate for Commencement of Business from the Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana on
October 20, 1982. The Corporate Identification Number (CIN) of the Company is
L92114DL1982PLC014334.

In accordance with the Delhi High Court order dated February 18, 2011, under Section 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956, Cybermedia India Online Limited, Cyber Media Digital Limited, Cyber Media Events Limited,
and Cyber Holdings Limited were amalgamated into our company. The approved scheme of amalgamation
took effect retrospectively from April 1, 2009.

Registered and Corporate Office, CIN and registration number of our Company

Registered Office: D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi-110017
CIN: L92114DL1982PLC014334

Tel: +91-11-2649 1320

E-mail: info@cybermedia.co.in

Website: www.cybermedia.co.in

Registration Number: 014334

Corporate Office: B-35, Sector -32 Institutional Area, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122003
Tel: +91-124-423 7517

Address of the RoC
Our Company is registered with the RoC, Delhi & Haryana, which is situated at the following address:

Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana
4th Floor, IFCI Tower,

61, Nehru Place,

New Delhi — 110019

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mr. Anoop Singh

B-35, Sector -32 Institutional Area, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122003
Telephone: +91-124-423 7517

E- mail: info@cybermedia.co.in

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Sumit Khandelwal

B-35, Sector -32 Institutional Area, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122003
Telephone: +91-124-423 7517

E- mail: info@cybermedia.co.in

Banker to the Company:

ICICI Bank Limited

Branch Address: DLF City Gurgaon Branch, ICICI Bank Ltd., K6/7, K12 Kb12, Qutub Plaza, DLF Phase
1, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana

Mail id: kirangu@icicibank.com
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Board of Directors of our Company

Name Age Designation Address DIN
Mr. Pradeep 69 Chairman & D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi, | 00007520
Gupta Managing -110017, India
Director
Mr. Rohitasava 78 Non - Executive | B-19, Defence Colony, New Delhi | 00011150
Chand Director Delhi-110024, India
Mr. Krishan Kant | 62 Non - Executive | # 75, Sector 45, Gurugram-122003, | 00009764
Tulshan Director Haryana, India
Mrs. Shravani 65 Independent E 8/14 Vasant Vihar, New Delhi- | 02131359
Dang Director 1100057, India
Mr. Dhaval 41 Non - Executive | D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi, | 05287458
Gupta Director -110017, India
Mr. Amlan 70 Independent 28/3, Friends Colony West, New Delhi, | 01241149
Ghose Director Delhi-110065, India
Mr. Rajesh 68 Independent C-45, Naraina Vihar, South West Delhi, | 00042850
Kumar Director Delhi-110028, India
Mr. Varun Jain 41 Independent B 7, Anand Niketan, Chanakya Puri, 00397935
Director New Delhi-110021, India

For detailed profile of our Directors, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on page

74 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Details of Key Intermediaries pertaining to this Issue of our Company:

Legal Advisor to the Issue:

A & M Legal

S-75, Lower Ground Floor, GK-II, New Delhi-110048
Tel: +91 22 6639 6880

Email: shantanu@anmlegal.in

Contact person: Mr. Shantanu Awasthi

Registrar to the Company and the Issue:

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Known as Link Intime India Private Limited)
C-101, Embassy 247, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083

Telephone: +91 22 4918 6000

Email: mohan.devadiga@in.mpms.mufg.com

Website: www.mpms.mufg.com

Investor grievance e-mail: mohan.devadiga@in.mpms.mufg.com

Contact Person: Mr. Mohan Devadiga
SEBI Registration No.: INR000004058
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Banker to the Issue:

[e] Bank Limited

Branch Address: [e]
Telephone Number: [e]
Contact person: [e]

Website: [e]

E-mail: [e]

SEBI Registration Number: [o]

Statutory and Auditor of the Issuer:

M/s. S. Agarwal & Co., Chartered Accountants

Office No.: 123, Vinobapuri, Lajpat Nagar-1l, New Delhi, Delhi- 110024
Contact Person: Mr. S. N. Agarwal

Firm Registration Number: 000808N

Membership No.: 012103

Telephone Number: 29830625, 29838501

E-mail: sagarwal1910@gmail.com

Peer Review Certificate Number: 019377

Designated Intermediaries:
Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs or the ASBA Process is provided at the
website of the SEBI https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes and updated
from time to time. For details on Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Application Forms, refer to
the website of the SEBI https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes. On
allotment, the amount will be unblocked and the account will be debited only to the extent required to pay
for the Rights Equity Shares Allotted.

Expert Opinion
Except as stated below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions:

Our Company has received written consent dated January 30", 2025 from the Statutory Auditors to include
their name as required under Section 26(5) of the Companies Act 2013 read with SEBI ICDR Regulations
in this Draft Letter of Offer as an “expert” as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act 2013 to the
extent and in its capacity as an independent Statutory Auditor such consent has not been withdrawn as on
the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Investor Grievances

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-Issue/ post- Issue related
matters such as non-receipt of Letters of Allotment/ share certificates/ DEMAT credit/ Refund
Orders/unblocking of ASBA Account, etc.

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any
pre-Issue or post- Issue related matters. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to
the Registrar to the Issue, with a copy to the SCSB (in case of ASBA process), giving full details such as
name, address of the Applicant, contact number(s), e-mail address of the sole/ first holder, folio number or
DEMAT account, number of Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked (in case of ASBA process), ASBA
Account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSB where the application Forms, or the plain paper
application, as the case may be, was submitted by the Investors along with a photocopy of the
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acknowledgement slip (in case of ASBA process). For details on the ASBA process, "Terms of the Issue”
beginning on page 195 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Credit Rating

As this is an Issue of Equity Shares, credit rating is not required.

Debenture Trustees

As this is an Issue of Equity Shares, appointment of Debenture Trustee is not required.
Monitoring Agency

As the net proceeds of the Issue will be less than Rs. 10,000/- Lakhs, under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, it
is not required that a monitoring agency be appointed by our Company.

Filing

SEBI vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
(Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2020 has amended Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as per
which the threshold for filing of Letter of Offer with SEBI for rights issues has been increased. The threshold
of the rights issue size under Regulation 3 (b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations has been increased from Rupees
Ten Crores to Rupees Fifty Crores. Since the size of this Issue falls below this threshold, the Letter of Offer
has been filed with BSE Limited & National Stock Exchange of India Limited, not with SEBI. However, the
Letter of Offer will be submitted with SEBI for information and dissemination and will be filed with the
Stock Exchanges.

Underwriting Agreement and Details
This Issue is not underwritten.

Changes in Auditors during the last three years

Name of Auditor Address and E-mail Date of Appointment/ | Reason
Cessation
M/s. Goel Mintri & | Add: L-76, Ground Floor, Lajpat | Date of appointment: | Completion of
Associates, Nagar-I1, New Delhi, Delhi-110024 | 30/09/2019 (Date of | tenure
(Chartered E-mail: sanjaygoelca@hotmail.com | AGM)
Accountants)
Tenure: 01/04/2019 to
31/03/2023
M/s. S. Agarwal & Add: 123, Vinobapuri, Lajpat | Date of appointment: | N.A.
Co. Nagar-1l, New Delhi, Delhi- | 20/09/2023 (Date of
(Chartered 110024 AGM)
Accountants) Email: sagarwal1910@gmail.com
Tenure: 01/04/2023 to
31/03/2028
Issue Schedule
Last Date for credit of Rights Entitlements [e]
Issue Opening Date [o]
Last date for On Market Renunciation of [e]

Rights Entitlements #
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Issue Closing Date* [e]

Finalization of Basis of Allotment (on or [e]
about)

Date of Allotment (on or about) [e]
Date of credit (on or about) [o]
Date of listing or Commencement of [e]

trading (on or about)

# Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is
completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the
Renouncee(s) on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

* Qur Board or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it
may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of
the Issue Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted by any Applicant
after the Issue Closing Date.

The above schedule is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company.

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date,
have not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required
to provide their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days
prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., [e], to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of transfer
from the demat suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one day before the Issue
Closing Date, i.e., [®].

Investors are advised to ensure that the Application Forms are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date.
Our Company, the Advisors or the Registrar will not be liable for any loss on account of non-submission of
Application Forms on or before the Issue Closing Date. For details on submitting Application Forms, see
"Terms of the Issue - Procedure for Application" beginning on page 195 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity Shareholders can be accessed by
such respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on the website of the Registrar at www.mpms.mufg.com, after
keying in their respective details along with other security control measures implemented thereat. For further
details, see "Terms of the Issue- Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity
Shareholders" beginning on page 195 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Please Note that if no Application is made by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of Rights Entitlements
on or before Issue Closing Date, such Rights Entitlements shall get lapsed and shall be extinguished
after the Issue Closing Date. No Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will be credited,
even if such Rights Entitlements were purchased from market and purchaser will lose the premium
paid to acquire the Rights Entitlements. Persons who are credited the Rights Entitlements are
required to make an application to apply for Equity Shares offered under Rights Issue for subscribing
to the Equity Shares offered under Issue.

Minimum Subscription

The objects of the Issue involve financing other than financing of capital expenditure for a project and our
Promoter and Promoter Group have undertaken to (i) subscribe to the full extent of their respective Rights
Entitlements, subject to compliance with the minimum public shareholding requirements, as prescribed
under the SCRR; and (ii) have also confirmed that they shall not renounce their Rights Entitlements, except
to the extent of renunciation within the Promoter Group. Accordingly, in terms of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, the requirement of minimum subscription in the Issue is not applicable.
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Appraising Entity

None of the purposes for which the Net Proceeds are proposed to be utilized have been appraised by any
banks or financial institution or any other independent agency.

This space has been left blank intentionally.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Equity Share capital of our Company, as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer and after giving effect
to the Issue is set forth below:

Authorised Share Capital*
A. 23,00,00,000 Equity Shares of face value 210/- each 2300.00 -
B I?]sued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital before
.| the
Issue
1,56,67,242 Equity Shares of face value X10/- each 1566.72 -
C Present Issue in terms of this Draft Letter of Offer
‘| Offer of [e] Equity Shares of Face Value % 10/- each at a [e] [e]
Priceof X [e]/- per Equity Share
D ?ubscribed and paid up Equity Share Capital After the
| Issue
#[e] Equity Shares of face value X10/- each [o]
$Securities Premium Account
E.| Before the Issue 1439.31
After the Issue (o]

# Assuming full subscription for and Allotment of the Equity Shares

(1) The present Issue has been authorized by the Board of Directors vide resolution passed at its meeting held on January 21%,2025.
(2) **The Board in its meeting held on January 21, 2025 passed the resolution for increasing Authorized share Capital from INR
15,70,00,000 (INR Fifteen Crore Seventy Lakh Only) divided into 1,57,00,000 (One Crore Fifty Seven Lakh) Equity Shares of INR
10 (INR Ten Only) each to INR 23,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty-Three Crore Only) divided into 2,30,00,000 (Two Crore Thirty Lakh)
Equity Shares of INR 10 (INR Ten Only) each, and consequential alteration of Memorandum of Association of the Company in this
regard, subject to approval of shareholders of the Company.

The shareholders have approved the said increase in authorised share capital and consequential alteration in Clause V of the
Memorandum of Association, vide Special Resolution passed through postal ballot (remote e-voting) on February 23, 2025.

(3) On Application, Investors will have to pay Z [®] per Rights Equity Share (including a premium of T [e] per Rights Equity Share)
which constitutes /] % of the Issue Price and the balance ¥ [®] per Rights Equity Share (including a premium of ¥ [e] per Rights
Equity Share) which constitutes /o] % of the Issue Price, will have to be paid, on one or more additional Calls as may be decided
by our Board / Rights Issue Committee, pursuant to the Payment Schedule after receipt of the Application Money.

(4) Assuming full subscription in the Issue, and receipt of all Call Monies with respect to the Rights Equity Shares.

(5) To the extent of Application Money.

(6) Security premium amount mentioned above as per Financials statements ended as on 315t December, 2024.

* Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment and excluding impact of Issue related expenses.

Notes to Capital Structure

1. Details of outstanding instruments as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer:
As on date of this Draft Letter of Offer, our Company has not issued any Equity Shares under any
employee stock option scheme or employee stock purchase scheme. Further, it has not issued any

convertible securities which are outstanding as of date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

2. Details of Equity Shares held by the Promoter and Promoter Group including the details of lock-in
pledge of and encumbrance on such Equity Shares.

The details of the Equity Shares held by our Promoter and Promoter Group, including details of

Equity Shares which are locked-in, pledged or encumbered can be accessed
on the website of BSE and NSE as follows:
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Details of Equity Shares acquired by the Promoter and Promoter Group in the last one year prior to
the filing of this Draft Letter of Offer.

No Equity Shares have been acquired by the Promoters or Promoter Group in the last one year
immediately preceding the date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter and Promoter Group in the Issue:

Our Promoter and Promoter Group vide letter dated January 30, 2025 have expressed their intention
to (i) subscribe to the full extent of their respective Rights Entitlements, subject to compliance with
the minimum public shareholding requirements, as prescribed under the SCRR; and (ii) have also
confirmed that they shall not renounce their Rights Entitlements except to the extent of renunciation
within the Promoter and Promoter Group. Accordingly, in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the
requirement of minimum subscription in the Issue is not applicable.

Since, minimum subscription clause is not applicable. Hence, there is no requirement to subscribe
the unsubscribed portion of the Right Issue by the Promoter and/or Promoter Group of the company.

The ex-rights price of the Rights Equity Shares as per Regulation 10(4)(b) of the Takeover
Regulations is Rs. [e]/- per equity share.

Shareholding Pattern of our Company as per the last filing with the Stock Exchanges in compliance
with the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Q) The shareholding pattern of our Company, as on December 31, 2024, can be accessed on
the website of the BSE at https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/cyber-media-(india)-
Itd/cybermedia/532640/shareholding-pattern/ and NSE at
https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-shareholding-
pattern?symbol=CYBERMEDIA&tablndex=equity

(i) The statement showing holding of securities (including Equity Shares, warrants, convertible
securities) of persons belonging to the category "Public" including Equity Shareholders
holding more than 1% of the total number of Equity Shares as on December 31, 2024, as
well as details of shares which remain unclaimed for public can be accessed on the website
of the BSE at
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpdrPercnt.aspx?scripcd=532640&qtrid=124.00&C
ompName=CYBER%20MEDIA%20(INDIA)%20LTD.&QtrName=December%202024&
Type=TM and NSE at https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/corporate-filings-
shareholding-pattern?symbol=CYBERMEDIA&tablndex=equity

At any given time, there shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares of our Company.

All Equity Shares are fully paid-up and there are no partly paid-up Equity Shares outstanding as on
the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. Further, under Regulation 89 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
the Rights Equity Shares Allotted through the Issue are not required to be made fully paid-up, or
forfeited for non-payment of Calls within twelve months from the date of Allotment of the Rights
Equity Shares. Further, the Rights Equity Shares, when issued, shall be partly paid-up. For details
on the terms of this Issue, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 195.
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

The Issue comprises of an issue of up to [e] Equity Shares, aggregating up to X 1,000/- lakhs by our
Company. For details see “The Issue” beginning on page 45 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Our Company intends to utilize the proceeds of the Issue towards the following objects:
The objects of the issue are:
1. To meet working capital of the Company
2. Repayment of loan availed from a related party through conversion of the outstanding loan to equity
3. General Corporate Purposes; and
4. Issue Expenses.

(Collectively, referred to hereinafter as the "Objects")

We intend to utilize the gross proceeds raised through the Issue (the "Issue Proceeds") after deducting the
Issue related expense ("Net Proceeds") for the above-mentioned Objects.

The main Object Clause of Memorandum of Association of our Company enables us to undertake the
existing activities and the activities for which the funds are being raised by us through the present Issue.
Further, we confirm that the activities which we have been carrying out till date are in accordance with the
Object Clause of our Memorandum of Association.

The details of objects of the Issue

Particulars Amount (in lakhs)
Gross proceeds from the Issue 961.00
Less: Issue related expenses 39.00
Net Proceeds of the Issue 1000.00

*The issue size will not exceed T 1000/- lakhs if there is any deduction on account of or at the time of
finalisation of issue price and Rights Entitlements Ratio, the same will be adjusted against the amount for
General Corporate Purposes.

Requirement of Funds:

(R in lakhs)

S. No. Particulars Total estimated amount

to be utilized

1. To meet working capital of the Company 331.16

2. Repayment of loan availed from a related party through conversion 379.84
of the outstanding loan to Equity

3. General Corporate Purposes 250.00

4. Issue related expenses 39.00

Total 1000.00

* The amount utilized towards general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds.
Means of Finance

Our Company proposes to meet the entire requirement of funds for the proposed objects of the Issue from
the Net Proceeds. Accordingly, our Company confirms that there is no requirement to make firm

arrangements of finance through verifiable means towards at least 75% of the stated means of finance,
excluding the amount to be raised from the Issue.
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Utilization of Net Proceeds

Our Company proposes to deploy the Net Proceeds in the aforesaid objects as follows:

S. No.

Particulars

1. To meet working capital requirement of the Company

2. Repayment of loan availed from a related party through
conversion of the outstanding loan to equity

3. General Corporate Purposes

Total

Details of the Objects of the Issue

The details in relation to objects of the Issue are set forth herein below.

1. Meeting Working Capital Requirements

(% in lakhs)
Total estimated
amount to be utilized
331.16
379.84

250.00
961.00

The business of the Company is predominantly working capital intensive. The working capital requirements
in the ordinary course of business of the Company are funded from the Company’s internal accruals. To
strengthen the margins and financials strength of the Company, we propose to part fund the Working Capital
Requirements from the net proceeds of proposed Right Issue as detailed herein below:

(Rs. in Lakh)
Sr. No. Particulars Total estimated amount to
be utilized
1. To meet working capital requirement of the Company 331.16
The details of Working Capital Requirement is given as under:
(Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars March 31, | March 31, | December 31, March 31, March 31,
2023 2024 2024 2025 2026
(Audited) | (Audited) (Unaudited) | (Estimated) | (Projected)
Current Assets
Inventories 0.24 i ) ) i
Trade Receivables 540.96 466.04 324.44 325.00 437.50
Cash & Cash Equivalents 70.50 7.93 307.08 7.08 10.00
Bank balances other than
above 7.41 7.41 7.41 7.41 7.41
Current Tax Assets (Net) 124 56 68.78 24.24 3233 40.50
Other Current Assets 13.76 4.30 32.37 13.29 15.00
Total (A) 757.43 554.45 695.55 385.11 510.41
Current Liabilities
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Short-Term borrowings 24.94 25 27 303.54 215.00 620.00
Trade Payables 819.64 |  1,090.92 1780.36 1,602.77 632.34
Other Current Liabilities 16.27 22 83 11.19 25.00 30.00
Provisions 32.49 37.73 37.73 50.31 62.31
Total (B) 89333 |  1,176.75 2132.83 1,893.08 1,344.65
Net Working Capital

(A)-(B) (135.90) (622.30) (1,437.28) (1,507.98) (834.24)
Incremental net working

capital - (486.40) (814.98) (70.70) 673.74
Sources of Working

Capital

Proceeds from Right ) 331.16
Issue - -

Other Sources - (486.40) (814.98) (70.70) 342.58

Note:
a. Short Term Borrowings have increased from Rs. 215.00 Lakh as at 31% March, 2025 to Rs. 620.00
Lakh as at 31% March, 2026 due to increase in working capital limit availed from Karur Vysya Bank
Limited.

b. Other Current Assets include other advances, prepaid expenses, and imprest.

c. Other Current Liabilities include advance payments for which value is still to be given, and statutory
dues.

Major Reasons for increase in Working Capital Requirement:

The major reasons behind the increase in the working capital requirements of the Company during the last
three financial years and stub period are summarised as under:

e The Company, on January 29, 2022, entered into One Time Settlement for Rs. 1425.00 Lakh with
Pridhvi Asset Reconstruction & Securitisation Company Limited (‘PARAS’) towards old
outstanding loans, which was paid by October 2022;

e Repayment of loan including interest (EMI) started from April 01, 2023 with respect to the inter-
corporate loan of Rs. 985.00 Lakh taken by the Company from its subsidiary, Cyber Media Research
& Services Limited. Till December 31, 2024, the Company has paid EMIs aggregating to Rs. 169.84
Lakh.

e Settlement & legal expenses aggregating to Rs. 879.32 Lakh (equivalent to USD 10.31 Lakh) in
connection with a foreign arbitral award decreed in favour of an ex-employee of a foreign subsidiary
of the Company, during the financial year 2024-25; and

o Business losses:, as currently company is making losses it needs funding from external sources to
repay its payables.
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Details w.r.t. Growth in Revenue and Expansion in Business Activities, if any:

Assumption of working capital requirement

Holding period levels:

Particulars No. of Days for the year ended
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2023 2024 2025 2026
Trade Receivables 123 133 110 103
Trade Payables 317 427 817 549

Justifications for holding period levels:

Trade Receivable Days | Trade Receivables days stood at 123 and 133 in the financial years 2022-23
and 2023-24 respectively.

Going forward, the Company aims to offer and maintain competitive credit
facilities for the customers and debtors, as the business cycle strengthens; and
to build a long-term sustainable business relationship with customers and to
add new customers. The credit terms will vary depending on the type of
customer or debtor. Based on the projected financials, we anticipate that
customer and debtor levels will be 110 days and 103 days for the financial
year 2024-25 and 2025-26, respectively. This estimate aligns with the
projected increase in operational levels, current payment terms, and industry
trends.

Trade Payable Days Trade Payables days stood at 317 and 427 of total expenses excluding
employee benefit expenses, depreciation & amortization, finance costs and

tax expense incurred in financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24 respectively.

In the financial year 2024-25, the Trade Payable stood at 817 days. This was
because of balance amount payable with respect to settlement & legal
expenses aggregating to Rs. 879.32 Lakh (equivalent to USD 10.31 Lakh) in
connection with a foreign arbitral award decreed in favour of an ex-employee
of CyberMedia India LLC, a foreign subsidiary of the Company (which was
dissolved on March 08, 2021)

Though, with the rationalization of the operations, the Company intends to
reduce the period of days involved in trade payable. By making early
payments, we seek to negotiate better terms and achieve more favorable
pricing due to improved liquidity, accordingly in estimated financials, Trade
Payables days are estimated 549 days for the financial year 2025-26. This
reduction reflects commitment to optimizing cash flow, enhancing supplier
relationships, and leveraging financial efficiencies.

2. Repayment of loan availed from the related party through conversion of outstanding loan to equity:

To meet its working capital and other funds requirement, the Company has taken interest free unsecured loan
from its promoter, Mr. Pradeep Gupta, Chairman and Managing Director which needs to repaid. The
Company to augment its equity base, enhance net worth, improve debt equity ratio and preserve cash,
proposes to convert this outstanding loan into equity by way of his share of subscription in the proposed right
issue. He may renounce his rights entitlement in favour of other members of the promoter group. As a result,
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the Company will not receive fresh issue proceeds to the extent of the outstanding loan amount being
converted into equity.

Details regarding outstanding loan, for conversion of loan into equity, from Promoter and Promoter Group
are given as under:

(Rs. in Lakh
Sr.No. | Name of Promoter and Promoter Group Outstanding Amount as
on date
1. Mr. Pradeep Gupta 379.84

Mr. Pradeep Gupta, promoter of the Company has, vide his letter dated January 30, 2025, confirmed that
an amount of Rs. 379.84 Lakh, which has been availed by the Company, in the nature of identified unsecured
loan, is proposed to be adjusted towards the application money to be received by the Company, for the
subscription to the Rights Equity Shares to be allotted in this Issue, to the extent of his entitlement,
renunciation of entitlement made in favour of other members of the Promoter Group, if any. Consequently,
no fresh issue proceeds will be received by the Company to such extent.

3. General Corporate Purpose

In terms of Regulation 62(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the extent of the Issue Proceeds proposed to be
used for General Corporate Purposes shall not in the aggregate exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds of the
Issue. Our Board will have flexibility in compliance with the companies Act, 2013 and all applicable laws
in applying the balance amount after utilizing the amount for acquisition of business targets towards General
Corporate Purposes, including repayment of outstanding loans, meeting our working capital requirements,
capital expenditure, funding our growth opportunities, including strategic initiatives, meeting expenses
incurred in the ordinary course of business including salaries and wages, administration expenses, insurance
related expenses, meeting of exigencies which our Company may face in course of business and any other
purpose as may be approved by the Board or a duly appointed committee from time to time, subject to
compliance with the necessary provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Our management will have flexibility in compliance with the companies Act, 2013 and all applicable laws
in utilizing any amounts for General Corporate Purposes under the overall guidance and policies of our
Board. The quantum of utilization of funds towards any of the purposes will be determined by the Board,
based on the amount available under this head and the business requirements of our Company, from time to
time.

3. Expenses for the issue

The Issue related expenses consist of fees payable to Legal Counsel, processing fee to the SCSBs, Registrar
to the Issue, printing and stationery expenses, advertising expenses and all other incidental and miscellaneous
expenses for listing the Rights Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. Our Company will need approximately
% 39/- Lakhs towards these expenses, a break-up of the same is as follows:

(< in lakhs)

Activity Estimated Expense % of Total As a % of
Expenses Issue size
Fees payable to the intermediaries (including [o] [e] [e]

Legal Counsel fees, selling commission,
registrar fees and expenses)

Advertising, Printing, stationery and [o] [e] [e]
distribution Expenses

Statutory and other Miscellaneous Expenses [o] [o] [o]
Total 39.00 [e] [e]
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Appraisal
None of the Objects of the Issue have been appraised by any agency.
Schedule of Implementation and Deployment of Funds

As estimated by our management, the entire proceeds received from the issue would be utilized during FY
2025- 26.

Deployment of Funds towards the Objects of the Issue

We have incurred X7.48 Lakh up to March 18, 2025 towards the Objects of the Issue which has been certified
by M/s. S. Agarwal & Co. (Chartered Accountants). The said amount has been met by the Company from
its own resources and the same will be adjusted against the issue proceeds.

Bridge Financing Facilities

Our Company has not raised any bridge loans from any bank or financial institution as on the date of this
Draft Letter of Offer, which are proposed to be repaid from the Issue Proceeds.

Monitoring of Utilization of Funds

Since the proceeds from the Issue are less than X10,000/- lakhs, in terms of Regulation 41(1) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations, our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency for this Issue. However,
as per SEBI Listing Regulation, the Rights Issue Committee appointed by the Board would be monitoring
the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue. The Company will disclose the utilization of the Issue Proceeds
under a separate head in our balance sheet along with the relevant details, for all such amounts that have
not been utilized. The Company will indicate investments, if any, of unutilized Issue Proceeds in the
Balance Sheet of the Company for the relevant Financial Years subsequent to receipt of listing and trading
approvals from the Stock Exchanges.

Pursuant to Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulation, the Company shall, on a quarterly basis, disclose
to the Audit Committee the uses and applications of the Issue Proceeds. In accordance with Regulation 32
of the SEBI Listing Regulation, the Company shall furnish to the Stock Exchanges, on a quarterly basis, a
statement on material deviations, if any, in the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue from the objects of
the Issue as stated above. This information will also be published in newspapers simultaneously with the
interim or annual financial results after placing the same before the Audit Committee.

Interim Use of Proceeds

Our Company, in accordance with the policies formulated by our Board from time to time, will have
flexibility in compliance with the companies Act, 2013 and all applicable laws to deploy the Net Proceeds.
Pending utilization of the Net Proceeds for the purposes described above, our Company intends to deposit
the Net Proceeds only with scheduled commercial banks included in the second schedule of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 or make any such investment as may be allowed by SEBI from time to time.
Interest of Promoters, Promoter Group and Directors, as applicable to the objects of the Issue

Our Promoters, Promoter Group and Directors do not have any interest in the objects of the Issue.

Clause for Promoter Subscription

The objects of the Issue involve financing other than financing of capital expenditure for a project and our
Promoters and members of our Promoter Group have undertaken to (i) subscribe to the full extent of their

respective Rights Entitlements, subject to compliance with the minimum public shareholding requirements,
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as prescribed under the SCRR; and (ii) have also confirmed that they shall not renounce their Rights
Entitlements, except to the extent of renunciation within the promoter group. Accordingly, in terms of the
SEBI ICDR Regulations, the requirement of minimum subscription in the Issue is not applicable.

Strategic or financial partners
There are no strategic or financial partners attributed to the Objects of the Issue.
Variation in objects

In accordance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules, except in
circumstances of business exigencies, our Company shall not vary the Objects of the Issue without our
Company being authorized to do so by the Shareholders by way of a special resolution. In addition, the
notice issued to the Shareholders in relation to the passing of such special resolution shall specify the
prescribed details as required under the Companies Act and applicable rules. The Notice shall
simultaneously be published in the newspapers, one in English and one in Hindi, the vernacular language of
the jurisdiction where the Registered Office is situated.

Key Industry Regulations for the objects of the issue

No additional provisions of any acts, regulations, rules and other laws are or will be applicable to the
Company for the proposed Objects of the Issue.

Other Confirmations

Except as disclosed above, there are no material existing or anticipated transactions in relation to the
utilization of the Net Proceeds with our Promoters, Directors or Key Management Personnel of our Company
and no part of the Net Proceeds will be paid as consideration to any of them. Except disclosed above, none
of our Promoters, members of Promoter Group or Directors are interested in the Objects of the Issue. No part
of the proceeds from the Issue will be paid by the Company as consideration our directors, or Key Managerial
Personnel. Our Company does not require any material government and regulatory approvals in relation to
the Objects of the Issue.
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STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS

The Board of Directors,

Cyber Media (India) Limited
Address: D-74, Panchsheel Enclave,
New Delhi-110017

Sub: Statement of possible special direct tax benefits available to Cyber Media (India) Limited
("the Company") and its shareholders ("the Statement™).

Dear Sirs,

We hereby confirm that the enclosed statement states the possible special direct tax benefits
available to the Company and its shareholders under the Income Tax Act, 1961 ("Act") as amended
from time to time, presently in force in India. Several of these benefits are dependent on the
Company or its shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant provisions of
the Act. Hence, the ability of the Company or its shareholders to derive the tax benefits is dependent
upon fulfilling such conditions, which based on the business imperatives, the Company may or may
not choose to fulfil.

This statement is only intended to provide general information to the investors and hence is neither
designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature
of the tax consequences, the changing tax laws, each investor is advised to consult his or her own
tax consultant with respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the
rights issue of equity shares of the Company, particularly in view of the fact that certain recently
enacted legislations may not have a direct legal precedent or may have a different interpretation on
the benefits, which an investor can avail. Neither are we suggesting nor are we advising the investor
to invest money based on this statement.

The contents of the enclosed statement are based on the information, explanations and
representations obtained from the Company and on the basis of its understanding of the business
activities and operations thereof. We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to
whether:

1. The Company or its shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits in future; or
2. The conditions prescribed for availing the benefits, where applicable have been/would be met.

This statement is intended solely for information and for inclusion in the Draft Letter of Offer/Letter
of Offer in relation to the rights issue of equity shares of the Company and is not to be used,
circulated or referred to for any other purpose without our prior written consent. Our views are
based on the existing provisions of law referred to earlier and its interpretation, which are subject
to change from time to time.

We shall not be liable to any claim, liability or expense relating to this assignment except to the
extent of fees relating to this assignment. We will not be liable to any other person in respect of this
Statement.

For M/s. S. Agarwal & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 000808N
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Sd/-
Membership No.: 012103
UDIN: 25012103BMJBOX7793

Date: March 20, 2025
Place: New Delhi

Special Tax Benefits available to the Company and its shareholders under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 and other Direct Tax Laws presently in force in India

Special Tax Benefits available to the Company and its shareholders:
a. Benefits available to the Company: There are no special tax benefits available to the Company.

b. Benefits available to the shareholders: There are no special tax benefits available to the
shareholders for investing in the proposed right issue of shares of the Company.

For M/s. S. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 000808N

Sd/-

Membership No.: 012103
UDIN: 25012103BMJBOX7793

Date: March 20, 2025
Place: New Delhi
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SECTION IV - ABOUT THE COMPANY
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information contained in ‘Industry Overview’ in this section is derived from publicly available sources.
Neither we, nor any other person connected with the Issue has independently verified this information.
Industry sources and publications generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained
from sources generally believed to be reliable, but that their accuracy, completeness and underlying
assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. Industry publications are also
prepared based on information as of specific dates and may no longer be current or reflect current trends.

Shareholders should note that this is only a summary of the industry in which we operate and does not
contain all information that should be considered before investing in the Equity Shares. Before deciding to
invest in the Equity Shares, shareholders should read this Draft Letter of Offer, including the information in
the sections "Risk Factors" and "Financial Information" beginning on pages 24 and 92 respectively of this
Draft Letter of Offer. An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. For a discussion of
certain risks in connection with an investment in the Equity Shares, please see the section ‘Risk Factors’
beginning on page 24 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Media Industry Business Overview

India is emerging as a growth hotspot in the Entertainment & Media (E&M) industry, forecasted to expand at a 9.7%
CAGR to reach USD 73,560 million by 2027. The rollout of commercial 5G services in 2022 significantly impacts
capex in 2023, with the B2B market poised to become the fastest-growing globally. Notably, India remains a leader in
the newspaper sector, achieving the highest growth rate worldwide at a CAGR of 3.2% for both print and digital
segments.
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Indian Advertising Market

Indian ADEX continues to surprise us. It has grown just by 9% at the total ADEX level, but if you take
Traditional ADEX alone, the growth has been even more dismal at 6%. Traditional ADEX’s growth has
slowed from 14% in 2022 to 7% in 2023 and 6% in 2024. Digital ADEX has slowed down from 35% in 2022
to 15% in 2023 and 14% in 2024. This is against our estimate of 9% for Traditional and 17% for Digital.
This is lowest growth ADEX has registered since 2017, seven years ago, when it registered a growth of just
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7%.

In absolute terms the Indian Advertising Market crossed the milestone of Rs. 1 lakh crore and is now valued
at Rs. 1,08,000 crores in 2024, adding additional revenue of Rs. 8,942 crores. In hindsight, several key factors
contributed to the subdued growth of ADEX.

drop has been observed in terms of TV Advertisers, with the numbers shrinking from 11,100 in 2023 to 8,650
in 2024. Additionally, there is a bit of a reduction in the number of Advertisers in Print and Radio too, but
the decrease is not as significant.

INDIAN ADVERTISING MARKET
OVER THE LAST 10 YEARS

YEAR 2015 2016 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 2022 2023 2024
TRADITIONAL 38871 | 42165 |43835|49202 | 52136 | 37177 | 48793 | 55399 | 59324 | 62688
ADEX - RS CRORES
GROWTH % 16 8 4 12 6 =29 31 14 7 6
TRADITIONAL 88 85 82 81 77 69 66 62 60 58
ADEX SHARE %
DIGITAL ADEX - 5120 7315 9303 | 11705 | 15467 | 16974 | 25438 | 34405 | 39714 | 45292
RS CRORES
GROWTH % 29 43 27 26 32 10 50 35 15 14
DIGITAL ADEX 12 15 18 19 23 31 34 38 40 42
SHARE %
TOTAL ADEX 43991 |49480 (53138 |60908 | 67603 | 54151 | 74231 | 89803 | 99038 | 107980
RS. IN CRORE
GROWTH % 18 12 7 15 n -20 37 21 10 9

Global Advertising

Global advertising spend should now cross the 1 trillion dollar mark. WARC estimates the spend to be 1,077
billion dollar. A medium-wise comparison of percentage shares and growth rates across Global ADEX shows
substantial deviation, fundamentally in Digital, but also in large mediums in India like TV and Print. It is
significant to note that US, inspite of its humungous size (market share of 31.2%) grew at a growth rate of
11% in 2024. China on the other hand slowed down, registering a growth of just 3%, but in terms of market
share comes at a distant second at 16.8%.

Whilst we may lament the low growth in India of just 9%, India has registered the second highest growth
rate of 9%, followed by France at 8% and then UK at 7%. Japan saw a de-growth of -6%.

A category wise analysis of the different categories in the Indian market only within TV, Print and Radio
(because reliable Digital data is not available and Outdoor uses a different categorisation) shows a total spend
of Rs. 57,187 crores in 2024 over these 3 mediums.

The FMCG sector continues to dominate with a marginal increase in total ad spend from Rs. 17,893 crores
in 2023 to Rs. 18,541 crores in 2024. Historically FMCG has always maintained by far the highest share of
all categories.

Following FMCG, by a wide distance is the E-Commerce sector contributing 11%, a relatively new sector,
followed by Automotive Sector which during the year showed a healthy growth of 7%.
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CATEGORY CONTRIBUTION
& CATEGORY GROWTH
ACROSS TV += PRINT =+ RADIO IN 2024

CATEGORY CATEGORY CATEGORY GROWTH GROWTH
TV + PRINT = RADIO — 2024 COMTRIBUTIEN - CONTREBUTION — GROWTH CONTRIBUTION COMTRIBUTION
2023 izl N rozs N 7024
PRODULT CATEGORY Rs Crores - Rs Crores % 2024 23 L Rs Crores
FMLCG a9 5% Tas41 N A% 3% 648
£ — COMMERCE M0 = 6151 j1: 0% 03 -9
AUTO 4903 9% 5366 % 7% T% 364
REAL ESTATE & HOME 3215 % 3483 % 2% 0% 280
IMPROVEMENT
BFSs1 75 5% izt vl 5% % % 1T
EDUCATION 2610 5% 2754 % % 5% 144
HH DURABLES 2489 5% 2540 5% 6% 5% 150
CLoTHING FASHION Tz A% 2149 g B B3 156
JEWELLERY
RETAIL 1955 45 1942 E o = o 2
TELECOM T35 = =i b 5% % 1|3
CORPORATE ms = a7 b = 05 12
TRAVEL & TOURISM as4 j3 463 = A3 B 19
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES 261 (3 51 0% 43 0 -10
OTHERS 7531 4% BI66 T % 5% 637
TOTAL 54408 100% STIAT T00% 5% 100% 2779

Print Media

The Print sector demonstrated remarkable resilience in 2024 despite persistent challenges. The industry has
managed to navigate turbulent times, challenged by the aftermath of the pandemic and the continuing rise of
Digital media.

The Print sector recorded an Adex of Rs. 20,272 crore in 2024 and value in the medium, particularly its
strength in delivering localised, high-trust advertising experiences. Print’s global share of Adex is only 3%,
compared to India’s Print share of 19%. Germany is the only other country which has a Print share of 19%.
Most other global countries reflect a shift towards some form of Digital. The Print sector in terms of volume
displayed no growth during the year.

The primary growth drivers are Auto, FMCG, Education and Real Estate, which together contribute
significantly to overall growth. Auto sector grew by 7% in 2024, contributing Rs. 176 crore to the absolute
growth and maintaining a stable 14% share of Print. The India Automotive market is witnessing growth in
2024, due to rising demand for EVs (Electric Vehicles) and new launches in the SUV segment.



Steady Growth in Digital

Digital grew at 14% in 2024, similar to 15% growth in 2023. Digital growth has slowed down from 30%+
almost year on year over the last 10 years, barring the Covid year, to 14-15% growth in the last two years.
Digital Adex now stands at Rs. 45,292 crore in 2024, a growth of 14% and has firmly established itself as
the No 1 medium for 3rd consecutive year in a row. So there is no looking back, now.

The moderation of growth rates suggests a maturing market where brands are increasingly prioritizing
strategic digital investments over indiscriminate experimentation. Investment levels from the startup
ecosystem have also stabilized.

Consistent with previous observations, a shift is evident among newer brands. Previously focused solely on
revenue maximization, these brands are now incorporating brand-building initiatives into their strategies.
However, these efforts are not confined to traditional channels like television and print. Newer brands are
effectively leveraging contemporary platforms, employing a diverse network of credible social influencers
instead of relying solely on celebrity endorsements.

However, in global Adex, Digital accounts for 75%, whereas in India its only 42%.

Video Advertising which is the largest contributor, contributing 27% to total Digital Adex, experienced low
growth of 10%. Digital video advertising (comprising pre-rolls, mid-rolls, and in-stream ads) historically
demonstrated robust annual growth exceeding 10%, fuelled by the convergence of television and digital
video strategies among major advertisers.

Social media advertising, the 2nd largest contributor to Digital Adex, contributing 23% showed maximum
growth of 21%.

This space has been left blank intentionally.
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OUR BUSINESS

Some of the information in this section, including information with respect to our plans and strategies,
contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Before deciding to invest in the
Equity Shares, Shareholders should read this entire Letter of Offer. An investment in the Equity Shares
involves a high degree of risk. For the purpose of discussion of certain risks in connection with investment
in the Equity Shares, you should read "Risk Factors" beginning on page 24 of this Draft Letter of Offer, and
for the purpose of discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those statements, as well as for the
discussion of certain factors that may affect our business, financial condition or results of operations, you
should read "Financial Statements" and "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations" beginning on pages 92 and 166 respectively of this Draft Letter of Offer. Our
actual results may differ materially from those expressed in or implied by these forward-looking statements.
Unless otherwise stated, the financial information used in this section is derived from our Financial
Statements.

Overview and History

Our Company was incorporated as “Cyber Media (India) Limited” at New Delhi as a Public Limited
Company under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, vide Certificate of Incorporation dated
September 10, 1982 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana. Further, Our Company received
the Certificate for Commencement of Business from the Registrar of Companies, Delhi & Haryana on
October 20, 1982. The Corporate Identification Number (CIN) of the Company is
L92114DL1982PLC014334.

In accordance with the Delhi High Court order dated February 18, 2011, under Section 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956, Cybermedia India Online Limited, Cyber Media Digital Limited, Cyber Media Events Limited,
and Cyber Holdings Limited were amalgamated into our Company. The approved scheme of amalgamation
took effect retrospectively from April 1, 2009.

Our Company is a renowned pioneer in the Indian technology media landscape with a legacy spanning over
four decades. Initially known for its print publications, the Company has evolved into a significant player in
the B2B technology media sector (business-to-business), offering specialized content, industry insights, and
marketing services targeted at the ICT (Information and Communications Technology) sector.

The Company has successfully navigated digital transformation by expanding its offerings to include online
news platforms, digital events, and research-driven insights. Additionally, the Company provides digital
marketing services and products across various sectors, making it a comprehensive player in the media and
marketing space. Its ability to adapt to changing media trends and digital innovations has helped establish
the Company as a trusted source for industry professionals and organizations seeking valuable technology-
related content and services.

Further, the Company is involved in the print media and publishing industry, producing magazines, e-
magazines, online portals, periodic journals, and organizing events and exhibitions.

Key Business Activities of Our Company:

Our Company operates primarily as a media and information services provider in the technology domain and
digital marketing services for the industries. Its principal activities include:

» Print & Digital Publications: Producing industry-leading ICT magazines and online content catering
to diverse communities with publications like Dataquest, PCQuest, VVoice&Data, DQChannels, CIOL
and The DQWeek.

» Industry Research & Insights: It involves offering specialised reports, market intelligence, consulting
and advisory.
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Event Management: Hosting bespoke industry Events and Conferences.

Marketing & Business Solutions: Providing lead generation, influencer marketing, and strategic
consulting to ICT vendors.

Content & Subscription Services: Offering premium content in digital and print formats to a global
audience.

Our Company's Products and Services:

The Company offers a diversified range of products and services designed to cater to the evolving needs of
the technology and business communities:

>

Publications: Print and digital technology-focused publications covering ICT, Al, data, analytics, cloud
computing, cybersecurity, and emerging technologies.

Online Platforms: News, analysis, and insights through web portals, digital magazines, and newsletters.

Event Management: Hosting conferences, exhibitions, and networking events for B2B technology
leaders’ forums.

Research & Consulting Services: Data-driven insights and whitepapers for technology decision-
makers.

Advertising & Sponsorship Services: Monetisation through digital advertising, sponsored content, and
event sponsorships.

Digital Marketing Services: Digital marketing services help businesses promote their products or
services online using various strategies and channels. The Company achieves this through its specialized
business subsidiaries.

End-Users of our Products and Services:

Our Company’s audience and client base span across various industry segments, includes:

>

>

Technology Corporations: Companies like HP, Dell, IBM, Lenovo, AWS, Google, and Cisco.
Enterprise Decision-Makers: CXOs, ClOs, CTOs, IT leaders, and technology strategists.
Startups & Entrepreneurs: Digital-native organisations and emerging firms.

Government & Policy Institutions: Government departments like DoT, MeitY, and the Ministry of
Commerce, as well as industry associations like NASSCOM, MAIT, and COAL.

Network of Publishers and Advertising & PR Agencies: Firms leveraging CMIL’s digital marketing
platforms and services for branding, outreach and monetisation.

Organizational Structure:

The Issuer Company has the following subsidiaries and associates:

Sr. | Name of the Entity Date of | Country  of | Relationship
No. Incorporation Incorporation
A. Cyber Media Research & 29.08.1996 India Subsidiary Company
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Services Limited

B. Cyber Astro Limited 30.04.1997 India Subsidiary Company

C. Cyber Media Foundation 05.09.2000 India Associate Company
Limited

D. Cyber Media Services 18.02.2008 India Wholly-owned
Limited Subsidiary Company

E. Cyber Media Services Pte. 08.09.2017 Singapore Setp Down Subsidiary
Limited

(Wholly Owned
Subsidiary of Cyber
Media Research &
Services Limited)

A. Cyber Media Research & Services Limited (‘CMRSL”)

It is engaged in the business of providing digital marketing services, social media campaign, Search Engine
Optimisation (SEO), Search Engine Marketing (SEM), contents, management consulting, market research
and advisory services, etc.

The Issuer Company holds 11,17,600 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10 each (representing 38.17%)
of the paid-up capital of CMRSL.

B. Cyber Astro Limited (‘CAL”)
It is engaged in the business of providing astrology services.

The Issuer Company holds 75,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10 each (representing 37.50%) of
the paid-up capital of CAL.

C. Cyber Media Foundation Limited
The company is engaged in providing funds, grants, scholarships, awards, donate for and to aid in the
establishment, maintenance, improvement and extension of schools, colleges & other educational institutions

etc.

The Issuer Company holds 1,73,065 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10 each (representing 34.63%) of
the paid-up capital of CMFL.

D. Cyber Media Services Limited (‘CMSL’)
It is engaged in providing digital marketing services, management consulting and advisory services.

The Issuer Company holds the entire i.e. 90,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10 each (representing
100%) of the paid-up capital of CMSL.

E. Cyber Media Services Pte. Limited (‘CMSPL’)

It is engaged in the business of providing digital marketing services, publisher services, social media
campaign, management consulting, advisory services, etc.

CMSPL is the Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Cyber Media Research & Services Limited, which is a
subsidiary of our Company.
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Our Growth strateqy is built upon five key pillars:

Digital Transformation: Our company is committed to long-term growth by investing in advanced
Content Management Systems (CMS), cloud computing, and Al-driven content solutions. By leveraging
cutting-edge CMS platforms, we ensure seamless content creation, organization, and distribution,
improving efficiency and user experience. Cloud computing provides scalability, security, and flexibility,
allowing us to manage data and applications efficiently while reducing infrastructure costs. Al-driven
content tools enable automation, personalization, and data-driven insights, enhancing content quality,
audience engagement, and operational efficiency. These investments position us for sustained innovation,
competitive advantage, and future-proof digital transformation.

Content Innovation: Expanding premium content offerings is a strategic approach to boost user
engagement and foster customer loyalty. By delivering high-quality, exclusive, and diverse content,
businesses can differentiate themselves in competitive markets.

Geographical Expansion: Strengthening presence in international markets while deepening its Indian
market penetration. This dual approach ensures a balanced growth trajectory by capitalizing on both
global opportunities and India's vast domestic market potential.

Diversified Revenue Streams: It includes expanding multiple income sources to enhance financial
stability and growth through:

1. Subscription-Based Models — Offering tiered or premium subscription plans with exclusive content,
features, or services to ensure recurring revenue.

2. Event Sponsorships — Partnering with brands for sponsored events, webinars, or conferences,
generating revenue while increasing audience engagement.

3. Advertising Partnerships — Collaborating with advertisers for targeted digital ads, sponsored content,
or influencer marketing to maximize ad revenue.

By diversifying revenue sources, businesses can reduce dependence on a single income stream and enhance
long-term sustainability.

V.

Operational Efficiency: The ability of a business to maximize output while minimizing input costs, waste,
and inefficiencies. It involves streamlining workflows, improving resource utilization, and leveraging
technology to enhance productivity and profitability. By continuously monitoring and refining processes,
businesses can achieve sustainable growth, reduce operational costs, and maintain a competitive edge.

Strengths of the company:

>

Legacy & Brand Reputation: As India’s oldest technology media house, our Company enjoys
substantial brand equity and industry credibility.

Diversified Revenue Model: Revenue sources include advertising, subscriptions, event sponsorships,
influencer marketing, marketing services, and bespoke consulting services.

Robust Digital Presence: Strong web traffic, digital engagement, and social media influence.
Industry Partnerships: Collaborations with top technology firms and policy-making bodies.

Tech-Driven Operations: Integrating Al and analytics for improved content distribution and
monetisation.
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» Customer Loyalty & Market Reach: Our company boasts a strong and dedicated customer base,
consisting of loyal readers, long-term subscribers, and engaged advertisers.

> Innovation: Lead change and pioneer progress through continuous learning and innovation.
» Integrity: Fair, unbiased, honest and committed to highest ethics, moral & legal standards & statutes.

> Excellence: Customer delight by maximizing value for time, money & efforts and making distinctive,
substantial & lasting contribution.

> Influential: Making a positive impact on society leading to strong brand equity.

» Caring Meritocracy: Attracting and retaining the best, respect for individuals, their ideas &
contributions.

CMIL is strategically positioned to capitalise on the growth opportunities in the digital media and B2B
technology sector. With a solid foundation, diversified business model, and continuous innovation, our
Company aims to enhance stakeholder value and drive long-term sustainable growth.

Properties of the Company:

a. As of the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, following are the properties owned by the Company:

1. The immovable property namely, ‘Cyber House’ located at Plot No. B-35, Sector-32, Gurugram-122003,
Haryana, India.

2. The immovable properties bearing Unit Nos. 206 & 207, at 2nd Floor, in the building, ‘Shree Complex’,
located at Plot No. 73, St. John’s Road, Bengaluru -560042.

b. Following are the properties taken on lease by the Company:

Sr. Particulars Address Licensee/Tenant | Licensor/owner | Lease period
No. of Property
1. Mumbai 326, INS Tower, Wing-B, | Cyber Media The Indian For a period of
Office C63- G Block, Bandra | (India) Limited Newspaper 18 months
Kurla Complex, Bandra Society w.e.f. 01
(E), Mumbai-400051 April, 2024

c. The Company's Registered Office located at D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi-110017, Delhi, India,
is the property owned by Mr. Pradeep Gupta, Promoter, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.
A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) has been executed between both the parties for a period of five
years, effective from February 1, 2023, with an automatic renewal for an additional five-year term. Under
the terms of the MoU, no rent shall be charged by the owner.

Insurance Policies:

Our Company has taken following insurance policies against any damage or loss:

S. Name of Type of Policy | Validity Policy Number Sum

No. Insurance Period insured (in
Company Rs.)

1. Shriram General Shri Group From 101026/51/25/000066 | 11,30,11,584.00
Insurance Personal 24/06/2024 To
Company Accident Policy | 23/06/2025
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Limited
2. The Oriental Group From 222200/48/2025/3690 | 2,21,00,000.00
Insurance Mediclaim 24/01/2025 To
Company Tailormade 23/01/2026
Limited Policy
Intellectual Property Rights:
Our Company has taken following trademarks:
S. No. Trade Mark No. Class Status Registration Date
1 1155919 9 Registered 05.12.2002
2 1155920 16 Registered 05.02.2007
3 865796 16 Registered 14.07.1999
4 6020297 16 Under Process -
5 6020298 40 Under Process -

Human Resources:

The human resource function has been significant for the Company. It plays a pivotal role in the change of

management and triggers the unlocking of human potential, which results in organisation transformation and
success. Our learning and development philosophy is to ensure that real learning takes place and endures.
We believe that real learning takes place when a learner can develop a new skill, competency and behaviour
and is able to internalise and apply consistently to relevant work-life situations.

As on January 29, 2025, we have 62 (Sixty-Two) employees with our Company. Our manpower is a prudent
mix of the experienced and young people which gives us the dual advantage of stability and growth, along

with assurance of quality.

Legal Proceedings:

For details on the outstanding litigation against our Company, our Group Companies, our Directors and
Promoters, please see "Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments™ beginning on page 171 of this

Draft Letter of Offer.
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OUR MANAGEMENT

As per the Articles of Association of our Company, we are required to have not less than 3 (Three) Directors
and not more than 15 (Fifteen) Directors on its Board, subject to provisions of Section 149 of Companies
Act, 2013. As on date of this Draft Letter of Offer, our Board consist of 08 (Eight) Directors, out of which
01 (One) is Executive Director, 3 (Three) are Non-Executive Directors and 4 (Four) are Non-Executive
Independent Directors. Our Company is in compliance with the corporate governance norms prescribed
under the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to the composition of our
Board and constitution of committees thereof.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, at least two-third of the total number of Directors,
excluding the Independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation, with one-third of such number retiring
at each Annual General Meeting. A retiring director is eligible for re-appointment. Further, an Independent
Director may be appointed for a maximum of two consecutive terms of up to five years each.

The following table sets forth certain details regarding the members of our Company’s Board as on
the date of this Draft Letter of Offer:

S. No.| Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Qualification, Age Other Directorship
Designation, Occupation, Address, Nationality (in

and Term, Original Date of Appointment, Date | Years)
of Appointment at Current Designation

1. Mr. Pradeep Gupta 69 Listed Companies:
DIN: 00007520 1. Cyber Media Research &
Date of Birth: 08/03/1955 Services Limited
Qualification: Bachelor of Technology from IIT
Delhi & Post Graduate Diploma in Business Public Companies:
Administration from IIM Calcutta 1. Cyber Media Services
Designation: Chairman and Managing Director Limited
Occupation: Business 2. Cyber Astro Limited
Address: D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi- 3. Cyber Media
110017 Foundation Limited

Nationality: Indian
Term: 3 years

Original Date of Appointment: 10/09/1982 Private Companies:
Date of Appointment at Current Designation: 1. Appacus Private Limited
25/05/2022 2. Indian Angel Network

Services Private Limited
3. Kaleidoscope
Entertainment  Services
Private Limited
4. The Indian Newspaper

Society
LLPs:
Nil
2. Mr. Rohitasava Chand 78 Listed Companies:

DIN: 00011150 1. Cyber Media Research &
Date of Birth: 21/10/1946 Services Limited
Quialification: Master of Business
Administration, University of Pittsburgh Public Companies:
Designation: Non- Executive Director Nil
Address: B-19, Defence Colony, New Delhi-
110024, India Private Companies:
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Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Term: Liable to retire by rotation

Original Date of Appointment: 10/08/2021
Date of Appointment at Current Designation:
30/09/2021

1. BMC International
Private Limited

2. The British Motor Car
Company (1934) Private
Limited

LLPs:
1. Sumer Chand and
Company LLP

2. LC Advisors (India) LLP

Mr. Krishan Kant Tulshan 62 Listed Companies:
DIN: 00009764 1. Cyber Media Research &
Date of Birth: 17/12/1962 Services Limited
Quialification: Chartered Accountant
Designation: Non-Executive Director Public Companies:
Occupation: Professional 1. Cyber Media Services
Address: House No. 75, Sector 45, Gurugram- Limited
122003, Haryana, India
Nationality: Indian 2. Cyber Astro Limited
Term: Liable to retire by rotation
Original Date of Appointment: 07/02/1997 Private Companies:
Date of Appointment at Current Designation: Nil
29/05/2024
Other Companies:
Cyber Media Services Pte.
Limited (Singapore)
LLP
GSA & Associates LLP
Ms. Shravani Dang 65 Listed Companies:
DIN: 02131359 1. Cyber Media Research &
Date of Birth: 03/06/1959 Services Limited
Qualification: Post Graduate Diploma in
Journalism for developing countries from Indian Public Companies:
Institute of Mass Communication and BA HONS. Nil
from Delhi University
Designation: Independent Director Private Companies:
Address: The Hibiscus, Building 8, Appartment Nil
4B, Nirvana Country Road, Near Baani Square,
Sector-50, Gurugram-122018 LLPs:
Occupation: Consultancy Nil
Nationality: Indian
Term: 5 years
Original Date of Appointment: 13/12/2016
Date of Appointment at Current Designation:
13/12/2021
Mr. Dhaval Gupta 41 Listed Companies:

DIN: 05287458

Date of Birth: 15/09/1983
Quialification: Bachelor of Science from
University of Wisconsin-Madison

1. Cyber Media Research &
Services Limited

Public Companies:
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Designation: Non- Executive Director

Address: D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi- -
110017

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Term: Liable to retire by rotation

Original Date of Appointment: 01/10/2015

Date of Appointment at Current Designation:
31/01/2022

1. Cyber Astro limited
2. Cyber Media Services
Limited

Private Companies:
1. Appacus Private Limited

Other Companies:
Cyber Media Services Pte.
Limited (Singapore)

LLPs:

Nil
Mr. Amlan Ghose 70 Listed Companies:
DIN: 01241149 Nil
Date of Birth: 29/06/1954
Quialification: Post Graduate Diploma in Business Public Companies:
Management, Xavier Labour Relations Institute, Nil
Jamshedpur
Designation: Independent Director Private Companies:
Address: 28/3, Friends Colony West, New Delhi- 1. Nixotel Software Private
110065, Delhi, India Limited
Occupation: Business 2. Prologic First India
Nationality: Indian Private Limited
Term: 5 years 3. Intertec Softwares
Original Date of Appointment: 02/08/2022 Private Limited
Date of Appointment at Current Designation: 4. Mycloud Hospitality
02/08/2022 Software Private Limited
Mr. Rajesh Kumar 68 Listed Companies:
DIN: 00042850 1. Integra Capital Limited
Date of Birth: 08/12/1956
Qualification: Chartered Accountant Public Companies:
Designation: Independent Director Nil
Address: C-45, Naraina Vihar, Delhi-110028,
India Private Companies:
Occupation: Professional Nil
Nationality: Indian
Term: 5 years LLPs:
Original Date of Appointment: 28/05/2024 Nil
Date of Appointment at Current Designation:
22/08/2024
Mr. Varun Jain 41 Listed Companies:

DIN: 00397935

Date of Birth: 13/04/1983

Quialification: Master of Business Administration
from Wisconsin-Madison

Designation: Independent Director

Address: B 7, Anand Niketan, Chanakya Puri,
New Delhi-110021, Delhi

Occupation: Business

Nil
Public Companies:
Nil

Private Companies:
1. Akashdeep Agro Private
Limited
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Nationality: Indian 2. KCV Buildtech Private

Term: 5 years Limited

Original Date of Appointment: 07/02/2023 3. VRIJ Realtors Private
Date of Appointment at Current Designation: Limited

13/03/2023 4. Ashok Amar Agro

Private Limited

5. Achal Biotech Private
Limited

6. Angad Agro Private
Limited

7. Omega Technobuild
Private Limited

LLPs
3. Kailashnath PPI
Developers LLP

BRIEF BIOGRAPHIES OF OUR DIRECTORS
Mr. Pradeep Gupta

Mr. Pradeep Gupta, a first-generation entrepreneur, founded CyberMedia in 1982 and serves as its Chairman.
A prominent figure in the IT industry and global start-up ecosystem, he has mentored over 150 start-ups and
was honored with the National Entrepreneurship Award for Best Mentor by the Government of India. He co-
founded the Indian Angel Network and chairs the Alumni Trust, supporting IvyCap Ventures. He has held
leadership roles at TiE, PanlIT India, and various boards, including UTI AMC, IIT Mandi, and JIM Calcutta
Innovation Park. An IIT Delhi engineer and IIM Calcutta MBA graduate, he has received the Distinguished
Alumni Award, the Helen Keller Award, and an honorary doctorate from Rai University.

Mr. Rohitasava Chand

Mr. Rohitasava Chand pursued MBA from the University of Pittsburgh (1970). His career began as a Systems
Analyst at OMNIS, USA (1970-72), followed by leadership roles in Computronics India (1973-84) and as
Executive Chairman & Co-founder of Ascendant Computer Systems, which evolved into I1S Infotech Ltd, a
listed company he exited upon its sale (1998). After a brief break, he co-founded and led Axis IT&T Ltd in
2000- exited from the same in 2006. Since 2006, he has been the CEO & Promoter of Yukti Securities Pvt.
Ltd., an NBFC focused on angel funding and startup mentoring. Additionally, he has held roles such as
Managing Editor of Indian Management (AIMA) and Chairman of Delhi ENT Hospital & Research Centre.
His notable contributions include founding the IS Institute of Management in collaboration with ENPC, and
serving on the Governing Council of IIT Delhi's Foundation for Innovation and Technology Transformation.

Mr. Krishan Kant Tulshan

Mr. Krishan Kant Tulshan has been associated with our company since 1997 and currently serves as a Non-
Executive Director. As a qualified Chartered Accountant, he brings 39 years of extensive experience across
diverse domains, including Audit & Assurance, Direct Taxation, Corporate Laws, Mergers & Acquisitions,
Corporate Governance, Strategy Formulation, Resource Mobilization, Financial Accounting, and Transaction
Advisory. His expertise and strategic insights have been instrumental in the company's growth and governance.

Mrs. Shravani Dang

Mrs. Shravani Dang is an experienced business and CSR leader with over three decades of achievements across
Technology, Financial, Industrial, and Not-for-Profit sectors. She has served as an Independent Board Director
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with Cyber Media Group since 2016 and is a Trustee of CAF India. Her career includes leadership roles at
Fidelity, CSC, HCL, CARE India, and as Vice President at the Avantha Group (2007-2019), where she led
global communications and marketing. A double lifetime achievement awardee, she is now retired and focused
on documenting food history, writing a book and a short story collection, and preparing for her first painting
exhibition.

Mr. Dhaval Gupta

Mr. Dhaval Gupta, a digital economy advocate with 18 years of experience, has expertise in digital media,
marketing, and technology. He has been instrumental in transforming CyberMedia into a leading media, digital
marketing, and data analytics organization, spearheading a data-driven, full-stack approach that manages an ad
network of over 5 billion monthly ads. Passionate about AI/ML technologies, he focuses on the future of digital
marketing. Dhaval is actively engaged in industry forums, serving as a Cll Delhi Council Member, TiE Delhi
Charter Member, Treasurer & Board Member of the Association of India Magazines, and Vice President of the
University of Wisconsin-Madison Alumni Association, Delhi Chapter. Additionally, he supports the startup
ecosystem as an investor and advisor. Before CyberMedia, he worked at IDC in Singapore and the USA as an
Analyst.

Mr. Amlan Ghose

Amlan Ghose, an IIT Delhi engineering graduate (1975) and postgraduate in management from XLRI
Jamshedpur (1979), is a seasoned professional in hospitality IT. Beginning his career in audio technology and
IT sales, he transitioned to hospitality IT in 1986, managing systems for Oberoi Hotels in Iraq and later leading
its global IT operations. In 1994, he started his consulting practice, working with Prologic SA, France, and
later acquired its India development center, now Prologic First. Under his leadership, Prologic First became a
global hospitality technology leader, specializing in cloud services and contactless apps. Amlan has promoted
and invested in various IT ventures, including system integration for theme parks. Respected for his extensive
domain expertise, he is regarded as a leading authority in hospitality IT.

Mr. Rajesh Kumar

Rajesh Kumar is a seasoned Chartered Accountant with over 43 years of experience. He is a Fellow Member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). His expertise spans Corporate Law, Direct and
Indirect Tax Law, and extensive experience in various bank audits, including statutory, branch, concurrent
audits, due diligence certifications, and stock audits. Additionally, he holds certification as a Concurrent
Auditor for Banks and has significant experience in project financing, having worked with institutions such as
IFCI, IDBI, ICICI, and commercial banks.

Mr. Varun Jain

Varun Jain is an accomplished entrepreneur and investor with over two decades of experience in real estate,
finance, and technology. As the Promoter of Property Point India Pvt Ltd, he has been instrumental in large-
scale real estate projects in NCR and Rajasthan. He is also an active angel investor in Indian startups, focusing
on sectors like Al, fintech, edtech, and aerospace, with investments in companies such as Cyborgintell, Saarthi
Pedagogy, Dhurina, and The ePlane Company. Further, he held leadership roles at the Confederation of Indian
Industry (CII). With an MBA from the University of Wisconsin-Madison and a background in investment
banking, he remains dedicated to shaping the future of business through strategic investments and innovation.

Past Directorship in Suspended Companies

None of our Directors are, or were a director of any listed company, whose shares have been, or were suspended
from being traded on any of the stock exchanges during the term of their directorships in such companies
during the last 5 (Five) years preceding the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Past Directorship in Delisted Companies
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Further, none of our directors are or were a director of any listed company, which has been, or was delisted
from any stock exchange during the term of their directorship in such Company during the last 10(Ten) years
preceding the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Set forth below are the details of our senior management and key managerial personnel:-

Mr. Pradeep Gupta Chairman and Managing Director 10/09/1982
Mr. Anoop Singh Company Secretary 17/01/2014
Mr. Sumit Khandelwal Chief Financial Officer 01/10/2024

Confirmations

1. Neither Company nor our Directors are declared as fugitive economic offenders as defined in Regulation
2(1)(p) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and have not been declared as a ‘fugitive economic offender’
under Section 12 of the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

2. None of the Directors of our Company have held or currently hold directorship in any listed company
whose shares have been or were suspended from being traded on any of the stock exchanges in the five
years preceding the date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer, during the term of his/ her directorship in
such company.

3. None of our Directors of our Company are or were associated in the capacity of a director with any
listed company which has been delisted from any stock exchange(s) at any time in the past.

4. None of our Directors have been debarred from accessing capital markets by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India. Additionally, none of our Directors are or were, associated with any other
company which is debarred from accessing the capital market by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India.

None of our Directors have been identified as a wilful defaulter or fraudulent borrower, as defined in the
SEBI Regulations and there are no violations of securities laws committed by them in the past and no
prosecution or other proceedings for any such alleged violation are pending against them.

This space has been left blank intentionally
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Management Organization Structure

The Management Organization Structure of the company is depicted from the following chart;
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Corporate Governance

_—

The provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Companies Act with respect to corporate governance
are applicable to us.

We are in compliance with the requirements of the applicable regulations, including the SEBI Listing
Regulations, Companies Act and the SEBI ICDR Regulations, in respect of corporate governance including
constitution of our Board and Committees thereof. Our corporate governance framework is based on an
effective independent Board, separation of the Board’s supervisory role from the executive management
team and constitution of the Board Committees, as required under law.
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Our Board undertakes to take all necessary steps to continue to comply with all the requirements of the SEBI
Listing Regulations and the Companies Act. Our Board functions either directly, or through various
committees constituted to oversee specific operational areas.

Committees of our Board

Our Board has constituted following committees in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
and SEBI Listing Regulations:

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)

Audit Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
Risk Management Committee

Investment Committee

Rights Issue Committee

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF VARIOUS COMMITTEE:

1)

Audit Committee

The following members forming a part of the said Committee:

Name Designation
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Chairman
Mr. Rohitasava Chand Member
Mr. Amlan Ghose Member

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the Audit Committee.

The scope, functions and the terms of reference of our Audit Committee, is in accordance with
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations which
are as follows:

i) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the Financial Statement is correct, sufficient and credible;
i) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of
the Company;
iii) Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory
Auditors;
iv) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and Auditor’s Report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:
a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement; to be
included in the Board’s Report in terms of clause (c¢) of subsection (3) of Section
134 of the Companies Act, 2013; changes, if any, in accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the same;

b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

C) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit
findings;

e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial
statements;

f) Disclosure of any related party transaction;
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2)

vi)

vii)
viii)
iX)

Xi)
Xii)

Xiii)
Xiv)
XV)

XVi)
XVii)

XViii)
XiX)

XX)

XXi)

0) Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly Financial Statements before submission to
the Board for approval;

Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through
an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the Report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or
rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this
matter;

Reviewing and monitoring the Auditor’s independence & performance, and effectiveness of
audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related
parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy
of the internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

Discussion with Statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

To review the functioning of the Whistle—Blower mechanism;

Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding
company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 Crores or 10% of the asset size of the
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing as
on the date of coming into force of this provision;

Carrying out any other function as may be assigned to it by the board of director from time
to time.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The following members forming a part of the said Committee:

Name Designation
Mrs. Shravani Dang Chairman
Mr. Amlan Ghose Member
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Member

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The scope, functions and the terms of reference of our Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
is in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations which are as follows:
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3)

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

(v)
(vi)

Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the

remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel ("KMP™) and other employees;

For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and

on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of

an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an

independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the

purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:

a) Use the services of an external agencies, if required;

b) Consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity;
and

c) Consider the time commitments of the candidates.

Specification of manner and criteria for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its
committees and individual directors, to be carried out either by the board or by an
independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance.

Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board
of directors their appointment and removal.

Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the
basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.

Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior
management.

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The following members forming a part of the said Committee:

Name Designation
Mr. Rohitasava Chand Chairman
Mrs. Shravani Dang Member
Mr. Dhaval Gupta Member
Mr. Varun Jain Member

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

The scope, functions and the terms of reference of our Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, is in
accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations which
are as follows:

(1

(i)
(iii)
(iv)

(v)

To consider and resolve the grievance of all the security holders related to transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipts of annual reports and non-receipts of declared
dividends, issue of new duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.;

To review the measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders

To review the adherence to service standards adopted by the company in respect of various
services being rendered by the Share Transfer Agent.

To review various measures and initiatives undertaken by the company for reducing the
quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual
reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.

To review and act upon such other grievances as the Board of Directors delegate to the
Committee from time to time.

83



4) Risk Management Committee

The following members forming a part of the said Committee:

Name Designation
Mr. Pradeep Gupta Chairperson
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Member
Mr. Sumit Khandelwal Member

The scope, functions and the terms of reference of our Risk Management Committee, is in accordance with
the SEBI Listing Regulations which are as follows:

(1) To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:

(a) A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the listed entity, in
particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks),
information, cyber security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee.

(b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified risks.

(c) Business continuity plan.

(2) To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate
risks associated with the business of the Company;

(3) To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the
adequacy of risk management systems;

(4) To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by considering
the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

(5) To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions,
recommendations and actions to be taken;

(6) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject
to review by the Risk Management Committee.

5) Investment Committee

The following members forming a part of the said Committee:

Name Designation
Mr. Pradeep Gupta Chairperson
Mr. Anoop Singh Member
Mr. Sumit Khandelwal Member

e The Company Secretary of the Company shall be the Secretary to the Committee.
e The quorum for the meeting of the Committee shall be the Chairman and one other member.

e The scope, functions and terms of reference of the Investment Committee:
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o To determine from time to time to propose to utilize the surplus funds available with the
Company to generate market returns.

o To suggest the best ways and use surplus funds at any point of time by investing in financial
market instruments. These can be in any of the following manner: Dividends; Interest; Capital
appreciation; or Other alternatives.

o To identify the credit risk;

o To maintain the liquidity;

o To maintain the standard of care viz., prudence, ethics and conflicts of interest, delegation of
authority.

6) Right Issue Committee

The following members forming a part of the said Committee:

Name Designation
Mr. Pradeep Gupta Chairman
Mr. Krishan Kant Tulshan Member
Mr. Varun Jain Member

The Company Secretary of the Company shall be the Secretary to the Committee.
(A)The scope, functions and the terms of reference of our Right Issue Committee are as follows:

Determining the quantum, price, ratio, and record date for the rights issue;

Approving the draft and final letter of offer and other related documents;

Liaising with regulatory authorities such as SEBI, Stock Exchanges, and Depositories;

Ensuring compliance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations related to the rights issue;
Opening and operating separate bank accounts for the rights issue proceeds;

. Finalizing the basis of allotment of shares and ensuring timely credit of shares to eligible
shareholders;

7. Taking any other steps necessary for the successful completion of the rights issue, subject to the
approval of the Board of Directors whenever required.

oL E

(B) The quorum for the meeting of the Committee shall be the presence of all the three members of
the Committee.

Our Key Managerial Personnel:

In addition to our Managing Director and Whole Time Director, whose details have been provided under
paragraph above titled ‘Brief Profile of our Directors’, set forth below are the details of our Key Managerial
personnel as on the date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer:

Mr. Anoop Singh, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Mr. Anoop Singh is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, with Graduation in
Law and Commerce from CCS University, Meerut. He has extensive experience in corporate governance
and compliance management, handling areas such as preferential issues, private equity, corporate actions,
and risk management for both listed and unlisted entities, including real estate conglomerates. Further, he
has independently managed IPO processes and currently, working as General Manager-Legal, Company
Secretary, and Compliance Officer at Cyber Media (India) Limited. Previously, he has worked with ABW
Group of Companies and RG Group of Companies, engaged in real estate business.
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Mr. Sumit Khandelwal, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Sumit Khandelwal is the Chief Financial Officer of our Company. He is a seasoned finance professional
with over six years of expertise in financial management, statutory compliance, and accounting practices.
He specializes in financial analysis, Ind-AS, and tax compliance, including GST, TDS, and Income Tax.
Currently working at Cyber Media (India) Limited, he manages financial statements, tax filings, and audits
while ensuring compliance with labor laws and regulatory requirements. Previously, at GSA & Associates
LLP, he conducted internal audits for major companies, handled tax assessments, implemented Ind AS 115,
and led due diligence projects. With strong leadership in financial oversight and process optimization, he
drives efficiency, compliance, and strategic financial decision-making.

Relationship of Key Managerial Personnel with our Directors, Promoter and / or other Key
Managerial Personnel

None of the Key Managerial Personnel are related in any capacity with the other Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company.

This space has been left blank intentionally
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OUR PROMOTER

Our Company confirms that the permanent account number, bank account number and passport number of
our Promoter shall be submitted to the Stock Exchanges at the time of filing this Draft Letter of Offer.

BRIEF PROFILE OF OUR PROMOTER IS AS UNDER:

1. Mr. Pradeep Gupta

Mr. Pradeep Gupta is the first-generation entrepreneur, along with his
family members, he promoted CyberMedia in 1982. He is the IT industry
stalwart, engaged deeply in the global start-up ecosystem. He is the
Chairman of the CyberMedia Group, the specialty media house, with brands
like Dataquest, PCQuest, Voice&Data, Dare, CIOL, Global Services, etc.

He was conferred the "National Entrepreneurship Award as the Best
Mentor" by the Ministry of Skill Development and Entrepreneurship,
Government of India as he has mentored over 150 start-ups.

He is the co-founder of Indian Angel Network. He is the Chair of the
Alumni Trust, the sponsors of lvyCap Ventures Trust Funds. He is on the
Board of the JIM Calcutta Innovation Park.

He was a global trustee of TiE, the world's largest entrepreneurial
ecosystem. He has been on the Board of UTI AMC and its subsidiary UTI
Capital. He has been the past President of PanlIT India and Association of
Indian Magazines. He is/has been on the Boards of IT Mandi, Indian
Newspaper Society, IIT Delhi incubator, etc.

He is the recipient of the Distinguished Alumni award of IIT Delhi and the
Helen Keller award for working in the disability sector. Pradeep is an
Engineer from IIT Delhi (1975) and an MBA from JIM Calcutta (1977).

He was awarded an Honorary Doctorate by Rai University.

Age/Date of Birth

69 years (08/03/1955)

PAN

AAEPG4410C

Quialification

Bachelor of Technology from IIT Delhi & Post Graduate Diploma in
Business Administration from 1IM Calcutta

Personal Address

D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi-110017, India

Directorship & Other
Ventures

For details, please refer chapter titled “Our Management”” on page 74.

Our Company confirms that the permanent account number, bank account number and passport number of
our Promoter shall be submitted to the Stock Exchanges at the time of filing this Draft Letter of Offer.

Confirmations:

1. None of our Promoter has been declared as wilful defaulters by the RBI or any other governmental
authority and there are no violations of securities laws committed by them in the past or are currently pending

against them.

2. Our Promoter has not been declared as a Fugitive Economic Offender under Section 12 of the Fugitive
Economic Offenders Act, 2018.
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3. None of our Promoter or Promoter Group entities have been debarred or prohibited from accessing or
operating in capital markets under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or
governmental authority. Our Promoter and members of the Promoter Group are not and have never been
promoters, directors or person in control of any other company, which is debarred or prohibited from
accessing or operating in capital markets under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory
or governmental authority.

4. Except as disclosed in the chapter titled “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments”, there are
no litigation or legal action pending or taken by any ministry, department of the Government or statutory
authority during the last 5 (five) years preceding the date of the Issue against our Promoter.

INTEREST OF OUR PROMOTER
Interest of Promoters

Our Promoter does not have any interest in our Company except to the extent of compensation payable /
paid, reimbursement of expenses (if applicable), and to the extent of any equity shares held by him or his
relatives , and to the extent of benefits arising out of such shareholding. For further details please see the
chapters titled “Capital Structure”, “Financial Statements” and “Our Management” beginning on page
53, 92 and 74 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Except as stated otherwise in this Draft Letter of Offer, we have not entered into any contract, agreements or
arrangements in which our Promoters is directly or indirectly interested and no payments have been made to
them in respect of the contracts, agreements or arrangements which are proposed to be made with them
including the properties purchased by our Company and development rights entered into by our Company
other than in the normal course of business. For further details, please refer the section titled “Related Party
Transactions” in chapter “Financial Statements” on page no. 92 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Interest in promotion of our Company

Our Company is currently promoted by the Promoter and Promoter Group in order to carry on its present
business. Our Promoter and Promoter Group is interested in our Company to the extent of their shareholding
and directorship in our Company and the dividend declared, if any, by our Company.

Interest in the property, land, construction of building, supply of machinery, etc.

Except as mentioned in the chapter titled “Our Business” beginning on page 68 of this Draft Letter of Offer,
our Promoters do not have any other interest in any property acquired or proposed to be acquired by our
Company in a period of 3 (three) years before filing of this Draft Letter of Offer or in any transaction by our
Company for acquisition of land, construction of building or supply of machinery or any other contract,
agreement or arrangement entered into by our Company and no payments have been made or are proposed
to be made in respect of these contracts, agreements or arrangements.

Payment or Benefit to the Promoters or Promoter Group in the last 2 (two) years

Except as stated above in “Our Management” and “Financial Statements” beginning on pages 74 and 92
respectively of this Draft Letter of Offer, there has been no amount or benefit paid or given during the
preceding 2 (two) years of filing Letter of Offer or intended to be paid or given to the Promoter or any
member of the Promoter Group and no consideration for payment of giving of the benefit.

MATERIAL GUARANTEES GIVEN TO THIRD PARTIES

Except as stated in the “Financial Information” beginning on page 92 of this Draft Letter of Offer, our
Promoter has not given material guarantees to the third party(ies) with respect to the specified securities of
our Company.
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RELATIONSHIP OF OUR PROMOTERS WITH OUR DIRECTORS

Name of the Promoter Name of the Director Relationship with promoter

Mr. Pradeep Gupta Mr. Dhaval Gupta Son of Mr. Pradeep Gupta

COMPANIES WITH WHICH OUR PROMOTERS HAVE DISASSOCIATED IN THE
PRECEDING THREE YEARS

Except as stated below, as on the date of the Letter of Offer, none of the Promoter and Promoter Group have
disassociated with any Companies in the preceding three years: NIL

OUR PROMOTER GROUP

The following natural persons being the immediate relatives of our Promoter and Promoter Group in terms
of the SEBI (ICDR)Regulations 2018 form part of our Promoter Group:

Promoter Mr. Pradeep Gupta

Father Late Ramkrishna Shankarlal Gupta
Mother Late Sudha Bala Gupta

Spouse Anuradha Gupta

Brothers N.A.

Sisters

Dr. Bulbul Sood

Dr. Mukul Jain
Sons Dhaval Gupta
Daughters Kriti Gupta

Spouse Father

Late Vinod Prakash Agarwal

Spouse Mother

Late Nirmala Agarwal

Spouse Brothers

Sanjeev Agarwal

Rajeev Agarwal

Spouse Sister

N.A.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For details of the related party transactions, during the Financial year ending 31% March, 2024 & 31 March,
2023, as per the requirements under Ind AS 24 read with SEBI ICDR Regulations and as reported in the
Financial Statements, see section titled ""Financial Information™ at page 92 of this Draft Letter of Offer.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration and payment of dividends will be recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by
the Shareholders, at their discretion, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association and applicable
law, including the Companies Act. The dividend, if any, will depend on a number of factors, including but
not limited to, consolidated net operating profit after tax, working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements, cash flow required to meet contingencies, outstanding borrowings, and applicable taxes
payable by our Company. In addition, our ability to pay dividends may be impacted by a number of factors,
including restrictive covenants under loan or financing arrangements our Company is currently availing of or
may enter into to finance our fund requirements for our business activities.

Further, we have not declared any dividend in the previous financial year immediately preceding this issue.
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SECTION V - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S. No. | Particulars Page No.
1. Unaudited Consolidated Financial Results of our Company as at and for | 93
the nine-month period ended December 31, 2024
2. Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of our Company as at and for | 103
the financial year ended March 31, 2024 & 2023
3. Statement of Accounting Ratios 164
4. Statement of Capitalization 165
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February 11, 2025

Manager - Listing Compliance Manager - Listing Compliance
BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
Floor 25, P J Towers, Dalal Street Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,
Mumbai -400 001 Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East)

Mumbai-400051

Scrip code: 532640 Symbol: CYBERMEDIA

Sub: Outcome of the Board Meeting
Dear Sir/Madam,

Pursuant to Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, we wish to inform that the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held today i.e.
February 11, 2025 has, inter alia, approved and taken on record the Unaudited Financial Results,
standalone and consolidated, for the quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2024 alongwith
Limited Review Report of Statutory Auditor on the said results.

Copy of the said results alongwith Limited Review Report are enclosed for your information and record.
The Meeting of the Board of Directors commenced at 01:15 p.m. and concluded at 02:20 p.m.
Kindly take the above on your record and oblige.

Yours truly,
For Cyber Media (India) Limited

ANOOP pzremeier

SINGH i
Anoop Singh
Company Secretary
M. No. F8264

Encl.: As below

Cyber Media (India) Limited, Corporate Office: Cyber House, B-35, Sector-32, Gurugram-122003, Haryana, India. Tel: +91-124- 423 7517
Email: info@cybermedia.co.in, Website: www.cybermedia.co.in
Bengaluru Office: # 205, 2nd Floor, Shree Complex, 73, St. John's Road, Bengaluru-560042. Tel: +91-80-2286 8282
Mumbai Office: #326, INS Tower, Wing-B, C-63, G-Block. Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai-400051
Registered Office: D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi-110017, India. Tel: +91-11-2649 1320. CIN: L92114DL1982PLC014334
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Registered Office: D-74, Panchsheel Ei
Corporate Office: Cyber House, B-35, Sector-:

CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: L92114DL1982PLC014334

Website: www.cybermedia.co.in; Email: investorcare@cybermedia.co.in

Statement of Unaudited Consolidated Financial Res|

nclave, New Delhi - 110 017, Tel: 011-26491320
32, Gurugram - 122 003, Haryana. Tel: 0124-4237517

ults for the Quarter and Nine Month Ended December 31st 2024

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Quarter Ended Nine Month Ended Year Ended
Sr. No. Particulars 31-12-2024 30-09-2024 |31-12-2023 31-12-2024 31-12-2023 | 31-03-2024
(Unaudited) | (Unaudited) |(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) | (Audited
1
Income from operations 2,378.90 2,065.02 2,488.11 6,509.24 7,612.42 | 10,180.31
Other income (0.85) 36.16 75.67 47.29 150.44 245.41
Total Income 2,378.05 2,101.18 2,563.78 6,556.53 7,762.86 | 10,425.71
2 |Expenses
Direct Exp 1,943.47 1,665.74 1,929.00 5,209.61 6,181.32 8,103.43
Cost of Materials cc d - - - - - 0.24
Purchase of stock-in-trade 1.48 2.44 0.61 6.06 4.14 5.16
_Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock - in - trade and work - ; 0.07 (0.03)
in - progress 0.07 (0.43) (0.37)
Employee benefits expense 346.55 340.06 327.53 1,042.53 894.30 1,230.84
Finance costs 19.94 18.91 34.00 56.94 69.29 88.30
Depreciation, amortization and Impairment 7.69 6.84 10.43 19.25 31.20 41.50
Other expenses 65.82 58.33 104.65 216.21 219.42 315.66
Total exp 2,384.94 2,092.38 2,406.18 6,550.66 7,399.23 9,784.77
3 |Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (6.89) 8.80 157.61 5.87 363.63 640.94
4 |Exceptional Income/Expense (see note no. 6) (879.00) (3.29) (31.96) (885.88) (45.94) (138.03)
> Profit/ (Loss) before tax (885.89) 5.52 125.65 (880.01) 317.70 502.91
6 |Tax expense
Current Tax 24.88 1.63 28.29 42.94 57.23 102.39
Deferred Tax 0.82 - (2.10) (1.32) 5.95 4.32
Earlier year adjustment - - 0.36 (0.03) 10.36 56.04
7 Profit/ (Loss) for the period (911.60) 3.89 99.10 (921.60) 244.17 340.16
8 |Other Comprehensive Income(net of tax)
Ttems that will/will not be reclassified to profit & loss - - (1.50) - (4.50) (3.66)
Income tax effect on above - - - - - -
9 |Share of profit / (loss) of assocites - - - - - -
10 |Total Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) (911.60) 3.89 97.60 (921.60) 239.67 336.50
11 |Non-controlling Interests - - - - 196.62
12 |Profit attributable to owners (911.60) 3.89 97.60 (921.60) 239.67 139.88
13 |Face Value for equity share 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
14 |Paid-up equity share capital 1,566.72 1,566.72 1,566.72 1,566.72 1,566.72 1,566.72
15 |Other Equity (2,369.48) (1,464.95) (1,992.95) (2,369.48) (1,992.95) (2,028.58)
16 |Basic EPS (5.82) 0.02 0.63 (5.88) . 1.56 2.17
Diluted EPS (5.82) 0.02 0.63 (5.88) 1.56 217
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Corporate Office: Cyber House, B-35, Sector-32, Gurugram - 122 003, Haryana. Tel: 0124-4237517

CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: L92114DL1982PLC014334
Registered Office: D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi - 110 017, Tel: 011-26491320

Website: www.cybermedia.co.in; Email: investorcare@cybermedia.co.in

Statement of Unaudited Consolidated Financial Results for the Quarter and Nine Month Ended December 31st 2024
(Rupees in Lakhs)

sr. No Particulars .Quarter Ended Nine Month Ended Year ended
S 31-12-2024 | 30-09-2024 |31-12-2023| 31-12-2024 | 31-12-2023 | 31-03-2024
(Unaudited) | (Unaudited) |(Unaudited)| (Unaudited) [ (Unaudited) | (Audited)
1 |[Segment Revenue
Media Services 271.49 291.71 662.27 810.12 1,061.20 1,385.83
Digital Services 2,107.41 1,773.31 | 1,825.84 5,699.12 6,551.23 8,794.48
Total 2,378.90 2,065.01 | 2,488.11 6,509.24 7,612.42 | 10,180.31
Less : Inter Segment Revenue - - - - - -
Net Revenue 2,378.90 2,065.01 | 2,488.11 6,509.24 7,612.42 | 10,180.31
2 |Segment Results
Media Services (960.63) (32.09) 18.61 (1,067.46) 53.05 57.09
Digital Services 94.68 56.52 141.04 244.38 333.93 534.12
Sub-Total (865.95) 24.43 159.65 (823.07) 386.98 591.21
Less : Interest Expenditure 19.94 18.91 34.00 56.94 69.29 88.30
Profit Before Tax (885.89) 5.52 125.65 (880.01) 317.70 502.91
3 [Segment Assets - - . -
Media Services 1,251.11 880.70 | 1,237.23 1,251.11 1,237.23 1,225.68
Digital Services 3,400.64 3,117.24 | 3,004.50 3,400.64 3,004.50 2,890.85
Total Segment Assets 4,651.75 3,997.94 4,241.73 4,651.75 4,241.73 4,116.54
4 |Segment Liabilites - - -
Media Services 3,448.69 1,118.97 | 2,273.50 3,448.69 2,273.50 2,305.14
Digital Services 1,916.76 ~2,687.19 | 1,833.29 1,916.76 1,833.29 1,580.54
Total Segment Liabilites 5,365.45 3,806.16 | 4,106.79 5,365.45 4,106.79 3,885.69
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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED -
CIN: L92114DL1982PLC014334
Registered Office: D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi- 110 017, Tel: 011-26491320
Corporate Office: Cyber House, B-35, Sector-32, Gurugram - 122 003, Haryana. Tel: 0124-4237517
Website: www.cybermedia.co.in; Email: investorcare@cybermedia.co.in

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Results for the Quarter and Nine month Ended December 31st, 2024

1 |These consolidated financial results have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid
down in Indian Accounting Standard ('Ind AS') - 34 'Interim Financial Reporting', notified under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

2 |The consolidated figures include financial results of subsidiaries: (i) Cyber Media Research & Services Limited, (ii) Cyber Astro
Limited, (iii) Cyber Media Services Limited: and (iv) Cyber Media Services Pte. Limited - Singapore.

3 |The above consolidated financial results have been reviewed by the Audit Committee at its meeting held on February 06,
2025 and approved and taken on record by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on February 11, 2025.

4 |The Company has consolidated Cyber Media Research & Services Limited where in it presently holds 38.17% of equity share
holding as in its judgement, the Company controls Cyber Media Research & Services Limited on the basis of absolute size of]
its holding and relative size of the other shareholdings as per application guidance in Ind AS 110, ‘Consolidated Financial
Statements'.

5 |in the aforesaid financial results, all the figures are unaudited except for the figures for the year ended March 31, 2024.

6 |Exceptional item consists of

Period ended Settlement/ related Service Tax demand Export incentive Total
Quarter ended 879.00 - - 879.00
31-12-2024
Quarter ended 3.29 - - 3.29
30-09-2024
Quarter ended 6.76 25.20 31.96
31-12-2023
Nine-month period 885.88 - - 885.88
ended
31-12-2024
Nine-month period 20.74 25.20 - 45.94
ended
31-12-2023
Year ended 35.14 25.20 77.70 138.04
31-03-2024

During this quarter ended 31-12-2024, the Group settled the execution of foreign arbitration award pending in Delhi High
Court at USD 1.00 Million as informed earlier to Stock Exchange on 13-01-2025.

7 |These financial results may be downloaded from the Company's website: www.cybermedia.co.in; and website of stock
exchanges, (NSE) www.nseindia.com and (BSE) www.bseindia.com.

By Order of the Board

/ﬂ: (New DELHI |S
ul J
6');’—) \,_/a‘;\/l ' Dhaval Gupta
Place: New Delhi W & OF Director

Dated:||—0 2~ 2025~ DIN 05287458
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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN : 192114DL1982PLC014334
Registered Office: D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi - 110 017, Tel: 011-26491320
Corporate Office: Cyber House, B-35, Sector-32, Gurugram - 122 003, Haryana. Tel: 0124-4237517

co.in; Email: investorcare@cybermedia.co.in

Statement of Unaudited Standalone Financial Results for the Quarter and Nine Month Ended December 31, 2024

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Quarter Ended Nine Month Ended Year ended
Sr. No. Particulars 31-12-2024 30-09-2024 | 31-12-2023 | 31-12-2024 31-12-2023 31-03-2024
(Unaudited) | (Unaudited) |(Unaudited)| (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
1 Revenue
Income from operations 271.49 291.71 306.49 810.12 1,061.20 1,385.83
Other income 18.99 35.46 68.80 67.30 141.70 235.04
Total Income 290.48 327.17 375.29 877.42 1,202.90 1,620.87
2 |Expenses
Direct Expenses 199.75 217.00 151.04 565.54 616.47 816.05 |-
Cost of Materials consumed - - - - - 0.24
Employee benefits expense 134.30 128.88 125.17 390.37 359.40 506.85
Finance costs 16.04 17.44 18.01 50.70 48.83 66.00
Depreciation, amortization and Impairment 4.68 4.64 3.12 12.88 9.19 12.30
Other expenses 3338 19.27 45.40 90.20 118.85 168.01
Total expenses 388.15 387.24 342.74 1,109.69 1,152.74 1,569.45

3 Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (97.67) (60.07) 32.55 (232.27) 50.15 51.42

4 |Exceptional Income/Expense (879.00) (3.29) (31.96) (385.88) (45.94) (60.34)

5  |Profit/ (Loss) before tax (976.67) (63.36) 0.59 (1,118.15) 4.22 (8.91)

6 Tax expense

Current Tax - - - - - -
Deferred Tax - - - - - -
Earlier year adjustment - - - (0.03) - 28.11

7 Profit/ (Loss) for the period (976.67) (63.36) 0.59 (1,118.12) 4.22 (37.03)

8 |Other Comprehensive Income(net of tax) - - - - - -

Items that will/will not be reclassified to profit & loss - - - - - (1.94)
Income tax effect on above - - - - - -

9 |Total Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) (976.67) (63.36) 0.59 . (1,118.12) 4.22 (38.97)
10 |Face Value per equity share 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
11 [Paid-up equity share capital 1,566.72 1,566.72 1,566.72 1566.72 1,566.72 1,566.72
12  |Other Equity (3,655.58) (2,678.91)| (2,494.27) (3,655.58) (2,494.27) (2,537.46)
13 |Basic EPS (6.23) (0.40) 0.00 (7.14) 0.03 (0.24)

Diluted EPS (6.23) (0.40) 0.00 (7.14) 0.03 (0.24)
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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: L92114DL1982PLC014334
Registered Office: D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi- 110 017, Tel: 011-26491320
Corporate Office: Cyber House, B-35, Sector-32, Gurugram - 122 003, Haryana. Tel: 0124-4237517
Website: www.cybermedia.co.in; Email: investorcare@cybermedia.co.in

Statement of Unaudited Standalone Financial Results for the Quarter and Nine Month Ended December 31,2024

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Quarter Ended Nine Month Ended Year ende

Sr. Particulars 31-12-2024 | 30-09-2024 | 31-12-2023 | 31-12-2024 | 31-12-2023 | 31-03-2024
Moy (Unaudited) | (Unaudited) | (Unaudited) | (Unaudited) | (Unaudited) | (Audited)
1 |Segment Revenue

Media Services 271.49 |. 291.71 306.49 810.12 1,061.20 1,385.83

Digital Services - - - - - -

Total 271.49 291.71 306.49 810.12 1,061.20 1,385.83

Less : Inter Segment Revenue - - - - - -

Net Revenue 271.49 291.71 306.49 810.12 1,061.20 1,385.83
2 |Segment Results

Media Services (960.63) (45.91) 18.60 (1,067.46) 53.05 57.09

Digital Services - - - - - -

Sub-Total . (960.63) (45.91) 18.60 (1,067.46) 53.05 57.09

Less : Interest Expenditure 16.04 17.44 18.01 50.70 48.83 66.00

Profit Before Tax (976.67) (63.35) 0.59 (1,118.15) 4.22 (8.91)
3 |Segment Assets

Media Services 1,251.11 1,079.05 1,237.23 1,251.11 1,237.23 1,225.68

Total Segment Assets 1,251.11 1,079.05 1,237.23 1,251.11 1,237.23 1,225.68
4 |[Segment Liabilites

Media Services 3,448.69 2,299.96 2,273.50 3,448.69 2,273.50 2,305.14

Total Segment Liabilites 3,448.69 2,299.96 2,273.50 3,448.69 2,273.50 2,305.14
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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: L92114DL1982PLC014334
Registered Office: D-74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi - 110 017, Tel: 011-26491320
Corporate Office: Cyber House, B-35, Sector-32, Gurugram - 122 003, Haryana. Tel: 0124-4237517
Website: www.cybermedia.co.in; Email: investorcare@cybermedia.co.in

Notes to Unaudited Standalone Financial Results for the Quarter and Nine Month Ended December 31st, 2024

1 |These standalone financial results have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement
principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS') - 34 'Interim Financial Reporting', notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from
time to time, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

2 |The above standalone financial results have been reviewed by the Audit Committee at its meeting held on February,
06, 2025 and approved and taken on record by the Bo_ard of Directors at its meeting held on February 11, 2025.

3 |in the aforesaid financial results, all the figures are unaudited except the figures for the year ended March 31, 2024.

4  |Exceptional item consists of

Period ended Settlement/ related litigation expenses (see note | Service Tax demand Total
below)

Quarter ended 879.00 - 879.00
31-12-2024

Quarter ended 3.29 - 3.29
30-09-2024

Quarter ended 6.76 25.20 31.96
31-12-2023

Nine-month period 885.88 - 885.88
ended

31-12-2024

Nine-month period 20.74 25.20 45.94
ended

31-12-2023

Year ended 35.14 25.20 60.34
31-03-2024

During this quarter ended 31-12-2024, the Company settled the execution of foreign arbitration award pending in
Delhi High Court at USD 1.00 Million as informed earlier to Stock Exchange on 13-01-2025.

5  |These financial results may be downloaded from the Company's website: www.cybermedia.co.in and website of stock
exchanges (NSE): www.nseindia.com and (BSE): www.bseindia.com.

By Order of the Board

Dhaval Gupta
Place: New Delhi Y ox © Director
Dated: | ]~ 02~202.% ‘ DIN 05287458
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s. agarwal & co

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

New Delhi - 110 024

Independent Auditor’s Review Report on_consolidated unaudited financial results of the
Company for the quarter & nine month ended December 31, 2024 under Regulation 33 of the

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED

Dear Sir,

1.

o
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We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited consolidated financial results .of
Cyber Media (India) Limited (“the Parent”) and its subsidiaries (the parent and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) for the quarter and nine-month ended
December 31, 2024 (“the statement”), being submitted by the Parent pursuant to the
requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended (‘Listing Regulations’).

This statement, which is the responsibility of the Parent’s Management and approved by the
Parent’s Board of Directors has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial
Reporting” (“Ind AS 34”), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33
of the Listing Regulations. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the statement
based on our review.

We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagements (SRE) 2410 “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity”, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards of Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly. we

do not express an audit opinion.

We also performed procedures in accordance with the circular issued by the SEBI under
Regulation 33(8) of the Listing Regulations, to the extent applicable.

The statement includes the results of the following entities:

[ Name of the Entity Country of |
Sr. Incorporation
No. - e
I. | Cyber Media (India) Limited India Parent
2. | Cyber Media Research & Services Limited | India Subsidiary
3. | Cyber Astro Limited India Subsidiary
4. | Cyber Media Services Limited India Wholly Qwned
Subsidiary
Singapore | Wholly
5. | Cyber Media Services Pte. Limited | Subsidiary of Cyber
Media  Research
Services Limited
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Based on our review conducted and procedures performed, nothing has come to our attention
that causes us to believe that the accompanying statement, prepared in accordance with
recognition and measurement Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of
Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed,
or that it contains any material misstatement.

The consolidated financial results include the limited reviewed (by other auditors') financial
results of Cyber Media Research & Services Limited, India, Subsidiary of the Company
& Cyber Media Services Pte. Limited, Singapore wholly owned subsidiary of Cyber Media
Research & Services Limited, whose interim financial statements reflect (i) Group's share of
total assets of Rs. 3,700.46 Lakhs as at December 31, 2024, (ii) Group's share of total
revenue of Rs. 2,095.30 Lakhs and Group's share of total net profit after tax of Rs. 60.50
Lakhs for the quarter ended December 31, 2024, (iii) Group's share of total revenue of Rs.
5,662.77 Lakhs and Group's share of total net profit after tax of Rs. 167.62 Lakhs for the
nine-month ended December 31, 2024, as considered in the consolidated financial results,
in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries
is based solely on such limited reviewed interim financial statements.

Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of this matter.

The consolidated financial results include the management certified financial results of Cyber
Astro Limited & Cyber Media Services Limited, subsidiaries, whose interim financial
statements reflect (i) Group's share of total assets of Rs. 25.78 & 0.22 respectively Lakhs as
at December 31, 2024, (ii) Group's share of total revenue of Rs. 13.24 & Nil respectively
Lakhs and Group's share of total net profit after tax of Rs. 0.48 & (0.12) respectively Lakhs
for the quarter ended December 31, 2024, (iii) Group's share of total revenue of Rs. 37.48
& Nil respectively Lakhs and Group's share of total net profit after tax of Rs. (6.86) & (0.36)
respectively Lakhs for the nine-month ended December 31, 2024, as considered in the
consolidated financial results, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries is based solely on such management certified interim financial
statements. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by
the Board of Directors, these interim financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our conclusion on the financial statement is not modified in respect of this matter.

For S. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 000808N)

S.N. Agurwa% =
Partner

Membership Number: 012103
[IDIN: 25012103BMJBOP2657

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date; Iebruary 11, 2025
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Phones : Off. : 29830625, 29838501
GHARIERER AR ROMINIANTS E-mail : sagarwal1910@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON AUDIT OF INTERIM STANDALONE FINANCIAL
RESULTS

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED

Dear Sir,

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results of Cyber Media (India)
Limited for the quarter and nine month ended December 31, 2024. This statement is the responsibility of

the Company’s Management and has been approved by the Board of Directors. Our responsibility is to issue
a report on these financial statements based on our review.

We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE)
2410 “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”, issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the
review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and analytical procedures applied to

financial data and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying statement of unaudited financial results prepared in accordance with applicable accounting
standards and other recognised accounting practices and policies has not disclosed the information required
to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material
misstatement.

Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For S. Agarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 000808N)

g\ —

S. N. Agarwal

Partner

Membership Number: 012103
UDIN: 25012103BMJIBO02457

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: February 11, 2025
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123, Vinobapuri, Lajpat Nagar - [i

s. agarwal & co. e b

Phones : Off, : 29830625, 28638501
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS E-mail : sagarwal1910@amai.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
T0 THE MEMBERS OF CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STAT'EMEH_ITS

Opinion -

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of CYBER MEDIA {INDIA)
LIMITED("herefnafter referred to as the Holding Company”], s subsidiarias (Holding Company and its
Subsidiaries together referred to as "the “Group”}, which comprise consolidated balance sheet as at
dist march 2024, consolidated statement of profit and loss, including statement of other
comprehenshae income, consalidated statement of cash flow and the consolidated statement of changes
in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatery information {hereinafter referred to as

, “the censolidated financial statements™),

In pur opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financlal statements give the information required by the Companies Ack
2013{"Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and falr view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the act read with the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards} Rules 2015 as amended, (*Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted In India, of the consofidated state of affairs of the group as at 31st March 2024, of its
consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its
consalidated cash flows for the vear ended on that date.

Basiz of oplnian
We cordducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards an
Auditing [$As) specified under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilitles for the Audit of the Consalidoted
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India {ICal), together with ethical
Q requirement that are relevant ta our awdit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions
of the act and rules made thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities and In
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, We belleve that the audit evidence we have
ehtsined is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion en the consolidated financial
statements,

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention-to Note No. 41 of the Financial Statement, being claims against the Company not
acknowledged as debt by the Company in respect of grant of an execution decree under Chaptar X, Part
— |I- Enforcement of Certain Foreign awards of the Indlan Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 by a
former employee of an erstwhile subsidiany of the Company of an e-parte forelgn arbltration award of
U150 21,63,323 which s contestad by the Company.
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(rur opinion is mot modified in this respect.

Key Audit Matters )
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financlal statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, These
matters were addressed in the context of our awudit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and In forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

Key Audit Matters

[ How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

1 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured net of discounts,
incentives, rebate etc. given to the
customer on the Company’s sabes.

The Company's presence across different
marketing products within the country
and  the  competitive  business
environment makes the assessment of
varlous type discount, mcentives and
rebates as complex and judgmental,
Therefore, there is a risk of revenue being
misstated as a result of variations in the
assessment of discounts, incentives and
rebates.

Given the complexity and judgment
required o access the provision for
discounts, Incentives and rebates, thisisa
key audit matter

We have assessed the Company's
accounting policies relating to revenue,
discounts, incentives and rebates by
comparing with applicable accounting
standards.

We  accessed the  design  and
implememation  and  tested  the
aperating  effectivensss  Company’s
internal controls owver the provisions,
approvals  and  disbursements  of
distounts, incentives and rebates, ©

We  have | oafcessed  Company's
computation for accrual of discounts,
incentives and rebates, on & sample
basis, and compared the accrual made
with the approved schemes and
underlined documeants,

We have verified, on a sample basis, the
underlying decumentation for discounts,
incentives and rebates recorded and
disbursed dusting the year.

We have compared the historical trends
of payments and reversal of discounts,
incentives and rebates to provisions
made to assess the current year accruals.
We have examined the manual journaks
posted to discounts, rebates and
incentlves to ldentify unusual or irregular
items.

2 | Impairment of Trade Recaivables

The company has applled a simplified ECL
madel. to determine the Impairment
apainst trade receivables at the reporting

We hawve assessed the design and
implementation and tested the operating
effectiveness of the Company’s relevant
key financial contrels arownd the ECL
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date, The expected credit loss (ECL)
model involves the use of various
assumptions and study of historical
observed defaults rates over the
expected life of trade receivables. The
significant  judgments include the
assessment for the forward looking
estimates. Due to the significance of
trade receivables and the significant
Judgment involved in determining the
ECL, the impairment of trade receivables
was considered to be Key audit matter

allowance,

We critically assessed the ECL maodel
developed by the Company and verified
with requirement of Ind AS 109.

Tested Key assumptions and judgments,
such as those used to assess the
likelihood of default and loss on default
by comparing two historical data

We considered the adequacy of the
disclosures in the Consolidated financial
statements against the requirement of
Ind As 109, Financial instruments and Ind

AS 107, Financial Instruments Disclosures

Other Information

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Holding Company’s
annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes avallable and, In doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Holding Company’s annual report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance
and take necessary actions required under SA 720, ‘The Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to Other
Information’

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term
of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended, (“Ind AS").

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
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the sslection and application of approprigte accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, Implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financisl controbs, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statemeants that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been wsed for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management
and Board of Directors of the Holding Compary, as aforesaid, '

n preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respecthve Management and Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o Boing concern and using the
Eeing concern basis of accounting unless the Management and Board of Directars sither Intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no reglistic alternative but to do so,

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies incuded in the group are aleo responsibla for the
oversesing the financial reporting process of the group,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cur abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financizl statements
25 a whale are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance I3 & high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with standards of auditing (SAs) will always datect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material If, individually or In the aggrezate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
econormic declsions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statemnents,

Az part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated Ind AS financhal
staterments, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive e
those risks, and obfain awdit evidence that is sufficient and appropriste to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting 2 material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
tor one resulting from error, as fraud may Invele collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

= Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in arder to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Graup has adeguate internal financlal
controls system in place and the operating effectivenass of such controls.

= Ewaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management and board of Directors, o
- Condude on the appropristeness of management's use of the going concern basks of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
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or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Groug's ability to continue as a going concern,
If we conclude that a material uncartainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditar’s
report te the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements of, If such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence ohtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future svents or conditions may cause the Group to
e to continue as a going concern.

- Ewaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consofidated financial statements represent the
underiying transactions and events in a manner that achioves fair presentation,

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidenoe regarding the financial information of the entitizs or
business activities within the Group and its associates and jointly controlled entitles to express an
epinion on the corsalidated financial statements. We are respansible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entites fnduded in the
consolidated financial staterments of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entitles
inciuded In the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and perfermance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate “with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
Companies included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant defidencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide these charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relavant
ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other ratters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
relatad safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine thase matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the finandal vear
ended 315t March, 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our
auditors report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our Feport
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest henefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's feport) Order, 2020 {"the Order"), issued by the Central
Governmant of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" o statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
Z. Asrequired by Section 243(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of aur
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knowiedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of owr audit of the aforesaid
consalidated financial statements;

In aur opinfon proper books of accaunt as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far ac it appears from our examination of those books,

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consdlidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated
Cash Flow and Statement, Consalidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in sgresment with the books of account maintained for the purpose of the
consolidated financial statement;

In cur opinion, the aforessid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; ’

O the hbasis of the written representations received from the directors of the Haolding
Company as on 31 March 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Compzny and on the basis of written representations received by the management from
directors of its subsidiaries which are incorporated In India, as on 31 March 2024, none of the
directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appolnted 25 a director In terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal finantial controls with reference to consolidated
finenclal statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companles Incorporated |n
India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer te our separate répart s
‘Anmexiife 2,

With respect to the matter to be Included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the
Act:

In our opinfon and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the group to lts directors during the current year Is in accordance with
the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any of the director is not in
excace of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs
has net preseribed other details under Sectlon 197(16) of the Act which are required to be
commentad upon by us.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditcrs Report in accordance with
fule 11 oFthe Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I.  The Group does not have any pending litigation that would impact its finantial pesitions
in its financial statements as at and for the year ended 31* March 2024;

fi. The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any matenal foreseeabla losses;
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fi.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its
subsidiary companlies incorporated in India to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

1. Directly or Indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Holding
Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India; or

2. Provided any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries, -

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in
India shall:

1. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Uitimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding
Parties or

2. provided any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficlarles

¢. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub clause (iv)(a) and (ivM(b} contain any material mis-
statement. ’

v.  The Holding Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
Hence, no reporting is required under rute 11(f) of Companles (Audit and Auditors) Rules
2014 read with section 143(3)(j) of the Companies Act, 2013. )

vi.  Based on our examination, which include test checks, the Company has not installed
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility in its accounting softwares for
maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. However
the company has complied with the requirement of audit trail feature In its accounting
software from the beginning of financial year 2024-2025
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Crther Matters

i. We did not audit the finandal staternents and other financial informiation, in respect of 3
subsidlaries & one step down subsidiary, whase financizl statements include total assets
of Rs 3,130.69 lacs as at March 31, 2024, and total revenues of Rs 8,794.67 lacs and net
cash inflows of Rs. 295.08 lacs for the year ended on that date whose financial
statemnents and other financial information have been audited by another auditor, which
financial statements, other finencial Information znd awditor's reports have been
furnished to us by the manzgement, Qur opinion on the Consolidated Financlal
Statements, in 2o far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures induded in respect of
the said stepdown subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143
of the Act, In so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary of such other auditor.

For 5. Agarwal & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 13211

S

5. N. Agarwal

Partrner

Membership No: 012103
UDIN: 24012 103BKDHNPE264

Place: Mew Delhi
Date: 28" May, 2024
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Annexure “1% to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on Ind A5 consolidated financial
stateménts as at and year ended 31" March 2024 of Cyber Media (India) Limited

We report that

ii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of the company incorporated in
Indiz and included in the consolidated financial statements, no gualification or adverse remarks ghven
Im CARD report issued by their statutory auditor,

For 5. Agarwal & Co. .
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 13211M

hen

5. N. Agarwal .
Partnar

Membership Mo.: 012103
UDiN; 24012103BKDHNPE264

Piace: New Delhi
Date: 28™ May, 2024
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Annoxure "2" to the Independent Auditor’s Report of aven date on Ind AS consolidated financial
statements as at and yvear ended 31st March 2024 of Cyber Media (India) Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Sectlon 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act")

In conjunction with our zudit of consolidated financial statements of Cyber Media (India) Limited
{hereinafier referred to as “the Helding Company®) as of and for the year ended 31st March 2024, We
have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial staterments of the
Helding Company and Its Subsidiary Company (the Helding and its Subsidiary together referred to as
"the group”}, which ks a company incorporated in India as of that date.

lanagement’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company, incorporated in
India, are responsibie for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based en the criteria established by the Holding Cormpany, its
Subsidiary Company, considering the essential components of internal control stated In the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Mote') issued by the
Instituke of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘ICAIY).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficlent conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective companies’ policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the sccuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial infarmation, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013 (the ‘Act').

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Gukdance Mote issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing {"the Standards’), issued by the ICAl and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both issued by the 1CAL

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal financial controls
over financlal reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements was established and
maintaimed and if such controls operated effactively in all material respects.

Our avdit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal
financlal controls with reference to consolidated financlal statements with reference to these financial
statements and thefr operating effectivensss.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reforence to consalidated financial statements included
obtaining an wnderstanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, end testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
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on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the ricks of material misstaterment of the
financial staternents, whether due to fraud or error.

We beligve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate 1o provide a basls for
our zudit epinion on the Internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financizl
statements.

Meaning of Internal Finaneial Controls over Financial Reporting .

A company’s internal financlial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for external purpeses in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policles and procedures that:

Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
tranzactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

- Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recarded as nacessry bo permit preparation
of consolidated financlal statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, ‘and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

- Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compamy's assets that could have a material effoct an the
consolidated financlal statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
Because of the inharent limitations of Internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management everride of contrals, material
rnisstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, prajections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements may become Inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degres of compliance
with the polities or procedures may deteriorate,

Other Mattar

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the act an the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in 5o far as It related
to one subsidiary, {which is a company incorporated in India) is based solely on the -corresponding
reports of the awditor of such company incorporated in India.

Opinion
In cur opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us and on the

consideration of reperts of other auditor, the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company which is a
company incorporated in India have malntained in all material respects, adequate internal financial
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centrals with reference to consolidated financial statements and such Internal financial controks with
refarance to consclidated financlal statements are generally operating effectivaly as at 31st March 2024,
based an the internal control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential compenents of Internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountant of India.

For 5, Agarwal & Co. k
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no, 13211N

Gt
5. N. Agarwal
Partner

Membership No,: 012103
UDIN: 24012 103BKDHNPEZED

Place: Mew Dalhi
Date: 26" May, 2024
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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN:L92114DL1982PLC014334
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2024

(Amount in lakhs)

Place: New Delhi
Dated : 28-05-2024

Chief Financial Officer

= Asat Asat
HARKCOLASS Note No. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non - current assets
Property, olant and equipment 3 37011 31453
intangible Assets 4 141 28.88
Intangible Assets Under Development 5 = -
Financia! assets
Invastments 6 268.88 839.25
Loans 7 8.83 8.83
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 172.10 176.43
Other non - current assets 9 44.16 63.82
Total Non - current assets 865.51 681.74
Current assets
Inventories 10 123 1.10
Financial assets
Trade receivables 11 2,670.08 1,747.79
Cash and cash equivalents 12 432.26 831.26
Bank balances other than above 12 7.41 741
Loans 7 - -
Current tax assets (net) 13 121.47 21512
Other current assets 9 190.68 14154
Total Current assets 3,423.13 2,948.22
TOTAL ASSETS 4,288.64 3,629.96
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 14 1,566.72 1,566,72
Other equity 15 (2,028.58) (2,108.54)
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company {461.86) (541.82)
Non-controlling Interests 864.82 666.25
Total Equity 402.96 124.43
Lizbilities
Non - current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 35 814.93 9839.16
Other Non current liabilities 17 273 14.23
Provisions 18 102.81 103.85
Total Non - current liabilities 920.47 1,107.23
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 225.42 50.44
Trade payables 19 2,523.43 2,208.17
Other current liabilities 7 105.77 66.78
Provisions 18 105.59 72.90
Total Current liabilities 2,965.22 2,398.29
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 4,288.64 3,629.96
The panying of material ing policies
and notes to the fi ial inf are an il 1 part of 1-44
this Balance Sheet.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Bo irectors
For S. Agarwal & Co. CYBER MEDIA {| MITED
Chartered Accountants
{Firm Registration No. 000808N) W ,@f“
: Pradeep Gupta Krishan Kant Tuishan
oy ( o & Chairman and Managing Director Director
‘“"“ —4 DIN 00007520 DIN 00003764
5. N. Agarwal [ 3
e u«z
Membership No. 012103 /
UDIN: 24012103BKDHNP6264 Madan Mohan Singh Anoop Singh

Company Sec-etary

Membership No. F8264

.
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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN:L92114DL1982PLCO14334
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024
(Amount in Jakhs)

Note Year ended Year ended

Fartistiars No. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
INCOME
Revenue from operations 20 10,180.31 7,842.89
Other income 21 245.41 20.36
TOTAL INCOME 10,425.71 7,863.25
EXPENSES
Direct Expenses 22 8,103.43 6,022.64
Cost of materials consumed 23 0.24 0.88
Purchases of stock - in - trade 24 516 14.36
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock - in - trade and work - in -
progress 25 (0.37) {0.19)
Employee benefits expenses 26 1,230.84 1,002.31
Finance costs 27 88.30 126.74
Depreciation and izati 28 4150 3891
Other expenses . 29 315.66 282.23
TOTAL EXPENSES 9,784.77 7,487.88
Profit / (loss) before tax and Exceptional items 640.95 375.37
Exceptional items * 30 (138.03) 600.02
Profit / (loss) before tax 502,91 975.39
Tax expense 31

Current tax 102.39 3413

Deferred tax 4.32 442.80

Earlier year adjustment 56.04 {0.35)
Total Tax Expenses 162.75 476.57
profit/ {loss) for the Year 340.16 498.82

Other comprehensive income
A () Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (3.66) (5.25)
(i1} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss 7
B {i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -
(i} Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or
loss =
Total other comprehensive income (3.66) (5.25)

Total comprehensive income for the year 336.50 493.57

Profit for the year attributable to:
~Owners of the Company 140.54 403.82
-Non-controlling interests 199.63 9500

Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:

-Owners of the Company {2.60) (3.04)
-Non-controlling interests {1.06) (2.21)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
-Owners of the Company 137.94 400.78
~Non-controlling interests 198.57 92.79
Earnings per equity share (for continuing operatinns) 32
(1) Basic 217 3.18
(2) Diluted 217 3.18
The i of ial ting policies and notes to
the financial information are an integral part of this Balance Sheet. 144
=
As per our report of even date attached For and an behalf of Board QFf ctors
For 5. Agarwal & Co. CYBER MEDIA {IN| ITED
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 00D808N) W /i J
Pradeep Gupta Krishan Kant Tulshan
@: t Chairman and Managing Director Director
DIN 00007520 DIN 00009764

S.N. Agarwal 4
Partner / L 2. % "
e —

Membership No. 012103 ==
UDIN: 24012103BKDHNP6264 Madan Mohan Singh Anoop Singh
= Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi Membership No. F8264
Dated : 28-05-2024
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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN:192114D11982PLCO14334
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 March, 2024

{Amount In lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit for the year after tax 340,16 498.82
Adjustments for:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (3.66) (5.25)
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 41.50 3891
Income Tax Expense 162.75 476.57
Debit Balances Written Off - 4.30
Provision for ECL Created - (2.63)
Interest Income (56.01) (9.65)
Interest Expense 88.30 126.74
573.04 1,127.80
Movements in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase} / decrease in operating assets:
Inventorles {0.13) 0.69
Trade Receivables (520.71) (415,69)
Other Non-current assets 19.66 (23.01)
Other current assets {49.14) (15.27)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) In operating liabilities:
Provisions 3166 2294
Trade payables 32026 81.25
Other current liabilities 38.99 8.67
Other Non-current liabilities {11.50) 0.55
Cash generated from operations 112 787.93
Income tox Refund/(Paid) (60.78) (73.92)
Net cash generated by operating activities {A) {55.65} 714,01
B. Cash flow from Investing activities
Disposal Of Property, Plant & Equipment - 0.01
Sale OF Intangible Assets 597 -
Acquisition Of Property, Plant & Equipment -75.58 (25.20)
Interest Received 56.01 9.65
Loans - 0.25
Purchase Of Investments (179.64) -
Sale of Investments - 600,02
Bank Balance Other Than Cash & Cash Equivalents - 2.00
Net cash generated by/(used in) investing activities (B} (193.24) 586.74
C, Cash Flow from financing activities
Praceeds from long term borrowings - 126.37
Payment of Long term borrowings (174.23) -
Payment of short term borrowings - (1,048.22)
Proceeds of short term borrowings 174,98 =
Dividend paid {58.56) -
Interest paid {88.30) (126.74)
Net Cash generated by/(used in) financing activities {146.11) (1,048.59)
D.  Exchange difference in foreign currency
Net decrease In Cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C+D) (399.00) 252.15
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 831.26 579.11
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year end Refer Note 12 for details 432.26 831.26
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CYBER MEDIA (INDJA) LIMITED
CIN:LS2114DL1982PLCO14334
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 March, 2024

* Change in liability arising from financing activities

Asat CashFlow  Other Adjustments Asat
1st April, 2023 31st March, 2024
Borrowing - Non Current (Refer Note 16) 989.16 {174.23) . 814.93
Borrowing - Current {Refer Note 16) 50.44 174.98 - 225.42
1,039.60 0.75 - 1,040.35
Asat CashFlow  Other Adjustments Asat
1st April, 2022 31st March, 2023
Borrowing - Non Current (Refer Note 16) 900.28 88.88 - 989.16
Borrowing - Current (Refer Note 16) 1,384.56 (1,334.12) - 50.44
2,284.84  (1,245.24) - 1,039.60
The i of policies and notes to 144

the financial information are an integral part of this Balance Sheet.

The consalidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in d with 'Indirect hod' as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on "Statement of Cash Flows', as
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant rules thereunder.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Boarg
For S. Agarwal & Co. CYBER MEDIA (!
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No, 000808N) W A
Pradeep Gupta  Krishan Kant Tulshan
@& Chairman & Managing Director Director
—\ - DIN 00007520 DIN 00009764
S.N. Agarwal
Partner / \ @ e. / 2
Membership No. 012103
UDIN: 240121038KDHNP6264 Madan Mm Anaop Sihgh
Chief Financial Officer Cormpany Secretary
Place: New Delhi Membership No. F8264
Dated : 28-05-2024
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: L92114DL1982PLC014334
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information

Cyber Media (India) Limited is a public limited Company / Group incorporated under Indian
Companies Act, 1956, having its registered office at D - 74, Panchsheel Enclave, New Delhi - 110017
and Corporate Office at B - 35, Sector 32, Gurugram - 122001, Haryana. The Company / Group is
the largest speciality media house in South Asia and amongst India's top five magazine brands. The
media business includes several media properties such as Dataquest, PC Quest, Voice & Data, DQ
Channels and DQ Week(s). The Company / Group have several websites led by www.CIOL.com,
India’s largest technology business website. Over the past three decades, the Company / Group has
continued to be the torch bearer for technology business, knowledge and information for India's
growing industry needs.

The Group consists of associates & joint ventures. Necessary details about the composition of the
group is provided in note 6.

2. Recent pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For
the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the
existing standards applicable to the Company.

3. Material Accounting Policies

3.1 Statement of Compliance

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (referred to as Ind AS) to comply with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015, as amended specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

3.2 Basis of consolidation, preparation and presentation (Refer management assessment on
going concern at note 3.21)

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies below. Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are stated in Millions of
Rupees.

Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration
given to acquire assets at the time of their acquisition or the amount of proceeds received in
exchange for the obligation, or at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to
satisfy the liability in the normal course of business.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
t price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Fair value for
e surement and/or disclosure purpose in these financial statements is determined on such basis
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

some similarities to fair value but are not fair value.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs for the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

eLevel 1 -Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

eLevel 2 -Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

sLevel 3- inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Enterprises consolidated as subsidiary in accordance with Indian Accounting standard 110-
Consolidated Financial Statement

S.No. Name of Enterprises Country of Proportion of
Incorporation Ownership Interest
1. Cyber Media Research & Services Limited India 38.17% @
2. | Cyber Astro Limited India 37.50% *
3. | Cyber Media Services Limited India 100%

@ The Company has consolidated Cyber Media Research & Services Limited where in it presently
holds 38.17% of equity shares holding as in its judgement, the Company controls Cyber Media
Research & Services Limited on the basis of absolute size of its holding and relative size of the
other share holdings as per application guidance in Ind AS 110, ‘Consolidated Financial
Statements’.

* The Company has consolidated Cyber Astro Limited where in it presently holds 37.50% of equity
shares holding as the Company controls Cyber Astro Limited on the basis of contractual
agreement with other vote holders as per application guidance in Ind AS 110, “Consolidated
Financial Statements’

Note:
The aforesaid results also include the financial and other information in respect of Cyber Media
Services Pte Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary incorporated in Singapore of Cyber Media
Research & Services Limited.

3.3 Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the results of operations during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these
estimates. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in
which the results are known/materialised.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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3.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue of all material items and nature are recognized at the time of rendering of sales or
Services. If at the time of rendering of services or sales there is material uncertainty in Ultimate
collection of the revenue, then the revenue recognition is postponed and in such Cases revenue is
recognized only when it becomes reasonably certain that ultimate collection will be made. When
the uncertainty of collection of revenue arises subsequently after the revenue recognition,
provision for the uncertainty in the collection is made rather than adjustment in revenue already
recognized. Dividend income is recognized when right to receive is established. Interest Income is
recognized on time proportion basis taking in to account the amount outstanding and rate
applicable.

3.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised for Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) so as to write-off the cost less
residual values over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis taking into account commercial and
technological obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear. Depreciation on tangible assets is
'provided on straight line method, except for vehicles which are depreciated on written down value
method, over the useful lives of the assets estimated by Management. Depreciation on assets
acquired is provided for the full month, irrespective of the date on which the assets were put to use
and depreciation is not provided in the month of sale/discard of an asset. Depreciation for assets
purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged. Individual low cost assets (acquired for
less than Rs.5000) are entirely depreciated in the year of acquisition.

3.6 Inventory

Inventory of newsprint, goods in transit are stated at cost or net realisable vaiue, whichever is
lower. Cost comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost formulae used are ‘First in First Qut’,
‘Average cost’, or ‘Specific Identification’, as applicable. Due allowance is estimated and made for
defective and obsolete items, wherever necessary, based on the past experience of the Company /
Group.

3.7 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax.

3.7.1 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit
before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
Current tax is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits computed for Company /
Group, in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of applicable tax laws
applicable to Company / Group in the respective jurisdiction in which it operates.
_Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the Balance sheet after off-
setting advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the
elevant taxpaying units intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.7.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted/substantively enacted tax rates
and [aws for continuing operations. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilize those temporary differences and losses. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date to reassess realisation.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

3.8 Employee Benefits

Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company / Group pays fixed contributions
into an independent fund administered by the government/Company / Group administrated Trust.
The Company / Group have no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions after its
payment of the fixed contribution.

Defined benefit plan

The defined benefit plans sponsored by the Company / Group define the amount of the benefit
that an employee will receive on completion of services by reference to length of service and last
drawn salary. Gratuity is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The liability recognised in the
financial statements in respect of the plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation net
of fair value of plan assets at the reporting date, together with adjustments for unrecognised
actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated at the
reporting date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are
credited or charged to the statement of Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which such
gains or losses are determined.

Other long-term employee benefits

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than
one-year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed
by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which such gains or losses are determined.

Short-term employee benefits

Expense in respect of other short term benefits is recognised on the basis of the amount paid or
payable for the period during which services are rendered by the employee.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.9 Provision, Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company / Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company / Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). Contingent Liability is disclosed after
careful evaluation of facts, uncertainties and possibility of reimbursement; unless the possibility of
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote .Contingent liabilities are not
recognized but are disclosed in notes.

3.10 Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company / Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities {(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial
asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are recognised immediately
in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost
or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company / Group considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having
original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash
and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and
usage.

Financial assets at amortized cost :

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method if
these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) if these
financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both selling financial
assets and collecting contractual cash flows, the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. On initial recognition, the Company / Group makes an irrevocable election on
an instrument-by-instrument basis to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

investment which are held for trading. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the “Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The
cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments. So far, the
Company / Group has not elected to present subsequent changes in fair value of any investment in
OCl.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’)

Investment in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company:/ Group
irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income for investment in equity instruments which are not held for trading. Other
financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or [oss.

Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company / Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company / Group measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. However, for trade
receivables, the Company / Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses. In cases where the amounts are expected to be realised up to one year from
the date of the invoice, loss for the time value of money is not recognised, since the same is not
considered to be material.

Derecognition of financial assets

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss.

3.11 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company / Group are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company / Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Compound financial instruments

The components of compound instruments are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by issue of fixed
number of the Company / Group’s own equity instruments in exchange of a fixed amount of cash
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instruments. This amount is recognised as a liability on an amortized cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument's maturity date.
The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised and
included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised,
in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to other component of equity.
When the conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible note, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over
the lives of the convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company / Group derecognise financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company / Group's

obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount

of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.

3.12 Trade and other Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods & services provided to the Company / Group prior to
the end of the financial year which are unpaid. These are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.

3.13 Segment reporting

The Company / Group is mainly engaged in Media Business which is identified as the only
reportable business segment of the Company / Group in accordance with the requirements of Ind
AS 108 , 'Operating Segment Reporting', notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015. All the operating facilities are located in India. The Company / Group’s
business activity primarily falls within a single geographical segment.

3.14 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary
items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company / Group are segregated based on the available information.
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3.15 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/loss for the year attributable to the
shareholders of the parent Company / Group by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/loss for
the year attributable to the shareholders of the parent as adjusted for dividend, interest and other
charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity
shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive
only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing
ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the
beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity
shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value
(i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are
determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially
dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as
appropriate. '

3.16 Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company / Group and the normal time between
acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company / Group has
determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and
liabilities as current and non-current.

3.17 Leases

Till 31st March 2019, the Company / Group had adopted Ind AS 17, Leases. In March 2019, the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2019 notifying Ind AS 116, Leases and withdrawing Ind AS 17, Leases. Ind AS 116 is effective
from accounting periods beginning from 1st April 2019.

Ind AS 116 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee
recognizes a right of use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-
term leases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the erstwhile
standard — i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases. The Company /
Group has applied the transition provisions as mentioned in Appendix C to Ind AS 116. There is no
financial impact on the Company / Group on adoption of Ind AS 116.

At inception of a contract, the' Company / Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains a
lease. A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Company / Group as a lessor

The Company / Group classify each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.
Leases in which the Company / Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. The depreciation policy for
deprieciable underlying assets subject to operating leases is consistent with the Company / Group’s
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Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially ail of the risks and rewards of ownership
transfer from the Company / Group to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recorded as receivables at the Company / Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Company / Group as a lessee

At the contract commencement date, the Company / Group recognize right — of — use asset and a
lease liability. A right — of — use asset is an asset that represents a lessee’s right to use an underlying
asset for the lease term. The Company / Group has elected not to apply the aforesaid requirements
to short term leases (leases which at the commencement date has a lease term of 12 months or
less) and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value as described in paragraphs B3 — B9 of
Ind AS 116.

A right of use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently applies the cost mode ie less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment is applied in
depreciating the right — of — use asset.

A lease liahility is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Company / Group’s incremental borrowing rate is used.
Subsequently, the carrying amount of the lease liability is increased to reflect interest on lease
liability; reduced to reflect the lease payments; and remeasured to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications or to reflect revised in — substance fixed lease payments.

3.18 Subsequent events
As per National Company Law Tribunal's website, Pridhvi Asset Reconstruction and Securitisation
Company Limited has filed following applications, still to be admitted, before the Hon'ble National
Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi Bench under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, alleging
default of Rs. 30.65 crore, against:

a) The Holding Company; Cyber Media (India) Limited

b) Cyber Media Research & Services Limited, material subsidiary of the Company, Corporate

Guarantor; and

¢} Mr. Pradeep Gupta, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company, Personal Guarantor.
The aforesaid parties are is seeking appropriate legal advice and shall take all necessary steps to
protect their interest.

3.19 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

3.19.1 Critical accounting judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations that the
Management have made in the process of applying the Company / Group’s accounting policies and
that have most material effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
0 bh:gation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
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reporfing date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.

3.20 Key Source of estimation uncertainty

Key source of estimation uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
is in respect of impairment of investments, provisions and contingent liabilities.

The areas involving critical estimates are:

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment are based on management’s
estimate of the expected life and residual value of those assets. These estimates are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period. Any reassessment of these may result in change in depreciation
expense for future years (Refer note no 3.5).

Impairment of Property Plant and Equipment

The recoverable amount of the assets has been determined on the basis of their value in use. For
estimating the value in use it is necessary to project the future cash flow of assets over its
estimated useful life. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is accounted for in statement of profit or loss.

Valuation of Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent it is considered probable that those assets will
be recoverable. This involves an assessment of when those deferred tax assets are likely to reverse
and a judgment as to whether or not there will be sufficient taxable profits available to offset the
tax assets when they do reverse. The Company / Group review the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets at the end of each reporting period. Any change in the estimates of future taxable income
may impact the recoverability of deferred tax assets.

3.21 Going concern
There are no material material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts which would impact the

going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

FRN 000808N
New Delh
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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN:L92114DL1982PLC014334
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Note 6: Non Current Investments 10
As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number of share Amount Number of share Amount

(a) Trade Investments (in Equity Shares)

Unquoted

In associates - at cost

Cyber Media Foundation Limited 173125 1731 1,73,125 17.31

Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

(b) Other investments

Unquoted, fully paid up
Cheekotel Venture Fund Pvt. Ltd. 4,50,000 45.00 7,50,000 45.00
Equity shares of Rs.6 each fully paid

AnyTime Media Pvt. Ltd. 2,50,000 25.00 2,50,000 25.00
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

Resonant Electronics Pvt. Ltd. 167 0.02 334 0.03
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

Ceantra Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 167 0.02 334 0.03
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

Fitnano Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 167 0.02 334 0.03
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

Starbru Techsystems Pvt. Ltd. 1,36,442 13.64 1,668 0.17
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

Stemrobo Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 5,987 0.60 6,154 0.62
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

Univiabs Technologies Pvt. Ltd. - 334 0.03
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

Al Simply Purify Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 168 0.02 335 0.03
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

Doorastha Analytics Pvt. Ltd. 183 0.02 366 0.04
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

EVI Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 1,34,264 13.43 353 0.04
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid

Trydan Motors Pvt. Ltd. 167 0.02 167 0.02
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each fully paid

Aigroedge Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 167 0.02 167 0.02
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each fully paid

Genelek Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 1,500 0.15 167 0.02
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each fully paid

Arivation Fashiontech Pvt. Ltd. 2,78,990 27.90 167 0.02
_.Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each fully paid

Navikarana Mednovation Pvt. Ltd. 167 0.02 167 0.02
ufty Shares of Rs.10/-each fully paid &
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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN:L92114DL1982PLC014334

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

lotomation Ecotech Pvt. Ltd. 242 0.02 242 0.02
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each fully paid
Concinnity Agro2o Private Limited 4,668 0.47 4,668 0.47
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each fully paid
Dweepi Innvations Pvt. Ltd. 3,13,350 31.33 333 0.03
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each fully paid
Electrifuel Pvt. Ltd. 4,19,906 41.99 789 0.08
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each fully paid
Next Leap Aeronautics Pvt. Ltd. - - 83 0.01
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each fully paid
Quickproto Research Labs Pvt. Ltd. 167 0.02 167 0.02
Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each fully paid
Mutual Fund 51.68
CAPL ESOP Trust - 0.20 - 0.20
Total 21,69,993 268.88 11,90,453 89.25
Aggregate amount of Quoted investments - -
Market Value of Quoted investments - -
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 268.88 89.25
Aggregate provision for diminution in the value of investments - -
Notes
Details of Significant Investment in Subsidiaries/Assoclates
Proportion of ownership interest and
i : voting right held in subsidiaries/associates
Name of the subsidiary/Associate
e Vs pebakcucy/ Principle Business | Principle Place of As at As at
Activity Business 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Assaciate:
Cyber Media Foundation Limited Media Services India 34.63% 34.63%
Subsidiary:
Market Research &
Cyber Media Research & Service Limited@ Digital Services India 38.17% 38.17%
Cyber Astro Limited (through Board's control) Digital Services India 37.50% 37.50%
Cyber Media Digitix Limited Digital Services India 0% 0%
Cyber Media Services Limited Digital Services India 100% 100%
Step down subsidiaries
Cyber Media Services Pte Limited* Digital Services Singapore 38.17% 38.17%

*WOS of Cyber Media Research & Services Limited
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CYBER MEDIA {iNDIA) LIMITED
CIN:L92114DL1982PLC014334
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Note 14: Share capital {Amount In lakhs)
Particulars . Asat Asat
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Authorised share capital
1,57,00,000 (1,57,00,000 in previous year) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each o 1,570.00 1,570.00
’ 1,570.00 1,570.00
Issued, subscribed and fully pald-up
1,56,67,242 (1,56,67,242,in previous year) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,566.72 1,566.72
1,566.72 1,566.72
(477
See notes (i) to (@ below
(i) Reconciliation of shares at the beginning and at the end of the year (Amount in lakhs)
Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Number of Amount Number of shares Amount
shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,56,67,242 1,566,72 1,56,67,242 1,566.72
Shares issued during the year - - . »
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,56,67,242 1,566.72 1,56,67,242 1,566.72
(i)  Rights, preft and i hed to equity shares
Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, In the event of liguidation of
the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive assets of the after i of all preferential amounts. The distribution will
be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
(i) Details of shares held by shareho!ders holding more than 5% of shares:
Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Number of % Holding Number of shares % Holding
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
Mr, Pradeep Gupta * 74,78,919 47.74] 74,78,919 47.74
Mrs. Sumana Paruchuri 9,00,000 5.74 9,00,000 574
Mr. Dhaval Gupta 19,22,697 12,27 19,22,697 1227
Presan Consultants Private Limited - - - -
Mr, Sanjay Dutt - - - -
1,03,01,616 65.75 1,03,01,616 65.75
(W) shareholding of Promoters
As At As At
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of Equity % of Tatal % Change during| No. of Equity % of Total 9% Change during
Shares Shareholding the year Shares St the year
Mr. Pradeep Gupta 74,78,919 47.74% 0.00% 74,78919 47.74%) -
Mrs. Sudha Bala Gupta - g 0.00% - - -
Nir. Dhaval Gupta 19,22,697 12.27%| - 19,22,697 12.27% -
Mrs. Anuradha Gupta 1,71545[ 1.10% - 1,71,646 1.10% -
Ms. Kriti Gupta 1,06,873 0.68% - 1,06,873. 0.68% -
() As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other decl d from sharehold; garding beneficial interest, the

above P legal rships of shares,

(v) The Company has not allotted any fully pald up shares pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash nor has allotted any fully paid up shares by way of

(vi} TheC has not declared any d on equity share of the Company.
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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN:192114DL1982PLC014334
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

" Note 15: Other Equity (A in lakhs)
o Asat Asat
PataayS 31March, 2024 | 31March, 2023
Retained Earnings (6,254.77) (6,334.48)
General Reserve 1,529.13 1,529.13
Securities Premium . 2,473.38 2,473.38
Capital Reserve 218.98 218.98
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 4.70 447
Total (2,028.58) (2,108.58)
Note 15.1 Retained Earning (Amount in lakhs)
As at Asat
Paticatons 31 March,2024 | 31 March, 2023
Balance at the beginning of year (6,334.48) (6,657.63)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the year (6,334.48) (6,657.63)
Profit for the year 136.29 400.78
Less: Dividend (58.56) -
Other additions / deletions 1.99 (77.63)
Balance at the end of the year (6,254.77) (6,334.48)

Retained Earnings: The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity sharehalders is determined based on
the financial ts of the Company and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act 2013. Thus, the amounts
reported above are not distributable in entirety.

Note 15.2 General Reserve (Amount in lakhs)
" As at Asat

Faria 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023

Balance at the beginning of year 1,529.13 1,529.13

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors ~ -

R d bal at the beginning of the year 1,529.13 1,529.13

Addition/(Deletion) during the Year - -

Less: Bonus [ssue ) - -

Balance at the end of the year 1,529.13 1,529.13

General Reserve: Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a
specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to
mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previously
transferred to the general reserve can be utilised only in accordance with the specific requirements of Companies Act, 2013.

Note 15.3 Securities Premium (Amount in lakhs)
- As at As at
Pt 31March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Balance at the beginning of year 2,473.38 2,23531
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 2,473.38 2,235.31
Addition/(Deletion) during the Year - 238.07
Balance at the end of the year 2,473.38 2,473.38

Securities Premium: Securities premium is created due to premium on issue of shares. These reserve Is utilised in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

Note 15.4 Capital Reserve (A in lakhs)
As at As at
—- 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
Balance at the beginning of year 218.98 248.14
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 218,98 248.14
\Additiori/(Deletion) during the Year - (29.16)
z[,h nce at the end of the year 218.98 218.98

reserve was created on forfeiture of share warrants/options in earlier years, It can be utilised for certain limited purposes as per
panies Act, 2013.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Note 15.5 Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

{Amount in lakhs)

Particulars il beat

31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Balance at the beginning of year 4.47 3.93
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 447 3.93
Addition/(Deletion} during the Year 0.23 0.54
Balance at the end of the year 4,70 4.47

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve: When a foreign operation that is integral to the operations of the reporting enterprise is
reclassified as a non-integral foreign operation, exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary assets at the date of

the reclassification are accumulated in a foreign currency translation reserve.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Note 16: Borrowing

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars AURE AauE
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non Current
Secured Borrowings
Term Loan
From Karur Vysya Bank being Term Loan 860.47 679.60
Less: Current Maturities 223.24 48.13
637.23 631.47
From Karur Vysya Bank being Vehicle Loan 9.89 12.00
Less: Current Maturities 2.18 2.31
771 9.69
Unsecured Borrowings
Loan from Related Parties
From Mr Pradeep Gupta , Chairman & Managing Director 170.00 348.00
Total 814.93 989.16
Current
Secured Loans - Term
Loan Repayable on demand
Pridhivi Asset Reconstruction & Securitisation Co. - -
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings
From Karur Vysya Bank being Term Loan 22324 48.13
From Karur Vysya Bank being Vehicle Loan 218 231
Total 225.42 50.44
Secured Loan
Interest rates of Unsecured Loan are as set out as below :- (Amount in Lakhs)
Description Interest Rates Repayment Terms
From Karur Vysya Bank being Term Loan 8.05% In 120 EMI starting]
from february 2022
From Karur Vysya Bank being Term Loan 8.25% In 36 EMI starting from
March 2024
From Karur Vysya Bank being Vehicle Loan 9.55% In 60 EMI starting from
January 2023
Directors Interest Free After 3 Years
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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN:L92114D11982PLC014334

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Note 20: Revenue from operation

(Amount in lakhs)

Partiviars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Sale of products 625.58 763.67
Sale of services 8,445.47 6,477.50
Events Income 836.53 252.40
Ri h & Survey income 272,73 331.86
Other Income - 17.45
Total 10,180.31 7,842.89
Note 21: Other Income (Amount In lakhs)
Pastiulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest income 56.01 834
Interest on Income Tax Refund - 131
Miscellaneous Income 0.16 “
Credit Balances written back 5.73 0.23
Profit on Sale of Investments 141.90 -
Difference in Exchange 0.77 0.01
Notice Pay - 0.34
Raddi/Scrap Sales 1.08 0.48
Rental Income 17.03 9.24
Divinded Income 2235 -
Rounding Off 0.00 0.00
Profit on Sale of Assets 037 0.40
Total 24541 20.36
Note 22: Direct Exp (A in lakhs)
Partiutars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Printing & Processing 38.01 29.02
Event Expenses 532.34 120.26
Research & Survey Expenses 51.93 77.13
Content Expenses 795.61 830.65
Digital Services 6,677.11 4,957.53
Packing & Despatch 8.44 8.05
Total 8,103.43 6,022.64
Note 23: Cost of Material Consumed (Amount in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Ftcis 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening Stock 0.24 1.12
Purchases B -
Less: Closing Stock - 0.24
Total 0.24 0.88
Note 24: Purchase of stock-in-trade (Amount in lakhs)
|Partiulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
IPurchase of stock in trade 5,16 1436
Total 5.16 14.36
Note 25: Change in inventories in finished goods (A in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
i 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening Stock
-Finished stock 1.23 0.86
Closing Stock
-Finished stock 0.86 0.67
Total (0.37) (0.19)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Note 26: Employee benefits expenses

{Amount in lakhs)

|partiulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries & wages 1,012.72 824.96
Contribution to provident & other funds 2497 21.32
Professional Expenses 162.85 138.00
Staff welfare expenses 26.41 15.60
Staff Recruitment and Training 3.89 2.43
Total 1,230.84 1,002.31
Note 27: Finance Cost {Amount in lakhs)
—— Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest 88.30 126.74
Interest on Government dues 16.66| 16.05
Interest on Term Loans 55.08 87.57
Interest other 0.03 0.07
|interest paid on Working Capital Loan 16.53 23.05
Other borrowing costs %
Total 88.30 126.74
** Company has not capitalized any borrowing cost during the year.
Note 28: Depreciation & Amortization Expenses (Amount in lakhs)
Partiulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation of tangible assets 14.03 11.20
Amortization of intangible assets 27.46 27.70
Total 41.50 38.91
Note 29: Other Expenses {Amount in lakhs)
Partivlars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Power & Fuel 25.61 24,88
Repairs to Building 25.15 12.07
Repairs to Machinery 4.25 2.07
Insurance 2397 2.44
Rates & Taxes (excluding Income Tax) 25,02 2091
Payment to Auditors (see note 29.1} 433 5.24
Miscellaneous expenses (see note 29.2) 73.44 54.62
Exchange difference 9.11 21.68
Legal and Professional charges 59.45 47.02
Correspondence & Communication 67.09 48.91
Travelling & Conveyance 63.46 40.72
Debit Balances Written Off 251 4.30
Provision for ECL created (see note 29.3) (46.73) (2.63)
Total 315.66 282.23
Note 29.1: Payment to Auditors { in lakhs)
partiulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
* Statutory audit fee 4.23 4.74
* Limited Review 0.10 0.50
o Tax audit fees - -
*» Certificate and other fees - -
 Reiml t of expenses. ui 2
* Total 433 5.24
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Note 29.2: Miscel) p {Amount in lakhs)
|partiutars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advertisement & Publicity 4.99 6.44
Bank Charges 6.69 3.94
Directors Fees 8.45 7.46
Lease & Hire Charges 11.06 835
Membership -Professional Bodies 3,18 2.78
Newspaper, Books & Periodicals 0.38 0.08
other miscellaneous expenses 15.33 9.23
Printing & Stationary 429 272
R & M Others 4.85 2.96
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 14.21 10.65
Total 73.44 54.62
Note 29.3: Mo in ECL Provision Account (Amount in lakhs)
Partiulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening Balance 182,54 185.17
Provision created (46.73) {2.63)
Closing Balance 135.80 182.54
Note 30 Exceptional items (Amount in lakhs)
Partiulars Year ended Year ended
4 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Export export written off 77.70
Service Tax Demand 25,20
Profit on sale of investments 35.14 (600.02)
Closing Balance 138.03 (600.02)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Note 31: Income Tax

{Amount in lakhs)

Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Obligation

Deferred Tax
Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Obligation

Bacitian: Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Current Tax 158.43 33.77
Deferred Tax 4.32 442.80
Total 162.75 476.57
31.1 Income Taxes Recognised in Profit and Loss (A in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Partiul
e 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Current Tax :
In respect of the current year 102.39 34.13
In respect of the prior years 56.04 (0.35)
158.43 33.77
Deferred Tax
In respect of the current year 4.32 442.80
In respect of the previous years - -
In respect of the prior years - -
4,32 442.80
Total Income Tax Expense Recognised in the Current Year 162.75 476.57
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
{Amount in lakhs)
X Year ended Year ended
Riiciioliues 31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Profit Before Tax 502.91 975.39
Statutory Income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Singapore Statutory Income Tax rate 17.00% 17.00%
Tax at Indian statutory income tax rate 106.64 233.34
Net effect of expenses that are deductible / not deductible in determining
taxable profit 4.25 (3.92)
Less Impact of Brought Forward Losses - 203.13
Adjustment recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of
v Ll il 56.04 (0.35)
prior years
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss - 2
Total Income Tax Expense Recognised in the Current Year 158.43 33.77
31.2 Income Tax Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (Amount in lakhs)
partiulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Current Tax

Total Income Tax Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

FRN 000808N
New Delhi
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Note 32: Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Profit after tax (Rs. in lakhs) 340.16 498.82
Number of equity shares 1,56,67,242 1,56,67,242
Weighted average number of equity shares used in computing the basic earnings per share 1,56,67,242 1,56,67,242
Basic and Diluted earnings per share of Rs. 10 each 217 3.18
Face value per share ( in Rs.) 10 10

Note 33: Segment Reporting

The Company is mainly engaged in two business operating segments: Media and Media Services in accordance with the requirements of Ind
AS 108 -'Operating Segment Reperting’, notified under the Companies {Indian Acc g Standards) Rules, 2015. The Company’s business
segments offer different products and require different technology and marketing strategies.

[dentification of Segments
The Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as Chief Operation Decision Maker who monitors the operating results of its
busi: y for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment

pedormance is evalunted based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. Accounting
policy in respect of segments Is in conformity with accounting policy of the company as a whole.

Intersegment Transfer
Segment revenue resulting from transactions with other business segments is accounted for on basis of transfer price agreed between the
segments. Transfer prices between operating segments are on arm's length basis in @ manner similar to transactions with third parties.

P ~ 2 1
The Revenue and Expenditures in relation to the respective segments have been identified and allocated to the extent possible. Other
revenue and expenditures non allocable to specific segments are disclosed separately as (I
income of the Company.

A A di

d and adj! ly against total

Segment Assets & Liabilities

Segment Assets includes all operating assets used by the operating segment and mainly consisting property, plant & equipment, trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and i y etc. S Liabilities primarily include trade payables and other liabilities. Common
assets & liabilities which can not be allocated to specific segments are shown as a part of unallocable assets/llabilities.

(Amount in lakhs
Particulars % Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
1  Segment Revenue
Media Services 1,385.63 1,523.96
Digital Services 8,794.67 6,318.93
Total 10,180.31 7,842.89
Less : Inter Segment Revenue - -
Net Revenue 10,180.31 7,842.89
2 Segment Results
Media Services 77.66 706.02
Digital Services 513.56 396.11
Sub-Total §91.22 1,102.13
Less : Interest Expenditure 88.30 126.74
Profit Before Tax 502,91 975.39
3  Segment Assets
Media Services 1,157.96 1,232.09
Digital Services 3,130.69 2,221.45
Total Segment Assets 4,288.64 3,453.54
Segment Liabilities
~"" Nedia Services 1,297.25 2,272,57
%gitnl Services 2,588.44 1,232.95
Total Liabilities 3,885.69 3,505.52
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CYBER MEDIJA (INDIA) LIMITED

CIN:1.92114DL1982PLC014334

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024
33.1 Geographical information

a. The Company is domiciled in India. The of its from
tabulated below:

broken down by location of customers in

(Rs. in lakhs)
Geography Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
India 8,689.17 | 4,804.48
Qutside India 1,491.14 3,038.41
Total 10‘180.31 7,842.89
b, Information regarding geographical non-current assets is as follows:
Geography Year ended Year ended
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
India 865.51 681.74
Outside India - -
865.51 £81.74 |

Note 33.2 Information about Major Customers
Out of the total revenue of Rs. 10,180.31 for the year ended on 31st March 2024 and Rs. 7,842.89 for the year ended on 31st March
2023, this year there is no customer who have 10% or more of the total revenue.

Note 34: Contingent Liabilities
For Cyber Media ( India ) Limited
Disputed employees Provident Fund liabilities before
- Hon'ble High Court of Delhi Rs. 6.68 Lakh (As at 31.03.2023 Rs. 6.68 Lakh)
- Central Government Industrial Tribunal Rs. 14.13 lakh {As at 31.03.2023 Rs. 14.13 Lakh)

Disputed Service Tax Liability before:

- GST Department of Delhi has raised a demand of Rs. 74.21 lakh plus interset of Rs. 14.03 lakh for the financial year 2018-19.
*Company is toking measures to file appeal before appropriate authorities.

The Company is a co-borrower with respect to borrowing by its subsidiary - Cyber Media Research & Services Limited from Karur
Vaishya Bank Limited outstanding balance Rs. 860.47 Lakhs (As at 31st March, 2023 Rs. §79.70 Lakhs)

For Cyber Media Research and Services Limited
Disputed Service Tax Liability before:

- GST Department of Delhi has raised a demand of Rs. 795.98 lakh plus interset of Rs. 12.96 lakh for the financial year 2018-19.
*Company is taking measures to file appeal before oppropriate authorities.

The Company does not expect any outflows with respect to aforesaid items.

Claims against the Company not ack ledged as debt:

- A former employee of Cyber Media India LLC {erstwhile foreign WOS {already wound up} of the Company) has approached the
Hon'ble High Court of Delhi for grant of an execution decree under Chapter X of the Indian Arbitration & Conciliation Act, 1996 of an
ex—parte foreign arbitration award of USD 21,63,323

- The Company has a reasonable chance of success in the matter as the award has been analysed and advised to be contrary to
public policy/fundamental policy underlying Indian law".
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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CiN:192114DL1982PLC014334
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Note 35: Related Party Disclosures

Related Parties and their Relationships

Nature of Relationship

Name of Related Party

iii,

iv

Associates

Subsidiaries

Step down subsidiary

Directors

Key Management Personnel

Cyber Media Foundation Limited

Cyber Astro Limited

Cyber Media Research & Services Limited

Cyber Media Services Limited

Cybermedia Digitix Limited { ceased to be a fellow subsidiary from 7 March 2023 on being
struck off from the records of Registrar of Companies.)

Cyber Media Services Pte Limited, Singapore

Mr. Pradeep Gupta (Chairman & Managing Directar)

Mr. Dhaval Gupta (appointed as Non-Executive Director from Whole Time Director effective
from O1 February 2022)

Mr. Krishan Kant Tulshan {Independent Director)

Mr. Arun Seth (Resigned as an Independent Director effective 03 August 2022)

Mr. Amian Ghose (appointed as an Independent Director effective 02 August 2022)

Mrs. Shravani Dang (Independent Director)

Mr. Varun Jain {appointed as an Independent Director effective 07 February 2023)

Mr. Rohitasava Chand {appointed as a Non-Executive Director effective 10 August 2021)
Mr. Aashish Mehta

Mr, Pradeep Gupta (Chairman & Managing Director}
Mr. Madan Mohan Singh (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Anoop Singh (Company Secretary)
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CYBER MEDIA {(NDIA} LIMITED
CIN:L92114DL1982PLC014334
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Note 36: Employee Benefits
A Defined Contribution plans

The Company has recognised Rs. 21.32 lakhs { 31 March, 2022: 23.27 lakhs) in statement of profit and loss as Company's contribution to provident fund.

B.1. Defined Benefit Plans- Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, where under employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure
at 15 days salary (last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service subject to a maximum limit of * 2,000,000 in terms of the provisions of

< Asat Asat
fsimptions 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Economic Assumptions
Discount rate 7.15% 7.25%
Salary escalation 3.00% 3.00%
{Demographic Assumptions
Retirement Age 58 58
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM (2012-14)  [100% of IALM (2012-14)
Attrition at Ages Withdrawal Rate (%) Withdrawal Rate (%)
-All ages 30% 30%
{Rs. In Lakhs)
Asat Asat
il. |Movements in present value of the defined benefit obligation 3 ek 2024 81 March 2023
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 115.58 104,71
Acquisition adjustment Out - -
[Interest cost 8.40 5.70
Current service cost 9.93 9,08
Past Service Cost Including curtailment Gains/Losses - -
Benefit paid (5.26) (8.48)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Change in Demographics Assumption - -
Actuarial {Gain)/Loss on arising from Change in Financial Assumption 033 (5.50)
Actuarial {Gain)/Loss on arising from Experience Adjustment 333 10.06
Liability at the end of the year 132.30 115.58
(Rs. In lakhs)
Asat Asat
iii. |Movements in the fair value of plan assets 31 March 2024 95 Marchianzs
Fair Value of plan assets at the beginning of the period / year - -
Contribution from the employer - =
Actual return on plan assets - &
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial gain/loss for the year on asset ] P
Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the period / year - -
(Rs. in lakhs)
v. |A recognized in the Bal, Sheet st s ax
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present Value of the obligation at end 13230 115.58
Fair vaiue of plan assets at the end of the period /year - -
Unfunded Liabilities d in the Bal Sheet (132.30) (115.58)
(Rs. In lakhs)
v. |B ized in the Stat of Profit and Loss Asat o
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 9.93 9.08
Past Service Cost Including curtailment Gains/Losses - -
Net Interest cost 8.40 5.70
el |
Yecognised in the Stat t of Profit and Loss 18.33 14.78
1)

Gratuity Act, 1972. Vesting occurs upon completion of 5 years of service.

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuation were as follows:
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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN:192114DL1982PLC014334
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Vi,

{Rs. In Lakhs})
2 Asat Asat
(Oshax Campeehesiie Income 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) opening - -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Change in Demographics Assumption - -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Change in Financial AssGmption 033 {5.50)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Experience Adj 333 10.06
Ui ized ial gain/{loss) at the end of the year 3.66 4.56
{Rs. in fakhs)
Asat Asat
Change in Net benefit Obligations 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net defined benefit liability at the start of the period 115.58 104.71
Acquisition adjustment
Total Service Cost 9.93 9.08
Net Interest cost (Income) 8.40 5.70
Re-measurements 3.66 4.56
Contribution paid to the Fund - -
Benefit paid directly by the enterprise (5.26) (8.48)/
|Net defined benefit liability at the end of the period 132.30 115,58
(Rs. In lakhs)
. . As at Asat
Bifurcation of PBO at the end of year in current and non current. 31 March 2024 84 March 2023
Current liability (Amount due within cne year) 52.28 4217
Non-Current liability (Amount due over one year) 80.02 73.40
Total PBO at the end of year 132,30 115,58
(Rs. In lakhs)
Asat Asat
bligati
Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation 31 March 2094 Skt
a)lmpact of the change in discount rate
-impact due to Increase of 1.00 % -2.40% ~2.60%
-Impact due to decrease of 1.00 % 2.60% 2.80%
b) Impact of the change in salary increase
-impact due to increase of 1.00 % 2.60% 2.80%
-impact due to decrease of 1.00 % -2.60% -2.70%
c) Impact of the change in attrition rate
-impact due to Increase of 50% 1.70%:! 0.80%
-Impact due to decrease of 50% -4.20% -2.40%
d) Impact of the change in mortality rate
-impact due to Increase of 10% 0.02% 0.,00%
-impact due to decrease of 10% -0.02% 0.00%

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calcul; the defined benefit obligation liability recognised
in the statement of financial position.

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in pay t, rate of of p
applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

before retirement & life expectancy are not

and other relevant factors. The

The estimates of future salary increase considered In actuarial valuation, take of Inflation, seniority, prc
above information is certified by the actuary and relied upon by the auditors.

The employer 's best estimate of contribution expected to be NIL since the sch is d on unfunded basis.

Maturity profile of Defined Benefit obligation

(Rs. in lakhs)
Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
52.28 37.60
87.37 67.23
20.38 17.36
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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN:L92114DL1982PLCO14334
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

B.2. Defined Benefit Plans- Leave Encashment

i

it

V.

vi.

The Company has a defined benefit leave encashment pian, where employee gets a leave encashment on departure for number of leaves. Maximum

ceiling of 90 leaves.

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuation were as follows:

_(Rs. in lakhs)
Assumptions ASEE Asal
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Economic Assumptions
Discount rate 7.15% 7.25%
Salary escalation 3.00% 3.00%
Demographic Assumptions
Retirement Age 58 58
Leave Availment Rate 10.00% 10.00%
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM (2006-08)]  100% of IALM (2006-08)
Ages Withdrawal Rate (%) Withdrawal Rate (%),
-All ages 30% 30%
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Movements in present value of the defined benefit obligation - M::;t 2024 31 M::;tz 023
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 56.14 44,77
Acquisition adjustment Out
Interest cost 4.08 244
Current service cost 935 10.05
Benefit paid (3.49) (2.88}
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Change in Financial Assumption 0.14 {227}
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from change in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Experience Adjustment 1.52 4,05
Liability at the end of the year 67.75 56.14
(Rs. in lakhs)
i s Asat Asat
Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet Siarch 2024 43 Marehi 2095
Liability at the end of the period / year 67.75 56.14
Unfunded Liabilities ised in the Bal Sheet 67.75 56.14
(Rs. in lakhs)
p ized in the of Profit and Loss Asat Asa
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 9.35 10.05
Net Interest cost 4.08 244
Actuarial {gain)/loss on obligations 1.67 177
p ised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 15,10 14.26
(Rs. In lakhs)
Change in Net benefit Obligations A3k As L
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net defined benefit liability at the start of the period 56.14 4477
Acquisition adjustment - -
Total Service Cost 8.35 10.05
Net Interest cost {Income) 4.08 244
Re-measurements 1.67 1.77
Contribution paid to the Fund - -
Benefit paid directly by the enterprise {3.49) (2.88)
Net defined benefit liability at the end of the period 67.75 56.14
(Rs. in fakhs)
Bifurcation of PBO at the end of year in current and non current. Aset Aot
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current liability {Amount due within one year) 3234 25.70
Non-Current liability (Amount due over one year} 35.41 30.44
67.75 56.14

Total PBO at the end of year
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CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN:L92114DL1982PLC014334
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

vii.

(Rs. in lakhs)
TR Asat Asat
itivi the defined benefit obligation

Sensitivity Analysis of the defined it obligati PN i, SNz
ajimpact of the change in discount rate
-Impact due to increase of 1.00% -2.10% -2.10%
-Impact due to decrease of 1.00% 2.20% 2.20%
b) Impact of the change in salary increase
-Impact due to increase of 1.00% 2.20% 2.30%
-Impact due to decrease of 1.00 % -2.20%) -2.20%
c) Impact of the change in attrition rate
-Impact due to Increase of 50% -4.90%| -5.20%
-Impact due to decrease of 50% 8.60%| 8.90%
d) Impact of the change in mortality rate
-Impact due to increase of 10% -0.01% 0.00%
-Impact due to decrease of 10% 0.01% 0.00%

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected

unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defi

in the statement of financial position.

d benefit obll

ion liability rec

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not

applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

il
Y above information is certified by the actuary and relied upon by the auditors.

The estimates of future salary increase considered in actuarial vafuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors. The

ix. The employer’s best estimate of contribution expected to be NiL since the sck is d on unfunded basis.
X.  Maturity profile of Defined Benefit obligation
(Amount in lakhs)
Year As at, Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Oto 1 Year 25.70 25.70
1to 2 Year - -
2to5year 35.21 35.21
More than 5 year 5.50 550

These plans typlcally expose the Company to actuarlal risks such as Investment risk, salary risk, discount rate risk, mortality risk, withdrawals risk.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan
participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to
Government Bonds Yield. If plan liability is funded and return on plan assets Is below this rate, it will create a plan

Salary risk

in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.
Investment risk

deficit.
Discount rate risk

Mortality & disability risk

Withdrawals

Note:
These disclosures are based on the best information that was available with the Company.

A decrease tn the bond interest rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan fiability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of
plan participants. For this report we have used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) ultimate table. A change in
mortality rate will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent
valuations can impact Plan’s liability.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING RATIOS

The following tables present certain accounting and other ratios derived from the Audited Financial
Information for the Financial Years ended on March 31, 2024 and for the nine months ended December
31, 2024. For further details please refer to the section titled ‘Financial Information’ beginning on page 92

of this Draft Letter of Offer.

ACCOUNTING RATIOS

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Unaudited Nine March 31, 2024
months ended
December 31, 2024
Basic earnings per Equity Share () (5.88) 217
Diluted earnings per Equity Share (%) (5.88) 2.17
Return on Net Worth (%) (170.58) 84.42
Net Asset Value per Equity Share (%) (3.45) 2.57
EBITDA () (803.83) 632.71

The formula used in the computation of the above ratios are as follows:

Particular

Computation of Formulas

Basic earnings per Equity Share

Q)

(Net Profit after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable
to Equity Shareholders after exceptional item, as applicable) /
(Weighted Average number of Equity Shares);

Diluted earnings per Equity
Share ()

(Net Profit after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable
to Equity Shareholders after exceptional item, as applicable) /
(Weighted Average number of Equity Shares (including convertible
securities));

Return on Net Worth (%)

(Profit for the Year as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable
to Equity Shareholders (prior to other comprehensive income))/
(Net worth at the end of the year);

Net Asset Value per Equity Share
)

(Net Worth)/ (Number of Equity Shares outstanding for the year);

EBITDA ()

Profit for the year before finance costs, tax, depreciation,
amortization and exceptional items as presented in the statement of
profit and loss.
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STATEMENT OF CAPITALISATION

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Pre-issue as at December 31, 2024
Borrowings

Current Borrowing 407.13
Non-Current Borrowing 979.08
Total Borrowings 1,386.21
Equity

Equity Share Capital 1,566.72
Other Equity (2,107)
Total Equity (540.27)
Ratio: Non-current borrowings/Total Equity (1.81)
Ratio: Total borrowings/Total Equity (2.57)

# The amounts mentioned above are based on the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company.

This space has been left blank intentionally
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction
with the ""Financial Statements' beginning on page 92 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Some of the information contained in the following discussion, including information with respect to our
plans and strategies, contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should also
read "Risk Factors" and ""Forward Looking Statements' beginning on pages 18 respectively of this Draft
Letter of Offer, which discuss a number of factors and contingencies that could affect our financial condition
and results of operations.

Our financial statements included in this Draft Letter of Offer are prepared in accordance with Ind AS, which
differs in certain material respects from other accounting standards such as IFRS. Our financial year ends on
March 31 of each year. Accordingly, all references to a particular financial year are for the 12 months ended
March 31 of that year. Unless otherwise indicated or the context requires, the financial information for Fiscal
2024 and 2023 included herein is based on the Financial Statements, included in this Draft Letter of Offer.
For further information, see "Financial Statements" beginning on page 92 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Neither we, any of their affiliates or advisors, nor any other person connected with the Issue has
independently verified such information. For further information, see "Presentation of Financial and other
Information" beginning on page 15 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS AFTER MARCH 31, 2024 THAT MAY AFFECT OUR FUTURE
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

To the knowledge of our Company and except as disclosed herein, since the date of the last financial
statements contained in this Draft Letter of Offer, no other circumstances have arisen which would materially
and adversely affect or which would be likely to affect, our operations or profitability, or the value of our
assets or our ability to pay our material liabilities within the next 12 (twelve) months.

1. Board of Directors of our Company has, at its meeting held on May 28, 2024 approved the audited
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 and the shareholders of the Company have,
at annual general meeting of the Company held on August 22 2024, adopted the audited financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

2. The Board of Directors of our Company has approved to raise funds through Rights Issue in the
board meeting held on January 21, 2025.

FACTORS AFFECTING OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Compliance with environmental laws and regulations

We are subject to central and state environmental laws and regulations, which govern the discharge,
emission, storage, handling and disposal of a variety of substances that may be used in or result from its
operations. In case of any change in environmental or pollution laws and regulations, we may be required to
incur significant amounts on, among other things, environmental monitoring, pollution control equipment
and emissions management. In addition, failure to comply with environmental laws may result in the
assessment of penalties and fines against us by regulatory authorities.

Settlement with an ex-employee of a foreign subsidiary of the Company
The Company has made settlement & legal expenses aggregating to Rs. 879.32 Lakh (equivalent to USD
10.31 Lakh) in connection with a foreign arbitral award decreed in favour of an ex-employee of a foreign

subsidiary of the Company, during the financial year 2024-25, which increased the liability of the Company.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets out selected data from the Consolidated Financial Statements for Period ended
December 2024, Financial Year 2023-2024 and Financial Year 2022-2023 together with the percentage that
each line item represents of our total revenue for the periods presented.

Rs. in Lakhs)
For the For the For the
s ended | %2000t | [y |owage | TC, | oeage
Né). Particulars 315t Total 375t of Total 315t of Total
S Income March, Income March, Income
2024 2024 2023
i 0, 0, 0,
1 | Revenue from Operations 6,509.24 99.28% 1018031 97.65% 7.842.89 99.74%
0, 0, 0,
Il | Other Income 47.29 0.72% 245 41 2.35% 2036 0.26%
11 | Total Income (r+1n 6.556.53 100.00% 10.425.72 100.00% 7 863.25 100.00%
IV | Expenses
i - 0, 0, 0,
(a) Cost of material Consumed 0.00% 0.24 0.00% 0.88 0.01%
-in- 0, 0, 0,
(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade 6.06 0.09% 5.16 0.05% 14.36 0.18%
(c) Direct Expense 5 209,61 79.46% 8.103.43 77.73% 6.022.64 76.59%
(d) Changes in Inventories of i i
Finished Goods, Work in 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Progress and Stock in Trade 0.07 0.37 0.19
i 0, 0, 0,
(e) Employee benefits expenses 1,042.53 15.90% 1.230.84 11.81% 1,002.31 12.75%
(f) Finance costs 56.94 0.87% 88.30 0.85% 126.74 1.61%
g) Depreciation and amortization 0 0 0
expenses 19.25 0.29% 41.50 0.40% 38.91 0.49%
0, 0, 0,
(h) Other expenses 216.21 3.30% 315 66 3.03% 282 23 3.59%
Total Expenses 6.550.67 99.91% 9784.76 93.85% 748788 95.23%
Profit before exceptional and
1 i 0, 0, 0,
\Y/ ((eﬁtlr?(:\r/d)lnary items and tax 586 0.09% 640.96 6.15% 37537 4.77%
Exceptional items & - 0 - 0 0
Vi Extraordinary items gg5.88 | 1301% 13803 | 32| 600,02 7.63%
VIl | Profit before tax (V + VI) 880 02’ -13.42% s0201 | A82% | goeqq| 1240%
VIl | Tax expense:
0, 0, 0,
(a) Current tax 4294 0.65% 102.39 0.98% 34.13 0.43%
i i R 0 0 B 0
(b) Earlier Year adjustment 0.03 0.00% 56.04 0.54% 0.35 0.00%
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(c) Deferred tax 132 -0.02% 432 0.04% 442 80
Total tax expense 4159 0.63% 162.75 1.56% 47657 6.06%
IX | Profit for the year (VII -VIII) 921 61_ -14.06% 340.16 3.26% 498.82 6.34%
g(r;er comprehensive income (net i 0.00% ) 0.00% _
The Items that will /will not be ) i
o e . ] 0 (0 70
glcia(s);fled be reclassified to profit 0.00% 3.66 0.04% 5 95 0.07%
Income tax effect on above - 0.00% - 0.00% i
Total Comprehensive Income - o o
X | (Net of Tax) 021,61 | 1406% | 33550 | 323%| 49357
X1 | Basic EPS 5.88 2.17 3.18
X1l | Diluted EPS 588 517 318

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies have been applied consistently to the periods presented in the Financial Statements.
For details of our significant accounting policies, please refer section titled "Financial Information™ on page
92.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES IN PREVIOUS THREE YEARS

Except as mentioned in chapter "Financial Information" on page 92, there has been no change in accounting
policies in last 3 years.

RESERVATIONS, QUALIFICATIONS AND ADVERSE REMARKS
For details, see section titled "Financial Information™ on page 92.

PRINCIPAL COMPONENTS OF OUR STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
REVENUE

The following descriptions set forth information with respect to the key components of the Financial
Statements.

Comparison of Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 with Financial Year ended March 31, 2023:
Revenue from Operations

Revenue from operations increased to % 10,180.31/- Lakhs in FY 2023-24 as compared to X 7,842.89 /- Lakhs
in FY 2022-23, due to increase in sale of service and increase in Event Income, representing an increase of
29.80%

Other Income

Our other income increased to X 245.41 /- Lakhs in FY 2023-24 as compared to % 20.36 /- Lakhs in FY 2022-
23, due to increase in Interest income, dividend income and profit on sale of investments, representing the
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increase of 1105.35%.
Expenditure
Purchase of Stock-In-Trade

Purchase of stock-in-trade Decreased to X 5.16 /- Lakhs in FY 2023-24 as compared to X 14.36 in FY 2022-
23, representing a decrease of 64.06%. The Decrease is due to less purchase of Gemstones in subsidiary
Company.

Finance Cost

Finance Cost Expense decreased to X 88.30 /- Lakhs in financial year 2023-24 from X 126.74 /- Lakhs in
financial year 2022-23, Representing a decrease of 30.32%. decrease in financial cost is due Decrease in
interestexpense .

Other Expenses

Our other expenses increased to X 315.66 /- Lakhs in financial year 2023-24 from 282.23 /- Lakhs in financial
year 2022-23. other expenditure mainly comprises of power and fuel, repair to building, repair to machinery,
legal and professional fees. Increase in other expenses mainly due to increase in repairs to Building which
was 12.07 in FY 2022-2023 while in FY 2023-2024 repair was 25.15 increase was about 108.36%
Depreciation

Depreciation Increased to X 41.50 /- lakhs in in financial year 2023-24 from X 38.91/- Lakhs in financial year
2022-23, representing an increase of 6.65%. This increases due to addition in Property, Plant & Equpiment
in FY 2023-24.

Profit/Loss after Tax

For the reason discussed above, the Profit after tax during the Fiscal year 2023-2024 was % 340.16 /- lakhs
as compared to X 498.82 /- Lakhs for the Fiscal 2022-2023. The decrease was due to lower profit margins in
the normal course of business, representing an decrease of 31.80%.

OTHER MATTERS

1. Unusual or infrequent events or transactions

Except as described in this Draft Letter of Offer, during the periods under review there have been no
transactions or events, which in our best judgment, would be considered unusual or infrequent.

2. Significant economic changes that materially affected or are likely to affect income from
continuing operations

Other than as described in this Draft Letter of Offer to our knowledge there are not any significant
economic changes that materially affected or are likely to affect income from continuing operations.

3. Known trends or uncertainties that have had or are expected to have a material adverse impact
on sales, revenue or income from continuing operations

Other than as disclosed in the section titled "Risk Factors™ beginning on page 24 of this Draft Letter
of Offer to our knowledge there are no known trends or uncertainties that have or had or are expected
to have a material adverse impact on revenues or income of our Company from continuing
operations.
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Future relationship between Costs and Income.

Our Company’s future costs and revenues will be determined by demand of services and provision
thereof.

The extent to which direct cost increases in net sales or revenue are due to increased sales volume,
introduction of new products or services or increased prices.

Increase in revenue is by and large linked to increases in volume of business activity by the
Company.

Total turnover of each major industry segment in which the issuer company operates.
Status of any publicly announced new products/projects or business segments

Our Company has not announced any new projects or business segments, other than disclosed in the
Letter of Offer.

The extent to which the business is seasonal

Our Company’s business is not seasonal in nature.

Any significant dependence on a single or few customers

There is no significant dependence on a single or few customers

Competitive Conditions

We face competition from existing and potential organized and unorganized competitors which is

common for any business. We have, over a period of time, developed certain competitive strengths
which have been discussed in section titled "Our Business" on page 68 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

This space has been left blank intentionally
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SECTION VI - LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND DEFAULTS

Our Company is subject to various legal proceedings from time to time, primarily arising in the ordinary
course of business. Except as stated in this section, there are no:(i) criminal proceedings; (ii) actions by
statutory or regulatory authorities; (iii) claims relating to direct and indirect taxes; or (iv) Material
Litigation (as defined below); involving our Company, Directors, Subsidiaries, Promoter and/Promoter
Group. Our Board, at its meeting held on February 11, 2025, determined that all pending litigations
involving our Company, Promoter and/or Promoter Group, Directors, Subsidiaries, other than criminal
proceedings and statutory or regulatory actions, disciplinary actions including penalty imposed by SEBI or
stock exchanges, claims related to direct and indirect taxes, would be considered ‘material ’ if the monetary
amount of claim by or against the entity or person in any such pending proceeding is in excess of Rs.
1,00,000/- (“Material Litigation”).

As per the materiality policy adopted by the Board of our Company at its meeting held on February 11, 2025,
creditors of our Company, the outstanding dues to creditors in excess of Rs. 1,00,000 will be considered
material. Details of outstanding dues to creditors (including micro and small enterprises as defined under
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006) as required under the SEBI Regulations
have been disclosed on our website at www.cybermedia.co.in

Our Company, Directors, Promoter and/or Group Company are not Wilful Defaulters and there have been
no violations of securities laws in the past or pending against them.

. Litigation involving our Company

A. Litigation filed against our Company
1. Criminal proceedings
Nil
2. Litigation involving actions by regulatory and statutory authorities
Nil
3. Disciplinary actions by regulatory authorities
Nil
4, Litigation/Matters involving Tax Liabilities
Nil

5. Other Pending Litigation based on Materiality Policy of our Company

Nil

B. Litigation filed by our Company

1. Criminal proceedings
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Nil

2. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities
Nil

3. Disciplinary Actions by Authorities
Nil

4. Litigation Involving Tax Liability

Litigation filed by our Company

Case details Appeal before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeal), New Delhi,
Section 143(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
(Ack no. 869069560130225) Case No. has yet not been allotted.

Pending with As above

Facts While processing the return in the intimation for the Assessment Year

2024-25, the lower tax authority (Centralized Processing Centre, Income
Tax Department, Bengaluru) didn't allow, without any communication the
carry forward of brought forward losses of earlier year being (a) business
loss (non-speculative) of Rs. 17,03,63,293 and (b) long-term capital loss of
Rs. 27,74,53,598.

The Company has filed an appeal under Section 143(1) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961 before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeal), New Delhi.

Amount involved

Nil

Current Status

The matter is pending.

Case details Appeal before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeal), New Delhi,
Section 143(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
CIT (A), Delhi- 2/10690/2019-20

Pending with As Above

Facts The Income Tax Department, vide its Assessment Order, disallowed the

below mentioned expenses for the Assessment Year 2017-18:

1. ROC filing fees of Rs 98,499 as per para 3 of assessment order.

2. Other interest expenses of Rs 11,78,052 as per para 6 of assessment
order.

3. Expenses incurred in foreign currency of Rs 12,19,085 as per para 7
of assessment order.

4. Other miscellaneous expenses of Rs 8,54,438 as per para 8 of
assessment order.

The Company has filed an appeal under Section 143(2) of the Income Tax
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Act, 1961 before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeal), New Delhi.

Amount involved

Nil

Current Status

The matter is pending.

Case details Appeal before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeal), New Delhi,
Section 270A of the Income Tax Act, 1961
NFAC/2016-17/10091084

Pending with As Above

Facts On account of additions/ disallowances under section 143(2) of the Income

Tax Act, 1961 with respect to the Assessment Year 2017-18, penalty
proceedings u/s 270A was initiated separately for underreporting of income
and a Penalty notice dated 24.12.2019 was issued to the Company. Further,
a show cause Notice dated 05.04.2021 and a reminder letter dated
30.04.2021 were issued to the Company. In response the Company has
made its submission on 13.07.2021. Since, the appeal of the Company is
pending before the CIT(A), the Company has requested the CIT (Appeal)
to drop the penalty proceedings initiated against the Company. However,
order has been passed imposing penalty of Rs. 10,02,754 u/s 270A of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

Amount involved

Rs. 10,02,754

Current Status

The matter is pending.

5. Other litigation based on Materiality Policy of our Company

Case Details Cyber Media Digital Limited (which was merged in Cyber Media (India) Limited (‘CMIL’) in
2011) (hereinafter referred to as the “Appellant™) Vs. M/s. Safe & Secure Insurance Agencies
Pvt. Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Respondent™)
RFA 223/2013.

Pending with High Court of Delhi, New Delhi

Facts Facts: The Appellant (which was merged into CMIL in 2011), sold CDs/DVDs to the Respondent

during the period from 2004-05 to 2007-08, against which an amount of Rs. 9,48,000 was
pending to be paid by the Respondent. Therefore, in 2008, the Appellant (CMDL) filed a civil
suit before Saket Court, New Delhi against the Respondent for a sum of Rs. 9,48,000 alongwith
interest of Rs. 5,14,900. On 28.01.2013, the Saket Court announced its judgment in favour of the
Respondent.

Appeal by the Appellant (CMIL) in High Cout of Delhi (‘DHC’): On 14.04.2013, the Appellant
(‘CMIL’) filed an Appeal against the Lower Court's Order dated 28.01.2013. On 07.05.2013, the
DHC took up the matter to see whether it was acceptable or not and listed for hearing for
27.05.2013, The DHC heard the matter and admitted our appeal and ordered to register the same
with the Registrar. On 22.07.2013, the Registrar proceeded the appeal for regular listing for its
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turn.

Amount
involved

Rs. 14,62,900

Current status

The matter is in waiting for its turn.

Case Details

Cyber Media (India) Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Complainant”) Vs. M/s. Platinum
Vacations Fraternity & Ors. (hereinafter referred to as “Accused”)

Suit No. NACT 38849/20109.

Pending with

Judicial Magistrate 1% Class, Gurugram Court

Facts

A Lease Agreement dated 03.06.2019 was executed between the Complainant (‘Lessor’) and the
Accused through its Managing Partner, Mr. Anil Sharma (Accused No. 2 in the matter) (‘Lessee’)
with respect the lease of office space in the building, ‘Cyber House, located at Plot No. B-35,
Sector-32, Gururgam-122003 owned by the Plaintiff. Pursuant to the terms of the Lease
Agreement, Mr. Anil Sharma, gave the Complainant two cheques aggregating to Rs. 41,63,000
(i.e. Rs. 23,00,000 & Rs. 18,63,000) as Security Deposit and Partly Lease Rent. On due dates,
the Complainant sent the said Cheques to its bank for clearing, however both the cheques got
bounced. The Complainant sent to the Accused a Notice dated 06.07.2019 under Section 138 of
the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881, which was not complied with by the Accused.

The matter is pending before the Court. In the matter, on 13.02.2025, the Court has issued non-
bailable warrants to the Accused.

Amount
involved

Rs. 41,63,000

Current status

The matter is pending. The next date of hearing is fixed for 08.07.2025.

Case Details Cyber Media (India) Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Plaintiff”) Vs. 12 Cure Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Defendant”)
Commercial Suit No. 204/2023

Pending with Civil Judge (Junior Division), Gurugram Court

Facts A Lease Agreement dated 16.11.2020 was executed between the Plaintiff (‘Lessor’) and the
Defendant (‘Lessee’) for an office space in the building, ‘Cyber House, located at Plot No. B-35,
Sector-32, Gururgam-122003 owned by the Plaintiff. The Defendant vacated the leased premises
in February 2022. Pursuant to the terms of the lease, the Defendant was payable the pending lease
rent amounting to Rs. 9,51,386.
On 28.09.2023, the Plaintiff filed a suit before the Gurugram Court against the Defendant for a
total amount of Rs. 9,51,386 alongwith interest of Rs. 2,46,769.
On 14.11.2024, the Plaintiff has filed replication to the written statement of the Defendant.

Amount Rs. 11,98,155

involved

Current status

The matter is fixed for arguments on settlement of issues. The next date of hearing is fixed for
21.05.2025.
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Litigation involving our Promoter and Promoter Group

Litigation filed against our Promoter

Criminal proceedings

Nil

Litigation Involving actions by regulatory and statutory authorities
Nil

Disciplinary Actions by Authoritiess

Nil

Litigation Involving Tax Liability

Nil
Other Litigation based on Materiality Policy of our Company

Nil
Litigation filed by our Promoter
1. Criminal proceedings

Nil

2. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

Nil

3. Disciplinary Actions by Authorities

4. Litigation Involving Tax Liability

Nil

5. Other Litigation based on Materiality Policy of our Company
Nil

Litigation involving our Directors

Litigation filed against our Directors

Criminal proceedings
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Nil

Litigation involving actions by regulatory and statutory authorities
Nil

Disciplinary Actions by Authorities

Nil

Litigation Involving Tax Liability

Nil
5. Other Litigation based upon our Materiality Policy of our Company

Nil

Litigation filed by our Directors
Criminal proceedings

Nil

Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

Nil
Disciplinary Actions by Authorities
Nil
Litigation Involving Tax Liability
Nil
5. Other Litigation based upon Materiality Policy of our Company
Nil

LITIGATION INVOLVING OUR SUBSIDIARIES

A. Litigation against our Subsidiaries

1. Criminal proceedings

Nil

2. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities
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Nil

3.Disciplinary Actions by Authorities

Nil

4.Litigation Involving Tax Liability

Nil

5. Other Litigation based on Materiality Policy of our Company

Litigation against Cyber Media Research & Services Limited (Subsidiary)

Case details

Vishaal Bhatnagar (hereinafter referred to as the “Judgment Holder”) Vs. Cyber Media
Research & Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Judgment Debtor”)

Execution Petition No. EX 321/2020

Pending with

District Judge, Saket Court, New Delhi

Case Details

The Judgment Holder (‘JH’) was employed with the Judgment Debtor (‘JD”). The JH resigned
from the JH vide his email dated 02.05.2015 which was accepted on 29.10.2015 by the JD with
notice period of 3 months effective from 10.11.2015. As discussed between the JH and the JD,
a total amount of Rs. 20,28,069 towards salary dues was payable by the JD to the JD in monthly
instalments. On 22.12.2017, the JH filed a civil suit before the Saket Court, New Delhi for
recovery of Rs. 15,42,693 towards his remaining salary dues. Till July 2019, the JD had paid
the entire dues to the JH. However, on 18.11.2029, the Saket Court passed a decree in favour
of the JH for payment of Rs. 5,89,149 towards interest by the JD upto the date of 31.07.2019,
alongwith pendente lite interest @9% pa on this amount from 01.08.2019 to 18.11.2019 and
future interest @6% pa alongwith cost of suit.

0On 07.12.2020, the JH filed Execution Petition before the Saket Court, New Delhi for recovery
of the Decretal Amount, against the JD.

Meanwhile the JD, in 2021, filed an appeal against the lower Court’s order before the High
Court of Delhi to set aside the lower Court’s Decree/judgment dated 18.11.2019. The DHC
stayed the execution proceedings of the Decree dated 18.11.2019 pending before the Saket
Court.

Amount
involved

Rs. 5,89,149

Current status

The proceeding of the execution petition at Saket Court is stayed till next order of the Delhi
High Court.

Case details Abraxas Communications Pvt. Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Appellant”) Vs. Cyber
Media Research & Services Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Respondent™)
RFA No. 295/2024

Pending with High Court of Delhi, New Delhi
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Case Details

In respect of the services for setting up and implementation of a magazine with the name
“Abraxas Lifestyle”, the Appellant was liable to pay Rs. 10,30,202 to the Respondent. In 2017,
the Respondent filed a civil suit before the Saket Court, New Delhi against the Appellant for
recovery of the said outstanding amount. On 30.11.2022, the Saket Court passed decree in
favour of the Respondent.

In May 2024, the Appellant filed an Appeal before the High Court of Delhi (‘DHC’) for; (a)
staying the proceedings of the Decree, and (b) setting aside the Decree.

DHC vide its order dated 06.05.24 stayed the execution proceedings till further instructions,
subject to deposit of the decretal amount by the Appellant (Abraxas) in two equal instalments
within a total period of eight weeks from the date of said order. However, the Appellant
(Abraxas) failed to deposit the decretal amount. Hence, the DHC vide its order dated 04.02.25
dismissed the Stay Application of the Appellant (Abraxas), granting liberty to JH (CMRSL) for
starting the proceedings of the Execution Petition pending in Saket Court.

The Appeal for setting aside the Decree dated 30.11.2022 passed by the Saket Corut, is pending
for hearing in DHC.

Amount
involved

Rs. 10,30,202 alongwith interest @9% p.a. from 27.08.2017 till date of realisation.

Current status

The matter is pending. Next date of hearing is 11.08.2025

Litigation against Cyber Media Services Limited (Subsidiary)

Case details

Sarva Haryana Gramin Bank (hereinafter referred to “Lender /Bank™) Vs. Sanjay Jain, Cyber
Media Services Limited & Ors.

Suit No. 5065/2018

Pending with

Civil Judge, Court of Gurugram

Case Details

Mr. Sanjay Jain (‘Borrower’) was an employee in CMSL. In December 2008, the Borrower
took a personal loan of Rs. 4,95,000 from the Bank. CMSL, subject to the due salary, if any, of
the Borrower, guaranteed for the said loan. In 2009, the Borrower left CMSL and nothing was
payable to him by CMSL towards his salary or anything else. The Borrower did not repay the
said loan in full to the Bank. In September 2018, the Bank filed a suit before the Gurugram
Court against the Borrower, CMSL and others, for recovery of the pending loan amount of Rs.
4,00,366.

In 2023, CMSL has filed an application under Order 1 Rule 10 of CPC before the Court to
deleting the name of CMSL from the case, because CMSL is not liable to pay anything with
respect to the said loan.

The matter was fixed on 04.01.2025, on which the Court have the Bank last opportunity to file
its reply to the application of CMSL. The matter has been adjourned for next date i.e.
18.03.2025.

Amount
involved

Rs. 4,00,366

Current status

The matter is pending. Next date of hearing is fixed for 08.07.2025
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B. Litigation filed by our Subsidiaries

1. Criminal proceedings

Nil

2. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

Nil

3.Disciplinary Actions by Authorities

Nil
4 Litigation Involving Tax Liability
(in %)
Particulars No. of cases Amount involved
Direct Tax Nil Nil
Indirect Tax Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil

5. Other Litigation based upon Materiality Policy of our Company

Litigations by Cyber Media Research & Services Limited (Subsidiary)

Case details Cyber Media Research Limited & Ors. (hereinafter referred to as the “Appellant”) V/s. Anant
Joshi (hereinafter referred to as the “Respondent™)
RFA 161/2015

Pending with High Court of Delhi, New Delhi

Case Details On the grounds of ill behaviour at work place and for the reason of non-performance and
declining performance for one year, the Respondent was terminated vide e-mail dated
21.03.2013.
The Respondent served a legal notice on the Appellant claiming his outstanding salary to be
Rs. 4,13,260 for the period from December 2012 to March 21 2013).
The Respondent filed a suit against the Appellant before the Saket Court, New Delhi for
recovery of the alleged salary of Rs. 4,13,260. On 28.11.2024, the Saket Court announced its
judgment in favour of the Respondent for payment of Rs. 4,13,260 by the Appellant to the
Respondent.
Appeal by the Appellant in High Cout of Delhi (‘DHC’): In 2015, the Appellant filed an Appeal
against the Lower Court's Order dated 28.11.2014. As per DHC Order, the Appellant deposited
the decretal amount of Rs. 4,13,260 in the registry of the DHC. The DHC, vide its Order dated
22.07.2026, listed the matter in the category of “Regulars” for its turn.

Amount Rs. 4,13,260
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involved

Current status

Waiting for its turn.

Case details

Cyber Media Research & Services Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Appellant”) V/s. Mr.
Vishaal Bhatnagar (hereinafter referred to as the “Respondent™)

RFA 34/2021

Pending with

High Court of Delhi, New Delhi

Case Details

The Respondent was employed with the Appellant. The Respondent resigned from the
Appellant vide his email dated 02.05.2015 which was accepted on 29.10.2015 by the Appellant
with notice period of 3 months effective from 10.11.2015. As discussed between the
Respondent and the Appellant, a total amount of Rs. 20,28,069 towards salary dues was payable
by the Appellant to the Respondent in monthly instalments. On 22.12.2017, the Respondent
filed a civil suit before the Saket Court, New Delhi for recovery of Rs. 15,42,693 towards his
remaining salary dues. Till July 2019, the Appellant had paid the entire dues to the Respondent.
However, on 18.11.2029, the Saket Court passed a decree in favour of the Respondent for
payment of Rs. 5,89,149 towards interest by the Appellant upto the date of 31.07.2019,
alongwith pendente lite interest @9% pa on this amount from 01.08.2019 to 18.11.2019 and
future interest @6% pa alongwith cost of suit.

Appeal by the Appellant before High Court of Delhi (‘DHC’): In 2021, the Appellant filed an
appeal against the lower Court’s order before the DHC to set aside the lower Court’s judgment
dated 18.11.2019. As per DHC Order dated 10.02.2021, the Appellant had deposited the
security amount i.e. 75% of the Decretal amount with the registry of the DHC, and the DHC
stayed the execution proceedings of the Decree dated 18.11.2019 pending before the Saket
Court.

Amount
involved

Rs. 5,89,149

Current status

The matter is pending. Next date of hearing is fixed for 09.07.2025.

Case details Vishaal Bhatnagar (hereinafter referred to as the “Judgment Holder”) Vs. Cyber Media
Research & Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Judgment Debtor”)
Execution Petition No. EX 321/2020

Pending with District Judge, Saket Court, New Delhi

Case Details The Judgment Holder (‘JH’) was employed with the Judgment Debtor (‘JD”). The JH resigned

from the JH vide his email dated 02.05.2015 which was accepted on 29.10.2015 by the JD with
notice period of 3 months effective from 10.11.2015. As discussed between the JH and the JD,
a total amount of Rs. 20,28,069 towards salary dues was payable by the JD to the JD in monthly
instalments. On 22.12.2017, the JH filed a civil suit before the Saket Court, New Delhi for
recovery of Rs. 15,42,693 towards his remaining salary dues. Till July 2019, the JD had paid
the entire dues to the JH. However, on 18.11.2029, the Saket Court passed a decree in favour
of the JH for payment of Rs. 5,89,149 towards interest by the JD upto the date of 31.07.2019,
alongwith pendente lite interest @9% pa on this amount from 01.08.2019 to 18.11.2019 and
future interest @6% pa alongwith cost of suit.
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0On 07.12.2020, the JH filed Execution Petition before the Saket Court, New Delhi for recovery
of the Decretal Amount, against the JD.

Meanwhile the JD, in 2021, filed an appeal against the lower Court’s order before the High
Court of Delhi to set aside the lower Court’s Decree/judgment dated 18.11.2019. The DHC
stayed the execution proceedings of the Decree dated 18.11.2019 pending before the Saket
Court.

Amount
involved

Rs. 5,89,149

Current status

The proceeding of the execution petition at Saket Court is stayed till next order of the Delhi
High Court.

Case details

Abraxas Communications Pvt. Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Appellant”) Vs. Cyber
Media Research & Services Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Respondent”)

RFA No. 295/2024

Pending with

High Court of Delhi, New Delhi

Case Details

In respect of the services for setting up and implementation of a magazine with the name
“Abraxas Lifestyle”, the Appellant was liable to pay Rs. 10,30,202 to the Respondent. In 2017,
the Respondent filed a civil suit before the Saket Court, New Delhi against the Appellant for
recovery of the said outstanding amount. On 30.11.2022, the Saket Court passed decree in
favour of the Respondent.

In May 2024, the Appellant filed an Appeal before the High Court of Delhi (‘DHC’) for; (a)
staying the proceedings of the Decree, and (b) setting aside the Decree.

DHC vide its order dated 06.05.24 stayed the execution proceedings till further instructions,
subject to deposit of the decretal amount by the Appellant (Abraxas) in two equal instalments
within a total period of eight weeks from the date of said order. However, the Appellant
(Abraxas) failed to deposit the decretal amount. Hence, the DHC vide its order dated 04.02.25
dismissed the Stay Application of the Appellant (Abraxas), granting liberty to JH (CMRSL) for
starting the proceedings of the Execution Petition pending in Saket Court.

The Appeal for setting aside the Decree dated 30.11.2022 passed by the Saket Corut, is pending
for hearing in DHC.

Amount
involved

Rs. 10,30,202 alongwith interest @9% p.a. from 27.08.2017 till date of realisation.

Current status

The matter is pending. Next date of hearing is 11.08.2025

Case details Cyber Media Research & Services Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Judgment Holder) V/s.
M/s. Abraxas Communications Pvt. Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Judgment Debtor”)
Execution Petition No. 22/2024

Pending with District Judge, Saket Court, New Delhi
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Case Details

In respect of the services for setting up and implementation of a magazine with the name
“Abraxas Lifestyle”, the Judgment Debtor (‘JD’) was liable to pay Rs. 10,30,202 to the
Judgment Holder (‘JH’). In 2017, the JH filed civil suit before the Saket Court, New Delhi
against the JD for recovery of the said outstanding amount. On 30.11.2022, the Saket Court
passed decree in favour of the JH.

On 29.01.2024, the JH filed a petition for execution of the said Decree in Saket Court, New
Delhi.

In May 2024, JD filed an Appeal before the High Court of Delhi (‘DHC’) for; (a) staying the
proceedings of the Decree, and (b) setting aside the Decree.

DHC vide its order dated 06.05.24 stayed the execution proceedings till further instructions,
subject to deposit of the decretal amount by the JD (Abraxas) in two equal instalments within a
total period of eight weeks from the date of said order. However, JD (Abraxas) failed to deposit
the decretal amount. Hence, the DHC vide its order dated 04.02.25 dismissed the Stay
Application of JD (Abraxas), granting liberty to JH (CMRSL) for starting the proceedings of
the Execution Petition pending in Saket Court.

Proceedings of the execution of Decree are pending in Saket Court.

Amount
involved

Rs. 10,30,202 alongwith interest @9% p.a. from 27.08.2017 till date of realisation.

Current status

The matter is pending. Next date of hearing is fixed for 04.04.2025

Case details

Cyber Media Research & Services Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Appellant”) V/s.
Galgotias University (hereinafter referred to as the “Respondent”)

RFA No. 208/2025

Pending with

High Court of Delhi, New Delhi

Case Details

In respect of the services relating to “Mobile App Development and Social Media Campaign”
provided by the Appellant, the Respondent was liable to pay due outstanding amount of Rs.
7,38,767 to the Appellant. On 24.10.2017, the Appellant filed a civil suit for recovery of the
said outstanding amount against the Respondent before the Saket Court, New Delhi.

On 29.08.2024, the Saket Court passed the judgment against the Appellant.

In January 2025, the Appellant filed an Appeal before the High Court of Delhi for setting aside
the judgement dated 29.08.2024 passed by the lower court.

The matter was heard on 04.03.2025 to serve notice to the Respondent.

Amount
involved

Rs. 7,38,767

Current status

The matter is pending. Next date of hearing is 07.08.2025.

Case details

Cyber Media Research & Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Plaintiff”) V/s. Adani
M2K Projects LLP (hereinafter referred to as the “Defendant”)

Suit No.: CS (SCJ) 849/2021
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Pending with

Civil Judge, Saket Court (South), New Delhi

Case Details With respect to the digital campaign services provided by the Plaintiff to the Defendant, the
Defendant did not pay the outstanding amount of Rs. 1,77,000. In 2021, the Plaintiff filed a
civil suit before the Saket Court, New Delhi against the Defendant for recovery of the pending
dues of Rs. 1,77,000 alongwith interest of Rs. 68,269.

The matter is at the stage of evidence.

Amount Rs. 2,45,269

involved

Current status

The matter is pending. Next date of hearing 07.05.2025.

Case details Cyber Media Research & Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Plaintiff”) V/s.
Bhanwar Rathore Design Studio (hereinafter referred to as the “Defendant™)
Suit No.: CS (COMM) 183/2023

Pending with District Judge (Commercial), Saket Court (South), New Delhi

Case Details With respect to the digital campaign services provided by the Plaintiff to the Defendant, the
Defendant did not pay the outstanding amount of Rs. 4,64,000. On 10.01.2023, the Plaintiff
filed a civil suit before the Saket Court, New Delhi against the Defendant for recovery of the
pending dues of Rs. 4,64,000 alongwith interest of Rs. 1,71,667.
The matter is at the stage of final arguments.

Amount Rs. 6,35,667

involved

Current status

The matter is pending. Next date of hearing is 23.04.2025.

Case details Cyber Media Research & Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Plaintiff”) V/s.
Exemplar Academy of Beauty Pvt. Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Defendant”)
Suit No.: CS (COMM) 116/2024

Pending with District Judge (Commercial), Saket Court (South), New Delhi

Case Details With respect to the digital campaign services provided by the Plaintiff to the Defendant, the
Defendant did not pay the outstanding amount of Rs. 7,25,122. On 02.03.2024, the Plaintiff
filed a civil suit before the Saket Court, New Delhi against the Defendant for recovery of the
pending dues of Rs. 7,25,122 alongwith interest of Rs. 2,43,654.
The matter is at the stage of evidence of the Defendant.

Amount Rs. 9,68,776

involved
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Current status

The matter is pending. Next date of hearing is fixed for 01.04.2025.

Case details Cyber Media Research & Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Plaintiff””) V/s. Nail
Studio Pvt. Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Defendant™)
Suit No.: CS (SCJ) 647/2023

Pending with ACJ, Saket Court (South), New Delhi

Case Details With respect to the digital campaign services provided by the Plaintiff to the Defendant, the
Defendant did not pay the outstanding amount of Rs. 91,113. On 18.08.2023, the Plaintiff filed
a civil suit before the Saket Court, New Delhi against the Defendant for recovery of the pending
dues of Rs. 91,113 alongwith interest of Rs. 33,945.
The matter is at the stage of evidence.

Amount Rs. 1,25,058

involved

Current status

The matter is pending. Next date of hearing is 14.04.2025.

Case details Cyber Media Research & Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Plaintiff”) V/s.
Laborate Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Defendant™)
Suit No.: CS (COMM) 273/2024

Pending with District Judge (Commercial), Saket Court (South), New Delhi

Case Details With respect to the digital campaign services provided by the Plaintiff to the Defendant, the
Defendant did not pay the outstanding amount of Rs. 5,90,000. On 03.06.2024, the Plaintiff
filed a civil suit before the Saket Court, New Delhi against the Defendant for recovery of the
pending dues of Rs. 5,90,000 alongwith interest of Rs. 73,874.
The matter was fixed on 24.02.2025 on which the Plaintiff filed replication to the written
statement of the Defendant.

Amount Rs. 6,63,874

involved

Current status

The matter is pending. Next date of hearing is 22.04.2025.

Case details Cyber Media Research & Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Plaintiff”) V/s. All
India Asian Educational Foundation (hereinafter referred to as the “Defendant™)
Suit No.: CS (COMM) 242/2024

Pending with District Judge (Commercial), Saket Court (South), New Delhi

Case Details With respect to the digital campaign services provided by the Plaintiff to the Defendant, the
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Defendant did not pay the outstanding amount of Rs. 3,44,292. On 09.05.2024, the Plaintiff
filed a civil suit before the Saket Court, New Delhi against the Defendant for recovery of the
pending dues of Rs. 3,44,292 alongwith interest of Rs. 1,18,045.

The matter is at the stage of evidence.

Amount Rs. 4,62,337
involved

Current status The matter is pending. Next date of hearing is 07.04.2025.

There is no outstanding litigation, suits, criminal or civil prosecutions, statutory or legal proceeding including
those for economic offences, tax liabilities, prosecution under any enactment in respect of the Companies
Act, show cause notices or legal notices pending against the Company whose outcome could affect the
operation or finances of the Company or have a material adverse effect on the position of the Company.

V1. Details of the past penalties imposed on the Company / Directors

Except as disclosed above, there are no cases in the last five years in which penalties have been imposed on
the Company or Directors.

I. Qutstanding dues to creditors
Details of outstanding dues (trade payables) owed to micro, small and medium enterprises (as defined under

Section 2 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006), material creditors and other
creditors, as at March 31, 2024, by our Company, are set out below:

(% in lakhs)
Type of creditors Amount involved
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 1.34
Other creditors 2527.09
Total 2528.43

*Figures are on Consolidated Basis.
Material Developments

Other than as stated in the section entitled "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations — Material Developments Subsequent to March 31, 2024" on page 166 of this
Draft Letter of Offer, no circumstances have arisen, since the date of the last financial information disclosed
in this Draft Letter of Offer, any circumstances that materially and adversely affect, or are likely to affect
our operations, our profitability took as a whole or the value of our consolidated assets or our ability to pay
our liabilities within the next 12 months.
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GOVERNMENT AND OTHER STATUTORY APPROVALS

Our Company has obtained the necessary consents, licenses, permissions and approvals from governmental
and regulatory authorities that are material for carrying out our present business activities. Some of the
approvals and licenses that our Company requires for our business operations may expire in the ordinary
course of business, and our Company will apply for their renewal from time to time.

We are not required to obtain any licenses or approvals from any government or regulatory authority for the

objects of this Issue. For further details, please refer to the chapter titled "Objects of the Issue™ on page 55
of this Draft Letter of Offer.
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OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES
Authority for the Issue

This Issue has been authorized through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting held on January 21%,
2025 to raise funds by issuance and allotment of equity shares for an aggregate amount but not exceeding
INR 10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores only), by way of Right Issue, on such terms to be decided by the
Board or a duly constituted committee of the Board at a later date, subject to the necessary approvals.

The Board of Directors, in its Meeting held on [e] has resolved to issue the Equity Shares on rights basis to
the Eligible Equity Shareholders, at X [®]/- per Equity Share aggregating up to ¥ 1000 /- lakhs. The Issue
Price is X [®]/- per Equity Share (including premium of X [@] per Equity Share) and has been arrived at by
our Company in consultation with the Advisor to the Issue prior to the determination of the Record Date.

Our Company has received in-principle approval from BSE & NSE in accordance with Regulation 28(1) of
the SEBI Listing Regulations for a listing of the Equity Shares to be allotted in this Issue pursuant to their
respective letters each dated [e]. Our Company will also make applications to BSE & NSE to obtain their
trading approvals for the Rights Entitlements as required under the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars.

Our Company has been allotted the [e] for the Rights Entitlements to be credited to the respective demat
accounts of the Equity Shareholders of our Company. For details, see "Terms of the Issue" beginning on
page 195 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Prohibition by SEBI or other Governmental Authorities

Our Company, our Promoter and Promoter Group, our Directors, the persons in acting in concert of our
Company have not been prohibited from accessing the capital market or debarred from buying, selling or
dealing in securities under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any securities market regulator in any
jurisdiction or any authority/court as on date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Further, our Promoter and Promoter Group, and our Directors are not promoter or director of any other
company which is debarred from accessing or operating in the capital markets or restrained from buying,
selling or dealing in securities under any order or direction passed by SEBI. None of our Directors or
Promoter is associated with the securities market in any manner. Further, there is no outstanding action
initiated against any of our Directors or Promoters by SEBI in the five years preceding the date of filing of
this Draft Letter of Offer.

Neither our Promoters and Promoter Group nor our Directors have been declared as fugitive economic
offender under Section 12 of the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018 (17 of 2018).

Prohibition by RBI

Neither our Company, nor our Promoter and Promoter Gourp, and Directors have been categorized or
identified as wilful defaulters or fraudulent borrowers by any bank, financial institution or consortium
thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India. There
are no violations of securities laws committed by them in the past or are currently pending against any of
them.

Compliance with Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018
Our Company, our Promoter and the members of our Promoter Group are in compliance with the Companies

(Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018 to the extent it may be applicable to them as on the date of
this Draft Letter of Offer.

187



Eligibility for the Issue

Our Company is a listed company, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The Equity Shares of our
Company are presently listed on BSE and NSE. We are eligible to undertake the Issue in terms of Chapter
111 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Pursuant to Clauses (1) and (2) of Part B of Schedule VI to the SEBI
ICDR Regulations, our Company is required to make disclosures in accordance with Part B of Schedule VI
to the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Compliance with Regulations 61 and 62 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Our Company is in compliance with the conditions specified in Regulations 61 and 62 of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, to the extent applicable. Further, in relation to compliance with Regulation 62(1)(a) of the
SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company undertakes to make an application to the Stock Exchanges for the
listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to the Issue. National Stock Exchange of India
Limited is the Designated Stock Exchange for the Issue.

COMPLIANCE WITH CLAUSE (1) OF PART B OF SCHEDULE VI OF SEBI (ICDR) REGULATIONS

Our Company is in compliance with the provisions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI
(ICDR) Regulations as explained below:

Our Company has been filing periodic reports, statements, and information in compliance with the Listing Agreement
or the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, as applicable for the last one year immediately preceding the date of filing of the
Letter of Offer with the SEBI and until date;

The reports, statements and information referred to above in clause (1) are available on the website of BSE and NSE;

Our Company has an investor grievance-handling mechanism which includes meeting of the Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee at frequent intervals, appropriate delegation of power by our Board our Directors as regards
share transfer and clearly laid down systems and procedures for timely and satisfactory redressal of investor grievances.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

THE PRESENT ISSUE, BEING LESS THAN R 1,000/- LAKHS, OUR COMPANY IS IN
COMPLIANCE WITH FIRST PROVISIO TO REGULATION 3 OF THE SEBI ICDR
REGULATIONS AND OUR COMPANY SHALL FILE A COPY OF THE LETTER OF OFFER
PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SEBI (ICDR) REGULATIONS WITH SEBI FOR
INFORMATION AND DISSEMINATION ON THE WEBSITE OF SEBI FOR INFORMATIVE
PURPOSES.

Disclaimer from our Company and our Directors

Our Company accept no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in this Draft Letter of Offer or
in any advertisement or other material issued by our Company or by any other persons at the instance of our
Company anyone placing reliance on any other source of information would be doing so at his own risk.

Investors who invest in this Issue will be deemed to have represented by our Company and their respective
directors, officers, agents, affiliates and representatives that they are eligible under all applicable laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines and approvals to acquire Equity Shares of our Company and are relying on
independent advice / evaluation as to their ability and quantum of investment in this Issue.

Disclaimer in respect of Jurisdiction
This Draft Letter of Offer has been prepared under the provisions of Indian law and the applicable rules and

regulations thereunder. Any disputes arising out of the Issue will be subject to the jurisdiction of the
appropriate court(s) in Delhi only.
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Disclaimer Clause of BSE

BSE Limited ("the Exchange™) has given vide its letter dated [e] permission to the Company to use the
Exchange’s name in this Draft Letter of Offer as the stock exchange on which this Company’s securities are
proposed to be listed. The Exchange has scrutinized this Draft Letter of Offer for its limited internal purpose
of deciding on the matter of granting the aforesaid permission to this Company. The Exchange does not in
any manner:

i. Warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this Draft
Letter of Offer; or

ii. Warrant that this Company’s securities will be listed or will continue to be listed on the Exchange;
or

iii. Take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of this Company, its promoters, its
management or any scheme or project of this Company;

and it should not for any reason be deemed or construed that this Draft Letter of Offer has been cleared or
approved by the Exchange. Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquires any securities of
this Company may do so pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any
claim against the Exchange whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person
consequent to or in connection with such subscription/acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or
omitted to be stated herein or for any other reason whatsoever.

Disclaimer Clause of NSE

NSE ("the Exchange™) has given vide its letter dated [®] permission to the Company to use the Exchange’s
name in this Draft Letter of Offer as the stock exchange on which this Company’s securities are proposed
to be listed. The Exchange has scrutinized this Draft Letter of Offer for its limited internal purpose of
deciding on the matter of granting the aforesaid permission to this Company. The Exchange does not in any
manner:

I. Warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this Draft Letter of
Offer; or

[I. Warrant that this Company’s securities will be listed or will continue to be listed on the Exchange; or

I11. Take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of this Company, its promoters, its
management or any scheme or project of this Company;

and it should not for any reason be deemed or construed that this Draft Letter of Offer has been cleared or
approved by the Exchange. Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquires any securities of
this Company may do so pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any
claim against the Exchange whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person
consequent to or in connection with such subscription/acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or
omitted to be stated herein or for any other reason whatsoever.

Designated Stock Exchange

The Designated Stock Exchange for the purposes of the Issue is National Stock Exchange of India Limited.
Listing

Our Company will apply to BSE & NSE for final approval for the listing and trading of the Rights Equity
Shares subsequent to their Allotment. No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained trading in

the Rights Equity Shares or the price at which the Rights Equity Shares offered under the Issue will trade
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after the listing thereof.
Selling Restrictions

This Draft Letter of Offer is solely for the use of the person who has received it from our Company or from
the Registrar. This Draft Letter of Offer is not to be reproduced or distributed to any other person.

The distribution of this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form,
the Rights Entitlement Letter and the issue of Rights Entitlements and Equity Shares on a rights basis to
persons in certain jurisdictions outside India is restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those
jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of
Offer Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter may come are required to inform themselves about
and observe such restrictions. Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity
Shareholders of our Company and will dispatch the Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer
Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided
an Indian address to our Company.

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction, or the possession, circulation, or
distribution of this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer or any other material
relating to our Company, the Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in any jurisdiction, where action would be
required for that purpose, except that this Draft Letter of Offer has been filed with SEBI and the Stock
Exchanges.

Accordingly, the Rights Entitlement or Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and
this Draft Letter of Offer or any offering materials or advertisements in connection with the Issue or Rights
Entitlement may not be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal
requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of this Draft Letter of Offer will not constitute an offer
in those jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer.

This Draft Letter of Offer and its accompanying documents are being supplied to you solely for your
information and may not be reproduced, redistributed or passed on, directly or indirectly, to any other person
or published, in whole or in part, for any purpose. If this Draft Letter of Offer is received by any person in
any jurisdiction where to do so would or might contravene local securities laws or regulation, or by their
agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlement referred to
in this Draft Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to consult their legal counsel prior to applying for the
Rights Entitlement and Equity Shares or accepting any provisional allotment of Equity Shares, or making
any offer, sale, resale, pledge or other transfer of the Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement.

Neither the delivery of this Draft Letter of Offer nor any sale hereunder, shall under any circumstances
create any implication that there has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or the
date of such information or that the information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to this
date or the date of such information. Each person who exercises Rights Entitlements and subscribes for
Equity Shares, or who purchases Rights Entitlements or Equity Shares shall do so in accordance with the
restrictions set out below.
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NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND THE EQUITY SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL
NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), OR ANY U.S. STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY
NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, RESOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED WITHIN THE UNITED
STATES, EXCEPT IN A TRANSACTION EXEMPT FROM THE REGISTRATION
REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT. THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND EQUITY
SHARES REFERRED TO IN THE LETTER OF OFFER ARE BEING OFFERED IN INDIA, BUT
NOT IN THE UNITED STATES. THE OFFERING TO WHICH THE LETTER OF OFFER
RELATES IS NOT, AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS, AN
OFFERING OF ANY EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS FOR SALE IN THE
UNITED STATES OR AS A SOLICITATION THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE
SAID SECURITIES. ACCORDINGLY, LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED
TO OR TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO THE UNITED STATES AT ANY TIME.

Neither our Company, nor any person acting on behalf of our Company, will accept a subscription or
renunciation from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company, or any
person acting on behalf of our Company, has reason to believe is, in the United States when the buy order
is made. Envelopes containing an Application Form should not be postmarked in the United States or
otherwise dispatched from the United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an
offer under this Draft Letter of Offer. Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible
Equity Shareholders and this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Application
Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter will be dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have
provided an Indian address to our Company. Any person who acquires the Rights Entitlements and the
Equity Shares will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed, by accepting the delivery
of the Letter of Offer, (i) that it is not and that, at the time of subscribing for the Equity Shares or the Rights
Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States when the buy order is made; and (ii) is authorised to acquire
the Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Our Company reserves the right to treat as invalid any Application Form which: (i) appears to our Company
or its agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States of America; (ii) does not include
the relevant certification set out in the Application Form headed "Overseas Shareholders™ to the effect that
the person accepting and/or renouncing the Application Form does not have a registered address (and is not
otherwise located) in the United States, and such person is complying with laws of the jurisdictions
applicable to such person in connection with the Issue, among others; (iii) where our Company believes
acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; or (iv) where
a registered Indian address is not provided, and our Company shall not be bound to allot or issue any Equity
Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.

None of the Rights Entitlements or the Equity Shares have been, or will be, registered under the United
States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act”), or any state securities laws in the United
States. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements and Equity Shares are being offered and sold only outside the
United States in compliance with Regulation S under the Securities Act and the applicable laws of the
jurisdictions where those offers and sales are made.

NO OFFER IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE INDIA

NO OFFER OR INVITATION TO PURCHASE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY
SHARES IS BEING MADE IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE OF INDIA, INCLUDING, BUT
NOT LIMITED TO AUSTRALIA, BAHRAIN, CANADA, THE EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA,
GHANA, HONG KONG, INDONESIA, JAPAN, KENYA, KUWAIT, MALAYSIA, NEW
ZEALAND, SULTANATE OF OMAN, PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA, QATAR, SINGAPORE,
SOUTH AFRICA, SWITZERLAND, THAILAND, THE UNITED ARAB EMIRATES, THE
UNITED KINGDOM AND THE UNITED STATES. THE OFFERING TO WHICH THIS DRAFT

191



LETTER OF OFFER RELATES IS NOT, AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE
CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFERING OF ANY RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS
ENTITLEMENT FOR SALE IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE INDIA OR AS ASOLICIATION
THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE SAID SECURITIES. ACCORDINGLY, THIS
DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED TO OR TRANSMITTED IN OR
INTO ANY OTHER JURISDICTION AT ANY TIME.

Consents

Consents in writing of: our Directors, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
legal advisor, Bankers to the Company, the Registrar to the Issue and the Bankers to the Issue to act in their
respective capacities, have been obtained and such consents have not been withdrawn up to the date of this
Draft Letter of Offer.

Our Company has received written consent dated January 30th, 2025 from our Statutory Auditor to include
their name in this Draft Letter of Offer and as an ‘expert’ as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies
Act, 2013 in relation to the Statement of Tax Benefits dated January 30th, 2025 in the form and context in
which it appears in this Draft Letter of Offer. Such consent has not been withdrawn up to the date of this
Draft Letter of Offer.

Expert Opinion

Our Company has received written consent dated January 30th, 2025 from our Statutory Auditor to include
their name as required in this Draft Letter of Offer and as an ‘expert’ as defined under Section 2(38) of the
Companies Act, 2013 in relation to the Statement of Tax Benefits dated January 30th, 2025 and such consent
has not been withdrawn as of the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. The term ‘expert’ and consent thereof,
does not represent an expert or consent within the meaning under the U.S. Securities Act.

Except for the abovementioned documents, provided by our Auditors, our Company has not obtained any
expert opinions.

Performance vis-a-vis objects — Public/Rights Issue of our Company

Other than issue which are mentioned below, Our Company has not made any rights issues or public issues
during the five years immediately preceding the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. There have been no
instances in the past, wherein our Company has failed to achieve the objects in its previous issues.

Performance vis-a-vis objects — Last issue of listed Subsidiaries or Associates

Following are the list of companies which are subsidiaries or associate companies as on the date of this
Draft Letter of Offer.

1. Cyber Media Research & Services Limited (‘CMRSL’)

“CMRSL” is our subsidiary company, in which we hold 11,17,600 equity shares, representing 38.17% of its
paid-up capital.

2. Cyber Astro Limited (‘CAL’)

“CAL” is our subsidiary company, in which we hold 75,000 equity shares (representing 37.50%) of the
paid-up capital.

3. Cyber Media Foundation Limited (‘CMFL’)
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“CMFL” is our associate company, in which we hold 1,73,065 Equity Shares (representing 34.16%) of the
paid-up capital.

4. Cyber Media Services Limited (‘CMSL’)

“CMSL” is our wholly owned subsidiary company, in which we hold entire equity shares (representing
100%) of the paid-up capital.

5. Cyber Media Services Pte. Limited (‘CMSPL’)

CMSPL is our Step Down Subsidiary which is a wholly owned subsidiary of our subsidiary Company, Cyber
Media Research & Services Limited.

NOTICE TO INVESTORS

NO ACTION HAS BEEN TAKEN OR WILL BE TAKEN THAT WOULD PERMIT A PUBLIC
OFFERING OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES TO OCCUR IN
ANY JURISDICTION OTHER THAN INDIA, OR THE POSSESSION, CIRCULATION OR
DISTRIBUTION OF THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER OR ANY OTHER MATERIAL
RELATING TO OUR COMPANY, THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR THE RIGHTS EQUITY
SHARES IN ANY JURISDICTION WHERE ACTION FOR SUCH PURPOSE IS REQUIRED.
ACCORDINGLY, THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES MAY NOT
BE OFFERED OR SOLD, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, AND NEITHER THISDRAFT LETTER
OF OFFER NOR ANY OFFERING MATERIALS OR ADVERTISEMENTS IN CONNECTION
WITH THE RIGHTSENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES MAY BE DISTRIBUTED
OR PUBLISHED IN OR FROM ANY COUNTRY OR JURISDICTION EXCEPT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE IN SUCH COUNTRY OR
JURISDICTION. THIS ISSUE WILL BE MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE
SEBI REGULATIONS. EACH PURCHASER OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR THE
RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN THIS IS SUE WILL BE DEEMED TO HAVE MADE
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS AND AGREEMENTS.

Filing

SEBI vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
(Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2020 has amended Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as per
which the threshold of filing of Letter of Offer with SEBI for rights issues has been increased. The threshold
of the rights issue size under Regulation 3 (b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations has been increased from
Rupees ten crores to Rupees fifty crores. Since the size of this Issue falls below this threshold, the Letter of
Offer has been filed with the Stock Exchanges and not with SEBI. However, the Letter of Offer will be
submitted with SEBI for information and dissemination and will be filed with the Stock Exchanges.

Mechanism for Redressal of Investor Grievances

Our Company has adequate arrangements for redressal of investor grievances in compliance with the SEBI
Listing Regulations. We have been registered with the SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) as
required by the SEBI Circular No. CIR/ OIAE/ 2/ 2011 dated June 3, 2011 and shall comply with the SEBI
circular no. CIR/OIAE/1/2014 dated December 18, 2014 and the SEBI Master Circular on the redressal of
investor grievances through the SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) platform dated November 7,
2022 (SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/OIAE/IGRD/P/CIR/2022/0150), in relation to redressal of investor
grievances through SCORES. Consequently, investor grievances are tracked online by our Company.

Our Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee which meets at least once a year and as and when
required. Its terms of reference include considering and resolving grievances of Shareholders in relation to
the transfer of shares and the effective exercise of voting rights MUFG Intime India Private Limited
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(Formerly known as Link Intime India Private Limited) is our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. All
investor grievances received by us have been handled by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent in
consultation with the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer.

Investor complaints received by our Company are typically disposed of within 15 days from the receipt of
the complaint.

Investors may contact the Registrar or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-
Issue or post-Issue related matter. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to
the Registrar, with a copy to the SCSBs (in case of ASBA process), giving full details such as name,
address of the Applicant, contact number(s), e mail address of the sole/ first holder, folio number or
demat account number, number of Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked (in case of ASBA
process), ASBA Account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSBs where the Application
Form or the plain paper application, as the case may be, was submitted by the Investors along with a
photocopy of the acknowledgement slip (in case of ASBA process). For details on the ASBA process,
see "Terms of the Issue™ beginning on page 195 of this Draft Letter of Offer. The contact details of
Registrar to the Issue and our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer are as follows:

Registrar to the Company:

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Known as Link Intime India Private Limited)
C-101, Embassy 247, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083

Telephone: +91 22 4918 6000

Email:mohan.devadiga@in.mpms.mufg.com

Website: www.mpms.mufg.com

Investor grievance e-mail: mohan.devadiga@in.mpms.mufg.com

Contact Person: Mr. Mohan Devadiga

SEBI Registration No.: INR0O00004058

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer at the below mentioned address for
any pre-lssue/ post-Issue related matters such as non-receipt of Letters of Allotment/share certificates/ demat
credit/ Refund Orders etc.

Mr. Anoop Singh, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company. His contact details are set
forth hereunder:

Telephone: +91-124-423 7517

E- mail: info@cybermedia.co.in

This space has been left blank intentionally
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SECTION VII - OFFERING INFORMATION
TERMS OF THE ISSUE

This section is for the information of the Eligible Equity Shareholders proposing to apply in this Issue. The
Eligible Equity Shareholders should carefully read the provisions contained in this Draft Letter of Offer, the
Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form, before submitting the
Application Form. Our Company is not liable for any amendments or modifications or changes in applicable
laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of the Letter of Offer. The Eligible Equity Shareholders
are advised to make their independent investigation and ensure that the Application Form is accurately filled
up in accordance with instructions provided therein and the Letter of Offer. Unless otherwise permitted
under the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Relaxation Circulars, the Eligible Equity Shareholders
proposing to apply in this Issue can apply only through ASBA or by mechanism as disclosed in the Letter of
Offer.

Please note that our Company has opened a separate demat suspense escrow account (namely, “[e]”)
(“Demat Suspense Account”) and would credit Rights Entitlements on the basis of the Equity Shares: (a)
held by Eligible Equity Shareholders which are held in physical form as on Record Date; or (b) which are
held in the account of the Investor Education and Protection Fund (“1EPF ) authority, or (c) of the Eligible
Equity Shareholder whose demat accounts are frozen (including those pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations) or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar to the Issue
on the Record Date or where Equity Shares have been kept in abeyance or where entitlement certificate has
been issued or where instruction has been issued for stopping issue or transfer or where letter of
confirmation lying in escrow account; or (d) where credit of the Rights Entitlements have
returned/reversed/failed for any reason; or (e) where ownership is currently under dispute, including any
court or regulatory proceedings or where legal notices have been issued, if any. Please also note that our
Company has credited Rights Entitlements to the Demat Suspense Account on the basis of information
available with our Company and to serve the interest of relevant Eligible Equity Shareholders to provide
them with a reasonable opportunity to participate in the Issue. The credit of the Rights Entitlements to the
Demat Suspense Account by our Company does not create any right in favour of the relevant Eligible Equity
Shareholders for transfer of Rights Entitlement to their demat account or to receive any Equity Shares in the
Issue.

With respect to the Rights Entitlements credited to the Demat Suspense Account, the Eligible Equity
Shareholders are requested to provide relevant details (such as applicable regulatory approvals, self-
attested PAN and client master sheet of demat account, details/ records confirming the legal and beneficial
ownership of their respective Equity Shares, etc.) to our Company or the Registrar to the Issue no later than
two clear Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., by /e/ to enable credit of their Rights
Entitlements by way of transfer from the Demat Suspense Account to their demat account at least one day
before the Issue Closing Date, to enable such Eligible Equity Shareholders to make an application in this
Issue, and this communication shall serve as an intimation to such Eligible Equity Shareholders in this
regard. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders are also requested to ensure that their demat account, details of
which have been provided to our Company or the Registrar to the Issue account is active to facilitate the
aforementioned transfer. In the event that the Eligible Equity Shareholders are not able to provide relevant
details to our Company or the Registrar to the Issue by the end of two clear Working Days prior to the Issue
Closing Date, Rights Entitlements credited to the Demat Suspense Account shall lapse and extinguish in due
course and such Eligible Equity Shareholder shall not have any claim against our Company and our
Company shall not be liable to any such Eligible Equity Shareholder in any form or manner.

Further, with respect to Equity Shares for which Rights Entitlements are being credited to the Demat
Suspense Account, the Application Form along with the Rights Entitlement Letter shall not be dispatched till
the resolution of the relevant issue/concern and transfer of the Rights Entitlements from the Demat Suspense
Account to the respective demat account other than in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity
Shares in physical form as on the Record Date who will receive the Application Form along with the Rights
Entitlement Letter. Upon submission of such documents /records no later than two clear Working Days prior
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to the Issue Closing Date, to the satisfaction of our Company, our Company shall make available the Rights
Entitlement on such Equity Shares to the identified Eligible Equity Shareholder. The identified Eligible
Equity Shareholder shall be entitled to subscribe to Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue during the Issue
Period with respect to these Rights Entitlement and subject to the same terms and conditions as the Eligible
Equity Shareholder.

The Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to note that application in this issue can only be made
through ASBA.

OVERVIEW

This Issue is proposed to be undertaken on a rights basis and is subject to the terms and conditions contained
in this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application
Form, and the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of our Company, the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, the FEMA, the FEMA Rules, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI LODR
Regulations and the guidelines, notifications, circulars and regulations issued by SEBI, the Government of
India and other statutory and regulatory authorities from time to time, approvals, if any, from RBI or other
regulatory authorities, the terms of the Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with Stock
Exchanges and the terms and conditions as stipulated in the Allotment Advice.

IMPORTANT
I. DISPATCH AND AVAILABILITY OF ISSUE MATERIALS

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Relaxation Circulars, the Abridged Letter of Offer,
the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent/ dispatched only to
the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address. In case such Eligible Equity
Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form,
the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in
case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Abridged Letter of
Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be dispatched, on a
reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

Further, the Letter of Offer will be sent/ dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided
Indian address and who have made a request in this regard. In case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have
provided their valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in
case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Letter of Offer will
be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

Shareholders can access the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided
that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Equity Shares under applicable laws) on
the websites of:

(i) our Company at www.cybermedia.co.in

(ii) the Registrar at www.mpms.mufg.com

(iii) the Stock Exchanges at www.bseindia.com ; and www.nseindia.com

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the
website of the Registrar (i.e. www.mpms.mufg.com ) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number
(for Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date) and PAN.
The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company (i.e., www.cybermedia.co.in).

Please note that neither our Company nor the Registrar shall be responsible for non-dispatch of
physical copies of Issue materials, including the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the
Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form or delay in the receipt of the Letter of Offer, the
Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form attributable to non-
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availability of the e-mail addresses of Eligible Equity Shareholders or electronic transmission delays
or failures, or if the Application Forms or the Rights Entitlement Letters are delayed or misplaced in
the transit.

The distribution of the Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement
Letter and the issue of Equity Shares on a rights basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India is
restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. No action has been, or will be, taken to
permit this Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that purpose, except that the Letter
of Offer is being filed with the Stock Exchanges. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements and Equity Shares
may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the
Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application Form or any Issue related materials or advertisements in
connection with this Issue may not be distributed, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with and as
permitted under the legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Letter of Offer, the
Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form (including by way of
electronic means) will not constitute an offer, invitation to or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction or in
any circumstances in which such an offer, invitation or solicitation is unlawful or not authorised or to any
person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer, invitation or solicitation. In those circumstances, the
Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form must be
treated as sent for information only and should not be acted upon for making an Application and should not
be copied or re-distributed.

Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of
Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form should not, in connection with the issue of the
Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer,
the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form in or into any jurisdiction where to do so, would, or
might, contravene local securities laws or regulations or would subject our Company or its affiliates to any
filing or registration requirement (other than in India). If the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer,
the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form is received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or
by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to make an Application or acquire the Rights Entitlements
referred to in the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the
Application Form. Any person who makes an application to acquire Rights Entitlements and the Equity
Shares offered in the Issue, will be deemed to have declared, represented and warranted that such person is
authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations prevailing in such person’s jurisdiction and India, without requirement for our Company or
our affiliates to make any filing or registration (other than in India).

This Letter of Offer will be provided, primarily through e-mail, by the Registrar on behalf of our
Company to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our
Company and who make a request in this regard.

1. PROCESS OF MAKING AN APPLICATION IN THE ISSUE

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and the
ASBA Circulars, all Shareholders desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to
use the ASBA process. Shareholders should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications
before making their Application through ASBA.

The Application Form can be used by the Eligible Equity Shareholders as well as the Renouncees, to make
Applications in this Issue basis the Rights Entitlement credited in their respective demat accounts or demat
suspense escrow account, as applicable. For further details on the Rights Entitlements and demat suspense
escrow account, see “Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders”
below.

Please note that one single Application Form shall be used by Shareholders to make Applications for all
Rights Entitlements available in a particular demat account or entire respective portion of the Rights
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Entitlements in the demat suspense escrow account in case of resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding
shares in physical form as on Record Date and applying in this Issue, as applicable. In case of Shareholders
who have provided details of demat account in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, such
Shareholders will have to apply for the Equity Shares from the same demat account in which they are holding
the Rights Entitlements and in case of multiple demat accounts, the Shareholders are required to submit a
separate Application Form for each demat account.

Shareholders may apply for the Equity Shares by submitting the Application Form to the Designated Branch
of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such
SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their respective
ASBA Accounts.

Shareholders are also advised to ensure that the Application Form is correctly filled up stating therein the
ASBA Account (in case of Application through ASBA process) in which an amount equivalent to the amount
payable on Application as stated in the Application Form will be blocked by the SCSB.

Applicants should note that they should very carefully fill-in their depository account details and PAN in the
Application Form or while submitting application through online/electronic Application through the website
of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB). Please note that incorrect depository account details or PAN
or Application Forms without depository account details shall be treated as incomplete and shall be rejected.
For details see “Grounds for Technical Rejection” below. Our Company, the Registrar and the SCSBs
shall not be liable for any incomplete or incorrect demat details provided by the Applicants.

Additionally, in terms of Regulation 78 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the Eligible Equity Shareholders
may choose to accept the offer to participate in this Issue by making plain paper Applications. Please note
that SCSBs shall accept such applications only if all details required for making the application as per the
SEBI ICDR Regulations are specified in the plain paper application and that Eligible Equity Shareholders
making an application in this Issue by way of plain paper applications shall not be permitted to renounce any
portion of their Rights Entitlements. For details, see “Making of an Application by Eligible Equity
Shareholders on Plain Paper under ASBA process” below.

Options available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders

The Rights Entitlement Letter will clearly indicate the number of Equity Shares that the Eligible Equity
Shareholder is entitled to.

If the Eligible Equity Shareholder applies in this Issue, then such Eligible Equity Shareholder can:

(i) apply for its Equity Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements; or

(ii) apply for its Equity Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements (without renouncing the other
part); or

(iii) apply for Equity Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements and renounce the other part of its
Rights Entitlements; or

(iv) apply for its Equity Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements and apply for additional Equity
Shares; or

(v) renounce its Rights Entitlements in full.

Making of an Application through the ASBA process

Shareholders, wishing to participate in this Issue through the ASBA facility, is required to have an ASBA
enabled bank account with an SCSB, prior to making the Application. Shareholders desiring to make an
Application in this Issue through ASBA process, may submit the Application Form in physical mode to the
Designated Branches of the SCSB or online/ electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if
made available by such SCSB) for authorizing such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the
Application in their respective ASBA Accounts.
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Shareholders should ensure that they have correctly submitted the Application Form and have provided an
authorisation to the SCSB, via the electronic mode, for blocking funds in the ASBA Account equivalent to
the Application Money mentioned in the Application Form, as the case may be, at the time of submission of
the Application.

For the list of banks which have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process, please refer
to https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmid=34.

Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of the SEBI circular bearing reference
number CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25, 2012, within the periods stipulated therein,
Applications may be submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs. Further, in terms of the SEBI
circular bearing reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated January 2, 2013, it is clarified that for making
Applications by SCSBs on their own account using ASBA facility, each such SCSB should have a separate
account in its own name with any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such account shall be used solely for the
purpose of making an Application in this Issue and clear demarcated funds should be available in such
account for such an Application.

Our Company, its directors, its employees, affiliates, associates and their respective directors and officers
and the Registrar shall not take any responsibility for acts, mistakes, errors, omissions and commissions etc.,
in relation to Applications accepted by SCSBs, Applications uploaded by SCSBs, Applications accepted but
not uploaded by SCSBs or Applications accepted and uploaded without blocking funds in the ASBA
Accounts.

Do’s for Shareholders applying through ASBA:

() Ensure that the details about your Depository Participant, PAN and beneficiary account are correct and
the beneficiary account is activated as the Equity Shares will be allotted in the dematerialized form only.
(b) Ensure that the Applications are submitted with the Designated Branch of the SCSBs and details of the
correct bank account have been provided in the Application.

(c) Ensure that there are sufficient funds (equal to {number of Equity Shares (including additional Equity
Shares) applied for} X {Application Money of Equity Shares}) available in ASBA Account mentioned in
the Application Form before submitting the Application to the respective Designated Branch of the SCSB.
(d) Ensure that you have authorised the SCSB for blocking funds equivalent to the total amount payable on
application mentioned in the Application Form, in the ASBA Account, of which details are provided in the
Application Form and have signed the same.

(e) Ensure that you have a bank account with an SCSB providing ASBA facility in your location and the
Application is made through that SCSB providing ASBA facility in such location.

(f) Ensure that you receive an acknowledgement from the Designated Branch of the SCSB for your
submission of the Application Form in physical form or plain paper Application.

(9) Ensure that the name(s) given in the Application Form is exactly the same as the name(s) in which the
beneficiary account is held with the Depository Participant. In case the Application Form is submitted in
joint names, ensure that the beneficiary account is also held in same joint names and such names are in the
same sequence in which they appear in the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter.

(h) Ensure that your PAN is linked with Aadhaar and you are in compliance with CBDT notification dated
Feb 13, 2020 read with press release dated June 25, 2021 and September 17, 2021

(i) Ensure that the necessary details are filled in the Application Form including the details of the ASBA
Account.

Don’ts for Shareholders applying through ASBA:

(a) Do not submit the Application Form after you have submitted a plain paper Application to a Designated
Branch of the SCSB or vice versa.

(b) Do not send your physical Application to the Registrar, the Escrow Collection Bank(s) (assuming that
such Escrow Collection Bank is not an SCSB), a branch of the SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of
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the SCSB or our Company; instead submit the same to a Designated Branch of the SCSB only.

(c) Do not instruct the SCSBs to unblock the funds blocked under the ASBA process upon making the
Application.

(d) Do not submit Application Form using third party ASBA account.

(e) Do not apply if you are not eligible to participate in the Issue under the securities laws applicable to your
jurisdiction.

() Do not submit Multiple Application Forms.

(9) Avoid applying on the Issue Closing Date due to risk of delay/restriction in making any physical
Application.

Making of an Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders on Plain Paper under ASBA process

An Eligible Equity Shareholder in India who is eligible to apply under the ASBA process may make an
Application to subscribe to this Issue on plain paper in case of non-receipt of Application Form as detailed
above. In such cases of non-receipt of the Application Form through e-mail or physical delivery (where
applicable) and the Eligible Equity Shareholder not being in a position to obtain it from any other source
may make an Application to subscribe to this Issue on plain paper with the same details as per the Application
Form that is available on the website of the Registrar, Stock Exchange. An Eligible Equity Shareholder shall
submit the plain paper Application to the Designated Branch of the SCSB for authorising such SCSB to
block Application Money in the said bank account maintained with the same SCSB. Applications on plain
paper will not be accepted from any Eligible Equity Shareholder who has not provided an Indian address or
is a U.S. Person or in the United States.

Please note that the Eligible Equity Shareholders who are making the Application on plain paper shall not
be entitled to renounce their Rights Entitlements and should not utilize the Application Form for any purpose
including renunciation even if it is received subsequently.

The Application on plain paper, duly signed by the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders, in
the same order and as per specimen recorded with his/her bank, must reach the office of the Designated
Branch of the SCSB before the Issue Closing Date and should contain the following particulars:

(a) Name of our Company, being Cyber Media (India) Limited,;

(i) Name and address of the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders (in the same order and as
per specimen recorded with our Company or the Depository);

(ii) Folio Number (in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on
Record Date)/DP and Client ID;

(iii) Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the
officials appointed by the courts, PAN of the Eligible Equity Shareholder and for each Eligible Equity
Shareholder in case of joint names, irrespective of the total value of the Equity Shares applied for pursuant
to this Issue

(iv) Number of Equity Shares held as on Record Date;

(v) Allotment option — only dematerialised form;

(vi) Number of Equity Shares entitled to;

(vii) Number of Equity Shares applied for within the Rights Entitlements;

(viii) Number of additional Equity Shares applied for, if any (applicable only if entire Rights Entitlements
have been applied for);

(ix) Total number of Equity Shares applied for;

(x) Total amount paid at the rate of Rs. [e]/- per Equity Share;

(xi) Details of the ASBA Account such as the SCSB account number, name, address and branch of the
relevant SCSB;

(xii) In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders making an application with an Indian address,
details of the NRE/FCNR/NRO account such as the account number, name, address and branch of the SCSB
with which the account is maintained;

(xiii) Authorisation to the Designated Branch of the SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the Application
Money in the ASBA Account;
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(xiv) Signature of the Eligible Equity Shareholder (in case of joint holders, to appear in the same sequence
and order as they appear in the records of the SCSB);

(xv) An approval obtained from any regulatory authority, if required, shall be obtained by the Eligible Equity
Shareholders and a copy of such approval from any regulatory authority, as may be required, shall be sent to
the Registrar to the Issue at:

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Known as Link Intime India Private Limited)
C-101, Embassy 247, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083

Telephone: +91 22 4918 6000

Email: mohan.devadiga@in.mpms.mufg.com

Website: www.mpms.mufg.com

Investor grievance e-mail: mohan.devadiga@in.mpms.mufg.com

SEBI Registration No.: INR000004058

Contact Person: Mr. Mohan Devadiga

(xv) All such Eligible Equity Shareholders are deemed to have accepted the following:
“Purchaser Representations and Transfer Restrictions

Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements and / or Rights Equity Shares, by its acceptance of this Draft
Letter of Offer / letter of offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer or of the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares,
will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed with our Company as follows:

“I/ We will not offer, sell or otherwise transfer any of the Rights Equity Shares which may be acquired by us
in any jurisdiction or under any circumstances in which such offer or sale is not authorized or to any person
to whom it is unlawful to make such offer, sale or invitation except under circumstances that will result in
compliance with any applicable laws or regulations. We satisfy, and each account for which we are acting
satisfies, all suitability standards for Shareholders in investments of the type subscribed for herein imposed
by the jurisdiction of our residence.

I/ We understand and agree that the Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares may not be reoffered,
resold, pledged or otherwise transferred except in an offshore transaction in compliance with Regulation S,
or otherwise pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements
of the US Securities Act.

I/ We (i) am/ are, and the person, if any, for whose account I/ we am/ are acquiring such Rights Entitlement
and/ or the Rights Equity Shares is/ are, outside the U.S., (ii) am/ are not a “U.S. Person” as defined in
(“Regulation S”), and (iii) is/ are acquiring the Rights Entitlement and/ or the Rights Equity Shares in an
offshore transaction meeting the requirements of Regulation.

It acknowledges that our Company, its respective affiliates and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy
of the foregoing acknowledgements, representations and agreements and agrees that, if any of such
acknowledgements, representations and agreements deemed to have been made by virtue of its acquisition
of Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares are no longer accurate, it will promptly notify our
Company, and if it is acquiring any of such Rights Entitlements and / or Rights Equity Shares as a fiduciary
or agent for one or more accounts, it represents that it has sole investment discretion with respect to each
such account and that it has full power to make the foregoing acknowledgements, representations and
agreements on behalf of such account.

t will notify any transferee to whom it subsequently offers, sells, renounces, pledges or otherwise transfers
and the executing broker and any other agent involved in any resale of the Rights Entitlements and / or
Rights Equity Shares of the foregoing restrictions applicable to the Rights Entitlements and / or Rights Equity
Shares and instruct such transferee, broker or agent to abide by such restrictions.

In cases where Multiple Application Forms are submitted for Applications pertaining to Rights Entitlements
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credited to the same demat account or in demat suspense escrow account, as applicable, including cases
where a Shareholders submits Application Forms along with a plain paper Application, such Applications
shall be liable to be rejected.

Shareholders are requested to strictly adhere to these instructions. Failure to do so could result in an
application being rejected, with our Company and the Registrar not having any liability to the Shareholders.
The plain paper Application format will be available on the website of the Registrar at
www.mpms.mufg.com.

Our Company and the Registrar shall not be responsible if the Applications are not uploaded by the SCSB
or funds are not blocked in the Shareholders’ ASBA Accounts on or before the Issue Closing Date.

Making of an Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form

Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI
Rights Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in
dematerialised form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form
as on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Equity Shares in this Issue are advised to furnish the details
of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing
Date, to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their respective demat accounts at least one day
before the Issue Closing Date.

Prior to the Issue Opening Date, the Rights Entitlements of those Eligible Equity Shareholders, among others,
who hold Equity Shares in physical form, and whose demat account details are not available with our
Company or the Registrar, shall be credited in a demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company.

Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have
opened their demat accounts after the Record Date, shall adhere to following procedure for participating in
this Issue:

(a) The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall send a letter to the Registrar containing the name(s), address,
e-mail address, contact details and the details of their demat account along with copy of self-attested
PAN and self-attested client master sheet of their demat account either through email to the RTA at
mohan.devadiga@in.mpms.mufg.com or by post, speed post, courier or hand delivery, so as to reach
to the Registrar no later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date;

(b) The Registrar shall, after verifying the details of such demat account, transfer the Rights Entitlements
of such Eligible Equity Shareholders to their demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing
Date;

(c) The remaining procedure for Application shall be same as set out in “- Making of an Application by
Eligible Equity Shareholders on Plain Paper under ASBA process” mentioned above.

In accordance with the SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, the
resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date shall be
required to provide their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar to the Issue for credit of
Right Entitlements not later than two working days prior to issue closing date, such that credit of Res in their
demat account takes place at least one day before issue closing date, thereby enabling them to renounce their
Rights Entitlements through Off Market Renunciation. Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold
Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date will not be allowed renounce their Rights Entitlements
in the Issue. However, such Eligible Equity Shareholders, where the dematerialized Rights Entitlements are
transferred from the suspense escrow demat account to the respective demat accounts within prescribed
timelines, can apply for Additional Rights Equity Shares while submitting the Application through ASBA
process.
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Application for Additional Equity Shares

Shareholders are eligible to apply for additional Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements,
provided that they are eligible to apply for Equity Shares under applicable law and they have applied for all
the Equity Shares forming part of their Rights Entitlements without renouncing them in whole or in part.
Where the number of additional Equity Shares applied for exceeds the number available for Allotment, the
Allotment would be made as per the Basis of Allotment finalised in consultation with the Designated Stock
Exchange. Applications for additional Equity Shares shall be considered and Allotment shall be made in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in the manner as set out in “Basis of Allotment” mentioned
below.

Eligible Equity Shareholders who renounce their Rights Entitlements cannot apply for additional Equity
Shares. Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity Shareholders cannot apply for additional
Equity Shares.

Additional general instructions for Shareholders in relation to making of an application:

(a) Please read the Letter of Offer carefully to understand the Application process and applicable settlement
process.

(b) Please read the instructions on the Application Form sent to you. Application should be complete in all
respects. The Application Form found incomplete with regard to any of the particulars required to be given
therein, and/or which are not completed in conformity with the terms of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged
Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form are liable to be rejected. The
Application Form must be filled in English.

(c) In case of non-receipt of Application Form, Application can be made on plain paper mentioning all
necessary details as mentioned under the section “Making of an Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders
on Plain Paper under ASBA process” mentioned above.

(d) Applications should be submitted to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or made online/electronic
through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block
Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts. Please note that on the
Issue Closing Date, (i) Applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard
Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchanges.

(e) Applications should not be submitted to the Banker(s) to the Issue or Escrow Collection Bank(s)
(assuming that such Escrow Collection Bank is not an SCSB), our Company or the Registrar.

(F) All Applicants, and in the case of Application in joint names, each of the joint Applicants, should mention
their PAN allotted under the Income-tax Act, irrespective of the amount of the Application. Except for
Applications on behalf of the Central or the State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials
appointed by the courts, Applications without PAN will be considered incomplete and are liable to be
rejected. With effect from August 16, 2010, the demat accounts for Shareholders for which PAN details have
not been verified shall be “suspended for credit” and no Allotment and credit of Equity Shares pursuant to
this Issue shall be made into the accounts of such Shareholders.

(9) Ensure that the demographic details such as address, PAN, DP ID, Client ID, bank account details and
occupation (“Demographic Details”) are updated, true and correct, in all respects. Shareholders applying
under this Issue should note that on the basis of name of the Shareholders, DP ID and Client ID provided by
them in the Application Form or the plain paper Applications, as the case may be, the Registrar will obtain
Demographic Details from the Depository. Therefore, Shareholders applying under this Issue should
carefully fill in their Depository Account details in the Application. These Demographic Details would be
used for all correspondence with such Shareholders including mailing of the letters intimating unblocking of
bank account of the respective Shareholders and/or refund. The Demographic Details given by the
Shareholders in the Application Form would not be used for any other purposes by the Registrar. Hence,
Shareholders are advised to update their Demographic Details as provided to their Depository Participants.
The Allotment Advice and the e-mail intimating unblocking of ASBA Account or refund (if any) would be
e-mailed to the address of the Shareholders as per the e-mail address provided to our Company or the
Registrar or Demographic Details received from the Depositories. The Registrar will give instructions to the
SCSBs for unblocking funds in the ASBA Account to the extent Equity Shares are not allotted to such
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Shareholders. Please note that any such delay shall be at the sole risk of the Shareholders and none of our
Company, the SCSBs and Registrar shall be liable to compensate the Shareholders for any losses caused due
to any such delay or be liable to pay any interest for such delay. In case no corresponding record is available
with the Depositories that match three parameters, (a) names of the Shareholders (including the order of
names of joint holders), (b) DP ID, and (c) Client ID, then such Application Forms are liable to be rejected.
(h) By signing the Application Forms, Shareholders would be deemed to have authorised the Depositories
to provide, upon request, to the Registrar, the required Demographic Details as available on its records.

(i) For physical Applications through ASBA at Designated Branches of SCSB, signatures should be either
in English or Hindi or in any other language specified in the Eighth Schedule to the Constitution of India.
Signatures other than in any such language or thumb impression must be attested by a Notary Public or a
Special Executive Magistrate under his/her official seal. The Shareholders must sign the Application as per
the specimen signature recorded with the SCSB.

(j) Shareholders should provide correct DP ID and Client ID/ Folio number (for Eligible Equity Shareholders
who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date) while submitting the Application. Such DP 1D
and Client 1D/ Folio number should match the demat account details in the records available with Company
and/or Registrar, failing which such Application is liable to be rejected. Shareholders will be solely
responsible for any error or inaccurate detail provided in the Application. Our Company and SCSBs or the
Registrar will not be liable for any such rejections.

(k) In case of joint holders and physical Applications through ASBA process, all joint holders must sign the
relevant part of the Application Form in the same order and as per the specimen signature(s) recorded with
the SCSB. In case of joint Applicants, reference, if any, will be made in the first Applicant’s name and all
communication will be addressed to the first Applicant.

() All communication in connection with Application for the Equity Shares, including any change in contact
details of the Eligible Equity Shareholders should be addressed to the Registrar prior to the date of Allotment
in this Issue quoting the name of the first/sole Applicant, Folio number (for Eligible Equity Shareholders
who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date)/DP ID and Client ID and Application Form
number, as applicable. In case of any change in contact details of the Eligible Equity Shareholders, the
Eligible Equity Shareholders should also send the intimation for such change to the respective depository
participant, or to our Company or the Registrar in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares
in physical form.

(m) Shareholders are required to ensure that the number of Equity Shares applied for by them do not exceed
the prescribed limits under the applicable law.

(n) Do not apply if you are ineligible to participate in this Issue under the securities laws applicable to your
jurisdiction.

(o) Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the application is liable to be rejected on this
ground.

(p) Avoid applying on the Issue Closing Date due to risk of delay/ restrictions in making any physical
Application.

(g) Do not pay the Application Money in cash, by money order, pay order or postal order.

(r) Do not submit multiple Applications.

(s) No investment under the FDI route (i.e. any investment which would result in the Shareholders holding
10% or more of the fully diluted paid-up equity share capital of the Company or any FDI investment for
which an approval from the government was taken in the past) will be allowed in the Issue unless such
application is accompanied with necessary approval or covered under a pre-existing approval from the
government. It will be the sole responsibility of the Shareholders to ensure that the necessary approval or the
pre-existing approval from the government is valid in order to make any investment in the Issue. Our
Company will not be responsible for any allotments made by relying on such approvals.

(t) An Applicant being an OCB is required not to be under the adverse notice of RBI and in order to apply
for this issue as an incorporated non-resident must do so in accordance with the FDI Circular 2020 and
Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instrument) Rules, 2019.

Grounds for Technical Rejection

Applications made in this Issue are liable to be rejected on the following grounds:

204



(2) DP ID and Client ID mentioned in Application does not match with the DP ID and Client ID records
available with the Registrar.

(b) Details of PAN mentioned in the Application does not match with the PAN records available with the
Registrar.

(c) Sending an Application to our Company, Registrar, Escrow Collection Bank(s) (assuming that such
Escrow Collection Bank is not a SCSB), to a branch of a SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of the
SCSB.

(d) Insufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account with the SCSB for blocking the Application Money.
(e) Funds in the ASBA Account whose details are mentioned in the Application Form having been frozen
pursuant to regulatory orders.

(f) Account holder not signing the Application or declaration mentioned therein.

(g) Submission of more than one Application Form for Rights Entitlements available in a particular demat
account.

(h) Multiple Application Forms, including cases where a Shareholders submits Application Forms along with
a plain paper Application.

(i) Submitting the GIR number instead of the PAN (except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State
Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts).

(i) Applications by persons not competent to contract under the Indian Contract Act, 1872, except
Applications by minors having valid demat accounts as per the Demographic Details provided by the
Depositories.

(K) Applications by SCSB on own account, other than through an ASBA Account in its own name with any
other SCSB.

(I) Application Forms which are not submitted by the Shareholders within the time periods prescribed in the
Application Form and the Letter of Offer.

(m) Physical Application Forms not duly signed by the sole or joint Shareholders, as applicable.

(n) Application Forms accompanied by stock invest, outstation cheques, post-dated cheques, money order,
postal order or outstation demand.

(o) If a Shareholders is (a) debarred by SEBI; or (b) if SEBI has revoked the order or has provided any
interim relief then failure to attach a copy of such SEBI order allowing the Shareholders to subscribe to their
Rights Entitlements.

(p) Applications which: (i) appears to our Company or its agents to have been executed in, electronically
transmitted from or dispatched from the United States (other than from persons in the United States who are
U.S. QIBs and QPs) or other jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Equity Shares is not permitted
under laws of such jurisdictions; (ii) does not include the relevant certifications set out in the Application
Form, including to the effect that the person submitting and/or renouncing the Application Form is (a) both
a U.S. QIB and a QP, if in the United States or a U.S. Person or (b) outside the United States and is a non-
U.S. Person, and in each case such person is eligible to subscribe for the Equity Shares under applicable
securities laws and is complying with laws of jurisdictions applicable to such person in connection with this
Issue; and our Company shall not be bound to issue or allot any Equity Shares in respect of any such
Application Form.

(g) Applications which have evidence of being executed or made in contravention of applicable securities
laws.

(r) Application from Shareholders that are residing in U.S. address as per the depository records (other than
from persons in the United States who are U.S. QIBs and QPs).

Applications by non-resident Shareholders
(a) Payment from third party bank accounts.

IT IS MANDATORY FOR ALL THE INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER THIS ISSUE TO APPLY
THROUGH THE ASBA PROCESS, TO RECEIVE THEIR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN
DEMATERIALISED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT/CORRESPONDING
PAN IN WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY THE INVESTOR AS ON THE RECORD
DATE. ALL INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER THIS ISSUE SHOULD MENTION THEIR
DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT’S NAME, DP ID AND BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT
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NUMBER/FOLIO NUMBER IN THE APPLICATION FORM. INVESTORS MUST ENSURE
THAT THE NAME GIVEN IN THE APPLICATION FORM IS EXACTLY THE SAME AS THE
NAME IN WHICH THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IS HELD. IN CASE THE APPLICATION
FORM IS SUBMITTED IN JOINT NAMES, IT SHOULD BE ENSURED THAT THE
DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IS ALSO HELD IN THE SAME JOINT NAMES AND ARE IN THE
SAME SEQUENCE IN WHICH THEY APPEAR IN THE APPLICATION FORM OR PLAIN
PAPER APPLICATIONS, AS THE CASE MAY BE.

Multiple Applications

In case where multiple Applications are made using same demat account, such Applications shall be liable
to be rejected. A separate Application can be made in respect of Rights Entitlements in each demat account
of the Shareholders and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. Similarly, a separate
Application can be made against Equity Shares held in dematerialized form and Equity Shares held in
physical form, and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. Further supplementary
Applications in relation to further Equity Shares with/without using additional Rights Entitlement will not
be treated as multiple application. A separate Application can be made in respect of each scheme of a mutual
fund registered with SEBI and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. For details,
see “Procedure for Applications by Mutual Funds” mentioned below.

In cases where Multiple Application Forms are submitted, including cases where (a) an Shareholders submits
Application Forms along with a plain paper Application or (b) multiple plain paper Applications (c) or
multiple applications through ASBA, such Applications shall be treated as multiple applications and are
liable to be rejected, other than multiple applications submitted by any of our Promoter or members of the
Promoter Group to meet the minimum subscription requirements applicable to this Issue as described in
“Capital Structure - Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter” mentioned above.

Procedure for Applications by certain categories of Shareholders

Procedure for Applications by FPIs

In terms of applicable FEMA Rules and the SEBI FPI Regulations, investments by FPIs in the Equity Shares
is subject to certain limits, i.e., the individual holding of an FPI (including its Shareholders group (which
means multiple entities registered as foreign portfolio Shareholders and directly and indirectly having
common ownership of more than 50% of common control)) shall be below 10% of our post-Issue Equity
Share capital. In case the total holding of an FPI or Shareholders group increases beyond 10% of the total
paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company, on a fully diluted basis or 10% or more of the paid-up value
of any series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants that may be issued by our Company, the
total investment made by the FPI or Shareholders group will be re-classified as FDI subject to the conditions
as specified by SEBI and RBI in this regard and our Company and the Shareholders will also be required to
comply with applicable reporting requirements.

FPls are permitted to participate in this Issue subject to compliance with conditions and restrictions which
may be specified by the Government from time to time. FPIs who wish to participate in the Issue are advised
to use the Application Form for non-residents. Subject to compliance with all applicable Indian laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines and approvals in terms of Regulation 21 of the SEBI FPI Regulations, an FPI may
issue, subscribe to or otherwise deal in offshore derivative instruments (as defined under the SEBI FPI
Regulations as any instrument, by whatever name called, which is issued overseas by an FPI against
securities held by it that are listed or proposed to be listed on any recognised stock exchange in India, as its
underlying) directly or indirectly, only in the event (i) such offshore derivative instruments are issued only
to persons registered as Category | FPI under the SEBI FPI Regulations; (ii) such offshore derivative
instruments are issued only to persons who are eligible for registration as Category | FPIs (where an entity
has an investment manager who is from the Financial Action Task Force member country, the investment
manager shall not be required to be registered as a Category | FPI); (iii) such offshore derivative instruments
are issued after compliance with ‘know your client’ norms; and (iii) compliance with other conditions as
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may be prescribed by SEBI.

An FPI issuing offshore derivative instruments is also required to ensure that any transfer of offshore
derivative instruments issued by or on its behalf, is carried out subject to inter alia the following conditions:

1. such offshore derivative instruments are transferred only to persons in accordance with the SEBI FPI
Regulations; and

2. prior consent of the FPI is obtained for such transfer, except when the persons to whom the offshore
derivative instruments are to be transferred to are pre — approved by the FPI.

No investment under the FDI route will be allowed in the Issue unless such application is accompanied with
necessary approval or covered under a pre-existing approval.

Procedure for Applications by AlFs, FVCls, VCFs and FDI route

The SEBI VCF Regulations and the SEBI FVVCI Regulations prescribe, among other things, the investment
restrictions on VCFs and FVCls registered with SEBI. Further, the SEBI AIF Regulations prescribe, among
other things, the investment restrictions on AIFs.

As per the SEBI VCF Regulations and SEBI FVVCI Regulations, VCFs and FVCls are not permitted to invest
in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by VCFs or FVClIs will not be
accepted in this Issue. Further, venture capital funds registered as Category | AlFs, as defined in the SEBI
AIF Regulations, are not permitted to invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly,
applications by venture capital funds registered as category | AlFs, as defined in the SEBI AlF Regulations,
will not be accepted in this Issue. Other categories of AlFs are permitted to apply in this Issue subject to
compliance with the SEBI AIF Regulations. Such AlFs having bank accounts with SCSBs that are providing
ASBA in cities / centres where such AlFs are located are mandatorily required to make use of the ASBA
facility. Otherwise, applications of such AlFs are liable for rejection.

No investment under the FDI route (i.e any investment which would result in the Shareholders holding 10%
or more of the fully diluted paid-up equity share capital of the Company or any FDI investment for which an
approval from the government was taken in the past) will be allowed in the Issue unless such application is
accompanied with necessary approval or covered under a pre-existing approval from the government. It will
be the sole responsibility of the Shareholders to ensure that the necessary approval or the pre-existing
approval from the government is valid in order to make any investment in the Issue. Our Company will not
be responsible for any allotments made by relying on such approvals.

Procedure for Applications by NRIs

Investments by NRIs are governed by the FEMA Rules. Applications will not be accepted from NRIs that
are ineligible to participate in this Issue under applicable securities laws.

As per the FEMA Rules, an NRI or Overseas Citizen of India (“OCI”) may purchase or sell capital
instruments of a listed Indian company on repatriation basis, on a recognised stock exchange in India, subject
to the conditions, inter alia, that the total holding by any individual NRI or OCI will not exceed 5% of the
total paid- up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or should not exceed 5% of the paid-up value of each
series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants issued by an Indian company and the total
holdings of all NRIs and OCls put together will not exceed 10% of the total paid-up equity capital on a fully
diluted basis or shall not exceed 10% of the paid-up value of each series of debentures or preference shares
or share warrants. The aggregate ceiling of 10% may be raised to 24%, if a special resolution to that effect
is passed by the general body of the Indian company.

Further, in accordance with press note 3 of 2020, the FDI Policy has been recently amended to state that all
investments by entities incorporate in a country which shares land border with India or where beneficial
owner of an investment into India is situated in or is a citizen of any such country (“Restricted Shareholders”),
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will require prior approval of the Government of India. It is not clear from the press note whether or not an
issue of the Rights Equity Shares to Restricted Shareholders will also require prior approval of the
Government of India and each Shareholders should seek independent legal advice about its ability to
participate in the Issue. In the event such prior approval has been obtained, the Shareholders shall intimate
our Company and the Registrar about such approval within the Issue Period.

Last date for Application

The last date for submission of the duly filled in the Application Form or a plain paper Application is, [e],
[e], i.e., Issue Closing Date. Our Board or any committee thereof may extend the said date for such period
as it may determine from time to time, subject to the Issue Period not exceeding 30 days from the Issue
Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date).

If the Application Form is not submitted with an SCSB, uploaded with the Stock Exchanges and the
Application Money is not blocked with the SCSB, on or before the Issue Closing Date or such date as may
be extended by our Board or any committee thereof, the invitation to offer contained in the Letter of Offer
shall be deemed to have been declined and our Board or any committee thereof shall be at liberty to dispose
of the Equity Shares hereby offered, as set out in “Basis of Allotment” mentioned below.

Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00
p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchanges.

Please ensure that the Application Form and necessary details are filled in. In place of Application number,
Shareholders can mention the reference number of the e-mail received from Registrar informing about their
Rights Entitlement or last eight digits of the demat account. Alternatively, SCSBs may mention their internal
reference number in place of application number.

Withdrawal of Application

Shareholders who have applied in this Issue may withdraw their Application at any time during Issue Period
by approaching the SCSB where application is submitted. However, no Shareholders applying through
ASBA facility, may withdraw their Application post the Issue Closing Date.

Disposal of Application and Application Money

No acknowledgment will be issued for the Application Money received by our Company. However, the
Designated Branches of the SCSBs receiving the Application Form will acknowledge its receipt by stamping
and returning the acknowledgment slip at the bottom of each Application Form.

Our Board reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any Application, in whole or in
part, and in either case without assigning any reason thereto.

In case an Application is rejected in full, the whole of the Application Money will be unblocked in the
respective ASBA Accounts, in case of Applications through ASBA. Wherever an Application is rejected in
part, the balance of Application Money, if any, after adjusting any money due on Equity Shares Allotted,
will be refunded / unblocked in the respective bank accounts from which Application Money was
received/ASBA Accounts of the Shareholders within a period of 4 days from the Issue Closing Date. In case
of failure to do so, our Company shall pay interest at such rate and within such time as specified under
applicable law.

For further instructions, please read the Application Form carefully.
I11. CREDIT OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS IN DEMAT ACCOUNTS OF ELIGIBLE EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS
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» Rights Entitlements

As your name appears as a beneficial owner in respect of the issued and paid-up Equity Shares held in
dematerialised form or appears in the register of members of our Company as an Eligible Equity Shareholder
in respect of our Equity Shares held in physical form, as on the Record Date, you may be entitled to subscribe
to the number of Equity Shares as set out in the Rights Entitlement Letter.

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the
website of the Registrar (i.e., www.mpms.mufg.com ) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number
(for Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date) and PAN.
The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company (i.e., www.cybermedia.co.in).

In this regard, our Company has made necessary arrangements with NSDL and CDSL for crediting of the
Rights Entitlements to the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in a dematerialized form. A
separate ISIN for the Rights Entitlements has also been generated which is [e]. The said ISIN shall remain
frozen (for debit) until the Issue Opening Date. The said ISIN shall be suspended for transfer by the
Depositories post the Issue Closing Date.

Additionally, our Company will submit the details of the total Rights Entitlements credited to the demat
accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the demat suspense escrow account to the Stock Exchanges
after completing the corporate action. The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible
Equity Shareholders can be accessed by such respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on the website of the
Registrar after keying in their respective details along with other security control measures implemented
thereat.

Rights Entitlements shall be credited to the respective demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders before
the Issue Opening Date only in dematerialised form. Further, if no Application is made by the Eligible Equity
Shareholders of Rights Entitlements on or before Issue Closing Date, such Rights Entitlements shall get
lapsed and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date. No Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights
Entitlements will be credited, even if such Rights Entitlements were purchased from market and purchaser
will lose the premium paid to acquire the Rights Entitlements. Persons who are credited the Rights
Entitlements are required to make an Application to apply for Equity Shares offered under Rights Issue for
subscribing to the Equity Shares offered under Issue.

If Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date, have not provided
the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to provide their
demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue
Closing Date, to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat suspense
escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one day before the Issue Closing Date. Such
Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form can update the details of their respective demat
accounts on the website of the Registrar (i.e.www.linkimtime.co.in). Such Eligible Equity Shareholders can
make an Application only after the Rights Entitlements is credited to their respective demat accounts.

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue
Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized
form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to (i) the demat
accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialised form; and (ii) a
demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company, for the Eligible Equity Shareholders which would
comprise Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares held in the account of the IEPF authority; or (b)
the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen or the Equity Shares which are lying
in the unclaimed suspense account (including those pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI LODR
Regulations) or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date;
or (c) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on
Record Date where details of demat accounts are not provided by Eligible Equity Shareholders to our
Company or Registrar; or (d) credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (e) the ownership
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of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court proceedings, if any; or (f) non-institutional
equity shareholders in the United States.

Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to provide relevant details (such as copies of self- attested PAN
and client master sheet of demat account etc., details/ records confirming the legal and beneficial ownership
of their respective Equity Shares) to our Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to
the Issue Closing Date, i.e., by [e] to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from
the demat suspense escrow account to their demat account at least one day before the Issue Closing Date, to
enable such Eligible Equity Shareholders to make an application in this Issue, and this communication shall
serve as an intimation to such Eligible Equity Shareholders in this regard. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders
are also requested to ensure that their demat account, details of which have been provided to our Company
or the Registrar account is active to facilitate the aforementioned transfer.

IV. RENUNCIATION AND TRADING OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT

» Renouncees

All rights and obligations of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in relation to Applications and refunds
pertaining to this Issue shall apply to the Renouncee(s) as well.

» Renunciation of Rights Entitlements

This Issue includes a right exercisable by Eligible Equity Shareholders to renounce the Rights Entitlements
credited to their respective demat account either in full or in part.

The renunciation from non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) to resident Indian(s) and vice versa shall
be subject to provisions of FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the
Ministry of Finance from time to time. However, the facility of renunciation shall not be available to or
operate in favor of an Eligible Equity Shareholders being an erstwhile OCB unless the same is in compliance
with the FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the Ministry of Finance
from time to time.

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements credited in your demat account can be made either by sale of such
Rights Entitlements, using the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges or through an off-market
transfer.

» Procedure for Renunciation of Rights Entitlements

The Eligible Equity Shareholders may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat
accounts, either in full or in part (a) by using the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges (the
“On Market Renunciation”); or (b) through an off-market transfer (the “Off Market Renunciation™), during
the Renunciation Period. The Shareholders should have the demat Rights Entitlements credited/lying in
his/her own demat account prior to the renunciation. The trades through On Market Renunciation and Off
Market Renunciation will be settled by transferring the Rights Entitlements through the depository
mechanism.

Shareholders may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal consequences as a result of trading
in the Rights Entitlements. Shareholders who intend to trade in the Rights Entitlements should consult their
tax advisor or stock-broker regarding any cost, applicable taxes, charges and expenses (including brokerage)
that may be levied for trading in Rights Entitlements.

Please note that the Rights Entitlements which are neither renounced nor subscribed by the Shareholders on
or before the Issue Closing Date shall lapse and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date.

Our Company accept no responsibility to bear or pay any cost, applicable taxes, charges and expenses
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(including brokerage), and such costs will be incurred solely by the Shareholders.
(a) On Market Renunciation

The Eligible Equity Shareholders may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat
accounts by trading/selling them on the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges through a
registered stock-broker in the same manner as the existing Equity Shares of our Company.

In this regard, in terms of provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars,
the Rights Entitlements credited to the respective demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders shall
be admitted for trading on the Stock Exchanges under ISIN [e] subject to requisite approvals. Prior to the
Issue Opening Date, our Company will obtain the approval from the Stock Exchanges for trading of Rights
Entitlements. No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained On Market Renunciation or the
price at which the Rights Entitlements will trade. The details for trading in Rights Entitlements will be as
specified by the Stock Exchanges from time to time.

The Rights Entitlements are tradable in dematerialized form only. The market lot for trading of Rights
Entitlements is one Rights Entitlements.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place only during the Renunciation Period for On Market
Renunciation, i.e., from [e] to [e] (both days inclusive).

The Shareholders holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to sell their Rights Entitlements will have to
do so through their registered stock-brokers by quoting the ISIN [e] and indicating the details of the Rights
Entitlements they intend to trade.

The Shareholders can place order for sale of Rights Entitlements only to the extent of Rights Entitlements
available in their demat account.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place electronically on secondary market platform of BSE and NSE
under automatic order matching mechanism and on ‘T+2 rolling settlement basis’, where ‘T’ refers to the
date of trading. The transactions will be settled on trade-for-trade basis. Upon execution of the order, the
stock-broker will issue a contract note in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges and the
SEBI.

(b) Off Market Renunciation

The Eligible Equity Shareholders may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat
accounts by way of an off-market transfer through a depository participant. The Rights Entitlements can be
transferred in dematerialised form only.

Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is
completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees
on or prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable Renouncees to subscribe to the Equity Shares in the Issue.

The Shareholders holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to transfer their Rights Entitlements will have
to do so through their depository participant by issuing a delivery instruction slip quoting the ISIN [e], the
details of the buyer and the details of the Rights Entitlements they intend to transfer. The buyer of the Rights
Entitlements (unless already having given a standing receipt instruction) has to issue a receipt instruction
slip to their depository participant. The Shareholders can transfer Rights Entitlements only to the extent of
Rights Entitlements available in their demat account.

The instructions for transfer of Rights Entitlements can be issued during the working hours of the depository
participants.
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The detailed rules for transfer of Rights Entitlements through off-market transfer shall be as specified by the
NSDL and CDSL from time to time.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

% [@] per Rights Equity Share (including premium of X [e] per Rights Equity Share) shall be payable as
follows:

Amount Payable per Rights Equity Share (Due Date) Face Premium }) | Total )
Value )

On Application [e] [e] [e]

On one or more additional Calls with terms and conditions | [e] [e] [e]

such as the number of Calls and the timing and quantum
of each Call as may be decided by our Board / Rights Issue
Committee from time to time, pursuant to the Payment
Schedule after receipt of the Application Money

Total 10 [e] [e]

*Constitutes [e] % of the Issue Price.
** Constitutes [e] % of the Issue Price.
For further details on Payment Schedule, see “Terms of the Issue — Terms of Payment” on page 195.

Rights Equity Shares in respect of which the Calls payable remains unpaid may be forfeited, at any time after
the due date for payment of the balance amount due in accordance with the Companies Act and our Articles
of Association.

Record date for Calls and suspension of trading

Our Company would fix a Call Record Date giving notice, in advance of such period as may be prescribed
under applicable law, to the Stock Exchanges for the purpose of determining the list of Rights Equity
Shareholders to whom the notice for the Calls would be sent. Once the Call Record Date has been fixed,
trading in the Rights Equity Shares for which the calls have been made may be suspended prior to the Call
Record Date.

Procedure for Calls for Rights Equity Shares

Our Company would convene a meeting of our Board / Rights Issue Committee, to pass the required
resolutions for making the Calls and suitable intimation would be given by our Company to the Stock
Exchanges. Further, advertisements for the same will be published in one English national daily newspaper;
one Hindi language national daily newspaper and one regional language newspaper (all with wide
circulation). Our Board, or Rights Issue Committee, may determine the date on which the Calls shall be
deemed to have been made and if no such date is determined then the Calls shall be deemed to have been
made at the time when the resolution authorising such Calls are passed at the meeting of our Board or Rights
Issue Committee, as the case may be. The Calls may be revoked or postponed at the discretion of our Board
or Rights Issue Committee. Pursuant to the provisions of our Articles of Association, the Investors would be
given at least 14 days’ notice for the payment of the Calls. Our Board or the Rights Issue Committee may,
from time to time at its discretion, extend the time fixed for the payments of the Calls. Our Company, at its
sole discretion and as it may deem fit, may send one or more reminders for the Calls, and if it does not receive
the Call Money as per the timelines stipulated unless extended by our Board or Rights Issue Committee, the
defaulting Rights Equity Shareholders will be liable to pay interest as may be fixed by our Board unless
waived or our Company may forfeit such Rights Equity Shares in respect of which the Calls payable remains
unpaid in accordance with the Companies Act and our Articles of Association. Pursuant to the provisions of
the Articles of Association, our Company will give at least 14 days’ notice to the Rights Equity Shareholders
to make the payment of the unpaid Call Monies (including interest accrued and expenses incurred due to
such non-payment) before forfeiting such Rights Equity Shares.

Payment of Call Money
In accordance with the SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/238/2020 dated
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December 8, 2020 regarding additional payment mechanism (i.e. ASBA, etc.) for payment of balance money
in calls for partly paid specified securities issued by the listed entity, the Investor may make payment of the
Call Money using ASBA Mechanism through the Designated Branch of the SCSB or through 523
online/electronic through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) by authorizing the
SCSB to block an amount, equivalent to the amount payable on Call Money, in the Investor’s ASBA
Account. The Investor may also use the facility of linked online trading, demat and bank account (3-in-1
type account), if provided by their broker, for making payment of the Call Money.

Separate ISIN for Rights Equity Shares

In addition to the present ISIN for the existing Equity Shares, our Company would obtain a separate I1SIN
for the Rights Equity Shares for each Call, until fully paid-up. The Rights Equity Shares offered under this
Issue will be traded under a separate ISIN after each Call for the period as may be applicable under the rules
and regulations prior to the record date for the final Call notice. The ISIN representing the Rights Equity
Shares will be terminated after the Call Record Date for the final Call. On payment of the final Call Money
in respect of the Rights Equity Shares, such Rights Equity Shares would be fully paid-up and merged with
the existing ISIN of our Equity Shares.

. MODE OF PAYMENT

All payments against the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. The Registrar will
not accept any payments against the Application Forms, if such payments are not made through ASBA
facility.

In case of Application through the ASBA facility, the Shareholders agrees to block the entire amount payable
on Application with the submission of the Application Form, by authorizing the SCSB to block an amount,
equivalent to the amount payable on Application, in the Shareholders’ ASBA Account. The SCSB may reject
the application at the time of acceptance of Application Form if the ASBA Account, details of which have
been provided by the Shareholders in the Application Form does not have sufficient funds equivalent to the
amount payable on Application mentioned in the Application Form. Subsequent to the acceptance of the
Application by the SCSB, our Company would have a right to reject the Application on technical grounds as
set forth in the Letter of Offer.

After verifying that sufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account details of which are provided in the
Application Form, the SCSB shall block an amount equivalent to the Application Money mentioned in the
Application Form until the Transfer Date. On the Transfer Date, upon receipt of intimation from the
Registrar, of the receipt of minimum subscription and pursuant to the finalization of the Basis of Allotment
as approved by the Designated Stock Exchange, the SCSBs shall transfer such amount as per the Registrar’s
instruction from the ASBA Account into the Allotment Account(s) which shall be a separate bank account
maintained by our Company, other than the bank account referred to in sub-section (3) of Section 40 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The balance amount remaining after the finalisation of the Basis of Allotment on the
Transfer Date shall be unblocked by the SCSBs on the basis of the instructions issued in this regard by the
Registrar to the respective SCSB.

In terms of RBI Circular DBOD No. FSC BC 42/24.47.00/2003- 04 dated November 5, 2003, the stock
invest scheme has been withdrawn. Hence, payment through stock invest would not be accepted in this Issue.

Mode of payment for Resident Shareholders

All payments on the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. Applicants are requested
to strictly adhere to these instructions.

Mode of payment for Non-Resident Shareholders

As regards the Application by non-resident Shareholders, payment must be made only through ASBA facility
and using permissible accounts in accordance with FEMA, FEMA Rules and requirements prescribed by
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RBI and subject to the following:

1. In case where repatriation benefit is available, interest, dividend, sales proceeds derived from the
investment in Equity Shares can be remitted outside India, subject to tax, as applicable according to the
Income-tax Act. However, please note that conditions applicable at the time of original investment in our
Company by the Eligible Equity Shareholder including repatriation shall not change and remain the same
for subscription in the Issue or subscription pursuant to renunciation in the Issue.

2. Subject to the above, in case Equity Shares are Allotted on a non-repatriation basis, the dividend and sale
proceeds of the Equity Shares cannot be remitted outside India.

3. In case of an Application Form received from non-residents, Allotment, refunds and other distribution, if
any, will be made in accordance with the guidelines and rules prescribed by RBI as applicable at the time of
making such Allotment, remittance and subject to necessary approvals.

4. Application Forms received from non-residents/ NRIs, or persons of Indian origin residing abroad for
Allotment of Equity Shares shall, amongst other things, be subject to conditions, as may be imposed from
time to time by RBI under FEMA, in respect of matters including Refund of Application Money and
Allotment.

5. In the case of NRIs who remit their Application Money from funds held in FCNR/NRE Accounts, refunds
and other disbursements, if any shall be credited to such account.

6. Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity Shareholders must submit regulatory approval for
applying for additional Equity Shares.

V1. BASIS FOR THIS ISSUE AND TERMS OF THIS ISSUE

The Equity Shares are being offered for subscription to the Eligible Equity Shareholders whose names appear
as beneficial owners as per the list to be furnished by the Depositories in respect of our Equity Shares held
in dematerialised form and on the register of members of our Company in respect of our Equity Shares held
in physical form at the close of business hours on the Record Date.

For principal terms of Issue such as face value, Issue Price, Rights Entitlement ratio, see “The Issue”
beginning on mentioned above.

> Fractional Entitlements

Since the Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to existing Eligible Equity Shareholders in the
ratio of [e]: [e] ([e]) for every ([®]) Equity Share(s) held as on the Record Date. For Equity Shares being
offered on a rights basis under this Issue, if the shareholding of any of the Eligible Equity Shareholders is
less than [e] ([e]) Equity Shares or not in the multiple of [e] ([e]) the fractional entitlement of such Eligible
Equity Shareholders shall be ignored in the computation of the Rights Entitlement. However, the Eligible
Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored, will be given preferential consideration
for the allotment of one additional Equity Share each if they apply for additional Equity Shares over and
above their Rights Entitlement, if any.

Further, the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding 1 Equity Shares shall have entitlement of at least 1 Equity
Share in the Issue.

» Ranking

The Equity Shares to be issued and Allotted pursuant to this Issue shall be subject to the provisions of the
Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application Form, and the
Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
FEMA, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI LODR Regulations, and the guidelines, notifications and
regulations issued by SEBI, the Government of India and other statutory and regulatory authorities from time
to time, the terms of the Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with the Stock Exchanges and the
terms and conditions as stipulated in the Allotment advice. The Equity Shares to be issued and Allotted under
this Issue shall rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares, in all respects including dividends.
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» Listing and trading of the Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to this Issue

Subject to receipt of the listing and trading approvals, the Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights
basis shall be listed and admitted for trading on BSE. Unless otherwise permitted by the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, the Equity Shares Allotted pursuant to this Issue will be listed as soon as practicable and all
steps for completion of necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading in the Equity Shares
will be taken within such period prescribed under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Our Company has received
in-principle approval from the BSE through letter bearing reference number [e] dated [®] & NSE through
letter bearing reference number [®] dated. Our Company will apply to BSE & NSE for final approvals for
the listing and trading of the Equity Shares subsequent to their Allotment. No assurance can be given
regarding the active or sustained trading in the Equity Shares or the price at which the Equity Shares offered
under this Issue will trade after the listing thereof.

The existing Equity Shares are listed and traded on BSE (Scrip Code: 532640) & NSE (Symbol:
CYBERMEDIA) under the ISIN: INE278G01037. The Equity Shares shall be credited to a temporary ISIN
which will be frozen until the receipt of the final listing/ trading approvals from the Stock Exchanges. Upon
receipt of such listing and trading approvals, the Equity Shares shall be debited from such temporary ISIN
and credited to the regular ISIN for the Equity Shares and thereafter be available for trading and the
temporary ISIN shall be permanently deactivated in the depository system of CDSL and NSDL.

The listing and trading of the Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue shall be based on the current
regulatory framework then applicable. Accordingly, any change in the regulatory regime would affect the
listing and trading schedule.

In case our Company fails to obtain listing or trading permission from the Stock Exchanges, our Company
shall refund through verifiable means/unblock the respective ASBA Accounts, the entire monies
received/blocked within four days of receipt of intimation from the Stock Exchanges, rejecting the
application for listing of the Equity Shares, and if any such money is not refunded/ unblocked within four
days after our Company becomes liable to repay it, our Company and every director of our Company who is
an officer-in-default shall, on and from the expiry of the fourth day, be jointly and severally liable to repay
that money with interest at rates prescribed under applicable law.

Subscription to this Issue by our Promoter and members of the Promoter Group

For details of the intent and extent of subscription by our Promoter and members of the Promoter Group, see
“Capital Structure - Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter” mentioned above.

Rights of Holders of Equity Shares of our Company

Subject to applicable laws, Shareholders who have been Allotted Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue shall
have the following rights:

a. The right to receive dividend, if declared;

b. The right to receive surplus on liquidation;

c. The right to receive offers for rights shares and be allotted bonus shares, if announced;

d. The right to free transferability of Equity Shares;

e. The right to attend general meetings of our Company and exercise voting powers in accordance with law,
unless prohibited / restricted by law and as disclosed in the Letter of Offer; and

f. Such other rights as may be available to a shareholder of a listed public company under the Companies
Act, 2013, the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association.

VIl. GENERAL TERMS OF THE ISSUE

» Market Lot
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The Equity Shares of our Company shall be tradable only in dematerialized form. The market lot for Equity
Shares in dematerialised mode is One Equity Share.

> Joint Holders

Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any Equity Shares, they shall be deemed to hold
the same as the joint holders with the benefit of survivorship subject to the provisions contained in our
Avrticles of Association. In case of Equity Shares held by joint holders, the Application submitted in physical
mode to the Designated Branch of the SCSBs would be required to be signed by all the joint holders (in the
same order as appearing in the records of the Depository) to be considered as valid for allotment of Equity
Shares offered in this Issue.

> Nomination

Nomination facility is available in respect of the Equity Shares in accordance with the provisions of the
Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 19 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture)
Rules, 2014.

Since the Allotment is in dematerialised form, there is no need to make a separate nomination for the Equity
Shares to be allotted in this Issue. Nominations registered with the respective DPs of the Shareholders would
prevail. Any Shareholders holding Equity Shares in dematerialised form and desirous of changing the
existing nomination is requested to inform its Depository Participant.

» Arrangements for Disposal of Odd Lots

The Equity Shares shall be traded in dematerialised form only and, therefore, the marketable lot shall be One
Equity Share and hence, no arrangements for disposal of odd lots are required.

> Notices

In accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and the SEBI Relaxation Circulars, the Abridged Letter of
Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent/ dispatched
only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address. In case such Eligible Equity
Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form,
the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in
case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Abridged Letter of
Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be dispatched, on a
reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

Further, the Letter of Offer will be sent/ dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided
Indian address and who have made a request in this regard. In case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have
provided their valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in
case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Letter of Offer will
be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

All notices to the Eligible Equity Shareholders required to be given by our Company shall be published in
one English language national daily newspaper with wide circulation and one Hindi language national daily
newspaper with wide circulation being the regional language of Delhi, where our Registered Office is
situated.

The Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form shall also be submitted with the
Stock Exchanges for making the same available on their websites.

» Offer to Non-Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders/Shareholders
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As per Rule 7 of the FEMA Rules, RBI has given general permission to Indian companies to issue Equity
Shares to non-resident Equity Shareholders including additional Equity Shares. Further, as per the Master
Direction on Foreign Investment in India dated January 4, 2018 issued by RBI, non-residents may, amongst
other things, (i) subscribe for additional shares over and above their Rights Entitlements; (ii) renounce the
shares offered to them either in full or part thereof in favour of a person named by them; or (iii) apply for the
shares renounced in their favour. Applications received from NRIs and non-residents for allotment of Equity
Shares shall be, amongst other things, subject to the conditions imposed from time to time by RBI under
FEMA in the matter of Application, refund of Application Money, Allotment of Equity Shares and issue of
Rights Entitlement Letters/ letters of Allotment/Allotment advice. If a non-resident or NRI Shareholders has
specific approval from RBI or any other governmental authority, in connection with his shareholding in our
Company, such person should enclose a copy of such approval with the Application details and send it to the
Registrar at www.mpms.mufg.com. It will be the sole responsibility of the Shareholders to ensure that the
necessary approval from the RBI or the governmental authority is valid in order to make any investment in
the Issue and our Company will not be responsible for any such allotments made by relying on such
approvals.

The Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and Application Form shall be sent only to the
Indian addresses of the non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders on a reasonable efforts basis, who have
provided an Indian address to our Company and located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Equity
Shares may be permitted under laws of such jurisdictions, Eligible Equity Shareholders can access the Letter
Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder
is eligible to subscribe for the Equity Shares under applicable securities laws) from the websites of the
Registrar, our Company, and the Stock Exchanges. Further, Application Forms will be made available at
Registered office of our Company for the non-resident Indian Applicants. Our Board may at its absolute
discretion, agree to such terms and conditions as may be stipulated by RBI while approving the Allotment.
The Equity Shares purchased by non- residents shall be subject to the same conditions including restrictions
in regard to the repatriation as are applicable to the original Equity Shares against which Equity Shares are
issued on rights basis.

In case of change of status of holders, i.e., from resident to non-resident, a new demat account must be
opened. Any Application from a demat account which does not reflect the accurate status of the Applicant is
liable to be rejected at the sole discretion of our Company.

Please also note that pursuant to Circular No. 14 dated September 16, 2003 issued by RBI, Overseas
Corporate Bodies (“OCBs”) have been derecognized as an eligible class of Shareholders and RBI has
subsequently issued the Foreign Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to Overseas
Corporate Bodies (OCBs)) Regulations, 2003. Any Shareholders being an OCB is required not to be under
the adverse notice of RBI and in order to apply for this issue as an incorporated non-resident must do so in
accordance with the FDI Circular 2020 and Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instrument) Rules,
2019.

The non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders can update their Indian address in the records maintained by
the Registrar and our Company by submitting their respective copies of self- attested proof of address,
passport, etc. at email id.

ALLOTMENT OF THE EQUITY SHARES IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM.

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR IN THIS ISSUE CAN BE
ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY
ACCOUNT IN WHICH OUR EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH SHAREHOLDERS ON
THE RECORD DATE. FOR DETAILS, SEE “ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR REFUND/
UNBLOCKING OF ASBA ACCOUNTS” AS MENTIONED ABOVE.

VIII. ISSUE SCHEDULE
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LAST DATE FOR CREDIT OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT [o]
ISSUE OPENING DATE [o]
LAST DATE FOR ON MARKET RENUNCIATION OF [o]
RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS#

ISSUE CLOSING DATE* [o]
FINALISATION OF BASIS OF ALLOTMENT (ON OR [o]
ABOUT)

DATE OF ALLOTMENT (ON OR ABOUT) [o]
DATE OF CREDIT (ON OR ABOUT) [o]
DATE OF LISTING (ON OR ABOUT) [o]

# Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is
completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees
on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

* Our Board or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may
determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue
Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue
Closing Date.

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date,
have not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required
to provide their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days
prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., [®] to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of transfer
from the demat suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one day before the Issue
Closing Date, i.e., [®].

IX. BASIS OF ALLOTMENT

Subject to the provisions contained in the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement
Letter, the Application Form, the Articles of Association and the approval of the Designated Stock Exchange,
our Board will proceed to allot the Equity Shares in the following order of priority:

a) Full Allotment to those Eligible Equity Shareholders who have applied for their Rights Entitlements of
Equity Shares either in full or in part and also to the Renouncee(s) who has or have applied for Equity Shares
renounced in their favour, in full or in part.

b) Allotment to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who having applied for all the Equity Shares offered to
them as part of this Issue, have also applied for additional Equity Shares. The Allotment of such additional
Equity Shares will be made as far as possible on an equitable basis having due regard to the number of Equity
Shares held by them on the Record Date, provided there are any unsubscribed Equity Shares after making
full Allotment in (a) and (b) above. The Allotment of such Equity Shares will be at the sole discretion of our
Board in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of this Issue and will not be a
preferential allotment.

c) Allotment to Renouncees who having applied for all the Equity Shares renounced in their favour, have
applied for additional Equity Shares provided there is surplus available after making full Allotment under
(@), (b) and (c) above. The Allotment of such Equity Shares will be made on a proportionate basis in
consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of this Issue and will not be a preferential
allotment.

d) Allotment to any other person, subject to applicable laws, that our Board may deem fit, provided there is
surplus available after making Allotment under (a), (b), (c) and (d) above, and the decision of our Board in
this regard shall be final and binding.

After taking into account allotment to be made under (a) to (d) above, if there is any unsubscribed portion,
the same shall be deemed to be ‘unsubscribed’.

Upon approval of the Basis of Allotment by the Designhated Stock Exchange, the Registrar shall send to the
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Controlling Branches, a list of the Shareholders who have been allocated Equity Shares in this Issue, along
with:

1. The amount to be transferred from the ASBA Account to the separate bank account opened by our
Company for this Issue, for each successful Application;

2. The date by which the funds referred to above, shall be transferred to the aforesaid bank account; and

3. The details of rejected ASBA applications, if any, to enable the SCSBs to unblock the respective ASBA
Accounts.

X. ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR REFUND/ UNBLOCKING OF ASBA ACCOUNTS

Our Company will send/ dispatch Allotment advice, refund intimations or demat credit of securities and/or
letters of regret, only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address. In case such
Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, Allotment advice, refund intimations
or demat credit of securities and/or letters of regret will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case
such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Allotment advice, refund
intimations or demat credit of securities and/or letters of regret will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort
basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them; along with crediting the Allotted Equity Shares to the
respective beneficiary accounts (only in dematerialised mode) or in a demat suspense account (in respect of
Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form on the Allotment Date) or issue
instructions for unblocking the funds in the respective ASBA Accounts, if any, within a period of 15 days
from the Issue Closing Date. In case of failure to do so, our Company and our Directors who are “officers in
default” shall pay interest at 15% p.a. and such other rate as specified under applicable law from the expiry
of such 15 day’s period.

The Rights Entitlements will be credited in the dematerialized form using electronic credit under the
depository system and the Allotment advice shall be sent, through an e-mail, to the e-mail address provided
to our Company or at the address recorded with the Depository.

In the case of non-resident Shareholders who remit their Application Money from funds held in the NRE or
the FCNR Accounts, unblocking and/or payment of interest or dividend and other disbursements, if any,
shall be credited to such accounts.

Where an Applicant has applied for additional Equity Shares in the Issue and is allotted a lesser number of
Equity Shares than applied for, the excess Application Money paid/blocked shall be refunded/unblocked.
The unblocking of ASBA funds / refund of monies shall be completed be within such period as prescribed
under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. In the event that there is a delay in making refunds beyond such period
as prescribed under applicable law, our Company shall pay the requisite interest at such rate as prescribed
under applicable law.

XI. PAYMENT OF REFUND

» Mode of making refunds

The payment of refund, if any, including in the event of oversubscription or failure to list or otherwise would
be done through Unblocking amounts blocked using ASBA facility.

» Refund payment to non-residents

The Application Money will be unblocked in the ASBA Account of the non-resident Applicants, details of
which were provided in the Application Form.

XIl. ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR DEMAT CREDIT OF SECURITIES

» Receipt of the Equity Shares in Dematerialized Form
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The demat credit of securities to the respective beneficiary accounts will be credited within 15 days from the
Issue Closing Date or such other timeline in accordance with applicable laws.

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR UNDER THIS ISSUE CAN BE
ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO (A) THE SAME DEPOSITORY
ACCOUNT/ CORRESPONDING PAN IN WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH
SHAREHOLDERS ON THE RECORD DATE, OR (B) THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT, DETAILS
OF WHICH HAVE BEEN PROVIDED TO OUR COMPANY OR THE REGISTRAR AT LEAST
TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE BY THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY
SHAREHOLDER HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM AS ON THE RECORD
DATE.

Shareholders shall be allotted the Equity Shares in dematerialized (electronic) form. Our Company has
signed an agreement dated August 10, 2015 with NSDL and an agreement dated August 03, 2023 with CDSL
which enables the Shareholders to hold and trade in the securities issued by our Company in a dematerialized
form, instead of holding the Equity Shares in the form of physical certificates.

SHAREHOLDERS MAY PLEASE NOTE THAT THE EQUITY SHARES CAN BE TRADED ON
THE STOCK EXCHANGES ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM.

The procedure for availing the facility for Allotment of Equity Shares in this Issue in the dematerialized form
is as under:

1. Open a beneficiary account with any depository participant (care should be taken that the beneficiary
account should carry the name of the holder in the same manner as is registered in the records of our
Company. In the case of joint holding, the beneficiary account should be opened carrying the names of the
holders in the same order as registered in the records of our Company). In case of Shareholders having
various folios in our Company with different joint holders, the Shareholders will have to open separate
accounts for such holdings. Those Shareholders who have already opened such beneficiary account(s) need
not adhere to this step.

2. It should be ensured that the depository account is in the name(s) of the Shareholders and the names are
in the same order as in the records of our Company or the Depositories.

3. The responsibility for correctness of information filled in the Application Form vis-a- vis such information
with the Shareholders depository participant, would rest with the Shareholders. Shareholders’ should ensure
that the names of the Shareholders and the order in which they appear in Application Form should be the
same as registered with the Shareholders’ depository participant.

4. If incomplete or incorrect beneficiary account details are given in the Application Form, the Shareholders
will not get any Equity Shares and the Application Form will be rejected.

5. The Equity Shares will be allotted to Applicants only in dematerialized form and would be directly credited
to the beneficiary account as given in the Application Form after verification or demat suspense account
(pending receipt of demat account details for resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in
physical form/ with IEPF authority/ in suspense, etc.). Allotment advice, refund order (if any) would be sent
directly to the Applicant by e-mail and, if the printing is feasible, through physical dispatch, by the Registrar
but the Applicant’s depository participant will provide to him the confirmation of the credit of such Equity
Shares to the Applicant’s depository account.

6. Non-transferable Allotment advice/ refund intimation will be directly sent to the Shareholders by the
Registrar, by e-mail and, if the printing is feasible, through physical dispatch.

7. Renouncees will also have to provide the necessary details about their beneficiary account for Allotment
of Equity Shares in this Issue. In case these details are incomplete or incorrect, the Application is liable to
be rejected.

XI. IMPERSONATION

As a matter of abundant caution, attention of the Shareholders is specifically drawn to the provisions of
Section 38 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is reproduced below:
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“Any person who makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for acquiring,
or subscribing for, its securities; or makes or abets making of multiple applications to a company in different
names or in different combinations of his name or surname for acquiring or subscribing for its securities;
or otherwise induces directly or indirectly a company to allot, or register any transfer of, securities to him,
or to any other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action under Section 447.”

The liability prescribed under Section 447 of the Companies Act, 2013 for fraud involving an amount of at
least Rs. 0.1/- crore or 1% of the turnover of the company, whichever is lower, includes imprisonment for a
term of not less than six months extending up to 10 years (provided that where the fraud involves public
interest, such term shall not be less than three years) and fine of an amount not less than the amount involved
in the fraud, extending up to three times of such amount. In case the fraud involves (i) an amount which is
less than Rs. 0.1/- crore or 1% of the turnover of the company, whichever is lower; and (ii) does not involve
public interest, then such fraud is punishable with an imprisonment for a term extending up to five years or
a fine of an amount extending up to Rs. 0.5/- crore or with both.

XIV. UTILISATION OF ISSUE PROCEEDS
Our Board declares that:

A. All monies received out of this Issue shall be transferred to a separate bank account;

B. Details of all monies utilized out of this Issue referred to under (A) above shall be disclosed, and continue
to be disclosed till the time any part of the Issue Proceeds remains unutilised, under an appropriate separate
head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the purpose for which such monies have been utilised:;
and

C. Details of all unutilized monies out of this Issue referred to under (A) above, if any, shall be disclosed
under an appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the form in which such
unutilized monies have been invested.

XV. UNDERTAKINGS BY OUR COMPANY

Our Company undertakes the following:

1. The complaints received in respect of this Issue shall be attended to by our Company expeditiously and
satisfactorily.

2. All steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading at all Stock
Exchanges where the Equity Shares are to be listed will be taken by our Board within seven Working Days
of finalization of Basis of Allotment.

3. The funds required for making refunds / unblocking to unsuccessful Applicants as per the mode(s)
disclosed shall be made available to the Registrar by our Company.

4. Where refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds, a suitable communication shall be sent to
the Shareholders within 4 days of the Issue Closing Date, giving details of the banks where refunds shall be
credited along with amount and expected date of electronic credit of refund.

5. In case of refund / unblocking of the Application Money for unsuccessful Applicants or part of the
Application Money in case of proportionate Allotment, a suitable communication shall be sent to the
Applicants.

6. Adequate arrangements shall be made to collect all ASBA Applications.

7. Our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms specified by SEBI from time to
time.

XVI. SHAREHOLDERS GRIEVANCES, COMMUNICATION AND IMPORTANT LINKS

1) Please read the Letter of Offer carefully before taking any action. The instructions contained in the
Application Form, Abridged Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter are an integral part of the
conditions of the Letter of Offer and must be carefully followed; otherwise the Application is liable to be
rejected.

2) All enquiries in connection with the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement
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Letter or Application Form must be addressed (quoting the Registered Folio Number in case of Eligible
Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date or the DP ID and Client ID
number, the Application Form number and the name of the first Eligible Equity Shareholder as mentioned
on the Application Form and super scribed “CYBER MEDIA (INDIA) LIMITED - RIGHTS ISSUE” on
the envelope and postmarked in India or in the e- mail) to the Registrar at the following address:

MUFG Intime India Private Limited (Formerly Known as Link Intime India Private Limited)
C-101, Embassy 247, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083

Telephone: +91 22 4918 6000

Email: mohan.devadiga@in.mpms.mufg.com

Website: www.mpms.mufg.com

Investor grievance e-mail: mohan.devadiga@in.mpms.mufg.com

Contact Person: Mr. Mohan Devadiga

SEBI Registration No.: INR0O00004058

3) In accordance with SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, frequently asked questions and online/ electronic
dedicated Shareholders helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties faced
by the Shareholders will be available on the website of the Registrar www.mpms.mufg.com. Further, helpline
number provided by the Registrar for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties is
+91 22 4918 6000.

4) The Shareholders can visit following links for the below-mentioned purposes:

a) Frequently asked questions and online/ electronic dedicated Shareholders helpdesk for guidance on the
Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Shareholders: www.mpms.mufg.com.

b) Updation of Indian address/ e-mail address/ phone or mobile number in the records maintained by the
Registrar or our Company: www.mpms.mufg.com. or www.cybermedia.co.in

c¢) Updation of demat account details by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form:
www.mpms.mufg.com.Submission of self-attested PAN, client master sheet and demat account details by
non- resident Eligible Equity Shareholders at email id at mohan.devadiga@in.mpms.mufg.com.

This Issue will remain open for a minimum 15 (Fifteen) days. However, our Board will have the right to
extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue
Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Closing Date).
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RESTRICTIONS ON FOREIGN OWNERSHIP OF INDIAN SECURITIES

Foreign investment in Indian securities is regulated through the Consolidated FDI Policy and FEMA. The
FDI Policy prescribes the limits and conditions subject to which foreign investment can be made in different
sectors of the Indian economy and FEMA regulates the precise manner in which such investment may be
made.

The government bodies responsible for granting foreign investment approvals are the concerned
ministries/departments of the Government of India and the RBI. Pursuant to the press release dated May 24,
2017, the Union Cabinet phased out the FIPB and it was replaced by the Foreign Investment Facilitation
Portal (FIFP) to speed up the FDI inflow and to increase the transparency in the FDI approvals in the country.
The DIPP issued the Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) for Processing FDI Proposals on June 29, 2017
(the "SOP"). The SOP provides a list of the competent authorities to grant approvals for foreign investment
for sectors/activities requiring Government approval. For sectors or activities that are currently under the
automatic route but which required Government approval earlier as per the extant policy during the relevant
period, the concerned Administrative Ministry/Department shall act as the competent authority (the
"Competent Authority™) for the grant of post facto approval for foreign investment. In circumstances where
there is a doubt as to which department shall act as the Competent Authority, the DIPP will identify the
Competent Authority.

The Government of India, from time to time, has made policy pronouncements on Foreign Direct Investment
("FDI™) through press notes and press releases. The DIPP, has issued a consolidated FDI Policy DPIT File
Number 5(2)/2020-FDI Policy Dated the October 15, 2020 ("FDI Policy 2020"), which consolidates and
supersedes all previous press notes, press releases and clarifications on FDI policy issued by the DIPP that
were in force till that date. The Government of India proposes to update the consolidated circular on FDI
policy once every year and therefore, the FDI Policy 2020 will be valid until the DIPP issues an updated
circular.

Under the FDI Policy, unless specifically restricted, foreign investment is freely permitted in all sectors of
the Indian economy up to 100% without any prior approvals, however the foreign investor must follow
certain prescribed procedures for making such investment. Accordingly, the process for foreign direct
investment ("FDI") and approval from the Government of India will now be handled by the FIFP.

The transfer of shares between an Indian resident and a non-resident does not need prior approval of the RBI,
provided that (i) the activities of the investee company falls under the automatic route as provided in the FDI
Policy and FEMA, and the transfer does not attract the provisions of the SEBI Takeover Regulations; (ii) the
non-resident shareholding is within the sectoral limits under the FDI Policy; and (iii) the pricing is in
accordance with the guidelines prescribed by SEBI and RBI.

As per the extant policy of the Government of India, erstwhile OCBs cannot participate in this Issue. OCBs
or Overseas Corporate Bodies have been de-recognised as a class of investor entity in India with effect from
September 16, 2003.

Overseas Corporate Body means a company, partnership firm, society and other corporate body owned
directly or indirectly to the extent of at least sixty per cent by Non- Resident Indians and includes overseas
trust in which not less than sixty percent beneficial interest is held by Non-resident Indians directly or
indirectly but irrevocably, which was in existence as on September 16, 2003 and was eligible to undertake
transactions pursuant to the general permission granted under FEMA. Any investment made in India by such
entities will be treated as investments by incorporated non-resident entities, i.e. a foreign company.

The lIssue, if renounced by our shareholders, may include offers within India, to Indian institutional, non-
institutional and retail investors in offshore transactions as defined in, and made in reliance upon exemptions
from the registration requirements under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "U.S.
Securities Act"), including the exemption under Regulation S ("Regulation S") of the U.S. Securities Act.

The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company is not liable for

223



any amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the
date of this Draft Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigations and ensure
that the number of Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under laws or regulations.

This place has been left blank intentionally
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SECTION VIII - STATUTORY AND OTHER INFORMATION

Please note that the Rights Equity Shares applied for under this Issue can be allotted only in dematerialized
form and to (a) the same depository account/ corresponding pan in which the Equity Shares are held by such
Investor on the Record Date, or (b) the depository account, details of which have been provided to our
Company or the Registrar at least two working days prior to the Issue Closing Date by the Eligible Equity
Shareholder holding Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

The copies of the following contracts which have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company
(not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business carried on by our Company or contracts
entered into more than two years before the date of this Draft Letter of Offer) which are or may be deemed
material have\ been entered or are to be entered into by our Company. Copies of the documents for inspection
referred to hereunder, would be available on the website of the Company www.cybermedia.co.in in from the
date of this Draft Letter of Offer until the Issue Closing Date.

1. Material Contracts for the Issue:
(i) Registrar Agreement dated [e] between our Company and the Registrar to the Issue.

(ii) Escrow Agreement dated [e] amongst our Company, the Registrar to the Issue and the Bankers to the
Issue/ Refund Bank.

(iii) Tripartite Agreement dated December 8, 2003 between our Company, NSDL and the Registrar to the
Issue.

(iii) Tripartite Agreement dated December 22, 2004 between our Company, CDSL and the Registrar to the
Issue.

2. Material Documents:

I. Certified true copy of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of our Company, as
amended from time to time.

I1. Certificate of Incorporation dated September 10, 1982.

I11. Scheme of amalgamation dated February 18, 2011, Between Cybermedia India Online Limited, Cyber
Media Digital Limited, Cyber Media Events Limited, and Cyber Holdings Limited with Cyber Media
(India) Limited.

IV. Resolutions of the Board of Directors dated January 21, 2025 in relation to the Issue and other related
matters.

V. Resolution of the Board of Directors/Right Issue Committee dated March 20, 2025 approving and
adopting the Draft Letter of Offer.

VI. Copies of Annual Reports of our Company for Fiscals 2024 and 2023.
VII. Consents of our Promoters, Directors, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Statutory Auditors,
Bankers to our Company, Bankers to the Issue, Legal Advisor to the Issue, and the Registrar to the Issue

for inclusion of their names in the Draft Letter of Offer to act in their respective capacities.

VIII. Statement of Tax Benefits for our Company from the Statutory Auditors included in this Draft Letter of
Offer.

IX. Copy of Unaudited Financial Statement for the Nine-month period ended December 31, 2024.

X. Audited Financial Statement along with Auditor reports for the financial years ended March 31, 2024
and March 31, 2023.

XI. In-principle approvals each dated [®] issued by BSE and NSE respectively.
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Any of the contracts or documents mentioned in this Draft Letter of Offer may be amended or modified at
any time if so required in the interest of our Company or if required by the other parties, without reference
to the shareholders subject to compliance of the provisions contained in the Companies Act and other relevant
statutes.
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DECLARATION

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules, regulations and
guidelines issued by the Government of India, or the rules, regulations or guidelines issued by the SEBI,
established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be,
have been complied with and no statement made in this Draft Letter of Offer is contrary to the provisions of
the Companies Act 2013, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the Securities Contract
(Regulation) Rules, 1957 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, each as amended, or
the rules, regulations or guidelines issued thereunder, as the case may be. We further certify that all the
statements and disclosures made in this Draft Letter of Offer are true and correct.

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTORS OF OUR COMPANY

Sd/- Sd/-

Pradeep Gupta Rohitasava Chand
(Chairman and Managing Director) (Non-Executive Director)
Sd/- Sd/-

Krishan Kant Tulshan Shravani Dang
(Non-Executive Director) (Independent Director)
Sd/- Sd/-

Dhaval Gupta Amlan Ghose
(Non-Executive Director) (Independent Director)
Sd/- Sd/-

Rajesh Kumar Varun Jain
(Independent Director) (Independent Director)

SIGNED BY THE COMPANY SECRETARY AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF OUR

COMPANY:

Sd/- Sd/-

Anoop Singh Sumit Khandelwal
(Company Secretary and Compliance Officer) (Chief Financial Officer)

Date: March 20, 2025
Place: New Delhi
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